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Agenda

Date: Wednesday, 14th November, 2012
Time: 2.00 pm
Venue: Committee Room 3 - Municipal Buildings, Earle Street,

Crewe CW1 2BJ

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press.
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons
indicated on the agenda and at the foot of each report.

PART 1 — MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT
1. Election of Chairman

To elect a Chairman for the meeting.
2. Declarations of Interest

To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable pecuniary and
non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda.

3.  Complaint No. CEC/2011/08 (Pages 1 - 100)

The Sub-Committee is invited to consider the report of the Borough Solicitor and Monitoring
Officer following an investigation into a complaint against Mrs Sally Beard and Mr David Ellis,
former members of Bunbury Parish Council.

4. Complaint No. CEC/2011/05 and CEC/2011/08 (Pages 101 - 240)
The Sub-Committee is invited to consider the report of the Borough Solicitor and Monitoring

Officer following an investigation into two complaints against Mrs Jill Waits, a former member
of Bunbury Parish Council.

For requests for further information

Contact: Diane Moulson

Tel: 01270 686476

E-Mail: diane.moulson@cheshireeast.gov.uk with any apologies



Complaint No. CEC/2011/06 and CEC/2011/08 (Pages 241 - 300)

The Sub-Committee is invited to consider the report of the Borough Solicitor and Monitoring

Officer following an investigation into two complaints against Councillor Gary McCormack, a
member of Bunbury Parish Council.
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CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE
STANDARDS HEARING AD-HOC SUB-COMMITTEE

Date of meeting: 14 November 2012

Report of: Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer

Title: Allegation of a Breach of the Model Code of Conduct
(Complaint CEC/2011/08)

1. Purpose of the Report

1.1 To enable the Hearing Sub-Committee to consider the Investigating Officer’s
report and to determine what action, if any should be taken.

2. Decision Required

21 The Sub-Committee is invited to consider the Investigating Officer’s report in
accordance with the hearing procedure and relevant legislation/guidelines in
force at the time and determine whether or not there has been a breach of the
Model Code of Conduct.

3. Introduction

3.1 This hearing arises out of allegations made by the Complainants Mrs Erica
Partridge and Mrs Alex Stubbs (Complaint Number CEC/2011/08) that the
Subject Members, Mrs Sally Beard and Mr David Ellis, formerly of Bunbury
Parish Council have breached the Model Code of Conduct, as adopted by
that Council. The details of each case are set out in the report of the
Investigating Officer attached.

3.2  The Sub-Committee has full powers delegated to it by the Audit and
Governance Committee to determine this complaint and must deliver its
verbal decision on the day of the hearing; to be followed by a written decision.
In the event of an adverse finding, the Subject Member(s) may appeal to the
Audit and Governance Standards Appeals Panel.

3.3 The Sub-Committee is asked to note that the complaints were made and the
investigation conducted under the provisions of the Local Government Act
2000 and the Standards (England) Regulations 2008. This legislation was
repealed and replaced with the Localism Act 2011 under which this hearing
will be conducted.

3.4 A copy of Cheshire East Council’'s Code of Conduct Complaints Procedure,
adopted by Council on 19 July 2012 is also appended to the report
(paragraphs 24 to 29 apply).

4, Hearing Procedure

4.1 The hearing procedure to be followed will be circulated at the meeting.
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Complaint and Investigators Report

A complaint was received on 23 November 2011 from the Clerk to Bunbury
Parish Council, Mrs Alex Stubbs on behalf of the Chairman of the Parish
Council, Councillor Erica Partridge which asserted that four members of
Bunbury Parish Council, namely Councillor Jill Waits, Councillor Sally Beard,
Councillor David Ellis and Councillor Gary McCormack had breached the
Code of Conduct.

This report deals with the Investigator’s findings in respect of Councillor Sally
Beard and Councillor David Ellis. The complaints relating to Councillor Jill
Waits and Councillor Gary McCormack are the subject of separate reports.

The Complainants assert that the Subject Members may have breached the
following paragraphs of the Model Code of Conduct:

Subject Member Paragraph Conduct

Clir Sally Beard 9(1) Disclosure of personal interests
12(1) Effect of prejudicial interests on
12(2) participation

Clir David Ellis 9(1) Disclosure of personal interests
12(1) Effect of prejudicial interests on
12(2) participation

As the complaints appeared to relate to linked or overlapping issues, the
Assessment Sub-Committee of the Standards Committee considered the
complaints as part of the same report on 24 January 2012, its decision being
to refer matters to the Monitoring Officer for investigation.

Mr Mike Dudfield was appointed to conduct the investigation and his report
was submitted for consideration to the Hearing Consideration Sub-Committee
of the Standards Committee on 25 June 2012. In accordance with Regulation
17 of the Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008, where the
Investigating Officer’s findings were that a breach had occurred, a hearing
must be convened.

Having taken into account the report’s contents and Members’ obligations
under the Regulations, together with relevant Guidance issued by Standards
for England, the Sub-Committee’s decision was that it concurred with the
conclusions of the Investigating Officer in that -

a) Councillor Sally Beard had failed to comply with paragraph 9(1) and
paragraph 12(1)(a)(ii) of the Model Code of Conduct; and

b) Councillor David Ellis had failed to comply with paragraph 9(1) and
paragraph 12(1)(a)(ii) of the Model Code of Conduct

and that a hearing should be convened to consider the matters.
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6. Parties attending the Hearing

6.1 The Subject Members have confirmed that they will not be present at the
meeting but each has requested that a short statement be read out on their
behalf. The Monitoring Officer has agreed to this request.

6.2 The Complainants have been notified of the date of the hearing but have
intimated that they do not wish to be present. There is no power to compel
any party to attend.

6.3 The Investigating Officer will be in attendance but does not intend to call any
withesses.

7. Matters for Determination

7.1 The Sub-Committee needs to determine whether or not it is satisfied that a
breach of the Model Code of Conduct has occurred in respect of paragraphs
9(1) and 12(1)(a)(ii) of the Code.

8. Decision and Sanctions

8.1 If, having considered the matter, the Sub-Committee finds that the Subject
Members have not breached the Model Code of Conduct, no further action
will be taken.

8.2 If a breach is found, the Members’ Parish Council would be the body to
determine what, if any sanction should be applied. It should be noted that the
Parish Council has no power to impose a sanction against a person who is no
longer a member of it.

8.3 The sanctions available to the Sub-Committee are -

(1) Formal censure e.g. through a motion;

(2) Send a formal letter to the Member;

(3) Recommend a course of action to the Members’ Group Leader/
Town/Council;

(4) Report findings to Council/Town or Parish Council for information;

(5) Issue a press release of its findings in respect of the Member’s
conduct.

8.4 The Hearing Sub-Committee has no power to suspend or disqualify a
Member or to withdraw allowances.

Officer: Caroline Elwood

Designation: Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer

Tel No. 01270 685882

Email: caroline.elwood@cheshireeast.gov.uk
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CONFIDENTIAL

Cheshire East Council

Standards Committee Complaint CEC/2011/08

Report of an investigation by Mike Dudfield, acting as
Investigating Officer,

into allegations concerning the conduct of former Bunbury
Parish Councillors Sally

Beard and David Ellis

This report is submitted to the Monitoring Officer of Cheshire
East Council, Caroline

Elwood

11 April 2012
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Executive Summary

1.

Allegation has been made by Mrs Alex Stubbs, who at that time was Clerk to the
Bunbury Parish Council, on behalf of the then Chairman of the Parish Council,
Erica Partridge, that four Councillors are in breach of various provisions of the
Bunbury Parish Council Members’ Code of Conduct. This report deals with two
of those Councillors, Sally Beard and David Ellis, both of whom have since
resigned as Parish Councillors, Mrs Beard on 04 February and Mr Ellis on 03
February 2012.

It is alleged that both Sally Beard and David Ellis have failed to comply with
paragraphs 9(1) and 12(1) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in
that, at a meeting of the Parish Council on 13 December 2011 neither person
declared either a personal or prejudicial interest when the Council was
considering the Council’s consultative response to a planning application relating
to an amended access way in relation to the development of land off Wyche
Lane, Bunbury.

| conclude that there has been failure by Sally Beard to comply with paragraph
9(1) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, at the Parish
Council meeting on 13 December 2011, she failed to declare a personal interest,
namely, her beneficial interest in Lexington, Wyche Lane, Bunbury, when the
Council was considering a planning application relating to an amended access
way to proposed development of land off Wyche Lane, Bunbury.

| conclude that there has been failure by David Ellis to comply with paragraph
9(1) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, at the Parish
Council meeting on 13 December 2011, he failed to declare a personal interest,
namely, his beneficial interest in Ivy Cottage, Wyche Lane, Bunbury, when the
Council was considering a planning application relating to an amended access
way to proposed development of land off Wyche Lane, Bunbury.

| conclude that there has been failure by Sally Beard to comply with paragraph
12(1)(a)(ii) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, at the
Parish Council meeting on 13 December 2011, having a prejudicial interest,
namely, her beneficial interest in Lexington, Wyche Lane, Bunbury, when the
Council was considering a planning application relating to an amended access
way to proposed development of land off Wyche Lane, Bunbury, she did not
withdraw from the meeting room when that business was being considered at the
meeting.

I conclude that there has been failure by David Ellis to comply with paragraph
12(1)(a)(ii) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, at the
Parish Council meeting on 13 December 2011, having a prejudicial interest,
namely, his beneficial interest in vy Cottage, Wyche Lane, Bunbury, when the
Council was considering a planning application relating to an amended access
way to proposed development of land off Wyche Lane, Bunbury, he did not
withdraw from the meeting room when that business was being considered at the
meeting.
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| find, under Regulation 14 of the Standards Committee (England) Regulations
2008, that there has been a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct.

Relevant Legislation

8.

10.

On 24 January 2012, Cheshire East Council’'s Standards Assessment Sub-
Committee decided to refer the allegations made against then Councillors Beard
and Ellis to the Monitoring Officer for investigation under section 57A(2) of the
Local Government Act 2000.

Under section 82A of the Local Government Act 2000 the Monitoring Officer can
delegate an investigation and on this occasion Mrs Elwood has delegated this
investigation to me.

The Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008 apply to this
investigation.

Relevant Paragraphs of the Code of Conduct

11.

12.

Paragraph 2 of the Code states -

“(1) Subject to sub-paragraphs (2) to (5), you must comply with this Code
whenever you -

(a) conduct the business of your authority (which, in this Code, includes
the business of the office to which you are elected or appointed); or

(b) act, claim to act or give the impression you are acting as a
representative of your authority.

(2) to (5) (not applicable to this case).”
Paragraph 8 states -

“8(1) You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where
either—

(a) it relates to or is likely to affect -
(i) to (viii) (not applicable to this case)

(ix) any land in your authority’s area in which you have a
beneficial interest

(x) to (xi) (not applicable to this case)

(b) (not applicable to this case)



Page 8

8(2) (not applicable to this case)”
13. Paragraph 9 states -

“9(1) Subject to sub-paragraphs (2) to (7) where you have a personal interest in
any business of your authority and you attend a meeting of your authority
at which the business is considered, you must disclose to that meeting the
existence and nature of that interest at the commencement of that
consideration, or when the interest becomes apparent.

9(2) to 9(7) (not applicable in this case).”
14. Paragraph 10 states -

“10(1) Subject to sub-paragraph (2), where you have a personal interest in any
business of your authority you also have a prejudicial interest in that
business where the interest is one which a member of the public with
knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant
that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest.

10(2) You do not have a prejudicial interest in any business of the authority
where that business—

(a) does not affect your financial position or the financial position of a
person or body described in 8;

(b) does not relate to the determining of any approval, consent,
licence, permission or registration in relation to you or any person
or body described in 8; or

(c) (not applicable in this case).”

15. Paragraph 12 states -

“12(1) Subject to sub-paragraph (2), where you have a prejudicial interest in any
business of your authority—

(a) you must withdraw from the room or chamber where a meeting
considering the business is being held—

(i) in a case where sub-paragraph (2) applies, immediately
after making representations, answering questions or
giving evidence;

(ii) in any other case, whenever it becomes apparent that
the business is being considered at that meeting;

unless you have obtained a dispensation from your authority’s
standards committee;
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(b) (not applicable in this case); and

(c) you must not seek improperly to influence a decision about that
business.

12(2) Where you have a prejudicial interest in any business of your authority,
you may attend a meeting (............ ) but only for the purpose of making
representations, ......... , provided that the public are also allowed to
attend the meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory right
or otherwise.”

Councillor Details

16.

17.

18.

Sally Beard was co-opted on to Bunbury Parish Council in 2006 and remained a
Parish Councillor until her resignation on 04 February 2012. She is a joint owner
of Lexington, Wyche Lane, Bunbury.

David William Ellis was a Parish Councillor at Bunbury between 2004 and 2007
and he agreed to be co-opted back on to the Council in January 2011. He
resigned on 03 February 2012. He is a joint owner of lvy Cottage, Wyche Lane,
Bunbury.

Neither Councillor has undertaken any training on either the original or the
amended Code of Conduct.

The Evidence Obtained

19.

| have interviewed -

the complainant Erica Partridge;
Sally Beard; and
David William Ellis

Allegations by Erica Partridge

20.

21.

Although the complaint forms (Appendix A) were completed by the then Clerk,
Mrs Alex Stubbs, the supporting documentation was prepared by Mrs Partridge
and | have only interviewed her in connection with these complaints. At this
stage, | should point out that Mrs Partridge resigned from Bunbury Parish Council
on 06 March 2012.

It will be seen from the documentation attached to the form of the complaint
(Appendix A) that Mrs Partridge submitted two sets of documents - the first
headed ‘Query to Monitoring Officer re Bunbury Parish Councillors and Potential
Breach of Code of Conduct (part of Appendix A) and the second headed
‘Comments relating to Councillor ...". There is a separate set of ‘Comments’ for
each then Councillor and those relating to Mrs Beard and Mr Ellis only are
attached at Appendices B & C. The only potential breach by Mrs Beard and Mr
Ellis identified in that documentation relates to the question of the failure to
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declare a personal and/or prejudicial interest when issues concerning the
development of affordable housing on land off Wyche Lane, Bunbury were being
considered by the Parish Council.

The background to these and the other complaints concerns a proposal to
develop a piece of land at Wyche Lane, Bunbury for affordable housing. The
proposal has a long history with initial proposals in 2003/04 to develop the whole
of the land being firmly opposed by the residents of Bunbury and the Parish
Council. Eventually a proposal came forward for an area of the site fronting
Wyche Lane to be developed for ten affordable houses, a strip of land
immediately behind the development site to be given to the Parish Council and
the remainder of the site not to be developed. The proposed developer is the
Muir Group Housing Association. There is a plan in the bundle of documents at
Appendix B which, although uncoloured gives an idea of the total site. On this
plan, Mrs Beard lives at the house numbered 4 and Mr Ellis at the one numbered
3.The development site and the strip are owned by Muir and Muir also has an
option to purchase the remainder of the site. From time to time, there have been
a number of the Parish Councillors who have been living in Wyche Lane and it
appears that prior to December 2010 only one Parish Councillor ever declared an
interest in any part of the site and that is Councillor McCormack who owns
property on both sides of the site. When Mrs Partridge became Chairman of the
Parish Council in May 2010 she found that the Council had no Standing Orders
or other procedural documents. With the then new Clerk, Mrs Stubbs, Mrs
Partridge set about correcting this and a sub-committee was set up that, with the
help of the Cheshire Association of Local Councils, drafted appropriate
documentation for approval by the Parish Council.

By the Autumn of 2010 the development proposal for the site was moving
forwards and there was regular discussion on issues at Parish Council meetings.
Mrs Partridge became concerned regarding the position of the Wyche Lane
Councillors, excluding Councillor McCormack, and whether they should be
declaring an interest when these issues were being debated. On 17 November
2010 Mrs Partridge sent a detailed email to the Councillors other than Councillor
McCormack, and the Clerk setting out a number of issues concerning the
potential transfer of the second part of the site to the Parish Council. In
response, on 18 November, one of the Wyche Lane Councillors, Mrs Waits,
commented on the issues raised but also raised a question as to whether the
Wyche Lane Councillors should be involved in the discussion on the issues.

As a result of Mrs Partridge’s concern and the email from Mrs Waits, the Clerk
spoke to the Deputy Monitoring Officer, Julie Openshaw, giving her details of the
Councillors involved and asked for advice on the question of interests. Julie
Openshaw gave advice by email on 22 November 2010 (see pages 4 & 5 of
Appendix C). This advice was apparently circulated at the Parish Council
meeting on 14 December 2010 and read by those present and then handed back
to the Clerk on the basis that it contained personal information relating to the
Councillors concerned. This is not minuted but the minutes do show that Mrs
Beard declared a personal and prejudicial interest and left the meeting when an
update on the land offered to the Council was discussed.

When Mr Ellis was co-opted on to the Council, Mrs Stubbs explained to him the
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advice that had been given by Julie Openshaw in her email of 22 November
2010. Although Mr Ellis didn’t agree with the advice, he said that he would abide
by the advice as his position was the same as the other Wyche Lane Councillors.
In order to facilitate proper discussion on the site and the strip without interfering
with the other business of the Council, a Muir Sub-Committee was established
which comprised all Parish Councillors other than the Wyche Lane Councillors
and this met after the main Council meeting each month. From that meeting until
the meeting in November 2011, inclusive, Mrs Beard and Mr Ellis declared
personal and prejudicial interests when she was present at meetings and left the
room. At one point Mr Ellis stated that it was his intention to get some legal
advice on his position which Mrs Partridge welcomed but he then agreed to
follow the advice of the Deputy Monitoring Officer.

As discussions progressed, some of the Wyche Lane Councillors started to
express concerns that they were unable to advise residents in the village what
was happening when they were approached and felt that they should be made
aware of the decisions that the Sub-Committee was making. Muir then submitted
a planning application to Cheshire East proposing an amendment to the access
way between the development and the remaining part of the site. The Parish
Council was consulted on the application. Others were becoming involved and
there was an increased amount of pressure being applied to Mrs Partridge and
the Clerk to explain the details of the proposals and the need for the amendment
planning application. At this stage, 26 September 2011, the Clerk circulated the
email of 22 November 2010 to all Parish Councillors by email. This resulted in
criticisms of the Clerk for the information which she had given to Julie Openshaw
and suggestions that, as the advice stated it was only related to the strip of land,
it did not necessarily apply to other aspects of the development. Consequently a
further approach was made to the Deputy Monitoring Officer for advice and this
was given by email on 30 November 2011. (Appendix L) The email was
circulated to all Parish Councillors on 04 December 2011.

At the Council meeting on 13 December 2011, under the agenda item
‘Declaration of Interests’, Mrs Partridge says that she specifically asked Mrs
Waits and Mr Ellis whether, having considered the second advice from Julie
Openshaw, they had any declaration to make. They both said ‘no’. They were
happy with their position. Mrs Beard was late arriving at the meeting and the
same conversation took place with her. Mrs Beard hesitated and then said ‘no’.
Mrs Partridge asked her if she was sure and did she have any queries and Mrs
Beard again said ‘no’. The Parish Council then discussed issues concerning the
amendment planning application. The minutes record Mrs Beard and Mr Ellis
participating in the debate and raising their concerns that the wider access way
might open up the field behind for housing.

Mrs Partridge believes both persons have a personal interest through the location
of their properties to the site and probably prejudicial interests.

Response from Mrs Sally Beard

20.

Mrs Beard acknowledges that she does not think that she had a full
understanding of the interest provisions and, as no-one else was making any
declarations in respect of the site it did not occur to her that she should. At the
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meeting on 14 December 2010 she read the advice from Julie Openshaw which
was specific to some of the affected Councillors and decided that she should
declare a personal and prejudicial interest when items concerning the
development site and the adjoining land were discussed. She followed this
practice up to and including the meeting in July 2011. She says she was away
for the August meeting and at the September meeting no-one declared any
interest and she left before the Council considered correspondence concerning
the Muir development.

In September 2011 Mrs Beard says that she was contacted by Councillor
McCormack about forming another Parish Council Sub-Committee to ‘protect our
interest’ but she did not act on that but started to look more carefully at her
personal and prejudicial interest in this situation. The email from Julie Openshaw
was circulated on 26 September 2011 and she says that there seemed to be
some confusion regarding the advice and their position. At the Council meeting
on 11 October 2011, the only item which might have been relevant was some
correspondence and Mrs Beard, and others, decided to review the
correspondence and then decide if an interest should be declared. Mrs Beard
left before some correspondence on the amendment planning application was
considered so she made no declaration.

On 17 October Mrs Beard emailed Mrs Waits saying that she was uncertain
whether she should have been declaring an interest and telling her what
happened at the Council meeting on 14 December 2010. Mrs Waits replied that
she (Mrs Waits) believed that it was not now necessary for all the Wyche Lane
Councillors, excluding Gary McCormack, to exclude themselves from all
discussions on all matters relating to Muir and the land behind the development.
Mrs Waits also said that she thought the advice was inaccurate because Julie
Openshaw had been inadequately or incorrectly briefed. On 18 October Mrs
Partridge sent her email and on 19 October Mrs Beard asked the Clerk to clarify
her position with regard to the option strip with the Monitoring Officer.

At the Parish Council meeting on 08 November 2011 all Muir matters were
deferred pending advice sought from Cheshire East so there were no
declarations of interest on Muir matters. Mrs Beard assumed that this advice
included that which she had requested from the Clerk on 19 October. On 04
December Mrs Beard received the second advice from Julie Openshaw but this
didn’t answer the specific query which she had raised. At the meeting on 13
December 2011 Mrs Beard arrived late and was not there when Mrs Partridge
had discussed the advice with Mrs Waits and Mr Ellis. Her arrival was just before
‘Muir matters’ and Mrs Partridge asked her specifically whether she was making
any declaration of interest. Mrs Beard hesitated and she acknowledges, in
hindsight, that she should have said that she was awaiting advice on her specific
query and wasn’t decided. Not wishing to hold up the meeting she said ‘no’
despite the fact that she admits that her gut feeling was that she had a personal
and prejudicial interest in the Muir development site but that, with regard to the
option strip she thought that her interest may not be prejudicial.

Mrs Beard says that she realises now that she should have raised this at the
meeting because she still believed that she would be getting specific advice from
Cheshire East on her position. The meeting discussed the amended access way
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into the option strip and the field beyond and Mrs Beard accepts that she
commented on the width of the amended access way although she does not
recall specifically making reference to further housing.

Having gone through the interest provisions with me, Mrs Beard acknowledges
that she has always had a personal interest in all matters affecting the proposed
development, the option strip and the field and that, depending on the matter
being discussed there will have been a number of occasions when she would
have had a prejudicial interest also. Mrs Beard feels that it is very unfortunate
that those Councillors living in Wyche Lane did not have more information and
advice then they would have had a better understanding of the interest
provisions.

Response from David Ellis

35.

36.

37.

38.

Mr Ellis submitted a detailed response to my initial letter and this is at Appendix
E. He says that when he was co-opted back on to the Council in January 2011
he was advised by the Clerk of the advice from Cheshire East on the question of
interests of Councillors who were resident in Wyche Lane. The Clerk did not
show him a copy of the advice and he didn’t see it until the email of 26
September 2011. He didn’t accept that the advice being given was accurate but
decided to follow the course being adopted by the other Wyche Lane Councillors
and declared a personal and prejudicial interest at subsequent meetings of the
Council.

When the amendment planning application was submitted, Mr Ellis
acknowledges that he and Mrs Ellis objected to the application (see Appendix G)
but says that it was on principle because the original permission responded to a
previous refusal which revolved around the construction of the access to the strip
and land at the rear, and the new application now sought to remove that
requirement. At this time, Mr Ellis says that he became concerned that no
information was being made public on the decisions being made or action being
taken by the Muir Sub-Committee and residents were asking questions which he
was unable to answer.

Mr Ellis was away in New Zealand during October & November and missed both
Parish Council meetings. Shortly before going to New Zealand he had seen a
letter from Cheshire East Planning, Mr Hayward, explaining the criteria adopted
for neighbour notifications (see Appendix E). Notice was only given to those
residents whose property shared a boundary with the development site. Whilst
away he was accessing his emails but he says that he deleted or parked most of
them as many of them were being very vitriolic. He returned to England shortly
before the Council meeting on 13 December. He says that he had not
considered the second advice from Julie Openshaw although it could have been
in his inbox.

At the Council meeting on 13 December he decided not to declare an interest for
two reasons. First he took on board the information received from Mr Hayward
which said that there was no notification to those who did not adjoin the
development site and his property does not adjoin the development site or the
strip. Secondly, when he had acquired his property in 2001 he had been advised
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by his solicitor of the possibility of residential development directly behind the
property and any such development would not cause him any financial loss.
When questioned by Mrs Partridge he confirmed that he did not wish to make
any declaration of interest.

During the discussion on the application he accepts that the minutes say that he
(and Mrs Beard) raised concerns regarding the wider access way opening up the
field behind for housing although he does not recall either of them saying those
words. He does accept that he queried ‘what Gary has in mind for the field'.

Mr Ellis now accepts that he should have declared a personal interest in the
development site, the strip and the field when any matter concerning any of them
was being considered by the Council. He does not believe that his interest is a
prejudicial one. In relation to the development site and the strip, he says this
because, in normal circumstances, he cannot see those two pieces of land and
any activity on those pieces will have no affect on his financial position. In
relation to the field, he says this because he expects the field to be developed for
residential purposes at some stage and any proposal will, therefore, have no
affect on his financial position.

In relation to the discussion on 13 December 2011, Mr Ellis acknowledges that
he should have declared a personal interest and that, in relation to what he is
reported to have said in the minutes or what he actually recalls saying, a member
of the public is likely to regard his interest as prejudicial.

There is no dispute as to the facts. At the Bunbury Parish Council meeting on 13
December 2011 -

(1) no declaration of interest was made by either Mrs Beard or Mr Ellis in
relation to the consultation on the planning application for the amendment
of the access way from the development site into the area behind;

(2) at the time of that meeting, both persons had beneficial interests in
properties on Wyche Lane, in Mrs Beard’s case, directly opposite the
development site, and, in Mr Ellis’s case, backing on to the field at the
rear of the development site; and

(3) according to the minutes of the meeting and their own recollections, Mrs
Beard and Mr Ellis both spoke on the planning application item and made
comments indicating concern at the size of the amended access way.

Application of the Code to the facts found

43.

The first matter to determine is the application of the Code of Conduct. The
meeting on 13 December 2011 was a formal meeting of Bunbury Parish Council.
Mrs Beard and Mr Ellis were present at the meeting as Members and were
conducting the business of the Council under paragraph 2(1)(a) of the Code.
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One of the items of business on the agenda of that Council meeting was the
reconsideration of the planning application from the Muir Group for the
amendment of the access way from the development site at Wyche Lane,
Bunbury, to the strip and the field at the rear. This item of business related to or
was likely to affect property in which Mrs Beard and Mr Ellis had beneficial
interests in property, respectively, Lexington and Ivy Cottage, Wyche Lane,
Bunbury. Consequently both persons had a personal interest in the item of
business under paragraph 8(1)(a)(ix) of the Code. Having such an interest, both
persons should have made a declaration under paragraph 9(1) of the Code of the
existence and nature of that interest at the commencement of the consideration
of that item of business.

| conclude that there has been failure by Sally Beard to comply with paragraph
9(1) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, at the Parish
Council meeting on 13 December 2011, she failed to declare a personal interest,
namely, her beneficial interest in Lexington, Wyche Lane, Bunbury, when the
Council was considering a planning application relating to an amended access
way to proposed development of land off Wyche Lane, Bunbury.

| conclude that there has been failure by David Ellis to comply with paragraph
9(1) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, at the Parish
Council meeting on 13 December 2011, he failed to declare a personal interest,
namely, his beneficial interest in vy Cottage, Wyche Lane, Bunbury, when the
Council was considering a planning application relating to an amended access
way to proposed development of land off Wyche Lane, Bunbury.

Under paragraph 10(1) of the Code, where a Member has a personal interest in
any business of the authority that Member also has a prejudicial interest in that
business where the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge
of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to
prejudice your judgement of the public interest. Paragraph 10(2)(a) restricts the
application of paragraph 10(1) by stating that a Member does not have a
prejudicial interest in any business of the authority where that business does not
affect the Member’s financial position.

In this case Mrs Beard lives immediately opposite the development site and the
access way, of whatever width and format, will enter Wyche Lane virtually
opposite the entrance to her property. Mrs Beard acknowledges that she
expressed concerns at the meeting regarding the width and accepts now that her
interest was a prejudicial one. Consequently, she should have declared that fact
and left the meeting when the business was being considered under paragraph

12(1)(a)(ii).

| conclude that there has been failure by Sally Beard to comply with paragraph
12(1)(a)(ii) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, at the
Parish Council meeting on 13 December 2011, having a prejudicial interest,
namely, her beneficial interest in Lexington, Wyche Lane, Bunbury, when the
Council was considering a planning application relating to an amended access
way to proposed development of land off Wyche Lane, Bunbury, she did not
withdraw from the meeting room when that business was being considered at the
meeting.
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Mr Ellis lives a small distance away from the development site and it is barely
visible from his property. Mr Ellis submitted to me that he was aware of the
possibility of residential development when he bought the property in 2001 and
that his financial interest must be taken to reflect that possibility. Whilst |
understand the point that he makes, it does not matter whether he paid a price
for the property that reflected future development or that he was prepared to
accept there would be a reduction in value when development took place. His
property currently has a value and it is arguable that should there be future
development of the field that value will reduce. Further, his personal letter of
objection to the planning application suggests that he had concern regarding the
possibility of more residential development beyond the ten units already
approved. Therefore, the exception in paragraph 10(2)(a) does not apply and the
test in paragraph 10(1) has to be applied. Mr Ellis accepts that a member of the
public applying the test and hearing whatever he may have said at the meeting
could conclude that a prejudicial interest exists.

I conclude that there has been failure by David Ellis to comply with paragraph
12(1)(a)(ii) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, at the
Parish Council meeting on 13 December 2011, having a prejudicial interest,
namely, his beneficial interest in lvy Cottage, Wyche Lane, Bunbury, when the
Council was considering a planning application relating to an amended access
way to proposed development of land off Wyche Lane, Bunbury, he did not
withdraw from the meeting room when that business was being considered at the
meeting.

General Comment

52.

53.

This case shows how an important but small issue can escalate out of control
very quickly in a Parish Council. In my experience, most, if not all, Parish
Councillors are well-intentioned people prepared to give service to their local
community. However it is not as easy to be objective when an issue does arise
as it is for a Councillor in a much larger authority. Prior to April 2010 Bunbury
Parish Council operated without Standing Orders. When Mrs Partridge became
Chairman she set out to regularise the procedural arrangements within the
Council and did so. Unfortunately her quest for matters to be dealt with properly
has resulted in the upsetting of other Members, the creation of tension within the
Council and, ultimately, severe criticism within and outside the Council for
apparently seeking to do things properly. This criticism has, not surprisingly, led
to her resignation.

From the other perspective, Mrs Beard and Mr Ellis are equally well-intentioned
people who were doing their best to represent the residents of the Parish. This
complaint and subsequent investigation has also led to their resignations.
Unfortunately, where they went wrong is that they never attended or were
seriously encouraged to attend any training courses on the Code of Conduct.
The application of a legal Code through the Local Government Act 2000,
replacing a voluntary one, was a deliberate step by Parliament to create greater
transparency in the manner in which local authorities conducted their business.
My investigation has not required me to ascertain what happened at that time but
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both persons were in office when the first Code was applicable, and Mrs Beard
was in office when the revised Code was introduced in 2007 - yet neither has
been on a training course in respect of either version of the Code.

This is not unusual in Parish Councils and | now cease to be surprised when
investigating complaints against Parish Councillors, particularly in the area of
interests. Many a time | receive minutes of a Parish Council meeting where there
are a substantial number of items on the agenda, yet there is not one declaration
of a personal interest by any Parish Councillor. Quite simply, | find it difficult to
believe that a Member of a Parish Councillor does not have a personal interest in
at least one item on the agenda. | raise this because the Localism Act 2011
changes the position with regard to interests and some Parish Councillors may,
in the not too distant future, find themselves subject to a complaint for non-
declaration of interest which could result in a Police investigation and possible
prosecution.

In this case, Mrs Partridge, Mrs Beard and Mr Ellis all had their views on what an
interest was and, despite the advice of the Deputy Monitoring Officer, the matter
on one particular issue ends up with this investigation. | discussed the Code at
some length with all three and it was clear to me that there was not the
understanding that there should have been of the Code. None had attended a
training session - the need for Parish Councillors to do so is likely to become
even more essential after 01 July 2012.

Response to Draft Report

56.

Mrs Partridge has no comment to make on the draft report. Mr Ellis has sent two
emails, both dated 07 April 2012, which, together with my email reply of 10 April,
forms Appendix M. | have not amended the executive summary of the Report for
the reasons stated in the reply. | have no doubt the Committee will take into
account the mitigation put forward by Mr Ellis when making its determination on
the Report. Mrs Beard has also sent an email, dated 10 April 2012, and this,
together with my email reply of the same date, is at Appendix N. The response
from Mrs Beard does not call for any amendment of the draft report.

Finding

57.

My finding under regulation 14(8)(a)(ii) of the Standards Committee (England)
regulations 2008 is that there has been failure to comply with the Code of
Conduct of Bunbury Parish Council.

Mike Dudfield
Investigator

11 April 2012
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Schedule of Evidence

Appendix A

Appendix B
Appendix C
Appendix D
Appendix E
Appendix F

Appendix G

Appendix H
Appendix |

Appendix J
Appendix K
Appendix L

Appendix M

Appendix N

Copy complaint form from Mrs Alex Stubbs and ‘Query to Monitoring
Officer re Bunbury Parish Councillors and Potential Breach of Code
of Conduct’

Comments from Mrs Partridge and emails relating to David Ellis
Comments from Mrs Partridge and emails relating to Sally Beard
Copy statement from Erica Partridge dated 20 February 2012

Copy letter from David Ellis dated 17 February 2012 and attachments
Copy letter of resignation from David Ellis dated 03 February 2012

Copy letters of objection to planning application from David and Margaret
Ellis dated 07 August 2011

Copy statement from David William Ellis dated 12 March 2012

Copy email from Sally Beard dated 20 February 2012 and attachments
Copy statement from Sally Beard dated 20 March 2012

Copy minutes of Bunbury Parish Council dated 13 December 2011
Copy email from Julie Openshaw dated 30 November 2011

Responses to draft report from Mr Ellis dated 07 April 2012 and my reply
dated 10 April

Response to draft report from Mrs Beard dated 10 April 2012 and my reply
of the same date
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En

COMPLAINT FORM

Code of Conduct — Borough, Parish/Town Councillors and Co-opted
Member(s). Please see attached explanatory notes.

Your details-

1. Please provide us with your name and contact details. (See
Explanatory Notes attached)

Title: e .

First name: Y LEX

Last name: SRS

Address: > C.CD(D(’-@Q)F\{:L-DS
AR A2 A

cHeahPe Cldo ol
Daytime telephone: | ™\ &)< 122262
Evening telephone: | ~ |04 T RFE, [rlaya
Mobile telephone: -
Email address: bMW\bU\&V‘LjC\rﬁ\CAG)O\O\ CCOrv

Your address and contact details will not usually be released unless
necessary or to deal with your complaint.

2. Please tell us which complainant type best describes you:

[ Member of the public

] An elected or co-opted Member(s) of an Authority

(] An independent Member(s) of the standards commitiee
] Member(s) of Parliament

] Local Authority Monitoring Officer

[] Other Council Officer or employee of the Council
m/ Other - please specify
)

3. Making your complaint (See Explanatory Notes attached.)

Please submit to -

The Monitoring Officer, Cheshire East Council, Westfields, Middlewich
Road, Sandbach, CW11 1HZ.

v.1.5
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How.to make a complaint

You must make your complaint in writing (either typed or hand-written).
This complaint form has been produced in order to help you make your
complaint but you do not have to use it. Once you have made your
complaint, you will be told in writing what will happen to it.

Timeframe

Unless there are exceptional circumstances, events which took place
more than 12 months prior to the complaint being submitted, will not
normally be investigated.

Please provide us with the name of the Member(s) you believe have
breached the Code of Conduct and the name of their Authority:

Title | First name | Last name Council or Authority name
Me | Ghcl | oA TS [PUNBUET] PC,
2 | GRe] [ e '
M. DAVID £\ - -
me, | eaus] | BeAaeD " t

Please explain in this section (or on separate sheets) what the
Member(s) has done that you believe breaches the Code of Conduct. If
you are complaining about more than one Member you should clearly
explain what each individual person has done which you believe
breaches the Code of Conduct. (See Explanatory Notes attached.)

Please provide us with details of your complaint. Continue on a
separate sheet if there is not enough space on this form,

YLEASE SE&= ATTACHES "N OSSTES

A EOENL LSS
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Only complete this section if you are requesting that your identity
is kept confidential

In the interests of fairness and natural justice, the Council believes that
Member(s) who are complained about have a right to know who has
made the complaint. The Council also believes they have a right to be
provided with a summary of the complaint. We are unlikely to withhold
your identity or the details of your complaint unless you have good
reason. (See Explanatory Notes attached.)

Please provide us with details of why you believe we should withhold
your name and/or the details of your complaint:

Additional Help

As noted in paragraph 3 above (Making Your Complaint), complaints
must be submitted in writing. This includes fax and electronic
submissions. However, in line with the requirements of the Disability
Discrimination Act 2000, we can make reasonable adjustments to
assist you if you have a disability that prevents you from making your
complaint in writing.

We can also help if English is not your first language.

If you need any support in completing this form, please contact Diane
Moulson (Tel: 01270 686476).



Page 22 Page 1 of 1

Neil and Alex Stubbs

From: "Partridges" <ep.partridges@btinternet.com>
To: "Alex Stubbs" <bunburyclerk@aol.com>
Sent: 04 January 2012 22:35

Attach:  Councillor Jill Waits emails re declarations of interest.doc; Councillor Sally Beard emails re
declaration of interests.doc; Councillor David Ellis Emails.doc; Councillor Gary McCormack
emails.doc; Muir Land various interests plan.pdf; lvy Cottage objection to planning application 11
2423 N S 73 application.pdf; Edinbane James Walton letter to Muir re 873 application 2423N.pdf;
Edinbane Cottage objection to planning application 11 2423N §73 Application.pdf; D Ellis Objection
Letter 07.08.110001.pdf; James Walton example emails.doc; Jill Waits emails regarding other
councillors.doc; Councillor Jill Waits confirmation of appointment letter.doc; Bunbury Parish Council
Query to Monitoring Officer Parish Councillors.doc

Subject:  Query to Monitoring Officer re Non Compliance with the Code of Conduct 4 January 2012

Dear Alex

Paragraph 30 of the Bunbury Parish Council Standing Orders require that | notify you of any breaches in the Code
of Conduct.

Please see the attached documents explaining where there may be breaches of the Code of Conduct by
Councillors Waits, Ellis, Beard and McCormack. If you agree it would be appreciated if you could forward these to
the Monitoring Officer at Cheshire East Council.

| have copied various relevant emails into word documents and coloured them up to mark breaks in the links. | am
happy to provide any further information which is requested.

As you know the Parish Council have now introduced standing orders that correspondence must be sent by post
to the clerks address and reply will be by post to limitemail access but it would be appreciated if the Monitoring

Officer could also be requested, when replying, to proyide any advice which may assist on how to manage this
very unpleasant and complicated situation.

Yours sincerely

Erica Partridge
Chairman, Bunbury Parish Council

09/01/2012
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Query to Monitoring Officer re Bunbury Parish Councillors
and Potential Breach of Code of Conduct

! am writing to express my concerns regarding the actions of a number of Parish Councillors as
it appears that they may be in breach of the Code Of Conduct and the decision of the
Monitoring Officer is requested on this matter.

I haye set out_ the background to the issues below with a separate page relating to each of the
Parish Councillors concerned as there are different issues relating to each person.

Background

1.

The issues arise in relation to the development of some land at Wyche Lane, Bunbury
by Muir Group Housing Association. Muir have planning permission to build 10
affordable homes on the land edged red which included a gate into the field (edged
blue) at the rear of the housing land with a restriction that the access point is to be used
for maintenance only. At a public meeting some years ago prior to the original planning
approval Muir offered to transfer the land edged blue to the Parish Council (this was not
a condition of the planning consent). Muir secured funding for the development and, in
Autumn 2010, they began pre commencement discussions with the owners of the land
coloured yellow and the Parish Council in relation to the transfer of the blue land.

| have attached a plan which shows the following :

- the Muir housing land edged red (the houses have not been built yet)

- the land offered to the Parish Council edged blue

- the land owned by Clir Gary McCormack coloured yellow with one field also edged
purple

- the land owned by Clirs David Ellis, Sally Beard and Dennis Burrows coloured
orange (Clir Burrow has recently retired so this query does not relate to him)

- the home of Clir Waits coloured orange (she shares this property with her partner,
James Walton) as their home but she is not an owner

. whether those houses neighbouring the land have objected to planning application
11/2423N (explained in 5 below) ‘O’ or not objected ‘N’.

James Walton is Secretary of the Local Conservative Club and Clirs Waits and
McCormack are active members of the club and are close associates and friends as
well as neighbours. This also brings them into association with Michael Jones, our
Borough Councillor. it is clear from numerous comments to me by Clir Waits that she
regularly discusses Parish Council matters with Michael Jones. At recent Parish Council
meetings Michael Jones has made his apologies and sent his report via Clir Waits
without contacting the Clerk and he asked Cllr Waits to represent him to lay a wreath at
the armistice day service in Bunbury.

Clir Mc Cormack has acquired the land edged yellow in a number of tranches. He lives
in the house called ‘Fairview’ as his home and over recent years has acquired the other
land holdings now all coloured yellow. Both Muir and Clir McCormack have confirmed
that Clir McCormack had offered to acquire the blue land from Muir at a price of £6000
with a proposal that Muir transfer the £6000 to the Parish Council and not the land. Muir
have stated to me that Clir McCormack also expressed interest in buying the red land
off them. The previous owners of the yellow/purple field sold the red and blue land to
Muir, including covenants for Muir to construct an accessway across the blue land to
adoptable standard, or to the satisfaction of the planning authority on construction of the
houses on the red land (the Muir cul de sac will not be adopted). The covenants in this
contract potentially impact on the blue land in a number of ways and the Parish Council
have commissioned legal advice on this matter and our negotiations in relation to the
transfer of the blue land consequently involve Clir McCormack as well as Muir. These
are not finalised yet, but following discussions over this period terms have been

1
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provisionally agreed for the Parish Council to have a ten year legal option for a transfer
of the blue land for a peppercorn and solicitors are dealing with these contracts. Clir
McCormack has openly stated that his solicitors will serve an injunction on Muir to
prevent the start of construction if the terms of his contract are not met. Failure to reach
agreement on this matter could potentially result in the houses not being constructed.
Muir also have a legal option to acquire the yellow/purple field if they obtain planning
permission to construct houses on it. This can only be withdrawn with Clir McCormack’s
consent which has not been forthcoming. The presence of the option is a contributing
factor to the opposition to the S73 variation application referred to below.

The accessway coloured green therefore impacts not only on the blue land it crosses
but also the the red land (as refusal or non compliance with Clir McCormacks contract
may result in the houses not proceeding) and the yellow/purple land it gives access to
(as opposers of the houses are claiming the access will open this field to development).

5. Muir submitted a S73 planning application No. 11/2423N in August 2011 for a variation
of the original conditions to construct the accessway required by Clir McCormack’s
contract in the position shown by the green line and to remove the condition restricting
access fo the blue land to maintenance only as this would effectively prevent a transfer
of that land to the Parish Council who would need to use it for community purposes. The
proposal is for the green accessway to have a ‘Toptrek’ agricultural type surface and to
be 4.5m wide to ensure compliance with planning and contract standards. This
application has still not been to Cheshire East Planning Committee.

6. Clir Ellis and James Walton (Cllr Waits' partner) have both objected to application
11/2423N. Clirs Beard, Waits, Burrows and McCormack have not. Clir McCormack
purchased the yellow/purple field subject to the existing option agreement referred to in
point 5 above and that contract requires the owners of the field to support any planning
application made by Muir and so prevent him from making a formal objection.

Declaration of Interests and Code of Conduct

7. It has been necessary for the Parish Councillors who live in Wyche Lane to consider

whether they have a personal and/or prejudicial interest to declare in relation to the

. above matters. The sequence of relevant events are set out below. Copies of relevant

correspondence and emails are in separate attachments. Initially the discussions dealt

with just the offer by Muir to transfer the land as the necessity for a further planning

application did not arise until the summer of 2011. It could be that the decision may be
different in relation to each aspect by individual councillors.

8. Prior to October 2010 the Muir matters had been dealt with on the basis that :

. Clir McCormack declared a personal and prejudicial interest in anything relating to
the contracts and planning application 11/2423N and was not present when these
were discussed. He did not declare any interest for purely factual matters relating to
the development eg information on the development programme/allocation of the
houses. He has continued on this basis to date and there is no query on this point in
relation to Clir McCormack;

- the other Clirs neighbouring the land did not declare any interest

. | discussed this with the Clerk as | wondered whether this was correct, particularly
as Clir Burrows made statements such as ‘we don’t want allotments behind us as
they look untidy’ ‘we don't want an orchard as kids will throw apples at our windows'
‘Gary will maintain the land in good condition if it is sold to him’. As the matters are
so complicated she agreed to consider it;

9. On 18" November 2010 Clir Waits sent the aftached email (pages 14/15 of JWs
emails), stating that she was ‘potentially affected’ by the transfer/use of the blue land
as were the Clirs Ellis, Burrows and Beard, effectively declaring an interest herself and

2
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querying whether her neighbours should also declare an interest. Due to the
complications | agreed with the Clerk that she would request the advice of the
Monitoring Officer. She later confirmed to me that she had described various applicable
locations in relation to the blue land to Julie Openshaw who considered the situation

a?d sher:jt the email reply dated 22" November 2010 (page 10 of JWs emails) which is
attached.

Julie Openshaw's email was circulated to Parish Councillors at the Parish Council
meeting in December 2010 under ‘declarations of interest’ on the agenda. Those
affected Clirs who were present (Clirs Beard and Burrows) then declared a personal
and prejudicial interest in relation to the blue land and continued to act accordingly. Clir
Waits was not at the meeting so the Clerk contacted her afterwards the emails on 16"
December (pages 11/12 refer to this conversation). Clir Waits accepted without further
query that she had a personal and prejudicial interest in relation to the blue land and
continued to act accordingly. Clir Ellis became a Parish Councillor in January 2011 and
he was informed of the position which he queried but accepted would also apply to him
and he continued to act accordingly.

The Parish Council decided that discussions relating to the blue land would be held
separately as this would avoid 5 Clirs having to leave the room and consequent
interruption to the meeting and that a number of the matters were subject to
contract/commercially sensitive and not suitable for a public meeting. These meetings
were known as the ‘Muir Sub Committee’ although it was actually the full Parish Council
excluding the public and Clirs with declared prejudicial interests. Initially the advice and
meetings were in relation to the transfer and other contractual issues relating to the blue
land, the need for the planning application arose later.

When Muir submitted planning application 11/2423N Clirs McCormack, Waits, Beard,
Burrows and Ellis all declared a personal and prejudicial interest in that application. It
was discussed at the public Parish Council meeting on 9th August. Before withdrawing
from the meeting Clir Waits asked to make a statement in which she asked the Parish
Council to consider whether a public meeting would be helpful.

On September 12" 2011 Clir McCormack wrote to the Clerk asking for a copy of Julie
Openshaws email advising on the conflict of interest (P6 of GM emails) and saying that
the Wyche Lane Parish Councillors ‘about forming another Parish Council Sub
Committee to protect our interests’.

After that a series of emails were received from James Walton on this matter
culminating in a complaint against the Clerk which has now been withdrawn. He also
made a Freedom of Information Act request for all the discussions/correspondence
relating to the Muir Sub Committee meetings. | will comment further on James Walton
later. This was followed by queries from Clirs Waits and Beard on this matter and further
queries from Clir McCormack. Clir Waits then informed the Parish Council that she was
‘disapplying’ her former declaration of interest and requested all the emails etc relating

to the Muir Sub Committee discussions.

To resolve this issue | decided to hold all matters relating to Muir in abeyance pending
further guidance being requested from the Monitoring Officer, Caroline Eliwood. She
replied that she was unable to give detailed guidance but Julie Openshaw provided a
copy of the explanatory guidance on the code of conduct which is most helpful. This
was issued to all the councillors.

At the request of Clir Waits matters relating to the Muir land were included in the
agenda of the 13" December 2011 meeting. The Wyche Lane Clirs were asked if they
had any interest to declare or any further queries. Clirs Waits, Beard and Ellis advised
that they did not (reversing their earlier declaration of interests) and Clir McCormack
advised he would declare a personal and prejudicial interest relating to the Muir land

3
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and he left the room during the discussion. Clir Waits proposed that the Parish Council
open up their previous decision relating to planning application 11/2423N to allow the
Wyche Lane Councillors to contribute, this was seconded and councillors voted to re
discuss the matter. The discussion also involved contractual matters relating to the blue
land as the issues are interlinked. On a further vote the original decision was confirmed.

Original Application : | was not a councillor at the time but my understanding from those
who were is that no personal or prejudicial interests were ever declared. The Chairman
at the time was Clir Dennis Burrows and the then Clerk, Colin Knowles, was a close
associate with him from their membership of the Tarporley British Legion. As a village
resident | could not understand why the Parish Council were so vehemently opposed to
much need affordable homes but it appeatrs that several then Parish Councillors lived in
Wyche Lane.

It appears to me that the Parish Councillors who live in Wyche Lane should declare a
personal and probably a prejudicial interest in relation to the Muir Land planning
11/2423N application and transfer and use of the blue land and in rescinding their
previous declarations of personal and prejudicial interest that they may now be in
breach of the Code of Conduct. The Monitoring Officers advice is requested on this
matter. As the circumstances of each are different | have made separate comments on
each councillor concerned below.
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Comments Relating to Councillor Ellis

1. Councillor Ellis works very hard for the local community and was previously a Parish
Councillor when the original planning application was considered. He has supported the
construction of the affordable homes on the basis of need for the village.

2. The objections to the planning application 11/2423N by Clir Ellis and his wife are
attached. He is concerned at the potential risk of future development on the field edged
purple which is behind his home and it appears that this alone gives rise to a personal
and probably prejudicial interest in that application.

3 At the December Parish Council meeting, Clir Ellis actually voted in favour of the
existing Parish Council decision to support planning application on hearing the more
detailed information on the potential risk to the development of these houses from
contractual litigation if the application is refused. He said he considered them to be
more important than the other ‘risks’ which would be dealt with should they ever arise
later. Following the meeting Clir Ellis asked 'what is a prejudicial interest ?' — | therefore
do not think he has fully understood the guidance and how it applies to himself.

4. It therefore appears to me that Clir Ellis may have broken the following codes of
conduct:

9 (1) * disclosure of personal interests’
Potentially 12 (1) and 12(2) ‘effect of prejudicial interests on participation’
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EMAILS RELATING TO COUNCILLOR DAVID ELLIS DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

=--== Original Message -----

From: David Ellis

To: 'Partridges’

Sent: Wednesday, August 17, 2011 9:02 AM
Subject: RE: Muir E-mails & communications

Hi Erica

Having seen James's reply to you | have held back from letting you know that | have also heard that the
passing of this variation will not satisfy Gary and that he has a further one or two ideas in his bag to
frustrate the development. It is only rumour but comes from a fairly reliable source, | think the time is fast
approaching when the PC has to issue a statement to let the locals know that the continued delay on this
development is nothing to do with the PC but is the result of a legal dispute between Gary and Muir. |
also strongly believe that both litigant's names should be on the statement and not just referred to as the
owner of the adjoining land. A number of people are of the opinion that the PC is party to all of this
nonsense and trying to delay the building and to be perfectly honest | do not like being accused of
something | have no control over. | have not held back from naming Gary as the person fighting it but an
official statement needs to be made.

Regards

David

----- Original Message -----

From: Partridges

To: David Ellis

Cc: 'Bunbury Parish' ; m.jones1@btconnect.com

Sent: Friday, August 12, 2011 10:09 AM

Subject: Re: Planning applications 11/2423N & 11/2575N

David
Thank you for your email.

The two planning applications have caused much confusion. The Clerk to the Parish Council and the
Borough Councillor are looking into this matter. The Parish Council acted on what they understood
the situation to be. Michael Jones has advised that he asked for application 2675 to be called in last
week on the basis that 2423 was to be withdrawn but he is also asking for 2423 to be called in today.
This will allow time for the issue to be resolved and comments recorded against the correct planning
application which is to go forward or comments to be recorded against both. If necessary, the Parish
Council will review their decision when this is clarifed.

As you say, the Toptrek is an agricultural surface which would not support a residential development
which would be subject to planning application.

The Parish Council Ownership of the PC strip is seen by villagers as an important factor in relation to this
development. To enable this to happen the Parish Council must be able to use the land for comunity
benefit and have sufficient access to it. In transferring the land/granting rights to the Parish Council, Muir
are also required to provide the accessway in a way which will discharge their obligation under the
contract to the owner of the adjacent field. The Parish Council considered the application resolves these
issues. There is no suggestion of residential development on the adjacent field. The transfer of the PCT
strip is not a planning condition and is currently not a contractual obligation on Muir. The Parish

Councll have decided to take a legal option on the PC strip to allow time for consultations on the use,
obtain planning permission and funding and this is currently subject to contract.

In considering the issues created by the covenant where it directly impacts on the Parish Council relating
to transfer of the PC strip the Parish Council wrote to the owners of the adjacent field to ask if they would
give up their rights for an accessway across the PC strip as they have alternative access as this

would remove constraints on the use of the PC strip created by this covenant. It would also have had the
additional benefit of removing the public anxiety which now appear to be created by it. The owners
replied that they did not wish to vary the covenant so the Parish Council must proceed on the basis of the
existing contracts.

| hope this clarifies the position for you and alays some, if not all of your concerns,



Page 30

Kind regards

Erica Partridge
Chairman, Bunbury Parish Council

----- Original Message —---

From: David Ellis

To: 'Partridges’

Cec: 'Bunbury Parish' ; 'jill waits' ; m.jones1@btconnect.com
Sent: Thursday, August 11, 2011 4:46 PM

Subject: Planning applications 11/2423N & 11/2576N

FOR YOUR URGENT ATTENTION PLEASE

Dear Erica

| had sincerely hoped that | would not have to come back to you again on this most unsatisfactory matter
but having just received a copy of the minutes from your sub committee meeting last night | am writing to
point out an error that your group has made and also to express my dismay at the fact that you all
decided to ignore one of the most important points in the proposed variation.

Firstly you are totally incorrect in stating that application 11/2576N is the one to which you should be
referring and not 11/2423N, which is the one posted on the gate of the development. As you can imagine
this has caused considerable concern as | and my neighbours have been objecting to 11/2423N which
means that none have been recorded against 11/2575N. As soon as | read your minutes | printed off a
copy of both applications and to all intents and purposes they are identical except that one has a
signature and the other does not, perhaps someone on your committee should have physically checked
this documentation before making a decision. As a result | telephoned the planners and asked to speak
to Ben Haywood but needless to say he would not speak to me so | was eventually put on to Mr Earlin
Smith who referred my query to Haywood whilst | waited on the phone. To start with they claimed that
both applications were valid as they were different but when | asked them to read both very carefully they
admitted that there was no difference in them. Also they could not explain why there was only one public
notice referring 11/2423N on the gate. After some considerable debate at their end they admitted that
they had made a mistake and that 11/2423N was the correct application and not 11/2575N as quoted in
your minutes. | also obtained a guarantee from them that they would transfer the objections from
1J/2575N to 11/2423N so that these objectors would not be ignored. | would have thought that someone
at your meeting would have realised that 11/2423N was the correct one as that was the one posted on
the gate to the development. Perhaps if one of the councillors who knows the details of the application
was present this mistale would not have occurred!!!! Will you please ensure that your comments to the
council refer to the correct application number. Also | was disturbed when | was told by Earlin Smith that
Haywood would know the answer to my query because he was the one who would be making the
decision on the application and not the planning committee. | sincerely hope that Michael will call it
in as he promised and not let us be bullied by someone like Haywood who seems to be very cosy with
Muir but | suspect that your decision last night will now prevent this from happening which is totally
against the wishes of your constituents. Unfortunately your decision was reached by a group of people
who are not at all affected by this application and one in particular is very keen to get the development
started because of the rash promises he has made to the village over the past few years and he is
unable to see that this will open up Gary's field for possible future development by either Muir of Gary
subject to planning.

On reading your decision | am quite happy with your recommendation about the surface of the track/road
but | am very unhappy that your group completely ignored the residents concerns on the width of the
entrance being increased to 4.5 metres. We have been told that the land behind is for agricultural
purposes so it certainly does not need as big an access as this. A normal size agricultural access would
be sufficient to allow access by tractors etc. Once this wider access is agreed anything could happen to
the land at some future date, subject to planning of course. Also if you look at the original layout the
original access would cover just one parking space but if it is wider it will cover two which | think destroys
one of their reasons for lodging this application. | think that you need to rethink your decision in the light
of these comments which are endorsed by my neighbours.

I look forward to hearing from both you and Michael.
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Yours sincerely
David

From: Partridges <ep.partridges@btinternet.com>

To: Bunbury Parish <Bunburyclerk@aol.com>; Brian Dykes <b.dykes@btinternet.com>
Sent: Wednesday, 24 August, 2011 19:37:51

Subject: Re: Rumours abound around Wyche Lane

Hi Alex

I think we should just put a large notice in the notice board but | am happy to go with a circulation if you
and Brian think it will help.

Regards

Erica

=== Original Message -----

From: Bunbury. Parish

To: Erica Pattridge ; Brian Dykes

Sent: Wednesday, August 24, 2011 7:15 PM
Subject: Rumours abound around Wyche Lane

Hi Both

David Ellis rang me this morning to say that he had been stopped by 3 people in the village who
wanted to know about the 50 houses being built at Wyche Lane. He says that he thinks he
knows where this rumour originates.

He wondered if the Parish Council should put out a notice correcting the rumour.

My personal view is that if people don't read the minutes on the board, they probably won't
read a correction either but I'm happy to put something up if required.

What do you think? Do you think we need to go as far as a mail drop in the village basically
saying the same thing as the minutes? We could do this easily if | printed them and then
councillors helped to deliver.

Regards
Aleyx

----- Original Message -----
From: David Ellis
To: 'Partridges’

Cc: 'Bunbury Parish’
Sent: Sunday, August 07, 2011 2:25 PM
Subject: RE: Land at the rear of Muir Development

Dear Erica

Thanks for your reply but as | said | do not have to agree with the policy but will abide by it. | am quite
aware of Gary’s position but there is no need for the access to be up to adoption standard as agricultural
use does not require this but | suspect that Gary is working to another agenda of which we are not party.
You need not worry about me on Tuesday as | will leave the meeting as soon as the application comes
up. It is strange, however, that none of us were excluded from the meetings when the very first
application came up back in 2004/5 but that is now history but the present situation certainly
does not sit very easily with our neighbours who are asking us to do something about the
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problem. As there will be a lack of objections to the application because so many people are away and
is likely to be decided by delegated powers what the few of us have to say will probably have no affect on
the outcome and we will just have to wait for the application for a very large housing estate in the middle
of the village. It would appear from the actual application details that the planning officers are very cosy
with Muir and have been advising them on how to present the application. If the information is released
to my neighbour under the Freedom of Information Act and we find that there has been some collusion
between the various parties then there will be real trouble!

Regards

David

From: Partridges [mailto:ep.partridges@btinternet.com]
Sent: 07 August 2011 13:23

To: David Ellis

Ce: Alex Stubbs

Subject: Land at the rear of Muir Development

Dear David
Firstly - please can you use my btinternet address above and delete the old tiscali one.

Thank you for lefting me know what is happening generally and about the planning application, Alex has
been away and hopefully she will have received the notice to include for discussion at Tuesdays
meeting.

As you know the Parish Council has been advised that the neighbouring Councillors have a personal and
prejudical interest in relation to this land and do not therefore take part in the meeting on this item. This
also means, as you say in your third paragraph, that the neighbouring Parish Councillors may deal with
matters in relation to this land as private individuals, not Parish Councillors. This means that there is no
need to review your position as a councillor on this matter as the declaration of interest already does that
for you. | hope and trust that this alays your concerns on this point. | have copied Alex in so she can
confirm also.

| am not sure if you are aware that the land owned by Mr and Mrs McCormack includes an obligation on
Muir to construct an access across the land being offered to the Parish Council connecting the
McCormacks land to the Muir development and this access can be up to 'adoption standard'. This is a
publicly available document which can be obtained from the Land Registry and you may wish to obtain a
copy for information.

Regards

Erica

Dear Erica

Just by chance today | found out that Muir has submitted a planning application to vary the decision
reached by the Inspector at the last appeal. | and none of my neighbours have received notices of this
application and understand that just three houses have been notified, one of which was Gary. The first
we heard of it was when the notice appeared yesterday or the day before but as | was away | did hot see
it until today.

The application is seeking to change the access to the land at the rear from agrlcultural to a main stream
road which would enable any future owner to apply for planning to develop it and they are claiming that
the current approval is a constraint on future owners of the land, both the land to be transferred to the PC
and Gary's land. As with the previous application it has been submitted at the height of the summer when
most people are away and with a very short timescale in which to object (the 24" August 2011).

4
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Obviously if this comes up at a future PC meeting then it can only be discussed by a minority of the
members with the people most affected being excluded which we find to be unsatisfactory, particularly as
[ am not sure if at least one of this minority really does not know what is going on and is constantly
barking up the wrong tree.

I, and my neighbours, will not allow this application to go unchallenged as it flies in the face of the
Inspector’s decision and as | am not able to use the PC to fight it | will have to do it as a private individual
but | do not think that | can sit in both camps as one could end up fighting the other. Obviously as far as |
am concerned this application needs fighting and | cannot rely on the minority committee to come to the
same decision as me so | might have to seriously consider my position on the PC.

Should Muir obtain approval to their application then | suspect that they will exercise their option to buy
the land, which | think has another 3 years to run, and at some future date apply to develop it in spite of
Robinson saying at an open meeting that they were now not interested in it. It also follows that should
they not exercise their option then Gary will be sitting on a very desirable piece of land as far as
developers are concerned!!! | suspect, however, that they will go with the former suggestion just to spite
Gary!!

| am writing this as a matter of courtesy to let you know what is happening but you should also know that
| have today written to Eric Pickles, and copied to the Chief Executive of East Cheshire, to complain at
the way this matter has been handled by East Cheshire and the fact that the majority of Bunbury PC do
not have a say in what is happening to this land. | accept that you have been advised on this matter but it
does not mean that | have to agree with the advice given to you.

| would also mention that one of my neighbours has today applied under the Freedom of Information Act
to see all of the documentation and meeting notes relating to any meetings held between Muir and the
planners at East Cheshire.

| will keep you informed.
Kind regards

David

----- Original Message -----
From: David Ellis
To: 'Partridges'

Ce: 'Bunbury Parish'
Sent: Monday, July 25, 2011 8:13 AM

Subject: RE: Draft minutes from last weeks meeting.

Hi Erica

Thanks for your e-mail and telephone call. | was aware of the sub committee being set up and | voted for
it to save us having to leave the meeting but since then | have had a number of people approach me to
seek advice as to what is happening to the “ransom strip” behind the Muir development and | have felt
completely impotent in not being able to answer their questions. As | have told Alex one lady in
particular, Anne James, who backs right on to the piece of land is particularly concerned because of the
rumour she has heard that one or two councillors are in favour of selling it to Gary, and aithough | am
aware of this sentiment | have been unable to reassure her that this will not happen and she will not
approach the councillors who have mentioned this option with the sale proceeds going to the pavilion!!
We are not very well thought of in the village and | seem to have become the sounding board for a lot of
people because they do not feel able to approach our more established members because they are set
in their ways. Even yesterday at a lunch in support of Eton church | was button holed by a very senior
legal person who lives in Bunbury asking me just what the PC did. | explained that things had changed
since you came on board and that you and Alex were the sole reason for me going back on to the council
as | would not have contemplated it under the previous regime. Unfortunately in the eyes of this person
nothing has really changed because so many of the hard core are still on board but | told him that this is
something only the likes of him can change by standing for election. You are doing a great job but | fear
that the old ways will take a long time to eradicate and | am concerned that | am again going to be
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confrontational with the likes of Brian because | have very little patience with people like him and do not
suffer fools lightly. Should this happen and | find that | am disrupting the meeting then | will have to
consider my position.

As far as the Muir thing is concerned | am not going to put the PC to the expense of seeking further legal
advice and | will keep the advice of the Borough solicitor to myself and | will now not pursue the matter
further but advise any enquirer in the future that | cannot help them and that they will just have to wait
like me until something is published in the minutes. Not satisfactory but necessary.

Thanks for your time in contacting me.

Regards

David

From: Partridges [mailto:ep.partridges@btinternet.com]
Sent: 22 July 2011 10:08

To: David Ellis

Cc: Alex Stubbs

Subject: Re: Draft minutes from last weeks meeting.

Hi David

The exclusion of all Parish Councillors who live backing onto the area were excluded as Alex says, on
the advice of CE. (Alex - can you please let David have a copy of that advice), as having a personal and
prejudicial interest which means they have to be excluded from the item.

The Parish Council then appointed a sub committee to take the matter forward, (to avoid the need for the
Wyche Land councillors to have to leave the meeting) which comprised all the councillors not backing
onto the land. All this was approved by the Parish Council.

Muir have offered an option on the land for 10 years to the Parish Council which the sub committee have
decided is the best course of action at the moment. It is impossible for the Parish Council (via the sub
committee) to take the matter any further in terms of uses for the land including whether to take a
transfer of it or not until Muir are able to sort out their planning and contractual matters.

Taking the legal option guarantees the possibility of the Parish Council taking the land for the next 10
years and prevents other purchasers acquiring the land to prevent the Parish Council from doing so. It
effectively turns the Muir 'promise’ into a contractual obligation and there is no obligation on the Parish
Council to do anything. This means the Parish Council can take time deciding on the matter.

It might be possible for Muir to sell the land subject to the option, but the option would then continue with
another purchaser.

The sub committee came back to the Parish Council to explain the proposal and request authority to sign
the contract. This was explained at the Parish Council meeting but you could not attend.

We have not received a draft contract yet but now have Parish Council approval to proceed to contract,

| understand the frustrations of the Wyche Lane Councillors, the matter is very difficult and | had hoped
that the matter could have been treated differently but one Councillor raised the question of conflict of
interest so Alex had to take advice and act on it.

| am not sure the Parish Council can accept advice from a solicitor acting independently for a Councillor
as the same conflict of interest arises. If for some reason your own legal advice differs from that already
given to the Parish Council, then the Parish Council may have to obtain it's own legal advice or as CH to
comment on it/take legal advice.

I am sure you appreciate that Alex and | are not trying to be obstructive but have had to proceed in
accordance with the governance proceduresand the advice Alex has been given.

Thank you for seeking legal advice, | am very much interested to hear the outcome.

Best regards
Erica

----- Original Message ~----
From: Bunbury Parish
To: David Ellis

Cc: Erica Partridge
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Sent: Wednesday, July 20, 2011 7:38 PM
Subject: Re: Draft minutes from last weeks meeting.

Hi David
| know what you mean, | feel that I'm treading on eggshells with all these exclusions.

We haven't signed anything yet but have received a draft 10 year option from Muir. It simply secures the
land behind the Muir development for the Parish Council, so that Muir can't do anything else with it or sell
it to anybody else. However, at any time during the 10 years the Parish Council can simply walk away
and decide that we don't want the land without taking on any financial or other responsibilities for it.

The sub-committee felt that this gave the PC some time for the legalities around the proposed
road/accesses efc to be sorted out without the PC having to be involved - the PC can sit back, wait for
everything to be resolved (possibly!), review the situation and then make a final decision on whether it
wants the land or not when we see what obligations come with it. It also gives us time to investigate what
the village wants to do with the land and also to look at fund raising/grants etc.

I am happy to go along with whatever guidance the solicitor comes up with, but when we did investigate
with CE before, they did suggest the exclusions.

| hope that I've explained it all clearly, but do please let me know if you want any further information.

Regards
Alex
----- Original Message -----

From: David Ellis

To: 'Bunbury Parish'

Sent: Tuesday, July 19, 2011 9:57 AM

Subject: RE: Draft minutes from last weeks meeting.

Hi Alex

Can you please provide me with more details of the proposed 10 year option on the Muir land which is
coming to the village. Being excluded from the meetings discussing this matter is really very
unsatisfactory and | feel that everyone should be able to attend but not able to comment as in normal
meetings when you have an interest in the subject. | have written to the Borough solicitor asking for
guidance on this matter of exclusion.

Regards

David

————— Original Message -----

From: David Ellis

To: 'Partridges’

Cc: 'Bunbury Parish’

Sent: Thursday, March 31, 2011 9:02 AM
Subject: Muir

Hi Erica :
Thanks for the note. | agree entirely with your thoughts and this latest episode is just very silly. | do not
really know what Gary is going on about as the original planning approval by the Inspector allowed for an
access road to the land behind, now owned by Gary, through the centre of the development where he
has put his gate. So what is his gripe? He has tried to get me on board with his fight with Muir but I have
just told him that it is nothing to do with the PC and he and his solicitor must deal with it themselves
without involving anyone else. It looks to me as if too many people are on the PC fo fight their own
personal battles and not look at the bigger picture!

Hey ho such is lifell

Regards

David
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----- Original Message -----

From: Partridges

To: David Ellis

Ce: Alex Stubbs

Sent: Wednesday, March 30, 2011 5:55 PM
Subject: Muir

Hi David

Please note - my new email address is ep.partridges@btinternet.com

Thanks - a note about hedge cutting was handed over last night by Jill from Dennis. | commented that it
said Muir needed to check the hedge for nesting before starting work which sparked a disagreement on
whether the nests were new or old. | agree it is all a bit silly and rather desperate.

We will need to see if Muir enter on the site this week - Gary was threatening private injunctions if they
do without having planning consent for his access road, which is up to him.

Alex and | think we may have to arrange a tripartite meeting about fixing the location of the road but we
need to see if Muir are actually progressing first.

Regards

Erica

----- Original Message -----

From: David Ellis =

To: 'Erica Partridge’

Ce: 'Bunbury Parish'

Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2011 12:21 PM
Subject: Muir

Hi Erica

It looks as if one or two members of the PC are gunning for Muir again and | have just about had enough
of this stupid behaviour and have today sent a note to Dennis to this effect (see below). They are now
trying to delay the start of the project by claiming that they should not be demolishing hedges at this time
of the year. | think you will find my note self explanatory!! | am sending you this as | will not be at the
meeting but wanted you to be aware of my very strong thoughts and that | will not let it go when | get to
the next meeting. Whilst writing should we have put up a notice inviting new applicants to apply to come
on to the PC? We would probably not get any one but | would love to see a vote for members to see
what the locals actually think of usi!!

Hi Dennis

Here is the information you asked for but I have to say that I believe that we should now let
Muir get on with it as no one seems to be thinking of the youngsters needs in the village. 1 speak
to the youngsters all of the time and am helping a number of them with their applications as they
do not believe that the Parish Council gives one jot for their needs and that we are just playing
games with their future. We have lost the planning application and we now have to make the
most of what we have got and do as much as we can for the youngsters of our village and not
antagonise Muir any more than we have to. We waste so much time talking about ways in which
to stop Muir and in my opinion this has to stop and we must put our local families first and not
our own personal feelings. Unfortunately T will not be at the next meeting but I will fight any
attempt to delay this project as best I can so that I can look the youngsters straight in the eye and
say that at least one member of the PC is sticking up for them.
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Sorry to be as strong as this about it but we need to speak our mind sometimes and 1 will
certainly let the applicants know why there are delays in providing them with affordable
housing.

Regards

David
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Comments relating to Councillor Beard

1 Councillor Beard works very hard as a Parish Councillor, particularly in relation to the
Playing Fields Committee.

2. She has not objected to planning application 11/2423N and queried whether she should
declare a personal and/or prejudicial interest in relation to the blue land as she lives
over the road from the proposed affordable houses and believes the field may not be
visible from her home. However, her home is located opposite to the enirance to the
houses and the blue field so she would be affected by any activity. She has also stated
in a Parish Council meeting that further information on Muir's funding for the houses
was needed for the Wyche Lane residents to further their plans.

3. In the discussion on 11/2423N at the December meeting she voted against the
application giving the potential risk to future further housing development on the field
edged purple as her reason which would directly impact on her home.

4. It therefore appears to me that Clir Beard may have broken the following codes of
conduct:

9 (1) * disclosure of personal interests’
Potentially 12 (1) and 12(2) ‘effect of prejudicial interests on participation’
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COUNCILLOR SALLY BEARD EMAILS RELATING TO DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

----- Original Message -----

From: Sally Beard

To: Bunbury Parish

Cc: Erica Partridge ‘

Sent: Wednesday, October 19, 2011 3:52 PM

Subject: Re: Openshaw letter Fw: Members' Interests query

Alex,

Erica has helped me with respect to her reply to this email. I just need to clarify whether the
advice regarding 'member D' (je. myself) in the scenario is right. Julie Openshaw's advice was
that T would have a 'preducial interest' because my property has a view of the development.
Whilst I will have a view of the development, with what is going to be built I do not think that I
will retain a view of the strip of 'gifted' land in question. I would consider that the Muir
development has a potential affect on us but not the strip of land behind, Please can you clarify
this with the Monitoring Officer.

Many thanks

Sally

PS. I presume that I don't need to produce the existing Muir plans of the development in relation
to my house. We're still uncertain about the final height levels of the proposed development but

based on what I've seen with the land being higher than ours by some degree, once houses are
built there is no way we will be viewing the strip of land behind.

Message Received: Oct 18 2011, 09:19 PM

From: "Partridges"

To: "jill waits" , sallypbeard@fsmail.net

Cc: "Brian Dykes" , "Bunbury Parish" , "Dave Ellis" , "Dennis Burrows" , "Eric Lord" , "GMC"
, "Mandy Jones" , "Nick Parker"

Subject: Re: Openshaw letter Fw: Members' Interests query

Jill and Sally and other Parish Councillors

| am afraid the messages below serve to further obscure the sequence of events and reality in this
matter.

It has been explained to all Parish Councillors that they must consider there own position and exclude
themselves as necessary in accordance with the Code of Conduct. The decision is not and has not been
made by myself, Alex or Julie Openshaw. The purpose of the Julie Openshaw's message is to advise on
the correct interpretation of the Code of Conduct to assist Councillors and nothing else.

There has never been any question of anybody imposing a ruling on any of the Parish Councillors who
have applied the advice and excluded themselves.

The solution is quite straightforward and always has been. A polite request to Alex on this basis is all that
is necessary.

f Parish Councillors are concerned that they may not have interpretated the Code correctly in relation to
their own situation they should each contact Alex with their queries and request that she forward them to
Julie Openshaw with a plan indicating the various plots of land. Julie Openshaw can then provide further
advice and, as before, the Councillors can take a decision in the light of that advice.

1



Page 40

4

As each Parish Councillor has to consider their own position there may be other factors t‘ ey need to take
into account (as | cannot presume that the advice covers all circumstances relevant to edch person).

Erica i

-----= Original Message -----

From: jillwaits ~

To: sallypbeard@fsmail.net

Ce: Brian Dykes ; Bunbury Parish ; Dave Ellis ; Dennis Burrows ; Eric Lord ; Erica Partridge ; GMC ;
Mandy Jones ; Nick Parker

Sent: Tuesday, October 18, 2011 9:40 AM

Subject: Re: Openshaw letter Fw: Members' Interests query

Hi Sally,

Many thanks for your email below and letting me know what you recall as I wasn't at the
December 2010 meeting.

I note what you say about Alex circulating the Julie Openshaw email in September 2011.
However, it seems to have been important enough to have been discussed before/or at the
beginning of the December meeting, but not to be minuted or circulated then, which I see as a
mistake, I presume on Alex's part. Why should those who were there be party to information
about anything, and those who were not there excluded from that information? This seems
particularly wrong when the 3 people who could not attend the meeting were significantly
affected by the contents of Julie Openshaw's email. Whatever the subject I can't see how this can
be regarded as a correct way to behave I'm afraid. I see Alex's job as keeping us all equally
informed about anything that is the business of the PC and it seems that on this point she failed
to do that. I don't see it as the responsibility of fellow members to keep those not present
informed of what happens.

As to your comments on declaring an interest, I have to admit that I was the person who raised
this in the first place when I was a new member and anxious, as I hope I continue to be, to do
the right thing. I now believe that it was not necessary for the 4 of us from Wyche Lane (but not
always Gary) to exclude ourselves from all discussions on all matters relating to Muir Homes
and the land behind the development, I think there has been either inaccurate advice from Julie
Openshaw, inadequate or incorrect briefing to her, or an incorrect interpretation of the
information she gave (which was inaccurate itself in part when one has a proper understanding
of the geography of the area and individual ownerships) which has lead to half the PC not being
party to a number of decisions that 4 or 5 members should not have been excluded from. So, I .
agree with you that we should have been party to more decisions that we have regarding all or
part of the Muir issues.

I am grateful to you for coming forward with information and your views on the matter and look
forward to hearing from other councillors.

Regards,

Jill

From: Sally Beard

To: Jill Waits

Cc: Brian Dykes ; Bunbury Parish ; Dave Ellis ; Dennis Burrows ; Eric Lord ; Erica Partridge ; GMC ;
Mandy Jones ; Nick Parker ; Sally Beard

Sent: Monday, 17 October 2011, 21:21

Subject: Openshaw letter Fw: Members' Interests query

Hello Jill,
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1 remember seeing this letter and have just checked my emails, so for your info please see
below. Alex sent out an email on the 26 Sep to all Parish Councillors which if yofi scroll down
does include the letter from Julie Openshaw.

You can also see who all the recipients were.

I have not passed this onto anyone except yourselves in this email. I was at the December
2010 meeting whete the letter and its recommendations were discussed and from this I did
declare 'an interest' as it seemed that I needed to. I, then along with the others on Wyche Lane
have subsequently declared 'an interest' at meetings ever since. I am now uncertain as to
whether we should have?

Kind regards
Sally

Message Received: Sep 26 2011, 12:34 PM

From: "Bunbury Parish"

To: "Mandy Jones" , "Brian Dykes" , "Gary McCormack" , "Erica Partridge" , "David Ellis" ,
"Jill Waits" , "Nick Parker" , "Eric Lord" , sallypbeard@fsmail.net,
dennis.burrows@btopenworld.com

Cc:

Subject: Fw: Members' Interests query

Dear All

There seems to have been various queries about declaring personal and prejudicial interests
regarding the Wyche Lane to be sold to the PC and there does seem to be some confusion.
Please find below the letter received from Julie Openshaw (Deputy Monitoring Officer for CE)
dated November 22nd 2010. Please also find attached a copy of Bunbury Parish Council's Code
of Conduct.

We discussed the letter at our December 2010 meeting and following that discussion various
members of the PC declared personal and prejudicial interests. Please take the time to revisit
the letter. If you believe that your circumstances have changed then please do let me know.

Regards
Alex

----- Original Message ---

From: OPENSHAW, Julie

To: 'bunburyclerk@aol.com'

Sent: Monday, November 22, 2010 3:39 PM
Subject: Members' Interests query

Good afternoon Alex

Further to our telephone conversation earlier, | understand that you and some of your members seek
advice on what if any interests they need to declare in relation to a plot of land which has been offered
for sale to Bunbury Parish Council. | will refer to this as the "for sale land".

You explained that the for sale land abuts a second strip of land which has planning permission for
development, and it is the developer that has offered the for sale land to the Parish Council.

You also explained that one member (A), who owns a third strip of land which abuts the other side of the
“or sale" land has already declared a personal and prejucidial interest and has absented himelf from any
consideration of whether the land should be purchased, but three other members are potentially affected

3
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because of the positioning of their gardens. "B" has a garden abutting the "for sale" land, "C" has a
garden abutting the land owned by the councillor who has already declared and interest, and "D" has a
garden which allows a view of where the development would be. Each of them owns their home and has
registered it as such in the register of interests.

My view is that due to their proximity to the for sale land, and the possible effect arising from that on the
values, or desirability, of their homes, B C and D all have personal interests in the decision whether the
Parish Council should purchase the land, because a decision on whether or not the PC should buy it
could reasonably be regarded as affecting their well-being or financial positions to a greater extent than
the majority of council tax payers ratepayers or inhabitants of the locality.

Unless they can raise some other consideration which might merit further consideration (I haven't seen a
plan), they appear to have a prejudicial interest as well, because of the same considerations in tems of
proximity and effect on financial position, which suggest that the proper conclusion is that "a member of
the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard [the interest] as so significant
that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the public interest".

| gather there are 10 members of the Councll, with a quorum of 4, so unless other members have
prejudicial interests to declare for some other reason, you should be quorate to make the decision. If
circumstances arise where interests are such that getting a quorum would be impossible, the Borough
Council's Standards Committee does have power to consider, and if appropriate, grant, applications for
dispensations to allow members to speak and vote where they have a prejudicial interest, but only where
either more than 50% of members who would be entitled to vote being prohibited from doing so, or where
the number of members that are prohibited from voting would upset the political balance of the meeting
to the extent that the outcome of voting would be prejudiced. As these situations are relatively rare, so
are applications for dispensations. It does not sound as though the first criterion would be met; without
knowing the political persuasion of the members involved, and the remainder, it's unclear if the second
would apply, but you might want to consider that.

| hope this assists.
Kind regards

Julie Openshaw

Legal Team Manager (Places, Regulatory and Compliance) (Deputy Monitoring Officer)
Cheshire East Borough Council

Westfields

Middlewich Road

Sandbach

CW11 81HZ

01270 685846)
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Cheshire East Council

Complaint against Parish Councillors Sally Beard, David Ellis, Gary McCormack & Jill
Waits

Statement of Parish Councillor Erica Partridge, Holly Mount, Whitchurch Road, Bunbury,
Cheshire CW6 9SX

1. | have been a Councillor for Bunbury Parish Council since July 2009, when | was co-opted
on to the Council. | have been Chairman of the Council since May 2010. When | was co-
opted, | received no documentation of any sort. | have not been offered any specific
training on the Code of Conduct but, in the last 12 months, the Clerk has circulated training
packages, mainly organised by CHALC (Cheshire Association of Local Councils).
Unfortunately, most of the courses that were relevant to my position clashed with other
appointments.

2 Mrs Alex Stubbs was appointed as Clerk in April 2010. When | was appointed Chairman
the following month, we both realised that there were no Standing Orders for the control of
decision-making and consideration of Council business nor were there any other procedural
documents which most Parish Councils have in place. Although Mrs Stubbs has the CiLCA
(Certificate in Local Council Administration) qualification, the Council has not decided to
seek Quality Parish Council status. A Sub-Committee was established to produce the
Standing Orders with other documents being agreed at the Parish Council meetings over a
period of time and these have now been adopted by the Council.

3. The background to the issues that | have raised regarding the four Councillors is set out in
the document submitted with the complaint headed 'Query to Monitoring Officer re Bunbury
Parish Councillors'. | raised the matters as a query to the Clerk as it appeared to me that
the Code of Conduct may have been breached in several respects and she has forwarded
this information to the monitoring officer which has now been taken as constituting the
complaint. This was accompanied by separate commentaries in respect of the issues
concerning each of the four and relevant emails in relation to each one. There is also a
separate complaint against Councillor Waits with its own documentation which | deal with
under her heading.

4. Councillors McCormack and Beard were already on the Parish Council when | was co-
opted. Councillor Waits was co-opted in April 2010 and Councillor Ellis was co-opted in
January 2011, although he had previously served on the Parish Council. Since these
complaints were lodged, Mrs Sally Beard and David Ellis have both resigned from the
Council.

5. My comments on the complaints made against the individual persons follow as separate
Schedules.

6. Since submitting the above queries | have resigned from the Parish Council. In these
circumstances | do not wish to proceed with the complaint relating to bullying and attitude
towards other councillors. | have explained the areas which | wish to withdraw in the
schedules below.

5. Even though | am no longer a Parish Councillor 1 consider it is important for the question of
the declarations of interest to be considered and established as this was the purpose of my
query to the Monitoring Officer which has become these complaints.
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Schedule 1 - Former Councillor Sally Beard

1.

I do' nqt wish to make any additional points other than as set out in my query to the
Monitoring Officer. The paragraphs below answer the questions asked of me at the
interview in explaining the events further.

Prior to 12" October 2010 discussions relating to Muir involved Section 106 matters and
the lack of progress on the site for which | do not have the minutes. From recollection,
when issues concerning the Muir development and the adjoining land were considered at
meetings of the Parish Council and emails between Councillors between July 2009 and
September 2010, Ms Beard did not make any declaration of interest. At the meeting on 12
October 2010 there were two items on the agenda, one concerning the proposed affordable
housing development (relating to the Muir address to the Council) and the other concerning
the land proposed to be transferred to the Council. Ms Beard did not make any declaration
of interest in either item. At the meeting on 09 November 2010, Ms Beard again did not
make any declaration of interest when there was an item on the agenda relating to the
transfer to the Council.

Following the request from Councillor Waits for advice on potential interests and receipt of
the email from Cheshire East Council's Deputy Monitoring Officer dated 22 November
2010, the email was circulated to those present at the following Council meeting on 14
December. Ms Beard was present at that meeting. The copies of the email were collected
back by the Clerk as it contained personal information relating to the Councillors concerned.
The discussion which took place was not referred to in the minutes but they do record the
consequent action when Councillor Beard made a declaration of a personal and prejudicial
interest and left the meeting whilst an update on the land offered to the Council was
discussed.

Between that meeting and up to but not including the meeting on 13 December 2011, Ms
Beard declared a personal and prejudicial interest whenever the proposed development or
the transfer to the Council were discussed. As a number of queries had been raised by
Parish Councillors regarding declarations of interest relating to the Muir land and planning
application further advice was requested from the Monitoring Officer and | deferred all
matters relating to this until the advice was received in my email dated 19" October 2011.
Prior to the meeting on 13 December 2011 the further advice was received from the Deputy
Monitoring Officer in an email dated 30 November 2011 and this was emailed to all
Councillors on 04 December. This email contained a link to Standards for England
explanatory guidance on the Code of Conduct. Ms Beard was late arriving for the meeting
and had not been present when | had asked for declarations of interest. Ms Beard arrived
just before the item on the Muir development and | specifically asked her whether she
wished to declare any interest. After a moment's hesitation, she said 'no'. | asked her if
she was sure and did she have any queries and she, again, said 'no'. At this meeting Ms
Beard stated that she was voting against the planning application under consideration
because of the risk of future further housing development which would directly impact on
her home.

| have queried whether in all the circumstances the fact that no interest was declared at the
meeting is correct in relation to 9 (1), 12 (1) and 12 (2) of the Code of Conduct.
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Schedule 2 - Former Councillor David Ellis

1.

| do not wish to make any additional points other than as set out in my query to the
Monitoring Officer. The paragraphs below answer the questions asked of me at the
interview in explaining the events further.

Although Mr Ellis has acknowledged that he did not declare any interest when the original
planning applications were considered in 2004/05, | do not raise that as an issue. My only
query relates to his attendance at the Council meeting on 13 December 2011.

After Mr Ellis was co-opted in January 2011, he was advised by the Clerk on the advice
from the Deputy Monitoring Officer dated 22 November 2010 and, whilst he queried the
advice, he stated that he would abide by it as his position would be similar to the other
Councillors who had declared a personal and prejudicial interest following that advice.
Consequently he declared a personal and prejudicial interest on each occasion that the
Parish Council considered any aspect of the Muir development or land transfer. At one
stage he made it clear that he was not happy with the situation and intended getting his
own advice which | welcomed but he then agreed to follow the Deputy Monitoring Officer's
advice. As a number of queries had been raised by Parish Councillors regarding
declarations of interest relating to the Muir land and planning application further advice was
requested from the Monitoring Officer and | deferred all matters relating to this until the
advice was received in my email dated 19" October 2011. Prior to the meeting on 13
December 2011 the further advice was received from the Deputy Monitoring Officer in an
email dated 30 November 2011 and this was emailed to all Councillors on 04 December.
This email contained a link to Standards for England explanatory guidance on the Code of
Conduct. At the meeting, under 'Declarations of Interest, | specifically asked whether
everybody was happy with the second email from the Deputy Monitoring Officer and
whether they had any further queries on the matter and there was no indication to the
contrary. | then asked whether Councillors wanted to make any declaration and Mr Ellis,
and other Councillors who were resident in Wyche Land, said 'no’. They said they were
happy with their position.

Mr and Mrs Ellis had individually objected to planning application 11/2423N on 07 August
2011 for personal reasons related to the property and their use and enjoyment of the
property. At the meeting on 13" December Mr Ellis voted in favour of the Parish Council's
opposing view.

| have queried whether in all the circumstances the fact that no interest was declared at the
meeting is correct in relation to 9 (1), 12 (1) and 12 (2) of the Code of Conduct.
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This statement is a fair summary of an interview conducted by the Investigator on 27 February
2012.

Snca By indy o
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Ivy Cottage, Wyche Lane, Bunbury, Cheshire CW6 9PS
Telephone/Fax: 01829 261898 E Mail: dellis7@tiscali.co.uk

17" February 2012

Mr M Dudfield
Solicitor

6 Church Hill
Nether Kellet
Carnforth
Lancs

LA6 1ER

Dear Mr Dudfield

Re: Complaints under Members’ Code of Conduct — Ref CEC/2011/05,06 & 08

Thank you for your letter of 13" February 2012 with the various enclosures. I have
read the enclosures with interest and will comment on all of them separately but will
first of all put forward my initial defence to the allegations made against me by Mrs
Partridge and then support it with fact later on.

Up until October 2011 I had always declared a personal and prejudicial interest in
anything to do with the Muir development but was never happy that I had a
prejudicial interest but was unable to get any guidance from the Chairman or the
Clerk so I just went with the flow as this was what I was as told to do by the
Chairman and a senior member of the council. Just before the 15 October 2011,
when I left the country for 2 months, I had sight of a letter from Ben Hayward in
which he indicated that my neighbours and I at the top end of Wyche Lane were not
sent notices of the planning application as we did not adjoin the piece of land referred
to in the application. I took no notice of it at that time as I was leaving for New
Zealand the following day (See appendix 1 for actual letter) and really did not have
time to worry about such things as this. When I returned to the UK just before the
meeting on 13" December 2011 I read the letter in detail and decided that at that
meeting I would not declare an interest as the application did not affect me and that I
would test the “temperature of the water” with the Chairman. With hind sight I
probably should have declared a personal interest but felt very strongly that I would
not gain or lose from the application being agreed so did not have a prejudicial
interest. As far as I was aware this was accepted by the Chairman but quite obviously
she decided not to ask me for any details of why I had changed my position and did
not even have the common courtesy to tell me that she was making a formal
complaint against me and in so doing giving doubt to my integrity which I am not
prepared to leave unanswered as you will see from the following comments.

To make things clear to you I will refer to the various points by using the same
reference numbers as those used by Mrs Partridge and then the appendix numbers I
have added to the various documents you sent which are now returned.
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Comments on Mrs Partridge’s report

Please note: The numbers beside each comment relates to the paragraph number on
Mrs Partridge’s report.

Comment 2: In my preamble I referred to a letter from Ben Hayward, Planning
Officer at East Cheshire (See Appendix 1) in which he said that as certain properties
did not share a boundary with the application site they were not sent a notice of the
planning application and if you look at the plan (Appendix 2) you will see that this is
quite correct and that the houses belonging to myself, Dennis Burrows and Jill Waits
are not near the “ransom” strip. In fact I can only see the land in question if I lean,
dangerously, out of one bedroom window on the first floor of my house and when the
big silver birch tree at the bottom of my garden is in full leaf we cannot see it at all!! I
will show you this when you visit me on 5" March. In fact when we bought the house
in 2001 we were well aware that the land behind us was prime development land and
as a result installed a fast growing hedge which could be allowed to go to 12/15 feet
and some trees which will completely shield us from the land behind our property. I
admit that my wife and I objected to the planning application to increase the size of
the access to Mr McCormack’s field but this was because Muir were trying to change
the decision made by the Inspector at the appeal following the first Muir application
and we felt very strongly that this was incorrect and made a mockery of the process
around planning appeals.

Comment 3: Why is Mr Walton referred to in this report as he is not a councillor and
never has been and I know for a fact that the statement made by Mrs Partridge that Jill
Waits is a member of the local Conservative Association is totally incorrect and what
relevance it has to my case I am at a loss to understand. Perhaps Mrs Partridge should
check her facts before making wild accusations against people. Also why should a
Parish Councillor not speak to their local Borough Councillor? After all we are all
supposed to be representing the same people and sometimes need to speak to other
councillors to clarify some points.

Comment 4: The final paragraph of this section does not set out my real objection
that the access now being sought does not comply with the Inspector’s decision on
access to the field behind the Muir development, and you will see later on that my
wife and I are not opposed to the building of the new houses and I resent Mrs
Partridge’s claim that we are opposed to them. Again perhaps she should get her facts
right before making wild claims such as this.

Comment 6: Again why am I commented upon alongside James Walton who is not a
councillor and can do exactly as he pleases without fear of being reported for code of
conduct breaches such as the one against me.

Comment 8: Here she reiterates that I did not declare an interest in the Muir
discussion but can I please refer you to the Haywood letter (Appendix 1) and my
explanation above in comment 2 which sets out my position on this point. Perhaps if
Mrs Partridge had the common courtesy to approach me this whole matter could have
been sorted out without resorting to the heavy handed approach she decided to take.
The saying that taking a sledgehammer to crack a nut comes to mind!!
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What relevance Dennis Burrows’ comments have to my case is beyond me and I do
not recall seeing these comments in the minutes which were approved after they were
supposed to be said. Surely comments such as this should have been reported in the
minutes presented for approval at the next meeting which I have been unable to find?
If they were said outside the meeting between two people these are personal
comments between those people and should not be reported, and is extremely
worrying if notes are taken of all outside conversations in order to keep records on
people. The suspicion of selective reporting comes to mind. I very strongly suspect
that Mrs Partridge is trying to “tar me with the same brush” and suggesting that these
comments would also apply to me but if she is going to make personal notes of what
everyone says in a meeting or outside it why did she not make a note of the fact that
these comments came about because I suggested that a good use of the “ransom” strip
would be to rent it out for allotments and this was why Mr Burrows responded in this
way. Also Mrs Partridge has failed to note that my wife wrote to the Clerk asking that
they support allotments in the village so if she is trying to suggest that I have the same
feelings as Dennis Burrows then I will require a full apology from her for once again
trying to damage my reputation.

Comment 9: I think that the relevant word here is “potentially” as this shows that Jill
Waits was not sure if she had a prejudicial interest and I was of the same mind but
stupidly did not query it at the time.

Please note that the Julie Openshaw e-mail referred to in this section was not
attached to the papers you sent me so I cannot comment on it.

Comment 10: Quite rightly Mrs Partridge states that I queried the situation regarding
the declaration of interests when I joined the council in January 2011 but was not
happy with it but went along with the rest because that is what we were told we
should do by the Chairman, Clerk and a senior member of the council. With
hindsight, which is a marvellous thing, I should have expressed my doubts at this
point instead of just going along with everybody else, three of whom have now
challenged the advice and has forced the resignation of two of us namely myself and
Sally Beard.

Comments 11 & 12: I have already covered my thoughts on my declaration of a
prejudicial interest so will not cover it again but will refer to it in my summing up at
the end.

Comment 13: Why have I been included in this suggested “setting up of a separate
sub committec? I admit that I received an e-mail from Mr McCormack suggesting just
this but I ignored it and did not reply. Where is Mrs Partridge’s evidence that I was
party to this suggestion? Again she needs to get her facts right before making such
statements.

Comment 15: I think this section is very significant because Mrs Partridge admits
that Caroline Ellwood was unable to give any firm advice on the problem but that
Julie Openshaw just pointed out various points from the Code of Conduct. Who was it
helpful to as quoted by Mrs Partridge? It was not helpful to me as I have not seen it
unless it was included in the plethora of e-mails that were going around at the time
which I completely ignored as I did not want to get embroiled in the nonsense that
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was going on at the time. An explanation of the Code of Conduct would not have
been of any use to me in any case as I required a firm decision on my particular
situation which was not going to be forthcoming from Caroline Ellwood and was not
subsequently forthcoming from the Chairman and the Clerk.

Comment 16: I readily admit that on the 13" December 2011 I was asked by the
chairman if I needed to declare an interest in the discussion on the Muir development
which was to be discussed later in the meeting. I along with the two other councillors
decided to rely on the letter I had seen from Ben Haywood at Cheshire East (See
appendix 1) and not declare an interest. I hasten to add that this was my decision and I
cannot comment on why the others did not declare an interest and you must ask them
for their reasons. When the Muir subject came up we were told of the reasons behind
the decisions which had been made by the Muir Sub Committee and it was at this
stage that I learnt of some pertinent facts which had been denied us prior to this and as
a result I was unable to vote on the proposal and as far as I am aware I abstained.
However the inclusion of the three Wyche Lane councillors did not change the vote
originally taken by the sub committee. The disclosure of the facts surrounding the
dispute between Muir and Mr McCormack had been kept from us prior to this
meeting and nothing had ever appeared on the notes taken at the sub committee
meetings about this problem. This strengthened my thoughts that the sub committee
set up by the Chairman had been devisive and had denied a number of Councillors the
true facts behind the case. As I mentioned before I perhaps should have declared a
personal interest because the land was in the vicinity of my house but I still am unsure
about having a prejudicial interest for reasons I will state later.

Comment 17: What happened at the original Muir application is not relevant and was
a decision taken by the then chairman, as has the current chairman taken a decision
now, but it is also interesting to note that the senior member of the council who has
insisted on declarations of interest at this time did not do so at the original
discussions. Why have things changed so dramatically? I am at a loss to see what
relevance the relationship between the then clerk and the chairman has on the
situation today. I suspect that it is a round about way of bringing criticism on those
two people who cannot now answer for themselves.

I very strongly reject Mrs Partridge’s suggestion that the opposition came solely from
the councillors living in Wyche Lane at the time of the original application. Can I
please refer you to Appendix 3 where you will see that at a special meeting of the
Council on 23™ July 2007 I proposed that the development should go ahead but it did
not even attract a seconder!!! Not even from the councillors living in other parts of the
village. It was voted that the council should oppose the application with just me
voting against it. I resent Mrs Partridge’s suggestion that I was opposed to the scheme
and again she should get her facts right before making such far reaching remarks.
What annoyed me at the time was that no one on the council had done any research
into the application and made such inane remarks as “We had hundreds of objections
last time so nothing has changed this time”. This could not be further from the truth as
on the first application there were over 300 objections but on the second there just 24
and if you look at the attached analysis (Appendix 4) some of these 24 came from
very few houses!! Not mine I hasten to add!! This document was presented to the
council but they chose to ignore it. Obviously fact does not matter which
unfortunately we are now seeing again. I know that what happened in 2007 is not
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relevant to what is happening now but I felt you needed to know where I stand on the
Muir issue and as Mrs Partridge decided to bring it up I felt that I needed to provide
you with the true facts of the case. Unfortunately she has yet again made an
assumption that is not true in fact.

Personal Comments made by Mrs Partridge about me

Again I will use her reference numbers for ease of clarity.

Comment 1: She has at least acknowledged that I am in favour of the development
and I have helped a number of young people to submit applications to a previous
affordable homes development and they know that I would have helped them again
once the Muir houses are built. Something the action of the Chairman has now denied
them as I will not be able to provide them with the advice they deserve from a
councillor and cannot be done as a private individual.

Comment 2: I have already admitted that I was probably too hasty in not declaring a
private interest but Mrs Partridge at least agrees that there might be a case for me not
declaring a prejudicial interest by using the word “probably”. The use of this word
shows that she is unsure of her ground on this point and it is a terrible shame that she
did not see fit to approach the matter in a more adult and sensible manner, but that is
all history now.

Comment 3: I think that Mrs Partridge has once again got her facts wrong as she has
stated that I voted in favour of the decision to support the planning application but in
fact because of the information provided to us that night, which had been denied us
previously, presented me with a quandary as on the one hand I was disputing the
challenge to the Inspector’s report and on the other I now learnt that the problems
were really down to the dispute between Muir and Mr McCormack, and as far as I can
recall I abstained and did not vote one way or the other. If this information had been
forthcoming at an earlier stage I do not think we would be wasting our time justifying
actions I took that night. Unfortunately we still do not know everything that was said
at these sub committee meetings but that is of no concern to me now. Mrs Partridge
also states that I asked her what a prejudicial interest was but I should point out that
this was said in the Nags Head pub after the meeting had finished, so it is another case
of her making notes of personal conversations outside the formal meeting. A worrying
trait!!

Your attachments

I do not intend to spend much time on the various attachments you sent me as most of
it is covered in the preceeding comments but I will comment on one (Appendix 5).
Why was Brian Dykes the only person apart from the chairman consulted in the e-
mail dated 24™ August? I have to ask how many other things he has been consulted on
during this affair seeing that he is the one who now insists that I declare an interest
but at the original application he did not. I do not intend to pursue this point but would
like you to take note of my concern.

The other point was made on the e-mail dated 7™ August from Mrs Partridge to me
where she says, and I quote “As you know the Parish Council has been advised that
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the neighbouring Councillors have a personal and prejudicial interest in relation to the
land and do not therefore take part in the meeting on this item” (See Appendix 6)
How does this sit with her comment in her main report where she says in comment 16
and I again quote “She (Caroline Ellwood) replied that she was unable to give detailed
guidance but Julie Openshaw provided a copy of the explanatory guidance on the
code of conduct which is most helpful” If they could not provide detailed guidance
how did Mrs Partridge and the Clerk come to the conclusion that I should be excluded
from the meeting and had a prejudicial interest in the debate. It suggests a loose
interpretation of the general guidance which has now resulted in me being accused of
something I do not believe I am guilty of.

If you read the e-mail dated 29" March 2011 from me to Mrs Partridge (Appendix 7)
I think you will realise that I am passionate about this development going ahead and
am prepared to criticise other councillors even if they are my neighbour. I do not do
things behind a person’s back unlike Mrs Partridge in her treatment of my colleagues
and myself with this underhanded way of raising a complaint against us.

Summary

I am sorry that I have gone to such lengths to get my point across but as I was denied
the opportunity of putting forward my defence to the assessment committee I felt that
I needed to make sure that you were appraised of all the facts and not just what you
have been told by Mrs Partridge. I have to say that I think the procedure is totally
unfair on the accused and is causing me considerable embarrassment in the village as
people are asking me what I have done to have to resign from the council. This is a
small village and, as they say, there is no smoke without fire and the speculation on
what I might or might not have done is extremely damaging to my reputation,
something which I hold dear, but is obviously of little concern to Mrs Partridge.

I have already admitted that perhaps I should have declared a personal interest but I
am still confused about declaring a prejudicial interest. As I understand it a prejudicial
interest should be declared if you are likely to have a monetary gain or loss from the
subject being discussed. If this is the case how can I be accused of worrying about my
monetary interests if I bought my house in the full knowledge that development
would take place at the rear of our property at some future date and I took steps to
alleviate any problem this might cause. Also would I promote the development of the
Muir houses, as I did on my own in 2007, if [ was concerned about any monetary
loss I might suffer. I think not. Another point you need to consider is my suggestion to
turn the ransom strip into allotments. Again would I have done this if I was worried
about myself? Further more would I have taken on my neighbour for trying to delay
the development by making very silly objections such as nesting birds.

I am also enclosing a copy of my resignation letter and an e-mail I sent to Mrs
Partridge concerning this complaint where you will see that I have known her for
many years and have always respected her judgement and decision making in our
professional and personal lives. Unfortunately the action she has now taken against
me is not worthy of her and I really do not understand why she has adopted this high
handed attitude to something that could have been sorted out amicably and not cost
Bunbury Parish Council two councillors who actually work for the local residents.
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I trust that you will read all of my comments and I will answer any of your queries on
the points I have raised when we meet on the 5" March. In the meantime if you
require any further information do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely

| ) (e
p——

=
David Ellis FCIB
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AfTEemv: Cheshire East).
¥/
Council
PLANNING AND POLICY
James Walton
Edinbane Cottage, TOWN HALL, MACCLESFIELD,
Wyche Lane CHESHIRE, SK10 1DP
Bunbury
Cheshire E- MAIL: Planning@cheshireeast.gov.uk
CW6 9PS
TEL: 01270 537502
FAX: 01270 537496
Yourref: __Ourref: 11/2423N-———DATE- 13" OCTOBER 2011

Dear Mr. Walton

RE: PROPOSED VARIATION OF CONDITIONS AT WYCHE LANE
BUNBURY

Thank you for your letter dated 17" August 2011, | am sorry for the delay in
my response.

As | explained in my letter of 18" August 2011, the Town and Country
Planning (Development Management) Procedure Order, requires Local
Planning Authorities to either post a notice on the site or to write to properties
which share a boundary with the site. In this case we have written to adjoining
properties and placed a notice on the site. You were not contacted directly by
letter initially because your property does not share a boundary with the
application site.

| then wrote again on 12" August 2011 to those on the initial consultation list
to advise them that application 11/2575N had been withdrawn and that the
description of development in respect of application 11/2423N had been
amended slightly. For this reason the letter dated 12" August 2011 states that
“I recently wrote to you”. However, | asked our support team to extend the
circulation of this letter to those who had not been directly consulted originally
but who had subsequently made representations on the applications, which
included yourself.

| acknowledge that we should have removed the phrase “| recently wrote to
you” from the letters to individuals who were not recipients of the original letter
and | apologise for this and any confusion which it may have caused.

| hope that you will have by now received my letter of 18" August 2011, which
| trust answers the gquestions posed in your letter of 4™ August 2011.

| trust that the above is of assistance.

All other enquiries 0300 123 5500 www.cheshireeast.gov.ul

P~

CELH001/02



Yours sincerely

=N ? P ]
7 7
b wb ¥

Ben Haywood
Principal Planning Officer
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Special meeting of the Bunbury Parish Council held on Monday 23 July
in the Trinity Methodist Chapel, Bunbury at 7.30pm.

Present: Mr D Burrows (Chairman), Mr D Ellis, Mr E Lord, Mr N Parker,
Mrs T Welch, Mr I Whittingham.

Apologies for absence had been received from Mr B Dykes.

Members’ Declaration of Interests: Mr D Burrows declared an interest in item 5
(Planning Application Po7/0867.

Minutes of the public meeting held on Thursday 19t July 2007. Mr Lord
proposed these be adopted, seconded by Mr Ellis, all agreeing.

Planning Application: Po7/0867 10 affordable homes in Wyche Lane.. Mr
Ellis said that, following the public meeting, the Clerk had received an emailed
confirmation from David Robinson that the 4-week rule would be extended to 12
weeks. He had also been pleased to hear that residents of Bunbury would be
given priority in allocation and that two councillors would sit on the allocation
panel. Mr Parker said that Mr Ellis’s intervention at the meeting had been timely
and achieved the assurances the Council had been seeking. The Chairman said
that the feedback he had received was that it was the right scheme in the wrong
place. Mr Ellis said that he felt that a majority at the meeting had been in favour
of the proposal, but those who might benefit most from the scheme had failed to
attend. The Chairman said that he was pleased that a number of young people
had attended and made their presence felt. He believed that our Borough
Councillor should ask for a site visit by the Control and Development Committee.
Mr Parker said that, although the points on which he had objected originally had
been addressed in the Muir proposal, he was still very concerned that the
development would close the natural gap between Higher and Lower Bunbury.
He felt, like others, that it was a good scheme in the wrong place. Mr Ellis said
that, in his view, Muir had done everything required to address the Inspector’s
reasons for refusal of the appeal. Mr Whittingham expressed concern at there
being only sixteen parking spaces on the development. If these were full, visitors
would have to park on Wyche Lane close to two bends on a very narrow road. Mr
Ellis said that the number of parking spaces had been based on historical data for
this kind of development. Mr Lord said that the 2011 plan assumes that road
parking is acceptable. Mr Parker said that it would not be acceptable in Wyche
Lane, and that a further four or five spaces were needed. Mr Burrows said that
problems had occurred on the Castlemead development, with vehicles being
parked in Queen Street, sometimes blocking access.

Mr Ellis said that the proposal has to be voted upon. Mr Parker said that he was
reasonably happy to support it, but he certainly had reservations. Mr Burrows
said that the village had objected strongly to the previous proposal and, so far as
he could see, this new application was no different. Mr Ellis said that the Council
was making a judgement based on the attitudes of the meeting which had
constituted only 6% of the population. Mr Parker said that the credibility of the
Parish Council was in question should it support the application after the
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previous rejection. Mr Ellis said that one of the main changes from the previous
proposal was that the access to the rear field would effectively be blocked. Mr
Lord pointed out that all the reasons listed in the previous rejection by Crewe and
Nantwich still applied. Mr Parker said that a decision was required in order to
guide the Clerk in his reply. He thought that a site visit by the Development and
Control Committee was essential.

Mr Ellis then proposed that the Council support the application subject to a site
visit and the provision of an additional four or five parking spaces. There was no
seconder for this proposal.

Mr Lord said that according to the adopted Statement of Community
Involvement a developer must consult with the local community before
submitting a planning application if the development was considered significant.
He believed that ten houses in Bunbury could be considered significant. Mr Ellis
said that Muir had attempted to consult with the Parish Council back in March.
Mr Lord said that Wulvern was to make a proposal in September for a more
suitable site. Mr Ellis said that this was extremely unlikely as the landowner
involved had heard nothing from Wulvern since July 2006. Mr Parker said he felt
it very unlikely that the Wulvern proposal would reach the planning office by the
suggested date.

Mr Parker then proposed that the Council object to the scheme on the grounds
that 1) it would close the gap between the two parts of the village, 2) there was
inadequate parking, 3) the narrowness of the lane was critical, 4) the removal of
the hedge was a significant threat to wildlife, 5) the fact that the land was some
three metres higher than that of the lane and houses opposite and would
overshadow those properties. Mr Whittingham seconded the proposal. This was
carried with one abstention (Mr D Burrows) and one objection (Mr D Ellis).
Councillor Dykes is to be asked to arrange a site visit if possible.

Pavilion extension: Questions were asked as to whether an extension was
worthwhile. Mr Parker said that a disability toilet was absolutely essential. With
the extension built, modifications could then be made to the existing structure to
improve changing accommodation. Mr Ellis proposed that the Playing Fields
Committee be allowed to submit a planning application. This was seconded by Mr
Parker, all agreeing.

There being no other business, the meeting closed at 8.25pm.

Signed Date
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MUIR HOUSING ASSOCIATION

At the special meeting held on 23" July 2007 it was stated that at the previous application
“the village had objected strongly to the application and that this new application was no
different in the strength of objections™. It was also stated that the “credibility of the PC
would be compromised if they went against the feeling of the village this time”.

The previous application attracted just over 300 written objections but this new
application attracted just 24 written objections.

Details behind the objections for the new application:

1) 2 letters from the Parish Council

2) 10 letters from Wyche Lane from 9 houses.

3) 4 letters from Wyche Road from 3 houses

4) 4 letters from the remainder of the village from 2 houses

5) 3 letters from Bunbury Residents Association and professional advisor to
Gary??222222277772?

...............

6) 1 letter from an unknown source.

7) In total just 14 houses from the whole village objected to the new scheme.

8) Of the 12 cottages backing immediately on to the field on which the development
will take place just 3 objected (Gary, Dennis & Dennis’s neighbour)

In contrast to the objections to each application there was one supporting letter last time
from the then owners of the land but this time there was a petition sent in from the village

which was signed by 65 residents of Bunbury recommending that the development went
ahead.

This data shows that the vote taken at the last meeting, when it was recommended by a
majority of 4 to 1 with 1 abstention, to refuse the application was made on the false
premise that the objections were as strong this time as they were for the first application
and that the village as a whole would expect the PC to vote against it. This came about
because insufficient research had been done to gauge the mood of the villagers before this
important decision was taken.

The record needs to be set straight as the information reported from the meeting of the
23" July was incorrect.
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Yours sincerely
David

From: Partridges <ep.partridges@btinternet.com>

To: Bunbury Parish <Bunburyclerk@aol.com>; Brian Dykes <b.dykes@btinternet.com>
Sent: Wednesday, 24 August, 2011 19:37:51

Subject: Re: Rumours abound around Wyche Lane

Hi Alex

I think we should just put a large notice in the notice board but | am happy to go with a circulation if you
and Brian thinlk it will help.

Regards

Erica

----- Original Message ----

From: Bunbury-Parish

To: Erica Partridge ; Brian Dykes

Sent: Wednesday, August 24, 2011 715 PM
Subject: Rumours abound around Wyche Lane

Hi Both

David Ellis rang me this morning to say that he had been stopped by 3 people in the village who
wanted to know about the 50 houses being built at Wyche Lane. He says that he thinks he
knows where this rumour originates.

He wondered if the Parish Council should put out a notice correcting the rumour.

My personal view is that if people don't read the minutes on the board, they probably won't
read a correction either but I'm happy to put something up if required.

What do you think? Do you think we need to go as far as a mail drop in the village basically
saying the same thing as the minutes? We could do this easily if | printed them and then
councillors helped to deliver.

Regards
Alex

----- Original Message -----
From: David Ellis
To: 'Partridges’

Cec: 'Bunbury Parish’
sent: Sunday, August 07, 2011 2:25 PM

Subject: RE: Land at the rear of Muir Development

Dear Erica

Thanks for your reply but as | said | do not have to agree with the policy but will abide by it. | am quite
aware of Gary's position but there is no need for the access to be up to adoption standard as agricultural
use does not require this but | suspect that Gary is working to another agenda of which we are not party.
You need not worry about me on Tuesday as | will leave the meeting as soon as the application comes
up. It is strange, however, that none of us were excluded from the meetings when the very first
application came up back in 2004/5 but that is now history but the present situation certainly
does not sit very easily with our neighbours who are asking us to do something about the
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problem. As there will be a lack of objections to the application because so many people are away and
is likely to be decided by delegated powers what the few of us have to say will probably have no affect on
the outcome and we will just have to wait for the application for a very large housing estate in the middle
of the village. It would appear from the actual application details that the planning officers are very cosy
with Muir and have been advising them on how to present the application. If the information is released
to my neighbour under the Freedom of Information Act and we find that there has been some collusion
between the various parties then there will be real trouble!

Regards

David

From: Partridges [mallto:ep.partridges@btinternet.com]
Sent: 07 August 2011 13:23

To: David Eliis

Cc: Alex Stubbs

Subject: Land at the rear of Muir Development

Dear David
Firstly - please can you use my btinternet address above and delete the old tiscali one.

Thank you for letting me know what is happening generally and about the planning application, Alex has
been away and hopefully she will have received the notice to include for discussion at Tuesdays
meeting. '

As you know the Parish Council has been advised that the neighbouring Councillors have a personal and
prejudical interest in relation to this land and do not therefore take part in the meeting on this item. This
also means, as you say in your third paragraph, that the neighbouring Parish Coungcillors may deal with
matters in relation to this land as private individuals, not Parish Councillors. This means that there is ho
need to review your position as a councillor on this matter as the declaration of interest already does that
for you. | hope and frust that this alays your concerns on this point. | have copied Alex in so she can
confirm also.

| am not sure if you are aware that the land owned by Mr and Mrs McCormack includes an obligation on
Muir to construct an access across the land being offered to the Parish Council connecting the
McCormacks land to the Muir development and this access can be up to 'adoption standard'. This is @
publicly available document which can be obtained from the Land Registry and you may wish to obtain a
copy for information.

Regards

Erica

Dear Erica

Just by chance today | found out that Muir has submitted a planning application to vary the decision
reached by the Inspector at the last appeal. | and none of my neighbours have received notices of this
application and understand that just three houses have been notified, one of which was Gary. The first
we heard of it was when the notice appeared yesterday or the day before but as | was away | did not see
it until today.

The application is seeking to change the access to the land at the rear from agrlcultural to a main stream
road which would enable any future owner to apply for planning to develop it and they are claiming that
the current approval is a constraint on future owners of the land, both the land to be transferred to the PC
and Gary's land. As with the previous application it has been submitted at the height of the summer when
most people are away and with a very short timescale in which to object (the 24" August 2011).

4
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----- Original Message ----
From::Partridges

To: David Ellis

Cc: Alex Stubbs

Sent: Wednesday, March 30, 2011 5:55 PM
Subject: Muir

Hi David
Please note - my new email address is ep.partridges@btinternet.com

Thanks - a note about hedge cutting was handed over last night by Jill from Dennis. | commented that it
said Muir needed to check the hedge for nesting before starting work which sparked a disagreement on
whether the nests were new or old. | agree it is all a bit silly and rather desperate.

We will need to see if Muir enter on the site this week - Gary was threatening private injunctions if they
do without having planning consent for his access road, which is up to him.

Alex and | think we may have to arrange a tripartite meeting about fixing the location of the road but we
need to see if Muir are actually progressing first.

Regards

Erica

--—=- Original Message --—-
From::David Ellis

To: 'Erica Partridge’

Ge: 'Bunbury Parish'
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2011 12:21 PM
Subject: Muir

Hi Erica

It looks as if one or two members of the PC are gunning for Muir again and | have just about had enough
of this stupid behaviour and have today sent a note to Dennis to this effect (see below). They are now
trying to delay the start of the project by claiming that they should not be demolishing hedges at this time
of the year. | think you will find my note self explanatoryl! | am sending you this as | will not be at the
meeting but wanted you fo be aware of my very strong thoughts and that | will not let it go when | get to
the next meeting. Whilst writing should we have put up a notice inviting new applicants to apply to come
on to the PC? We would probably not get any one but | would love to see a vote for members to see
what the locals actually think of usiil

Hi Dennis

Here is the information you asked for but I have to say that | believe that we should now let
Muir get on with it as no one seems to be thinking of the youngsters needs in the village. 1 speak
to the youngsters all of the time and am helping a number of them with their applications as they
do not believe that the Parish Council gives one jot for their needs and that we are just playing
games with their future. We have lost the planning application and we now have to make the
most of what we have got and do as much as we can for the youngsters of our village and not
antagonise Muir any more than we have to. We waste so much time talking about ways in which
to stop Muir and in my opinion this has to stop and we must put our local families first and not
our own personal feelings. Unfortunately I will not be at the next meeting but I will fight any
attempt to delay this project as best 1 can so that I can look the youngsters straight in the eye and
say that at least one member of the PC is sticking up for them.
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certainly let the applicants kno
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Regards

David
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out it but we need to speak our mind sometimes and 1 will
w why there are delays in providing them with affordable
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From: David Ellis [dellis7@tiscali.co.uk]

Sent: 28 January 2012 10:59

To: 'Partridges’

Subject: FW: Code of Conduct complaint (CEC/2011/08)

Dear Erica

Here is the letter | have sent to Cheshire East in response to your complaint to them. | am probably not
supposed to contact you in these circumstances but | would not like you to think that | am doing anything
behind your back. A courtesy you did not afford me.

Regards

David

From: David Ellis [mailto:dellis7@tiscali.co.uk]
Sent: 28 January 2012 10:54

To: 'diane.moulson@cheshireeast.gov.uk'

Subject: Code of Conduct complaint (CEC/2011/08)

Dear M/s Moulson
Re: Code of Conduct Complaint (CEC/2011/08)

Thank you for your recent letter advising me of the complaint made against me by Erica
Partridge and of the sub-committee meeting that took place on Tuesday 24th January 2012.

Unfortunately I did not receive your letter until the 26t January, two full days after the
committee met. Also you did not provide me with any details of what I had done to offend Mrs
Partridge apart from the paragraphs of the Code of Conduct which is of no use whatsoever as it
does not relate to any specific action/event.

The late notice of the meeting and the fact that I could not put forward my side of the case is
totally unsatisfactory and undemocratic and I am at a loss to see how the sub-committee can
consider the complaint without hearing my side of the story.

As you did not provide me with sufficient details for me to address your complaint I contacted
Mrs Partridge and asked her what I was supposed to have done which encouraged her to make
this complaint against me. She told me that it was all to do with the Parish Council meeting of

the 13 December 2011 when three members of the council decided that they did not need to
declare an interest in the discussion on the Muir housing development in Wyche Lane, Bunbury.
Unfortunately she did not contact us after the meeting to ascertain our reasons for not declaring
an interest on this occasion but just decided to take this heavy handed action of making a specific
complaint against me. She further told me that she needed to obtain guidance from you on the
declaration of interests by the Wyche Lane members and this was the only way she could do it,
which I think is a strange way to go about things..

The land over which the discussion took place does not affect me or my property and I cannot
see it apart from one small window at the back of the house and it was on this premise that I
decided on this occasion that I did not need to declare an interest. With hindsight I, perhaps,
should have declared a personal interest but I have always been confused as to whether or not I
have a prejudicial interest, and is something I have always challenged, but I have not received
any clear guidance to clarify this point for me.

As the meeting took place four days ago I would have thought that you would have advised me
of the outcome by now and not leave me to worry even longer over this most unsatisfactory
affair.

I look forward to hearing from you.

Yours sincerely
David Ellis

16/02/2012
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Ivy Cottage, Wyche Lane, Bunbury, Cheshire CW6 9PS
Telephone/Fax: 01829 261898 E Mail: dellis7@tiscali.co.uk

3" February 2012

Mrs Erica Partridge
Holly Mount
Whitchurch Road
Bunbury

CW6 95X

Dear Erica

It is with the deepest regret that I am writing this letter to inform you of my
immediate resignation from Bunbury Parish Council.

Since you decided to take the completely unexpected action of lodging a complaint
against me I have had many sleepless nights and a considerable amount of worry
because of your slur on my integrity. Throughout my personal and working life I have
never done anything dishonest or been accused of any dishonest act, something you
have now personally set out to destroy.

Regardless of the outcome of the investigation by the Standards Committee at East
Cheshire I will find it impossible to work with someone I will constantly be in fear of
reporting me to the powers to be for something I say or do. It makes for a completely
unworkable relationship.

I will be advising East Cheshire of my decision but ask them to continue with their
investigation so that your unfounded accusations can be decided one way or the other.

As I said to you on the telephone I have found your action not worthy of the Erica
Partridge I have known and respected for some considerable time both in our working
and private lives.

I wish you well in the future.

Yours sincerely

David Ellis
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Ivy Cottage, Wyche Lane, Bunbury, Cheshire CW6 9PS
Telephone/Fax: 01829 261898 E Mail: dellis7@tiscali.co.uk

7™ August 2011

The Head of Planning
East Cheshire Council
Town Hall
Macclesfield
Cheshire

SK10 1DP

Dear Sir
Re: Planning application 11/2575N

T am writing to object to the above mentioned planning application which has just
come to my notice through the posting of a notice at the site. Also I would like to
know why my neighbours and myself, who are all affected by this application, have
not received a personal notice advising us of Muir’s intention to vary the original
planning permission.

As you will be aware this develo%ment site was the subject of an appeal by Muir
Group Housing Association on 4" & 5™ April 2006 to contest the fact that the then
council had refused their application to build 10 dwellings on the land off Wyche
Lane, Bunbury. The Inspector appointed by the First Secretary of State, Mis K A
Eltison BA(Hons), MPhil, MRTP], dismissed the appeal in her decision on 6" June
7006. In this dismissal she stated that and 1 quote: “At the enquiry, it was confirmed
that the Appellant no longer intended to pursue a second phase. Even so, the layout of
the scheme to the rear of the houses, in terms of access road and parking areas, still
reflects that earlier intention with the result that the access to the rear field has been
designed to a higher standard than would be normally be associated with a simple
field access.” To me this suggests that she was not happy with Muir’s stated intention
not to try to develop the remainder of the field. Mrs Ellison went on to say in
paragraph 14 of her report that “The fact that the layout of this scheme would be
compatible with further residential development is therefore of great concern to me
since it would make the land to the rear more attractive to potential developers.”

In her conclusions Mrs Ellison states in pavagraph 23 that « ] have found that, even
though the level of need is so compelling as to outweigh in principle the harm arising
from development of this site, the proposal as it stands is unacceptable because the
layout of the rear access road and parking areas. On this ground alone, the appeal
fails.”

As I understand it permission was eventually given for the building of 10 affordable
homes but the access to the rear of the houses should be restricted to agricultural
access only so that the field could be dealt with on an agricultural basis and a strip of
land immediately behind the houses should be gifted/sold to Bunbury Parish Council
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for the benefit of the local community. I understand that negotiations on this transfer
of land are currently ongoing.

Now, quite out of the blue, Muir have returned to you seeking to vary the original
planning application by stating in their application that “Condition 17 as constituted
may have the effect of constraining unnecessarily some future possible lawful use
(whether or not planning permission is necessary) of the land edged blue and the
adjacent accommodation land to which it in turn gives access”. The land edged blue
refers to the land to be passed to the Parish Council.

From the application it can be seen that it was submitted after a meeting was held
between Muir and your Ben Hayward and Bob Vass on 26™ May 2011 where the
principle of the application was agreed. Since when have your staff been given
permission to go along with over ruling the concerns of one of Her majesty’s
Inspectors? If they now have this sort of power what is the point of having The
Planning Inspectorate?

I need to ask the question as to why the access road now needs to be brought up to
highway standard and widened to 4.5metres as the land being passed to the Parish
Council will not be developed and the agricultural land to the rear of that only needs
an access wide enough to accommodate agricultural vehicles and the standard of the
road surface needs only be hardcore with a top dressing with no services. If you read
again the comments from the Inspector you will see that this was just the fear she
expressed.

I object most strongly to this application and to the way it has been handled by your
planning staff and insist that it should not be considered by your officers undet
delegated powers but passed to the full Planning Committee for consideration.

I trust that you will take notice of this objection.

Yours sincerely

David Ellis




lvy Cofttage, Wyche Lane, Bunburv, Cheshire CWG6 9PS

7" August 2011

The Head of Planning
East Cheshire Council
Town Hall Cheshire East Coungil
Macclesfield
Cheshire =9 AUG 2049
SK10 1DP

Post Room

Dear Sir

Re: Planning application 11/2423N
| am writing to object to the above planning application.

This land was subject o an appeal by Muir Housing Association against the refusal of its
original application to build 10 houses on the jand in Wyche Lane, Bunbury. The
Inspector appointed by the First Secretary of State, was Mrs K. A. Ellison BNA (Hons),
MPhil, MRTP1 who concluded in paragraph 23 of her decision as follows:- “ | have found
that, even though the level of need is 80 compelling as to outweigh in principle the harm
arising from development of this site, the proposal as it stands is unacceptable because of
the layout of the rear access road and parking areas. On this ground alone, the appeal
fails.” (Paragraphs 13 and 14 give Mrs Ellison's reasoning about this).

Permission was subsequently given to build the 10 houses when a new application was
made but access to the rear of the houses had to be restricted to agricultural access only
and the piece of land which was no longer to be developed by Muir would be gifted to The
Bunbury Parish Council.

What is the point of having Planning Inspectorates and spending enormous amounts of
state money to hold such enquiries, then to have the Council be able to overtum the
Inspector's decision by agreeing to an application to have conditions overturned. Your
officers Bob Vass and Ben Hayward, who apparently had a meeting with Muir on 26" May
2011, agreed in theory the principle of the new application.

is it of some considerable coincidence, or perhaps planned, that this application has, yet
again, been submitted during the summer holidays when so many people are away On
holiday?

| reiterate that | strongly object to this new application to enlarge the entrance to the land
which is to be given {0 the Bunbury Parish Council to 4.5 metres, and also to provide a
road and drainage to the land at the rear as it is totally unnecessary, this being all
agricultural fand which the Inspector deemed should not be built on in the future. | request
that this planning application should be passed to the full Planning Committee fora
decision and not dealt with under delegated powers.

Youps faithfully

Margaret Ellis
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Cheshire East Council
Complaint against Parish Councillors Sally Beard, David Ellis, Gary McCormack &
Jill Waits

Statement of David William Ellis, vy Cottage, Wyche Lane, Bunbury, Cheshire
CW6 9PS

1.

| have already submitted to the Investigator a response to the documents sent with
the complaint by Mrs Partridge. This statement is supplemental to that response.

| am a retired bank director and | jointly own Ivy Cottage with my wife. | was
previously on Bunbury Parish Council between 2004 and 2007 and | agreed to be
co-opted in January 2011. Following the making of this complaint, | resigned from
the Parish Council on 03 February 2012 but have since received a letter from the
Council saying that it hoped | might consider rejoining the Parish Council at some
point in the future!! During both periods of office as a Parish Councillor | did not
undertake any training on the Code of Conduct.

When | was co-opted in January 2011 the Clerk, Alex Stubbs, spoke to me and told
me of the advice that she had received from Cheshire East although | was not
shown a copy of that until | received an email from Alex on 26 September 2011. |
didn't agree with the advice that Alex was giving me as | did not believe that | had a
prejudicial interest, but | went with the flow and that was the course being taken by
the other Parish Councillors who live on Wyche Lane. | followed that course until
the September meeting but | was beginning to feel pressured and was uneasy that
there was no information coming out of the Muir Sub-Committee and residents in
the village did not understand why | had nothing that | could tell them. | missed the
October and November meetings as | was in New Zealand. | did access my emails
but | deleted or parked most of them as it seemed to be that many of them were
becoming very vitriolic. When | returned, shortly before the meeting on 13
December 2011, | had not considered the email of 04 December and the second
advice from Mrs Openshaw, although it could have been in my inbox before |
deleted it for the reason quoted above.

| attended the meeting on 13 December 2011 and, having read the letter from Ben
Hayward, Cheshire East Planning, decided that | would not declare an interest as it
appeared from the letter that the planning application did not affect me. | recognise
now, as | say in the response, that | should have declared a personal interest, but |
do not believe that | had a prejudicial interest. Mrs Partridge did ask whether we
wished to make any declaration of interest and for the reasons stated 1 said 'no'.
The minutes indicate that myself and Mrs Beard 'raised concerns that the wider
access way might open up the field behind for housing'. | do not recall either of us
making that specific statement. | know that | felt strongly about the proposed
change of the access road, as is set out in my letter of objection. | also felt strongly
about the need for affordable housing to be built in the village and the 10 houses
proposed by Muir are a necessary part of that provision. | support the youngsters of
the village wanting to live in the village when they become adults. | do recall making
comment to the effect that 'do you know what Gary has in mind for that field?' A
reasonable question in my view seeing that my previous exclusion from the Muir
discussions and the poor reporting of those meetings prevented me from obtaining
this information, which would have helped in answering the questions from the local

H
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community. | do not know why | did not challenge the accuracy of the minutes at
the January 2012 meeting.

5. When we bought Ivy Cottage in 2001, our solicitor warned us that the land to the
rear of our property was prime development land, so we expected development
proposals to come forward at some stage, and took appropriate measures to shield
the house from the field by planting trees and a hedge. | understand that
responsibility for the making of a declaration of interest rests with the Councillor and
that it was for me to make that decision. However, it did seem to me that there was
a lot of uncertainty about the matter involving all the Councillors who live on Wyche
Lane and there was no clear advice coming from the Chairman or the Clerk. | also
understand now that the approach adopted by Ben Hayward for neighbour
consultation is different and more restrictive than the interpretation of the existence
of a personal interest. As | have already said | recognise that | should have
declared a personal interest when any matter concerning the whole of this field was
being considered.

6. As to my interest being prejudicial, | appreciate there is a test in paragraph 10(1) of
the Code and that it is from the point of view of a member of the public with full
knowledge of the facts. The view that | take is this. In relation to the Muir
development land and the adjoining strip of land over which the Parish Council is
considering taking an option, my property does not adjoin either of those two pieces
of land and they are not visible from my property in normal circumstances. Any
reasonable development of either piece of land will, in my opinion, have no effect on
my financial position. | therefore do not have a prejudicial interest. In relation to the
land to the rear of my property, as | have said, we took into account the likelihood of
that land being developed at some stage when we bought the property and |
believe, and have always believed that there was no financial interest and,
therefore, no prejudicial interest. | understand that some may take a different view.

7. In relation to the meeting on 13 December 201 1, the issue being debated was the
Parish Council's response to a planning application amending the access way over
the Muir land and the option strip to the field at the rear of my property. If | said
what is written in the minutes then | accept that a member of the public would regard
my interest as being prejudicial. As | have already said, | do not recall saying the
words set out in the minute but the contribution that | recall making may be seen by
some to make a similar point.

This statement is a fair summary of an interview conducted by the Investigator on 05
March 2012.
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mikedudfield
From: "Sally Beard" <sallypbeard@fsmail.net>
To: <mikedudfield@btopenworld.com>
Sent: 20 February 2012 12:36

Attach: Letter of PC resignation 040112.docx
Subject: RE: Code of Conduct complaint 1 of 6
Dear Mr Dudfield,

I am writing in response to your letter of 13 February and your request for suitable dates and
times to be interviewed. You are welcome to come to my home and the dates/times when I am
available during the period specified are: 8th at 11.00am or 9th at 11.30am.

After being away, I have only just been able to read your letter today, so I haven't really had
chance to absorb it all yet. T have sorted out some emails and attachments to send to you for
information on my behalf. Apart from the emails below + attachment, I will be forwarding

5 additional emails (a couple with attachments) and will label them accordingly. Please can you
confirm receipt of all.

[ will have another look at everything and in particular the Comments relating to myself which at
first glance look unfamiliar in part. Presume these will be up for discussion when we meet?

Regards

Sally Beard

Message Received: Feb 13 2012, 02:21 PM
From: "Sally Beard"

To: "Erica Partridge"

Ce;

Subject: Parish Council resignation

Dear Erica,

Over the last few days I have spent some time considering my position and have come to
the conclusion that I do wish to resign and for you to accept my resignation letter which
you received last week.

Not only are my personal circumstances quite complicated at the moment but I feel I
would find it difficult to fully participate in Council meetings because of this 'code of
conduct complaint' against me. Regretfully, this has now led me to believe that I no
longer want to be a Councillor.

Please pass on my regrets to Brian and let him know of my simultaneous resignation
of the post as Secretary to the Playing Fields Committee.

Regards

Sally

20/02/2012
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Message Received: Feb 04 2012, 04:15 PM
From: "Sally Beard"

To: "Erica Partridge"

Ce:

Subject: Parish Council resignation

Dear Erica,

Please find attached my letter of resignation, which I have also posted to you.
From my point of view, I very much hope that the 'code of conduct complaint' is
resolved without cause for further concern and hope that you find a 'willing
volunteer' to replace me (however, I can't help but think that there should be some

sort of 'health warning'!).

Please also pass on my regrets to Brian and let him know of my simultaneous
resignation of the post as Secretary to the Playing Fields Committee.

Good luck in what I'm sure will be a difficult time.
Regards

Sally

Page 2 of 2

20/02/2012
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Lexington
Wyche Lane
Bunbury
Tarporley
Cheshire
CW6 9PD

4™ February 2012

Mrs Erica Partridge
Holly Mount
Whitchurch Road
Bunbury

Tarporley
Cheshire

CW6 9SX

via post and email

Dear Erica
PARISH COUNCIL RESIGNATION

With everything that is going on at the moment in relation to my personal life
and with the added extra pressure of a unexpected code of conduct complaint
made against me, I have not unsurprisingly come to the conclusion that I no
longer wish to offer my services as a Parish Councillor and therefore am
resigning with immediate effect.

As you know, I have recently had an operation, both of my parents are seriously
ill, and I also have to juggle the needs of a young family and work, so my time is
precious.

After several years of loyal service as a Parish Councillor and never having had
an official complaint made against me personally or at work, I am genuinely
disappointed and upset by this. By your actions in this matter, I now regret the
day I offered to be a Parish Councillor.

Finally, as a person who always takes an active interest in her local community,
T am sure that I will continue to be involved and appreciated in other areas.

Yours sincerely

Sally Beard

Page 2 of 2
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From: MOULSON, Diane

Sent: 03 February 2012 14:55

To: 'sallypbeard@fsmail.net'

Subject: RE: Code of Conduct Complaint

Response sent on behalf of Caroline Elwood

Dear ClIr Beard
Thank you for your e mail.

The procedure for dealing with complaints under the Model Code of Conduct is that the written complaint
is referred to a specially convened meeting of the Assessment sub committee, which is a sub-committee
of the Council's Standards Committee . The sub-committee considers whether or not to refer the matter
for formal investigation based upon the details as set out in the written complaint. Neither the
complainant nor the subject member is present at the meeting which consists solely of the Committee
members, committee clerk and professional adviser. No other evidence is submitted or considered at this
initial stage.

| can confirm that the complaint was considered on 24 January 2012 and has been referred

for investigation. A formal letter setting out the reasons for the decision will be sent to you
separately. The Investigator will be in touch and full details of the complaint will be provided at that
stage. You will obviously have the opportunity to make full representations to the investigator who will
subsequently provide a written report setting out his/her findings which will be considered further by
members of the sub-committee.

I am enclosing the link to the Council’'s website which sets out guidance notes on the process to making
a formal complaint which | hope will be helpful to you.

http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/council and democracy/your_council/councillor _conduct/making_a_complaint.aspx

Yours Sincerely

Caroline Elwood

Borough Solicitor/Monitoring Officer
Cheshire East Council

Westfield's

Middlewich Road

Sandbach

CW11 1HZ

Tel: 01270 685882

caroline.elwood(@cheshireeast.gov.uk

Diane Moulson

Snr Member Development Officer

Cheshire East Council

Democratic Services, Ground Floor, Westfields
Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ
Email: diane.moulson@cheshireeast.gov.uk
Tel: 01270 686476

file://C:\Documents and Settings\Mike Dudfield\Local Settings\Temporary Internet Fi... 08/02/2012
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----- Original Message-----

From: Sally Beard [mailto:sallypbeard@fsmail.net]
Sent: 30 January 2012 14:34

To: MOULSON, Diane

Subject: Code of Conduct Complaint

Diane,

Please find attached my letter in response to your letter regarding the Code of Conduct Complaint
raised by Mrs Erica Partridge of Bunbury Parish Council.

I look forward to your reply.
Regards

Sally Beard

file://C:\Documents and Settings\Mike Dudfield\Local Settings\Temporary Internet Fi... 08/02/2012
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Lexington
Wyche Lane
Bunbury
Tarporley
Cheshire
CW6 9PD

29" January 2012
Ms Diane Moulson

Legal and Democratic Services
Cheshire East Council
Westfields

Middlewich Road

Sandbach

Cheshire

CW11 1HZ

via post and email

Dear Ms Moulson
CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINT (CEC/2011/08)

I am writing in reply to your letter of 20 January 2012 which arrived on 26
January about a complaint raised by Councillor Erica Partridge of Bunbury Parish
Council. Firstly, it was totally unexpected and secondly it seems poor timing to
advise about an Assessment Sub-Committee meeting to assess the complaint
when it has already taken place without me able to provide any information from
my side. I presume I will get this chance? However, I do feel T would like to
offer some information now.

I contacted Mrs Partridge to query the situation and understood that this
complaint arose from my response at the Parish Council meeting on 13
December in connection with Muir and the strip of land behind the proposed
development on Wyche Lane.

On 19 October, following questions raised by other Councillors which caused me
to doubt my previous declaration of personal and prejudicial interest in these
matters, I did, as Mrs Partridge instructed, raised a detailed written request of
clarification from the Monitoring Officer, via Mrs Stubbs the Parish Clerk. I was
expecting a written reply offering some advice regarding the specific clarification
I was seeking.

On 4 December, the Clerk circulated to all Councillors some links to general code
of conduct advice from Julie Openshaw. Mrs Partridge stated to me a couple of
days ago that the Clerk had also received advice from Caroline Ellwood that she
was unable to provide any specific advice as her primary role was to deal with
complaints. I never received this information, whenever it was sent to the Clerk,
nor a reply to my request for clarification; consequently I thought my specific
request was still outstanding. Unfortunately, with a number of serious personal
events going during the last couple of months, I did not follow up my
outstanding query to the Monitoring Officer with the Clerk.

\cont’'d
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There followed the meeting on 13 December. I arrived late to the meeting and
was not there for the introduction and member’s declaration of interests. In
fact, according to Mrs Partridge I arrived just before the Muir item occurred in
the agenda. I was immediately asked if following the further advice from the
council I had any questions to raise and if I wished to declare any interests in
relation to the agenda. I know I hesitated and said ‘no’ but in truth I felt thrown
in to something without a proper chance to understand what I was doing. There
was no explanation of what saying ‘no’ at this point was going to mean and
obviously in retrospect I should have reiterated my outstanding query, which I
now understand would have meant the item would have been deferred to the
next meeting. I would have expected some warning about the outcome of my
actions at this stage or even afterwards from Mrs Partridge, but nothing was said
or written.

I have an exemplary conduct record in my life and would never wish to put
myself in a position where a complaint is made for this reason. I do not believe
that I have ever not declared a personal interest but my position only altered
recently, where I sought specific advice because I was unclear as to whether it
was also ‘prejudicial’. If, in receipt of clarification to convince me that I had
made an error of judgement, then I would make the ‘personal and ‘prejudicial’
declaration and hopefully would avoid making myself a candidate for a ‘code of
conduct complaint’!

This whole situation leads me to conclude that a ‘complaint’ needs to be raised
before any queries regarding personal/specific situations can be answered?
Certainly, when I very recently discovered that Caroline Ellwood had stated that
she was unable to provide any specific advice as her primary role was to deal
with complaints then this would appear to confirm this? May be you can clarify
this for me?

I look forward to your reply.

Yours sincerely

Sally Beard
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mikedudfield

From: "Sally Beard" <sallypbeard@fsmail.net>

To: "mikedudfield" <mikedudfield@btopenworld.com>
Sent: 20 February 2012 13:14

Subject: Code of Conduct Beard 3 of 6

Message Received: Jan 27 2012, 01:00 PM

From: "Sally Beard"

To: "Erica Partridge"

Ce:

Subject: Re: December PC minutes and letter submitted for meeting

Erica,

[ have now taken a look at the December minutes and have a number of issues to query.
[ wasn't at the January meeting to query these due to my operation and have no record of
the minutes and agenda being sent to my computer before the meeting (which isn't
unusual - as Alex knows she has had to send documents separately on previous
occasions). I did offer my apologies for the meeting to Alex.

Firstly, as you may remember, I was late to the December meeting (as usual since I have
to drop off my daughter around the same time) and do not think I was there for the
members declarations of interest.

Secondly, in relation to Muir Matters, I think the minutes are inaccurate. I don't believe
the Councillors living on Wyche Lane withdrew their declarations of interest - as I
understood it we retained personal interest but didn't believe it was 'prejudicial interest
which affects participation in the meeting. Although I did not raise any questions at the
time, I did believe that questions regarding my personal situation were still being
considered by the Monitoring Officer at Cheshire East. I had seen the general advice but
since I had not received a personal written response from Alex, that she had received
from Caroline Elwood at Cheshire East, I was still believing I would be getting proper
specific advice.

Thirdly, I have a query with respect to the correspondence received at the meeting.
Please see below for something that I submitted with Alex in time for the meeting which
does not appear on the letters received. Has Mrs Goodfellow been responded to?
Obviously, I had left the meeting before this was discussed but Alex had assured me it
would be included.

I look forward to your reply.

Sally

Message Received: Dec 12 2011, 08:11 PM

From: "Sally Beard"

To: "BunburyClerk"

Ce:

Subject: Re: Letter for inclusion with Parish Council meeting

Hello Alex,
20/02/2012
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Thanks for the info. I have attached the letter and its reference for you to include in
correspondence.

Kind regards

Sally

Message Received: Dec 12 2011, 06:15 PM
From: "BunburyClerk"

To: sallypbeard@fsmail.net

Ce:

Subject: Re: Further applicants for clerks position

Hi Sally, can you email out your shortlist to Erica please as she is created a
'matrix' of preferences.

Yes, if you scan the letter in, I'll include it in correspondence.
See you tomorrow.

Alex

|----- Original Message ----—-
From: Sally Beard

To: BunburyClerk
Sent: Monday, December 12, 2011 2:49 PM

Subject: RE: Further applicants for clerks position
Hello Alex,

Thanks for all the cvs. I have to leave tomorrow's meeting at 8.55pm so I
guess I'll miss the discussion on this. Thave been looking through and
made my own shortlist which I can bring with me or email if you prefer.

Also, I have been sent a letter from one of the residents of School Lane
regarding the 'speeding article' in a recent edition of the Parish Link. The
lady in question has been in contact with neighbours and the school and
wants to send in letters to the council about this. She has come to me to
bring it up at the Parish Council meeting. I would raise it in AOB but
again don't think I'll still be there. Can I scan the letter for you to include?

Kind regards

Sally

20/02/2012
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mikedudfield

From: "Sally Beard" <sallypbeard@fsmail.net>
To: "mikedudfield" <mikedudfield@btopenworld.com>
Sent: 20 February 2012 13:30

Subject: Code of Conduct Beard 5 of 6

Message Received: Oct 19 2011, 07:25 PM
From: bunburyclerk@aol.com

To: sallypbeard@fsmail.net

Cc: ep.partridges@btinternet.com

Subject: Re: Can't spell sorry

Hi Sally,
Have asked the Monitoring for some advice and will let you know her response.

Regards
Alex

----- Original Message-----
From: Sally Beard

To: Bunbury Parish

CC: Erica Partridge

Sent: Wed, 19 Oct 2011 16:59
Subject: Can't spell sorry

Alex,

Just reread my email to you and had to laugh at my spelling of prejudicial. Sorry it came out so
wrong - what's 'preducial'?? Any way hope you can help clarify things for me.

Kind regards

Sally

20/02/2012
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mikedudfield
From: "Sally Beard" <sallypbeard@fsmail.net>
To: "mikedudfield" <mikedudfield@btopenworld.com>

Sent: 20 February 2012 13:25
Subject:  Code of Conduct Beard 4 of 8

Message Received: Jan 26 2012, 05:41 PM

From: "Sally Beard"

To: "Erica Partridge"

Ce:

Subject: Code of Conduct and Monitoring Officer info request

Erica,

I have been somewhat concerned to receive a letter from Cheshire East Council
reference a code of conduct complaint made against me. Back on Oct 19 I sent you and
Alex an email (see below) requesting specific clarification with the Monitoring Officer
regarding my specific situation. As yet I have not received a reply, only general
references to code of conduct info. I presume this was forwarded to the Monitoring
Officer as you requested in your email and I in mine. Please can you investigate as a
matter of urgency and send me a copy of the request to the Monitoring Officer.

Regards

Sally

Message Received: Oct 19 2011, 04:52 PM

From: "Sally Beard"

To: "Bunbury Parish"

Cc: "Erica Partridge"

Subject: Re: Openshaw letter Fw: Members' Interests query

Alex,

Erica has helped me with respect to her reply to this email. I just need to clarify
whether the advice regarding 'member D' (ie. myself) in the scenario is right.
Julie Openshaw’s advice was that I would have a 'preducial interest' because my
property has a view of the development. Whilst I will have a view of the
development, with what is going to be built I do not think that I will retain a
view of the strip of 'gifted' land in question. I would consider that the Muir
development has a potential affect on us but not the strip of land behind. Please
can you clarify this with the Monitoring Officer.

Many thanks
Sally

PS. 1 presume that I don't need to produce the existing Muir plans of the
development in relation to my house. We're still uncertain about the final height
levels of the proposed development but based on what I've seen with the land
being higher than ours by some degree, once houses are built there is no way we
will be viewing the strip of land behind.

Message Received: Oct 18 2011, 09:19 PM

From: "Partridges"

To: "jill waits" , sallypbeard@fsmail.net

Cc: "Brian Dykes" , "Bunbury Parish" , "Dave Ellis" , "Dennis
Burrows" , "Eric Lord" , "GMC" , "Mandy Jones" , "Nick Parker"
Subject: Re: Openshaw letter Fw: Members' Interests query

Jill and Sally and other Parish Councillors

| am afraid the messages below serve to further obscure the sequence of
events and reality in this matter.

It has been explained to all Parish Councillors that they must consider there
own position and exclude themselves as necessary in accordance with the
Code of Conduct. The decision is not and has not been made by myself, Alex
or Julie Openshaw. The purpose of the Julie Openshaw's message is to advise
on the correct interpretation of the Code of Conduct to assist Councillors and
nothing else.

There has never been any question of anybody imposing a ruling on any of the
Parish Councillors who have applied the advice and excluded themselves.

The solution is quite straightforward and always has been. A polite request to
Alex on this basis is all that is necessary.

If Parish Councillors are concemed that they may not have interpretated the
Code correctly in relation to their own situation they should each contact Alex
with their queries and request that she forward them to Julie Openshaw with a
plan indicating the various plots of land. Julie Openshaw can then provide
further advice and, as before, the Councillors can take a decision in the light of
that advice.

As each Parish Councillor has to consider their own position there may be
other factors they need to take into account (as | cannot presume that the
advice covers all circumstances relevant to each person).

Erica

20/02/2012
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-—- Original Message -—-

rom: jill waits

0. sallypbeard@fsmail.net

c: Brian Dykes ; Bunbury Parish ; Dave Ellis ; Dennis Burrows ; Eric Lord ; Erica Partridge ; GMC ; Mandy Jones ; Nick Parker
ent: Tuesday, October 18, 2011 9:40 AM
ubject: Re: Openshaw letter Fw: Members' Interests query

Hi Sally,

Many thanks for your email below and letting me know what you recall as I wasn't at the December 2010 meeting.

Il note what you say about Alex circulating the Julie Openshaw email in September 2011. However, it seems to have been important enough to
have been discussed before/or at the beginning of the December meeting, but not to be minuted or circulated then, which I see as a mistake, I
presume on Alex's part. Why should those who were there be party to information about anything, and those who were not there excluded from
hat information? This seems particularly wrong when the 3 people who could not attend the meeting were significantly affected by the
contents of Julie Openshaw's email. Whatever the subject I can't see how this can be regarded as a correct way to behave I'm afraid. 1 see
Alex's job as keeping us all equally informed about anything that is the business of the PC and it seems that on this point she failed to do that. I
don't see it as the responsibility of fellow members to keep those not present informed of what happens.

IAs to your comments on declaring an interest, I have to admit that I was the person who raised this in the first place when I was a new member
hnd anxious, as I hope I continue to be, to do the right thing. I now believe that it was not necessary for the 4 of us from Wyche Lane (but not
hlways Gary) to exclude ourselves from all discussions on all matters relating to Muir Homes and the land behind the development. I think
there has been either inaccurate advice from Julie Openshaw, inadequate or incorrect briefing to her, or an incorrect interpretation of the
nformation she gave (which was inaccurate itself in part when one has a proper understanding of the geography of the area and individual
bwnerships) which has lead to half the PC not being party to a number of decisions that 4 or 5 members should not have been excluded from.
So, I agree with you that we should have been party to more decisions that we have regarding all or part of the Muir issues.

Il am grateful to you for coming forward with information and your views on the matter and look forward to hearing from other councillors.
Regards,

ill

From: Sally Beard
[To: Jill Waits
¢: Brian Dykes ; Bunbury Parish ; Dave Ellis ; Dennis Burrows ; Eric Lord ; Erica Partridge ; GMC ; Mandy Jones ; Nick Parker ; Sally Beard
ent: Monday, 17 October 2011, 21:21
ubject: Openshaw letter Fw: Members' Interests query

Hello Jill,

[ remember seeing this letter and have just checked my emails, so for your info please see below. Alex sent out an email on the 26 Sep to all
Parish Councillors which if you scroll down does include the letter from Julie Openshaw.

[You can also see who all the recipients were.

have not passed this onto anyone except yourselves in this email. I was at the December 2010 meeting where the letter and its
kecommendations were discussed and from this I did declare 'an interest' as it seemed that I needed to. I, then along with the others on Wyche
[Lane have subsequently declared 'an interest' at meetings ever since. I am now uncertain as to whether we should have?

Kind regards
Sally

Message Received: Sep 26 2011, 12:34 PM

From: "Bunbury Parish"

To: "Mandy Jones" , "Brian Dykes" , "Gary McCormack" , "Erica Partridge" , "David Ellis" , "Jill Waits" , "Nick Parker" , "Eric
[Lord" , sallypbeard@fsmail.net, dennis.burrows@btopenworld.com

Cc:

Subject: Fw: Members' Interests query

Dear All

There seems to have been various queries about declaring personal and prejudicial interests regarding the Wyche Lane to be sold to
the PC and there does seem to be some confusion. Please find below the letter received from Julie Openshaw (Deputy Monitoring
Officer for CE) dated November 22nd 2010. Please also find attached a copy of Bunbury Parish Council's Code of Conduct.

We discussed the letter at our December 2010 meeting and following that discussion various members of the PC declared personal
and prejudicial interests. Please take the time to revisit the letter. If you believe that your circumstances have changed then please
do let me know.

Regards
Alex

L—- Original Message -—

From: OPENSHAW. Julie

[To: 'bunburyclerk@aol.com'

Eent: Monday, November 22, 2010 3:39 PM
ubject: Members' Interests query

Good afternoon Alex

Further to our telephone conversation earlier, | understand that you and some of your members seek advice on what if any interests they need to
declare in relation to a plot of land which has been offered for sale to Bunbury Parish Council. | will refer to this as the "for sale land".

You explained that the for sale land abuts a second strip of land which has planning permission for development, and it is the developer that has
offered the for sale land to the Parish Council.

You also explained that one member (A), who owns a third strip of land which abuts the other side of the "for sale" land has already declared a
bersonal and prejucidial interest and has absented himelf from any consideration of whether the land should be purchased, but three other
members are potentially affected because of the positioning of their gardens. "B" has a garden abuiting the "for sale" land, "C" has a garden
abutting the land owned by the councillor who has already declared and interest, and "D" has a garden which allows a view of where the
development would be. Each of them owns their home and has registered it as such in the register of interests.

My view is that due to their proximity to the for sale land, and the possible effect arising from that on the values, or desirability, of their homes, BC
and D all have personal interests in the decision whether the Parish Council should purchase the land, because a decision on whether or not the
PC should buy it could reasonably be regarded as affecting their well-being or financial positions to a greater extent than the majority of council tax
payers ratepayers or inhabitants of the locality.

Unless they can raise some other consideration which might merit further consideration (| haven't seen a plan), they appear to have a prejudicial

20/02/2012
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interest as well, because of the same considerations in tems of proximity and effect on financial position, which suggest that the proper conclusion
is that "a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard [the interest] as so significant that it is likely to
prejudice your judgment of the public interest".

| gather there are 10 members of the Council, with a quorum of 4, so unless other members have prejudicial interests to declare for some other
reason, you should be quorate to make the decision. If circumstances arise where interests are such that getting a quorum would be impossible, the
Borough Council's Standards Committee does have power to consider, and if appropriate, grant, applications for dispensations to allow members to
speak and vote where they have a prejudicial interest, but only where either more than 50% of members who would be entitled to vote being
prohibited from doing so, or where the number of members that are prohibited from voting would upset the political balance of the meeting to the
extent that the outcome of voting would be prejudiced. As these situations are relatively rare, so are applications for dispensations. It does not
sound as though the first criterion would be met; without knowing the political persuasion of the members involved, and the remainder, it's unclear if
the second would apply, but you might want to consider that.

| hope this assists.
Kind regards

Julie Openshaw

Legal Team Manager (Places, Regulatory and Compliance) (Deputy Monitoring Officer)
Cheshire East Borough Council

Westfields

Middlewich Road

Sandbach

CW11 51HZ

01270 685846)

B e T TR R R SRS S S S R b S S a R R R E S e bt bt i

Note: This E-Mail is intended for the addressee only and may include
confidential information.

Unauthorised recipients are requested to please advise the sender immediately
by telephone and then delete the message without copying or storing it or
disclosing its contents to any other person.

We have taken all reasonable precautions to ensure that no viruses are
transmitted from the Authority to any third party. Copyright in this
e-mail and attachments created by us unless stated to the contrary belongs to the Council.

Any liability (in negligence or otherwise) arising from any party acting,
or refraining from acting on any information contained in this e mail is

hereby excluded.

Should you communicate with anyone at the Council by e-mail,
you consent to us monitoring and reading any such correspondence.

Printing this email? Please think environmentally and only print when essential!
*****f******************************************************************

20/02/2012
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Cheshire East Council

\(;:vomplaint against Parish Councillors Sally Beard, David Ellis, Gary McCormack & Jill
aits

Statement of Sally Beard, Lexington, Wyche Lane, Bunbury, Cheshire CW6 9PS

1.

! was co-opted on to Bunbury Parish Council in 2006 and remained a Parish Councillor
until my resignation on 04 February 2012. During that time | had no training on the Code
of Conduct. | am a joint owner of Lexington.

Until December 2010, | made no declaration of interest in respect of any matter
concerning the field opposite my property and the proposed Muir development and the
option land being considered by the Parish Council. | do not think that | had a full
understanding of the interest provisions at that time and, as no-one else was making any
declarations in respect of these matters, it did not occur to me that | should. At the
meeting those present were shown a copy of an email dated 18 November 2010 from
Cheshire East's Deputy Monitoring Officer although the copies were then collected in.
Following sight of this email offering relatively ‘specific’ advice to some of the affected
Councillors | made the decision that | should declare a personal and prejudicial interest in
the proposed Muir development. | did so at the meeting on 14 December 2010 and each
meeting that | attended up to and including July 2011. Paragraph 12 of Erica Partridge's
introduction says | was present at the meeting on 09 August 2011 but that is not true - the
minutes show that | sent an apology.

At the September 2011 Parish Council no-one declared any interests and | had left
before some correspondence referring to Muir was raised. Just prior to the meeting Gary
McCormack had contacted me and others from Wyche Lane about forming another Parish
Council Sub Committee to ‘protect our interest. | think this was because we were not
seeing any minutes of the Muir sub-committee so were being effectively excluded and not
informed about what was happening regarding the strip of land behind the Muir
development. | did not act on this but then started to look more carefully at my personal
and prejudicial interest in this situation.

On 26 September 2011 Alex Stubbs had circulated the Openshaw email as she said that
there had been various queries about interests in Wyche Lane and there seems to be some
confusion. At the 11 October Parish Council meeting, in the declarations of interest, | was
a member who would ‘decide to review the correspondence and then decide if interest
should be declared’. There was some correspondence regarding the planning application
11/2423N but again | had left the meeting long before this so was not involved. On 17
October | sent an email to Jill Waits stating that | was uncertain whether | should have been
declaring an interest and | recalled to her my account of what happened at the meeting in
December 2010. Jill replied that she believed it was now not necessary for all the Wyche
Lane Councillors, apart from Gary McCormack, to exclude ourselves from all discussions
on all matters relating to Muir and the land behind the development. Jill also stated that
she thought the advice was inaccurate as Julie Openshaw had been inadequately or
incorrectly briefed. On 18 October Erica Partridge sent an email by way of explanation
following which, on 19 October, | emailed Alex Stubbs asking her to clarify my position with
regard to the option strip with the Monitoring Officer.

At the 08 November meeting no-one declared an interest as all Muir matters were
deferred pending advice which had been sought from Cheshire East. At this time |
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assumed that this advice would include the request in my email of 19 October. On 04
December | received the second Openshaw advice but this didn't specifically answer my
query and | still thought at that time, that | would be getting a further specific response. At
the 13 December meeting | was late arriving at the meeting and, therefore, had not been
aware of what had happened earlier, particularly under 'declarations of interest’. The
Council was about to discuss Muir matters and Erica asked me specifically whether | was
making any declaration of interest. | hesitated. In hindsight | should have said that | did
not know as | was awaiting a specific response to my query, and, in my mind, | wasn't
decided. | didn't wish to hold up the meeting and said 'no’. My gut feeling was that | had a
personal and prejudicial interest in the Muir development site but regarding the strip of land
behind, which was what | thought was being discussed, | was uncertain about that and
thought my interest may not be prejudicial. However, | was hoping to get some
clarification. | realise now that | should have raised this again at the meeting, but | wasn't
aware at the time that | was making such an ‘error’ of judgement. The meeting discussed
the planning application for the amendment of the access way to the option strip and the
other field which had first been considered at the August meeting when | was away. | did
state that | was concerned at the width of the road from the development into the option
strip and the field beyond because it didn't seem to make sense - | couldn't understand the
need forit. Erica in note 3 of her comments on me says that | voted against the application
because of the risk of further housing development which would directly impact on my
home. | do not recall saying that but | certainly said that the road was too wide. | voted
against mainly because | thought the width and surface of the proposed access way was
totally inappropriate for the field. 4.5m wide is wider than much of Wyche Lane and it
leads off a small proposed development into a field. | am disappointed the minutes didn’t
reflect this. | never saw the minutes, or was able to query them until after the January
meeting and the start of this complaint. My additional thoughts at the time were that the
wider access way could mean that the field behind the strip of land could potentially be
opened up for future housing which would impact on all of Wyche Lane and the Village
through increased traffic. Since then | have wondered about whether 4.5m access
between 2 houses with no pavements would be a suitable access point to further housing
and think probably not so if possible would withdraw my comment relating to the potential
risk of opening up the field behind for further development.

With regard to point 2 in Erica's 'comments’, | did not consider planning application
11/2423N because | was away a lot during August, which is also why | wasn't at the August
Parish Council Meeting. | didn’t look at it until much later in September. My home is
located opposite to the entrance to the Muir housing site but when the houses are built |
would have no view of the strip of field behind. | have absolutely no recollection of stating
in a Parish Council meeting that ‘further information on Muir's funding for the houses was
needed for the Wyche Lane residents to further their plans’. There are no minutes that
mention this. | may have asked about funding in the past but can't recall a specific
situation but would never have said ‘for the Wyche Lane residents to further their plans’ — it
doesn’t make sense to me. I'm certainly not actively planning anything! | can only think
this must be some reference back to the period 2004-2007 when a large proportion of the
village were against the housing development on this ‘rural exceptions’ site and the original
application was refused, went to appeal and was refused again and finally succeeded after
several amendments, conditions, strip of land offer etc later. There have been a lot of
issues in reaching a Section 106 agreement and in early 2010 a variation to this was
proposed changing the houses into all rental, instead of a mixture of shared ownership and
rental. Clir Jones, the Cheshire East ward Councillor, stated at the September 2011
meeting that there were no grant monies available for shared ownership housing at the
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time, so this would seem to have implications for funding.

7. | first saw the minutes for the December meeting after the meeting on 10 January 2012
and after an operation. | sent an email on 27 January to Erica querying certain aspects of
the minutes and | have handed a copy of this email to the Investigator. | have never had
any response to the request in my email of 19 October 2011.

8. The Investigator has gone through the interest provisions in the Code. From his
explanation | understand that | have always had a personal interest in all matters affecting
the proposed development, the option strip and the field, and that, depending on the matter
being discussed, there will have been a number of occasions when | would have had a
prejudicial interest also. It is unfortunate that those Councillors living in Wyche Lane did
not have more information and advice and they would then have had a better
understanding of the interest provisions and none of this would have arisen.

This statement is a fair summary of an interview conducted by the Investigator on 08 March
2012.
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MINUTES OF A MEETING OF BUNBURY PARISH COUNCIL held at the Bunbury Village Hall on
Tuesday 13" December 2011.

Present: Clirs. E.Partridge (Chairman), S. Beard, B. Dykes, D.Ellis, Mandy Jones,
G.McCormack, E.Lord, N.Parker, J Waits

In Attendance: A. Stubbs — Clerk
Members of the public — Michael Thomas

The Chairman welcomed the members of the public.

11.12.01 Apologies for Absence
Apologies were received from Clir. Michael Jones of Cheshire East.

11.12.02 Members Declarations of Interest

CII_r McCormack declared a personal and prejudicial interest in relation to the Parish Council
strip of land behind the Muir development and planning application 11/2423N.

Clir. Lord declared a personal interest in the tree felling review and footpath 14.

11.12.03 Minutes

Clir. Lord proposed that the burglary discussed at the last meeting be added to the agenda.

There were no seconders for this proposal and it was confirmed that the burglary would be
discussed at the Police Cluster meeting.

Clir. McCormack objected to comments in the minutes regarding the resignation of the clerk
and ClIr. Waits proposed that Clir. Dykes and the Chairman’s remarks be removed from the
minutes. There were no seconders to this proposal.

Clir. Waits then proposed that the members of the council that had caused the resignation of
the clerk be named in the minutes. There were no seconders to this proposal.

Resolved: that the minutes of the meeting held on 8"'1 November 2011, be agreed and signed as a
correct record. All agreed with 2 abstentions.

ClIr. McCormack raised the number of emails received by Parish Councillors and wondered if
further filtering could be done by the clerk. After discussion, it was agreed that the current
level of filtering would continue.

11.12.04 Matters Arising
Queens Diamond Jubilee
The Playing Field Committee proposed an ‘It's a Knockout' competition to take place at the
same time as the ‘Big Lunch’ and had provisionally booked an organiser. A deposit is required
as soon as possible. This was discussed and councillors felt that more information was
required before the Council could commit to the proposal.

Proposed: Clir. Partridge proposed that the Parish Council support the principal of a joint event. This was
seconded by Clir. Dykes and all agreed.

Tree Felling Review . _
Clir. Lord as tree warden is still awaiting the report from the tree officer at Cheshire East
Council.

Dog Bin on School Lane . _
Mr & Mrs Barrett have been written to for suggestions of the new site of the dog bin and we
are awaiting their response.

United Utilities Land on Bowes Gate Road

United Utilities have confirmed that they own no land on Bowes Gate Road and it is now
suspected to be Environment Agency Land. The clerk was given permission to do a land
registry search to find the owner.

Footpath 14
With Cllr. McCormack.
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Resolved:

Resolved:

Resolved:

11.12.05

11.12.06
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Resignation of Councillor Burrows/Casual Vacancy

The commemorative scroll is in progress.

Notice has now been received from Cheshire East that an election for the casual vacancy has
not been requested so that the Council can co-opt a new member. 2 applications have been
received, from Mr. M. Thomas and Mrs. L. Potter. Mr. Thomas was asked to leave the room
while the applications were discussed.

that Mr. M Thomas be co-opted to the Parish Council — proposed Clir. Ellis, seconded ClIr.
Dykes and all agreed.

Mr. Thomas returned to the room and was duly co-opted.

Protocol for internal communication
With Clir. Parker. Draft for next meeting.

Christmas Eve Carols

that proceeds of the collection go to St. Lukes Hospice, Winsford. Proposed Clir. Dykes,
seconded Clir. Partridge and all agreed.

ClIr. Dykes reminded all councillors that the Christmas tree would be taken down on January
8" at 10.30am.

Proposed New Bus Service
Clir. Ellis volunteered to draw up the questionnaire.

Discussion of Muir Matters
Clir. McCormack left the meeting.

This was discussed following the decisions of those Councillors living in Wyche Lane to
withdraw their declarations of interests. Clir. Waites raised a motion requesting that planning
application 11/2423N be re-visited to include the formally excluded councillors.

that planning application 11/2423N be discussed including the section 73 variation to alter the
width and location of the accessway across the proposed parish council strip of land.
Proposed Clir. Waites, seconded Clir. Ellis. 5 for with 3 abstentions.

Clir. Waites put forward her view that the the wider accessway would look unsuitable across
the field. Clirs. Ellis and Beard raised concerns that the wider accessway might open up the
field behind for housing.

ClIr. Partridge confirmed that the Parish Council has asked the owner of the field behind the
proposed PC strip to give up the right of access but this had been refused. Muir have stated
that an agricultural access of the proposed width will meet their contractural requirements with
regards to the landowner.

Clir. Partridge also read out an extract from the minutes of the August PC which set down the
Parish Council reasons for their support of the planning application.

that the Parish Council continue with it's original comments on planning application
11/2423N. Proposed Clir. Partrdige, seconded Clir. Dykes, 5 for, 2 against with 1 abstention.

Clir McCormack returned to the meeting.

Planning Applications
Clir. Beard left the meeting.

11/2043N — new farm building at Bunbury Common Road
No objections — proposed ClIr. Ellis, seconded Clir. McCormack and all agreed.

Planning decisions - None

Playing Fields
New Lease for Playing Fields ‘ ‘ _
The draft lease has now been clarified and will be forwarded to the Playing Fields Committee

shortly.

Insurance Valuation
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The in§urance company have reviewed the valuation and increased the insurance cover
accqrdmgly. The new premium has increased by £330. ClIr. Dykes to discuss this with the
Playing Fields Committee as all of the new premium is incurred on behalf of the playing fields.

11.12.07 Playing Fields Report
Clir. Dykes outlined the minutes of the last meeting and confirmed that the next meeting
would take place on Wednesday 18" January at 7.30pm.
Clir. McCormack raised that the language during the Saturday football matches was very
unsuitable and Clir. Dykes agreed to raise this with the organisers.
11.12.08 Borough Councillor Report
Given by CliIr. Waites in the absence of Clir. Michael Jones. A new bus service had started
between 9.30 and 2.00pm in the school term only. A meeting was to take place with the
school regarding traffic calming measures.
11.12.09 Parish Councillors Reports
CliIr. Lord raised if there had been any action on the hedge at Brantwood. This was to be
pursued by Clir. Michael Jones. Clerk to raise with him.
ClIr. Ellis confirmed that the Bunbury Charities had given donations to the Wednesday club,
the Bunbury first responders and the Tarporley Hospital League of Friends.
11.12.10 Correspondence
Letters received included:
A letter regarding 20mph speed limits from Mrs. L Potter. This deferred to a future meeting.
A letter regarding a summer house at Church Bank from Mrs. L Doyle. Clerk to reply that the
PC had never received or given any information about this.
An note from Nick Lawford regarding the Bunbury website. This deferred to a future meeting.
An email from Mr. James Walton regarding confidential information. This noted by the Parish
Council.
11.12.11 Finance Matters
It was resolved that:
the following cheques be signed:
PAYEE DESCRIPTION NET VAT TOTAL
(£) (£) (£)
CHALC Clerks Advert 25.00 25.00
Alex Stubbs Repayment for clerks advert 96.60 19.32 115.92
Nick Parker Additional Christmas tree bulbs 22.50 22.50
It was agreed that the budget meeting would take place on Wednesday 4™ January at '7.30pm
in the village hall. The committee would consist of Clirs. Partridge, Dykes, Parker, Waites and
the clerk.
11.12.12 Any Other Business

None

It was decided that the rest of the meeting be held in private. Members of the public were
asked to leave and confidential minutes produced.

Signed:

Date:
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Please find below message from Julie Openshaw with helpful links regarding the code of

conduct, which will hopefully clarify whether or not you should declare interests in various
matters.

Regards
Alex

----- Original Message -----

From: OPENSHAW, Julie

To: 'bunburyclerk@aol.com'

Ge: 'ep.partridges@btinternet.com’ ; ELWOOD, Caroline ; MOULSON, Diane
Sent: Wednesday, November 30, 2011 2:51 PM

Subject: General Advice on Parish Council Member Declarations of Interests

Dear Alex

Further to Caroline Elwood’s email to you of 22 November, indicating amongst other things that
we would reissue some general advice to the Parish Council on Declarations of Interest
generally, please find attached three web links.

The first is to the part of Cheshire East’s Council’s website showing the Code of Conduct for
Membetrs within the Constitution.

The second is to an explanatory leaflet relating to Personal and Prejudicial Interests published
on behalf of the Standards Committee.

The third is to Standards for England’s booklet to Members explaining the Code, which was
issued in May 2007, when the Code was updated.

As Caroline said, in the light of this reminder, it will then be for members of the Parish Council
to consider their individual positions if necessary. As you know, the advice I provided in
November 2010 was based on the circumstances you outlined to me at the time, and was
confined to the issue of the offer of land to the Parish Council, not the later planning application.

http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/council_and democracy/your council/constitution.aspx (see pp

357 - 364 for the Code)
The Model Code of Conduct - An Explanatory Leaflet Relating to Personal and Prejudicial Interests (PDF, 71KB)

http://www.standardsforen oland.gov.uk/Guidance/T heCodeofConduct/Guidance/filedownload, 1
6126,en.pdf (see Section 3 for Interests).

As regards personal and prejudicial interests, the Code provisions themselves, and their
application, will generally be the same for Parish Councillors as for Borough Councillors.

I hope this is of assistance.

Kind regards

Julie Openshaw

Legal Team Manager (Places) / Deputy Monitoring Officer
Cheshire East Borough Council

Westfields

Middlewich Road

Sandbach

CW11 1HZ

Tel: 01270 685846

Fax; 01270 529710
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mikedudfield

From: "David Ellis" <dellis7 @tiscali.co.uk>

To: "mikedudfield" <mikedudfield@btinternet.com>
Sent: 07 April 2012 13:05

Subject: RE: Bunbury PC - Investigation Report
Dear Mr Dudfield

Thank you for the copy of your report which | am currently studying and will respond in more detail
once | have taken in all that you have said. My first impression is one of great disappointment that you
have come to the conclusion you have indicated in your report. It appears to me that our meeting was
of little or no use and you could have quite easily have come to this conclusion from the submissions
sent to you by Erica Partridge and myself and saved a tremendous amount of money to the tax payer.
You do not seem to have taken into account any of my submissions as to why | reached the decision on
prejudicial interest and | am extremely disappointed that you have seen fit not to mention in your
summary the letter from Ben Haywood as mitigating circumstances which encouraged me to come to
the decision | came to at that meeting. | also see that you have failed to mention that Erica used
conversations outside the meeting to justify her appalling actions in this case so obviously you decided
not to take note of these comments when | made them to you. I still do not believe that | have a
financial interest in anything that goes on behind my house as explained to you at some length but you
have your view and | have mine.

| am also not at all happy with your statement that | cannot discuss these matters with any member of
the public unless advised otherwise by East Cheshire. | have received a large number of questions as to
why | am no longer on the PC and in one case | was asked if | was in trouble with the police because of
something | had done wrong on the Council!!! | will make my own decision on this personal matter once
everything has been concluded, although there is very little point in waiting for the decision from East
Cheshire as you have already made it for them.

| will be in contact again before the 215 April.

Yours sincerely
David Ellis

From: mikedudfield [mailto:mikedudfield@btinternet.com]

Sent: 07 April 2012 10:08

To: David Ellis

Subject: Bunbury PC - Investigation Report

Dear Mr Ellis,

| have completed the draft report in relation to Sally Beard and yourself and attach a copy. Those
appendices that relate to you are already in your possession apart from Mrs Partridge's statement which
is also attached.

Please let me have any comments you wish to make on the draft. These should be with me by 21 April,
following which | will finalise the report and send it through to Mrs Elwood.

Please note that the draft report and its appendices remain confidential until they are considered by
Cheshire East's Standards Comittee who will determine whether they come into the public domain.

Yours sincerely,

Mike Dudfield

10/04/2012
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From: "David Ellis" <dellis7 @tiscali.co.uk>
To: ""mikedudfield" <mikedudfield@btinternet.com>
Sent: 07 April 2012 17:48

Subject: RE: Bunbury PC - Investigation Report
Dear Mr Dudfield

| have now had a chance to read your comments in more detail and really have nothing more to add to

the e-mail | sent you earlier today. It is painfully obvious that | was tried and convicted before you even
came to see me so why waste any more of my valuable time on such a trivial matter. | have much more
important things to do in Bunbury where my efforts are much more appreciated without the overriding
fear that | will be reported to some kangaroo court for something | say or do!! | have now closed my file
and await your final report to see if you have amended it to include the comments | made earlier today.

Yours sincerely
David Ellis

From: mikedudfield [mailto:mikedudfield@btinternet.com]
Sent: 07 April 2012 10:08

To: David Ellis

Subject: Bunbury PC - Investigation Report

Dear Mr Ellis,

| have completed the draft report in relation to Sally Beard and yourself and attach a copy. Those
appendices that relate to you are already in your possession apart from Mrs Partridge's statement which
is also attached.

Please let me have any comments you wish to make on the draft. These should be with me by 21 April,
following which | will finalise the report and send it through to Mrs Elwood.

Please note that the draft report and its appendices remain confidential until they are considered by
Cheshire East's Standards Comittee who will determine whether they come into the public domain.

Yours sincerely,

Mike Dudfield

10/04/2012
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From: "mikedudfield" <mikedudfield@btinternet.com>
To: "David Ellis" <dellis7@tiscali.co.uk>

Sent: 10 April 2012 21:41

Subject:  Bunbury PC - Investigation Report

Dear Mr Ellis,

Thank you for your two emails of 07 April. These, together with this reply will be appended to the final
report which | am sending to Mrs Elwood tomorrow.

The 'executive summary' is just that - a summary of the complaint and the conclusions that | have
reached. The report sets out the position of Mrs Partridge, as the complainant, and Mrs Beard and
yourself, as the members the subject of the allegation. The first point you make regarding the matters
you took into account are explained in paragraph 38 of the report. The second is the private conversation
that you had with Mrs Partridge following the meeting on 13 December 2011. You will see that this does
not feature in the report, either in support of the allegation by Mrs Partridge, or your concern that she
should mention a private conversation in her complaint. That conversation has not influenced my
conclusions on the application of a prejudicial interest in this case and | did not feel that it was appropriate
to make reference to it. My conclusions are drawn solely on the statement that you have made and the
minutes of the meeting. My conclusions are recommendations to the Standards Committee and it will be
for the Committee to determine whether they accept the conclusions or, in the case of a prejudicial
interest, accept your reasoning for believing that your peronal interest was not prejudicial in relation to the
item before the Parish Council on 13 December 2011.

With regard to confidentiality, | do not set the rules, | merely apply them. In this case | have advised you
of the situation and it is for you to decide whether you wish to comply with the rules, it is nothing to do with
me whether or not you do so.

As | have said above, | will be forwarding a final version of the report to Mrs Elwood tomorrow and this will
be unchanged as neither Mrs Partridge nor Mrs Beard has sought any changes. Paragraph 56 will be
completed to reflect the responses received and my replies to those responses. The report will be

accompanied by the Appendices of which you already have details and the two additional ones, M &
N, covering the responses to the draft report.

Yours sincerely

Mike Dudfield

10/04/2012
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From: "mikedudfield" <mikedudfield@btinternet.com>
To: <sallypbeard@fsmail.net>
Sent: 10 April 2012 21:43

Subject: Re: Bunbury PC - Investigation Report
Dear Mrs Beard,

Thank you for your response. Your points will be placed before the Committee when it considers my
report.

Yours sincerely,
Mike Dudfield

----- Original Message -----

From: Sally Beard
To: mikedudfield

Sent: Tuesday, April 10, 2012 12:41 PM
Subject: RE: Bunbury PC - Investigation Report

Dear Mr Dudfield,
The only comments [ wish to make are:

o To avoid further problems of this nature in future, I would suggest that guidance states
that all Parish Councillors should receive mandatory code of conduct training.

e Also, I do believe, however, that apart from being given 'general' code of conduct advice,
that when some more specific advice is sought that it should be given and not ignored.
A brief discussion with yourself did help to clarify my position and was all [ was
seeking. IfT had received this before in a more timely manner, I would not have made
the error of judgement I did on 13 December 2011.

Yours sincerely

Sally Beard

Message Received: Apr 07 2012, 10:10 AM
From: "mikedudfield"

To: sallypbeard@fsmail.net

Cc:

Subject: Bunbury PC - Investigation Report

Dear Mrs Beard,

| have completed the draft report in relation to David Ellis and yourself and attach a copy.
Those appendices that relate to you are already in your possession apart from Mrs Partridge's
statement which is also attached.

Please let me have any comments you wish to make on the draft. These should be with me by
21 April, following which | will finalise the report and send it through to Mrs Elwood.

Please note that the draft report and its appendices remain confidential until they are
considered by Cheshire East's Standards Comittee who will determine whether they come into
the public domain.

Yours sincerely,

Mike Dudfield

[ Draft report - Beard & Ellis.rtf (41.7 Kb) |
[ Partidge p1.JPG (1159.6 Kb) ]
[ Partridge - Beard2.JPG (1262.3 Kb) ]

10/04/2012
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Complaints under the New Code — Procedure

Making a Complaint

1.

Complaints must be submitted to Cheshire East Council’s Monitoring
Officer using the Council’s standard Complaint Form setting out in
sufficient detail why the Complainant considers there has been a failure
to comply with the relevant Code of Conduct.

The Monitoring Officer will acknowledge receipt within 5 working days

The Subject Member will be advised that there has been a complaint
and will be provided with a copy of the complaint form, unless, in
exceptional circumstances, where the Monitoring Officer, in consultation
with the Independent Person has granted the Complainant’s request for
confidentially. Under no circumstances must the Subject Member
contact the Complainant direct regarding any issues raised in the
complaint.

Initial Assessment / Gateway Procedure

4.

The Monitoring Officer will refer the complaint to the Audit and
Governance Initial Assessment Panel within 21 days of receipt for an initial
assessment.

After consulting the Independent Person, the Panel will determine whether
to

Take no action

Refer the matter to the relevant Group Leader for informal
action ( NB for complaints against Cheshire East Councillors
only and not generally an appropriate option if the complaint is
from a member of the public)

e Refer the matter for Local Resolution

o Refer the matter for formal investigation by an external
investigator

e Refer the matter to the Police or other relevant Regulatory
Agency

The Initial Assessment Panel’'s Decision on what action to take on a
complaint is final. There is no right to have the decision reviewed.

The Complainant, Subject Member and Parish Clerk, as appropriate, will
be informed of the outcome of the decision.

Meetings of the Panel will not be open to the public.
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Local Resolution

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The Complainant and Subject Member will be advised that the Initial
Assessment Panel has concluded that the complaint is suitable for Local
Resolution without the need for a formal investigation and full hearing
and will be invited to submit written representations outlining the nature
of the dispute using a standard template to ensure consistency.

Both the Complainant and Subject Member will be able to bring a
Supporter and up to three witnesses each to accompany them before an
ad hoc panel of three elected members together with the Independent
Person. The Supporter will not represent the Subject Member but will be
able to confer with him or her.

The Panel will consider the written representations and hear any relevant
evidence before reaching a determination and considering whether any
sanction is appropriate.

The Panel may refer the matter for a formal investigation should it
become apparent that the issues are more complex or serious than was
originally anticipated.

Local Resolution Panels will normally meet in public and will be
convened within 28 days of the decision of the Initial Assessment Panel
subject to availability of the relevant parties.

Both the Complainant and Subject Member will receive copies of each
others written statements and details of any witness to be called 5
working days before the Panel meets. Copies will be made available to
three Panel members and Independent Person at the same time.

The Panel will announce its decision at the end of the hearing and a
formal Decision Notice will be prepared and sent to all relevant parties
within 5 working days. The Decision Notice will be published on the
Council’'s website and reported to the next meeting of the Audit and
Governance Committee.

There is no right of Appeal from the decision of the Local Resolution
Panel which is intended to resolve less serious complaints speedily and
cost effectively.

External Investigation

17.

18.

The matter will be referred for an independent investigation by a suitably
experienced investigative officer. In most cases the investigation is
expected to be completed within 8 weeks of the referral.

The report of the independent investigator should incorporate the
following:-



19.

20.
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e Executive Summary - An outline of the allegation, who made it,
the relevant provisions of the Code and whether there has been
a breach.

¢ Member’s official details - A brief outline of when the Member
was elected, term of office, details of committees served on and
any relevant training.

e Complainants details and any relevant background

e Summary of facts and evidence gathered- A summary of the
facts and evidence gathered highlighting facts which are in
dispute and setting out the investigating officer's conclusions
based on the balance of probabilities.

e Reasoning as to whether there has been a failure to comply
with the Code and investigator’s findings — Dealing with each
allegation in turn an outline of whether the investigating officer
considers there has been a breach and any aggravating or
mitigating facts.

e Schedule - a list of witnesses interviewed and copies of relevant
documents.

A copy of the draft report will be circulated to the Subject Member and
Complainant to check for factual accuracy.

The Investigating Officer will take into account any comments received
before sending the final report to the Monitoring Officer.

External Investigation — No Evidence of Failure to Comply

21.

22.

23.

Where the report concludes that there is no evidence of failure to comply
with the Code of Conduct, the Monitoring Officer will review the report in
consultation with the Independent Person.

If satisfied with the conclusions, the Complainant, Subject Member and
the Town or Parish Clerk ( if appropriate) will be notified within 15
working days that no further action will be taken and will be given a copy
of the final report.

If after consultation with the Independent Person the Monitoring Officer is
not satisfied that the investigation has been concluded properly she may
ask the Independent Investigator to reconsider the report and / or refer
the matter to the Standards Hearing sub committee for a formal hearing
of the issues.
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External Investigation — Evidence of Failure to Comply

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Where the report concludes that there has been a failure to comply with
the provisions of the Code of Conduct the matter will be referred to the
Standards Hearing sub committee who will conduct a hearing to
determine if the Subject Member has failed to comply with the provisions
of the Code and if so what sanction is appropriate.

The Hearing sub committee will consider the matter afresh having regard
to the Investigators findings and all relevant evidence presented by the
Complainant and Subject Member.

The Independent Person will be present at the hearing and will be
consulted and his/ her views taken into account before any decision is
reached.

The Hearing sub committee will announce its decision at the end of the
hearing and a formal Decision Notice will be prepared and sent to all
relevant parties within 5 working days. The Decision Notice will be
published on the Council’'s website and reported to the next meeting of
the Audit and Governance Committee.

Meetings of the Hearing sub committee will be subject to the normal
rules for publication of agendas and access to information.

29. There will be a right of appeal of the decision of the Hearing sub
committee.

Right of Appeal

30. Any appeal by the Subject Member must be lodged within 14 days of the

31.

32.

33.

decision of the Hearing sub committee. A meeting of the Standards
Appeals Panel will then be convened within 21 days.

The Appeals Panel will comprise 3 Members from the Audit and
Governance pool of 15 Members sitting with an Independent Person.
Neither the Members nor the Independent Person will have previously
been involved in the particular case.

The appeal will be by way of a complete re hearing of the issues and will
not be confined to new evidence or only on specified grounds. The
Appeals Panel may dismiss or uphold the appeal and reconsider the
range of sanctions available to the Hearing sub-committee.

The decision of the Appeals Panel is final.
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Independent Person

34. The Council has appointed 4 Independent Persons

35. The Subject Member has the opportunity to consult the Independent
Person at any stage in the investigation process and prior to the final
determination.

Membership of Panels / sub committees

36. If a Member has sat on a Local Resolution Panel which refers a matter
for external investigation then he or she may not subsequently sit on any
Hearing sub committee.

Vexatious Complaints

37. The Council will maintain a list of vexatious or repeated complaints and

will report any concerns regarding abuse of the process to the Audit and
Governance Committee.

September 2012
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CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE
STANDARDS HEARING AD-HOC SUB-COMMITTEE

Date of meeting: 14 November 2012

Report of: Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer

Title: Allegation of a Breach of the Model Code of Conduct
(Complaint CEC/2011/05 and CEC/2011/08)

1. Purpose of the Report

1.1 To enable the Hearing Sub-Committee to consider the Investigating Officer’s
report and to determine what action, if any should be taken.

2. Decision Required

21 The Sub-Committee is invited to consider the Investigating Officer’s report in
accordance with the hearing procedure and relevant legislation/guidelines in
force at the time and determine whether or not there has been a breach of the
Model Code of Conduct.

3. Introduction

3.1 This hearing arises out of allegations made by the Complainants Mrs Erica
Partridge and Mrs Alex Stubbs (Complaint number CEC/2011/05 and
Complaint Number CEC/2011/08) that the Subject Member Mrs Jill Waits,
formerly of Bunbury Parish Council had breached the Model Code of
Conduct, as adopted by that Council. The details of each case are set out in
the report of the Investigating Officer attached.

3.2 Appendix C of the Investigating Officer’s report refers to example emails from
Mr James Walton. These documents have been withdrawn from the report at
the request of the Complainant and have not been taken into consideration by
the Investigating Officer in respect of his conclusions drawn.

3.3 The Sub-Committee has full powers delegated to it by the Audit and
Governance Committee to determine this complaint and must deliver its
verbal decision on the day of the hearing; to be followed by a written decision.
In the event of an adverse finding, the Subject Member may appeal to the
Audit and Governance Standards Appeals Panel.

3.4 The Sub-Committee is asked to note that the complaints were made and the
investigation conducted under the provisions of the Local Government Act
2000 and the Standards (England) Regulations 2008. This legislation was
repealed and replaced with the Localism Act 2011 under which this hearing
will be conducted.
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A copy of Cheshire East Council’'s Code of Conduct Complaints Procedure,
adopted by Council on 19 July 2012 is also appended to the report
(paragraphs 24 to 29 apply).

Hearing Procedure
The hearing procedure to be followed will be circulated at the meeting.
Complaint and Investigator’s Report

A complaint was received on 21 November 2011 from the Clerk to the Parish
Council, Mrs Alex Stubbs on behalf of the Chairman of the Parish Council,
Councillor Erica Partridge alleging that Councillor Jill Waits may have
breached the Model Code of Conduct (CEC/2011/05 refers). A further
allegation of a potential breach of the Code against four members of Bunbury
Parish Council, namely Councillor Waits, Councillor Sally Beard, Councillor
David Ellis and Councillor Gary McCormack was received on 23 November
2011 again from the Clerk and on behalf of the Chairman (CEC/2011/08
refers).

The paragraphs of the Model Code of Conduct which the Complainants
alleged the Subject Member (Jill Waits) had breached were -

Paragraph Conduct

3(1) You must treat others with respect

3(2)(b) You must not bully any person

3(2)(d) You must not compromise the impartiality of those who work
for your authority

4(a) You must not disclose confidential information

5 You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could

reasonably be regarded as bringing your office or authority
into disrepute’

7(1)(a) You must have regard to any relevant advice provided by

7(1)(b) your authority’s chief finance officer and your authority’s
monitoring officer

9(1) Govern disclosure of personal interests

12(1) 12(2) Govern the effects of prejudicial interests on participation

As the complaints appeared to relate to linked or overlapping issues, the
Assessment Sub-Committee of the Standards Committee considered the
complaints as part of the same report on 24 January 2012, its decision being
to refer the matters to the Monitoring Officer for investigation.

Mr Mike Dudfield was appointed to conduct the investigation and his report
was submitted for consideration to the Hearing Consideration Sub-Committee
of the Standards Committee on 25 June 2012. In accordance with Regulation
17 of the Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008, where the
Investigating Officer’s findings were of no breach, two possible options were
available to the Sub-Committee; an acceptance of no breach or to convene a
hearing. However, where the finding was that a breach had occurred, the
option of acceptance of no breach was not available.
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Having taken into account the report’'s contents and Members’ obligations
under the Regulations, together with relevant Guidance issued by Standards
for England, the Sub-Committee’s decision was that it concurred with the
conclusions of the Investigating Officer in that —

a) the Subject Member had failed to comply with paragraphs 9(1),
12(1)(a) and 12(1)(a)(ii) of the Model Code of Conduct; and

b) there had been no failure to comply with paragraphs 3(1), 3(2)(b),
3(2)(d), 4(a), 5, 7(1)(a) & (b), 12(1)(c) of the Model Code of Conduct

and that a hearing should be convened to consider the matters at (a) above.

No further action will therefore be taken in respect of the paragraphs listed in
paragraph 5.5(b) above. The Sub-Committee is only required to determine
the allegations in respect of the paragraphs listed in 5.5(a).

Parties attending the Hearing

The Subject Member has confirmed that she will not be present at the
meeting but has requested that a short statement be read out on her behalf.
The Monitoring Officer has agreed to this request.

The Complainants have been notified of the date of the hearing but have
intimated that they do not wish to be present. There is no power to compel
any party to attend.

The Investigating Officer will be in attendance but does not intend to call any
witnesses.

Matters for Determination

The Sub-Committee needs to determine whether or not it is satisfied that a
breach of the Model Code of Conduct has occurred in respect of paragraphs
9(1), 12(1)(a) and 12(1)(a)(ii) of the Code.

Decision and Sanctions

If, having considered the matter, the Sub-Committee finds that the Subject
Member has not breached the Model Code of Conduct, no further action will
be taken.

If a breach is found, the Member’s Parish Council would be the body to
determine what, if any sanction should be applied. It should be noted that the
Parish Council has no power to impose a sanction against a person who is no
longer a member of it.

The sanctions available to the Sub-Committee are -
(1) Formal censure e.g. through a motion;

(2) Send a formal letter to the Member;
(3) Recommend a course of action to the Members’ Group Leader/

Town/Council;
(4) Report findings to Council/Town or Parish Council for information;
(5) Issue a press release of its findings in respect of the Member’s

conduct.
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8.4 It should be noted that the Hearing Sub-Committee has no power to suspend
or disqualify a Member or to withdraw allowances.

Officer: Caroline Elwood
Designation: Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer
Tel No. 01270 685882

Email: caroline.elwood@cheshireeast.gov.uk
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CONFIDENTIAL

Cheshire East Council

Standards Committee Complaints CEC/2011/05 & 08

Report of an investigation by Mike Dudfield, acting as Investigating Officer,
into allegations concerning the conduct of former Bunbury Parish Councillor Jill

Waits

This report is submitted to the Monitoring Officer of Cheshire East Council, Caroline

Elwood

11 Aprit 2012



Page 106

Executive Summary

1.

Allegation has been made by Mrs Alex Stubbs, who at that time was Clerk to
the Bunbury Parish Council, on behalf of the then Chairman of the Parish
Council, Erica Partridge, that Jill Waits may be in breach of paragraphs 5,
12(1)(a) & (c) of the Bunbury Parish Council Members' Code of Conduct in that

(1) she attended a meeting on 26 August 2011 regarding the development of
land off Wyche Lane, Bunbury, in which she had previously declared a
personal and prejudicial interest; and

(2) she participated in the production and circulation of letters to residents
regarding a planning application affecting that development which gave rise to
incorrect impressions of the application.

A further allegation has been made by Mrs Alex Stubbs, again on behalf of
Erica Partridge, that four Councillors are in breach of various provisions of the
Bunbury Parish Council Members’ Code of Conduct. in relation to Jill Waits it
is alleged that she failed to comply with paragraphs 3(1), 3(2)(b) & (d), 4(a),
7(1)(a) & (b), 9(1) and 12 (1) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish
Council in that

(1) emails sent to the then Clerk and Mrs Partridge did not show respect to
these two persons and could be regarded as constituting bullying;

(2) emails sent to the then Clerk were seeking to compromise the impartiality of
the Clerk;

(3) she may have disclosed confidential information;

(4) she failed to have proper regard to advice received from the Monitoring
Officer; and

(5) she failed to declared either a personal or prejudicial interest when the
Council was considering the Council’'s consultative response to a planning
application relating to an amended access way in relation to the development
of land off Wyche Lane, Bunbury at a Council meeting on 13 December 2011.

This report deals with the first allegation and the second insofar as it relates to
one of those four Councillors, Jill Waits. Mrs Waits has since resigned as a
Parish Councillor, on 20 March 2012.

In respect of the first allegation

4.

I conclude that there has been failure by Jill Waits to comply with paragraph
12(1)(a) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, at the
meeting on 26 August 2011, Mrs Waits had a personal and prejudicial interest
in the subject matter of that meeting, which was within the business of Bunbury
Parish Council, did not declare that interest and remained for the duration of
the meeting.

| conclude that there has been no failure by Jill Waits to comply with
paragraph 12(1)(c) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that,
in her limited participation in the circulation of letters to residents regarding a
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planning application affecting the development off Wyche Lane, Bunbury, she
was not conducting the business of the Council or acting, claiming to act or
giving the impression that she was acting as a representative of the Council
when that participation took place.

| conclude that there has been no failure by Jill Waits to comply with
paragraph § of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, her
involvement in the circulation of letters to residents regarding a planning
application affecting the development off Wyche Lane, Bunbury, which gave
rise to incorrect impressions of the application, and her subsequent request to
the Council on 11 August 2011 to convene a public meeting to clarify the
impressions that residents had, rightly or wrongly, regarding the nature of the
planning application was not conduct which could reasonably be regarded as
bringing her office as Councillor or the Parish Council into disrepute.

In respect of the second allegation

7.

10.

11.

12.

13.

| conclude that there has been no failure by Jill Waits to comply with
paragraph 3(1) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, in
email correspondence to Erica Partridge during 2011, she did not fail to treat
others, with respect.

I conclude that there has been no failure by Jill Waits to comply with
paragraph 3(2)(b) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, in
email correspondence to Mrs Alex Stubbs and Mrs Partridge during 2011 and
her general conduct towards Mrs Stubbs and Mrs Partridge during the same
period, she did not bully Mrs Stubbs and/or Mrs Partridge.

I conclude that there has been no failure by Jill Waits to comply with
paragraph 3(2)(d) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that,
her conduct towards the then Parish Clerk, Mrs Stubbs, did not seek to
compromise the impartiality of Mrs Stubbs.

| conclude that there has been no failure by Jill Waits to comply with
paragraph 4(a) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, she
did not breach confidentiality on 22 December 2011 when advising other Parish
Councillors of the first complaint.

| conclude that there has been no failure by Jill Waits to comply with
paragraph 7(1)(a) & (b) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in
that, she did not fail to have regard to relevant advice given by the Monitoring
Officer on 22 November 2010 and 30 November 2011.

| conclude that there has been failure by Jill Waits o comply with paragraph
9(1) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, at the Parish
Council meeting on 13 December 2011, she failed to declare a personal
interest, namely, her close association with James Walton whose well-being or
financial position might reasonably have been regarded as being affected when
the Council was considering a planning application relating to an amended
access way to proposed development of land off Wyche Lane, Bunbury.

I conclude that there has been failure by Jill Waits to comply with paragraph
12(1)(a)(ii) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, at the
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Parish Council meeting on 13 December 2011, having a prejudicial interest,
namely, her close association with James Walton who had a beneficial interest
in Edinbane, Wyche Lane, Bunbury, when the Council was considering a
planning application reiating to an amended access way to proposed
development of land off Wyche Lane, Bunbury, she did not withdraw from the
meeting room when that business was being considered at the meeting.

| find, under Regulation 14 of the Standards Committee (England) Regulations
2008, that there has been a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct.

Relevant Legislation

15.

16.

17.

On 24 January 2012, Cheshire East Council’s Standards Assessment Sub-
Committee decided to refer the allegations made against then Councillor Waits
to the Monitoring Officer for investigation under section 57A(2) of the Local
Government Act 2000.

Under section 82A of the Local Government Act 2000 the Monitoring Officer
can delegate an investigation and on this occasion Mrs Elwood has delegated
this investigation to me.

The Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008 apply to this
investigation.

Relevant Paragraphs of the Code of Conduct

18.

19

20.

Paragraph 2 of the Code states -

*(1) Subject to sub-paragraphs (2) to (5), you must comply with this Code
whenever you -

(a) conduct the business of your authority {which, in this Code, includes
the business of the office to which you are elected or appointed); or

(b) act, claim to act or give the impression you are acting as a
representative of your authority.

(2) to (5) (not applicable to this case).”
Paragraph 3(1) states -

“You must treat others with respect.”
Paragraph 3(2) states -

“You must not -

(a) (not applicable to this case)
(b) bully any person;

(c) (not applicable to this case)
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(d) do anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the
impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf of, your authority.”

21. Paragraph 4 states -

“You must not -

(a) disclose information given to you in confidence by anyone, or
information acquired by you which you believe, or ought reasonably to
be aware, is of a confidential nature, except where -

(iy  you have the consent of a person authorised to give it;

(i)  you are required by law to do so;

(i) the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of
obtaining professional advice provided that the third party
agrees not to disclose the information to any other person; or

(iv) the disciosure is -

(aa) reasonable and in the public interest; and
(bb) made in good faith and in compliance with the reasonable
requirements of the authority; or

(b) (not applicable to this case)’

22. Paragraph 7(1) states -

“When reaching decisions on any matter you must have regard to any
relevant advice provided to you by -

(a) your authority’s chief finance officer; or
(b) your authority’s monitoring officer,

where that officer is acting pursuant to his or her statutory duties.”

23. Paragraph 8 states -

“8(1) You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where
either—

(a) (not applicable in this case); or

(b) a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be
regarded as affecting your well-being or financial position or
the well-being or financial position of a relevant person to a
greater exient than the majority of -

(i) & (ii) (not applicable fo this case)
(i) other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of
your authority’s area

8(2) In sub-paragraph (1)(b), a relevant person is -



24.

25.

26.
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(a) ......... any person with whom you have a close association;
(b) to (d) (not applicable to this case)’
Paragraph 9 states -

“9(1)

Subject to sub-paragraphs (2) to (7) where you have a personal
interest in any business of your authority and you attend a meeting of
your authority at which the business is considered, you must disclose
to that meeting the existence and nature of that interest at the
commencement of that consideration, or when the interest becomes
apparent,

9(2) to 9(7) (not applicable in this case).”

Paragraph 10 states -

“10(1) Subject to sub-paragraph (2), where you have a personal interest in

10(2)

any business of your authority you also have a prejudicial interest in
that business where the interest is one which a member of the public
with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so
significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public
interest.

You do not have a prejudicial interest in any business of the authority
where that business—

(a) does not affect your financial position or the financial position
of a person or body described in 8;

(b) does not relate to the determining of any approval, consent,
licence, permission or registration in relation to you or any
person or body described in 8; or

(c) (not applicable in this case).”

Paragraph 12 states -

“12(1) Subject to sub-paragraph (2), where you have a prejudicial interest in

any business of your authority—

(a) you must withdraw from the room or chamber where a meeting
considering the business is being held—

(i) in a case where sub-paragraph (2) applies,
immediately after making representations, answering
guestions or giving evidence;

(i) in any other case, whenever it becomes apparent
that the business is being considered at that
meeting;

uniess you have obtained a dispensation from your authority’s
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standards committee;
(b) (not applicable in this case); and

(¢) you must not seek improperly to influence a decision about that
business.

12(2) Where you have a prejudicial interest in any business of your
authority, you may attend a meeting (............ ) but only for the
purpose of making representations, ......... , provided that the public
are also allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose, whether
under a statutory right or otherwise.”

Councillor Details

27. Jill Waits was co-opted on to Bunbury Parish Council on 21 April 2010 and
remained a Parish Councillor until her resignation on 20 March 2012. Her
partner, James Walton, was the owner of Edinbane, Wyche Lane, Bunbury but
Mrs Waits acquired a half interest in the property during December 2011

28. Mrs Waits has not undertaken any training on the Code of Conduct.

The Evidence Obtained

29. | have interviewed -

e the complainant Erica Partridge; and
e Jill Waits.

Allegations by Erica Partridge

Background

30.

31.

Although the complaint forms (Appendices A & B) were completed by the then
Clerk, Mrs Alex Stubbs, the supporting documentation was prepared by Mrs
Partridge and | have only interviewed her in connection with these complaints.
At this stage, | should point out that Mrs Partridge resigned from Bunbury
Parish Council on 06 March 2012 and has indicated in her statement (Appendix
D) that she does not wish to proceed with the complaints in respect of any
matters other than those relating to personal and prejudicial interests. 1 have
explained to Mrs Partridge that once a complaint has been referred for
investigation, the investigation will be completed and it will be for the Standards
Committee to decide how it wishes to deal with the report of the investigation.

The compilaints relate to conduct associated with a proposal to develop a piece
of land at Wyche Lane, Bunbury for affordable housing. The proposal has a
long history with initial proposals in 2003/04 to develop the whole of the land
being firmly opposed by the residents of Bunbury and the Parish Council.
Eventually a proposal came forward for an area of the site fronting Wyche Lane
to be developed for ten affordable houses, a strip of land immediately behind
the development site to be given to the Parish Council and the remainder of the
site not to be developed. The proposed developer is the Muir Group Housing
Association. There is a plan in the bundie of documents at Appendix B which,
although uncoloured gives an idea of the total site. On this plan, Edinbane,
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33.

34.

35.
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which is occupied by Mrs Waits and Mr Walton is the property numbered 1.The
development site and the strip are owned by Muir and Muir also has an option
to purchase the remainder of the site. From time to time, there have been a
number of the Parish Counciliors who have been living in Wyche Lane and it
appears that prior to December 2010 only one Parish Councillor ever declared
an interest in any part of the site and that is Councillor McCormack who owns
property on both sides of the site. When Mrs Partridge became Chairman of
the Parish Council in May 2010 she found that the Council had no Standing
Orders or other procedural documents. With the then new Clerk, Mrs Stubbs,
Mrs Partridge set about correcting this and a sub-committee was set up that,
with the help of the Cheshire Association of Local Councils, drafted appropriate
documentation for approval by the Parish Council.

By the Autumn of 2010 the development proposal for the site was moving
forwards and there was regular discussion on issues at Parish Council
meetings. Mrs Partridge became concerned regarding the position of the
Wyche Lane Councillors, excluding Councillor McCormack, and whether they
should be declaring an interest when these issues were being debated. On 17
November 2010 Mrs Partridge sent a detailed email to the Councillors, other
than Councilior McCormack, and the Clerk setting out a number of issues
concerning the potential transfer of the second part of the site to the Parish
Council. In response, on 18 November, Mrs Waits commented on the issues
raised but also raised a question as to whether the Wyche Lane Councillors
shouid be involved in the discussion on the issues.

As a result of Mrs Partridge’s concern and the email from Mrs Waits, the Clerk
spoke to the Deputy Monitoring Officer, Julie Openshaw, giving her details of
the Councillors involved and asked for advice on the question of interests.
Julie Openshaw gave advice by email on 22 November 2010 (see pages 3 & 4
of Appendix C). This advice was apparently circulated at the Parish Council
meeting on 14 December 2010 and read by those present and then handed
back to the Clerk on the basis that it contained personal information relating to
the Councillors concerned. Mrs Waits was not present at that meeting and she
was advised of a summary of the advice the following day by email (although a
full copy was not sent to her until it was circulated to all Parish Councillors on
26 September 2011.

In order to facilitate proper discussion on the site and the strip without
interfering with the other business of the Council, a Muir Sub-Committee was
established which comprised all Parish Councillors other than the Wyche Lane
Councillors and this met after the main Council meeting each month when
required. On occasions the meetings were in public, but where commercial
confidentiality was involved, the business of the meeting was conducted as
exempt business. From that meeting until the meeting in November 2011,
inclusive, Mrs Waits declared a personal and prejudicial interest when she was
present at meetings and left the room.

As discussions progressed, some of the Wyche Lane Councillors started to
express concerns that they were unable to advise residents in the village what
was happening when they were approached and felt that they should be made
aware of the decisions that the Sub-Committee was making. Muir then
submitted a planning application to Cheshire East proposing an amendment to
the access way between the development and the remaining part of the site.
The Parish Council was consulted on the application. This was in August 2011
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and the planning application appears to have been the catalyst for the
escalation of concern and the increase in the number of emails being sent
between the Clerk, Mrs Partridge, certain Councillors and Mr Waiton.

The first allegation

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

This has two strands. At the time that the planning application for the amended
access way was submitted, there was already some public concern as to what
Muir were doing and why the development was not proceeding. The planning
application threw up another issue and seemed to suggest a change of the
overall plans for the whole field, even though Muir's contractor had possession
of the site. On 05 August 2011, Mr Walton sent a letter to local residents in
which he stated that if the application was passed it would open up the field
behind the development to a major development of perhaps up to 50 houses.

Whilst the letter was sent in Mr Walton’s name, Mrs Partridge is aware that Mrs
Waits delivered some of the letters and believes that Mrs Waits is associated
with the letter. Mrs Partridge accepts that she has no direct evidence that Mrs
Waits was involved in the drafting of the letter but finds it difficult to believe that
she was not aware of its contents. At the following Council meeting, 09
August, Mrs Waits proposed a public meeting 'to clarify the impressions that
residents, rightly or wrongly, hold regarding the nature of the application’.

Mrs Partridge guestions whether Mrs Waits’ involvement in the distribution of
the letter and the subsequent address to the Council is in breach of paragraphs
5 or 12(1)(c) of the Code.

The second issue is that Mr Walton, as a resident, contacted the Cheshire East
Ward Councillor, Councillor Michael Jones, expressing his concern at the
intentions behind the planning application. Councillor Jones convened a
meeting to which were invited representatives of Cheshire East Planning, Muir,
the Parish Council and Mr Walton and another resident. The meeting was held
on 26 August 2011. Mrs Partridge was unable to attend and, although she
asked all the other Councillors (other than the Wyche Lane ones) no-one was
able to attend on behalf of the Parish Council.

Mrs Partridge subsequently received the notes of the meeting from Mrs Waits
and found that Mrs Waits had accompanied Mr Walton, as a local resident,
notwithstanding her previous deciarations of a personal and prejudicial interest
in the subject matter at Parish Council meetings. Mrs Partridge questions
whether Mrs Waits’ attendance at the meeting was in breach of paragraph
12(1)(a) of the Code.

The second allegation

41.

It will be seen from the documentation attached to the form of complaint
(Appendix B) that Mrs Partridge submitted two sets of documents - the first
headed 'Query to Monitoring Officer re Bunbury Parish Councillors and
Potential Breach of Code of Conduct’ (part of Appendix B) and the second
headed '‘Comments relating to Councillor ...". There is a separate set of
‘Comments’ for each then Councillor and those relating to Mrs Waits are
attached at Appendix C.
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in the complaint Mrs Partridge says that Mrs Waits has sent emails displaying a
lack of respect for other councillors and suggesting they resign which she
believes contravenes paragraph 3(1) of the Code. Mrs Partridge also says that
she considers the emails that Mrs Waits has sent to Mrs Stubbs, when coupled
with those sent by Councillor McCormack to Mrs Stubbs are bullying. In relation
to herself, Mrs Partridge says that the combination of emails from Mrs Waits
and Mr Walton have been threatening and bullying which has made the whole
situation disturbing to her.

Mrs Partridge claims that the emails from Mrs Waits to other councillors appear
to be seeking to influence the decision of those councillors in relation to the
appointment of the new Parish Clerk, Councillor Dykes and the declarations of
interest. Specific reference is made to the email from Mrs Waits on 22
December 2011 advising all Parish Councillors of the fact that she had been
reported to Cheshire East Standards Committee for breaching the Code, which
she believes was sent in breach of confidentiality. (Appendix C first batch of
emails page 1)

Having obtained two sets of advice from the Deputy Monitoring Officer at
Cheshire East, Mrs Partridge feels that Mrs Waits should have had proper
regard to that advice before changing position on the question of declaration of
interest in respect of the Muir development and her failure to do so is in breach
of paragraph 7.

At the Council meeting on 13 December 2011, under the agenda item
‘Declaration of Interests’, Mrs Partridge says that she specifically asked Mrs
Waits whether, having considered the second advice from Julie Openshaw,
she had any declaration to make. She said ‘no’, she was happy with her
position. When the Parish Council reached the item on Muir, Mrs Waits raised
a motion requesting that planning application 11/2423N be re-visited to include
the formerly excluded councillors and this was passed. Mrs Waits then
addressed the meeting during a discussion on the issues concerning the
amendment planning application. Although the minutes do not record the
voting Mrs Partridge recalls that Mrs Waits was one of the two who voted
against the decision.

Mrs Partridge believes that Mrs Waits has a personal interest through the
location of the property that she occupies with Mr Walton to the site and
probably has a prejudicial interest. As she declared no interest she believes
that Mrs Waits is in breach of paragraph (9)(1) and probably also paragraph
12(1)(a).

Response from Mrs Jill Waits

The first allegation

47.

Mrs Waits says that when James Walton was the only resident who could
attend the meeting on 26 August 2011, she thought long and hard about
attending but decided to support Mr Walton as a local resident. She made this
clear to everyone present, which is confirmed by the notes of the meeting, and
only contributed on one occasion to the actual discussion. Mrs Waits accepts
now that she should not have attended the meeting in the light of her previously
declared personal and prejudicial interest in the subject matter of the



48.

49.

Page 115

discussions.

She says that she did not attend the meeting on 26 August with the intention of
seeking to influence a decision on Council business and, as it turned out, she
could not have as no Parish Council representatives were present.

The letter that was sent by Mr Walton at the beginning of August 2011 to local
residents was solely his and Mrs Waits says that she had no part in its
preparation. All she did was deliver a small number. She did not knock on
doors or seek to encourage residents to support Mr Waiton's stance, she
simply delivered a few letters. In requesting the Parish Council to hold a public
meeting on 09 August, she was simply making a point to the Parish Council
that residents were concerned regarding the intentions behind the planning
application. The whole issue was not the strategic affair suggested by Mrs
Partridge.

The second allegation

50.

51.

52.

53.

The first paragraph of the Code raised by Mrs Partridge is paragraph 3(1) -
treating others, fellow Councillors, with respect. Mrs Waits says that there is
only one specific critical reference to her fellow councillors in the three sets of
emails relevant to her involvement and that is an email of 18 October 2011.
(Appendix C second batch of emails pages 3 & 4) Mrs Waits points out that
the email was copied to all the Parish Councillors and none of them has
responded to suggest they were upset by the comments. Mrs Waits
acknowledges that she was upset when she was forwarded an email from
Parish Councillor Nick Parker to Borough Councillor Michael Jones (see
Appendix P in the bundie of documents attached to Appendix E) which, she
says contains far worse and less respectful words than those in her email of 18
October. Mrs Waits sees nothing wrong in her email and says that it is a
reasonable opinion which she was entitied to hold.

Mrs Waits says that no evidence has been produced by Mrs Partridge to
support the allegations of bullying Mrs Stubbs or Mrs Partridge and she
categorically denies working with Councillor McCormack or Mr Walton in the
emails that have been sent by any of them to either person. Any emails that
she has sent have been of her own volition.

In relation to the Clerk, Mrs Waits acknowledges that she did send emails
querying certain matters regarding the obtaining of the initial advice from
Cheshire East Monitoring Officer because some of the ‘factual’ statements
relating to her were not correct. As a result, Mrs Waits felt that she had been
persuaded, wrongly, to make declarations of interest which were not required.
The responses she received led to further questions regarding Parish Council
procedures which, again, she says that she had the right to question in a
proper manner.

On confidentiality, Mrs Waits says that the initial correspondence from
Cheshire East did not have any ‘confidentiality’ heading and that she has,
therefore, not breached any confidentiality. In relation to the advice from the
Deputy Monitoring Officer, Mrs Waits says that she did have regard to it but
when she actually had sight of the advice, she believed that it was flawed. In
addition the advice states that it relates to the strip and the planning application
related to the development site. Having considered the second advice, she
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concluded, wrongly as she now accepts, that she did not need to declare an
interest in the planning application item before the Parish Council on 13
December 2011. However, she says that she did have regard to both sets of
advice and cannot, therefore be in breach of paragraph 7.

Mrs Waits says that she did not purchase an interest in Edinbane, Wyche
Lane, until the end of December 2011. At the time she thought the fact of
ownership made a difference to her position but she now accepts that the fact
that she lived at Edinbane with Mr Waiton and that he comes within the
definition of ‘close associate’ in paragraph 8(2)(a) of the Code means that she
had a personal interest all the time. Mrs Waits was aiso influenced by
correspondence received by Mr Walton from Cheshire East Planning setting
out their neighbour consultation policy which has more restricted parameters
than the Code of Conduct but now accepts that this policy does not influence
the interpretation of the Code. Mrs Waits accepts that she shouid have
declared a personal interest on 13 December 2011.

With regard to whether or not that personal interest was also a prejudicial one,
Mrs Waits now understands the test in paragraph 10(1) and accepts that, given
the role she played in that meeting and the remarks she made, a member of
the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard her
interest as likely to prejudice her judgement. She also understands that there
may be matters relating to the development site, the strip or the field where a
personal interest would be declarable but not necessarily a prejudicial one.
She says that no-one has previously tried to differentiate between the two.

Mrs Waits is also critical that the issues concerning interests was allowed to
continue in the manner in which they did for 12 months without steps being

taken to resolve the matter. She says the feelings set out in the emails has
resulted from the situation remaining unresolved.

Facts

57.

There is no dispute as to the following matters -

(1) the various emails attached as Appendices or part Appendices to this
report were sent and received by the persons identified in them;

(2) Mrs Waits attended a meeting at Cheshire East offices on 26 August
2011 regarding the development at Wyche Lane, Bunbury and
indicated to the meeting that she was there as a local resident even
though she was also a Parish Councillor,;

(3) prior to the meeting on 26 August 2011, Mrs Waits had declared a
personal and prejudicial interest at 2011 meetings of the Parish
Council when aspects of the development site at Wyche Lane or the
land behind had been considered; and

(4) Mrs Waits attended the meeting of the Parish Council on 13
December 2011. She did not declare an interest in any item on the
agenda of that meeting. When the amended planning application
came to be considered, Mrs Waits moved that the previous decision of
the Council be reconsidered and then spoke during the
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reconsideration debate. She then voted against a motion to continue
with the Parish Council’s previous comments on the application.

There is only one factual matter that is in dispute and that relates to the action
of Mrs Waits in relation to the letter of 05 August 2011 in the name of James
Walton which was delivered to local residents. Mrs Partridge draws
conclusions of the involvement of Mrs Waits in that the letter was from her
partner, she was involved in delivering the letters to local residents, the content
of the letter was misleading, and she then, at the Council meeting on 09
August, sought a public meeting to clarify the concern of local residents arising
from the misunderstanding.

Mrs Waits denies that she was involved in the drafting of the letter although
she accepts that she delivered a number of the letters to help her partner.
When residents started to raise questions on the planning application, as she
was not entitled to take part in any debate at Council meetings because of her
previously declared personal and prejudicial interest, she requested a public
meeting to clarify the situation.

Although the conclusions that Mrs Partridge reaches are understandable, there
is no evidence to support those conclusions. | therefore conclude, as fact, that
Mrs Waits was not involved in the drafting of that letter and not responsible for
its contents.

Application of the Code to the facts found

The first allegation

61.

62.

The first matter to determine is the application of the Code of Conduct. In
relation to the meeting on 26 August, that meeting was convened by Cheshire
East Councillor, Michael Jones in response to a written request from Mr Walton
who was very concerned at the reasoning behind the amendment planning
application. The meeting was not a public meeting and Bunbury Parish
Council was invited to send representatives but was unable to do so.

Paragraph 2(1) of the Code sets out two generic scenarios where the Code is
in play -

(a) conducting the business of your authority (which, in this Code, includes the
business of the office to which you are elected or appointed); or

(b) acting, claiming to act or giving the impression you are acting as a
representative of your authority.

There is an argument that in attending the meeting Mrs Waits was not
conducting the business of the Council, as she was not there as a
representative of the Council and as she was there as a local resident, along
with another local resident, and had indicated the capacity in which she was
there, she cannot be said to have been acting, claiming to act or giving the
impression that she was acting as a representative of the Council. However,
the counter argument is that the Parish Council had been invited to the
meeting and the subject matter of the meeting was business that would be
considered by the Parish Council. The fact that no representative of the
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Council was present is not relevant. The meeting was still part of the business
of the Council and when that matter fell to be considered by the Council, Mrs
Waits would be declaring a personal and prejudicial interest in that business,
as she had done at Council meetings prior to the 26 August.

In my view the counter argument, marginally, carries more weight. As the
notes of the meeting (Appendix A 17" & 18" pages) express, Mr Walton and
Mrs Waits had concerns regarding the effect of the removal of the planning
condition and the use to which the amended access way could be put. They
were there to make representations to Cheshire East planners about the
potential decision to approve the application. Whilst Mr Walton was fully
entitled to be there, Mrs Waits was on record as having a personal and
prejudicial interest in the planning application and her participation would be
perceived to be in conflict with that. I therefore conclude that Mrs Waits was
engaged in conducting the business of the Council when she attended that
meeting.

Consequently Mrs Waits should not have attended the meeting, a fact she now
accepts. | therefore conclude that there has been failure by Jill Waits to
comply with paragraph 12(1)(a) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish
Council in that, at the meeting on 26 August 2011, Mrs Waits had a personal
and prejudicial interest in the subject matter of that meeting, which was within
the business of Bunbury Parish Council, did not declare that interest and
remained for the duration of the meeting.

in relation to the letter of 05 August 2011, | have found as fact that Mrs Waits
was not involved in the drafting of that letter and not responsible for its
contents. In delivering the letter to some of the local residents Mrs Waits was
simply assisting her partner. Neither matter is covered by the scenarios in
paragraph 2(1) of the Code.

| conclude that there has been no failure by Jill Waits to comply with paragraph
12(1)(c) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, in her
limited participation in the circulation of letters to residents regarding a planning
application affecting the development off Wyche Lane, Bunbury, she was not
conducting the business of the Council or acting, claiming to act or giving the
impression that she was acting as a representative of the Council when that
participation took place.

Mrs Partridge also suggests that Mrs Waits’ participation in the letter coupled
with her request to the Council on 09 August was deliberate and had the effect
of bringing the her position or the Council into disrepute. In the light of my
finding of fact, the request to Council on 09 August cannot be coupled fo the
publication of the letter from Mr Walton as an act which creates an element of
disrepute.

| conclude that there has been no failure by Jill Waits to comply with paragraph
5 of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, her involvement in
the circulation of letters to residents regarding a planning application affecting
the development off Wyche Lane, Bunbury, which gave rise to incorrect
impressions of the application, and her subsequent request to the Council on
09 August 2011 to convene a public meeting to clarify the impressions that
residents had, rightly or wrongly, regarding the nature of the planning
application was not conduct which could reasonably be regarded as bringing



Page 119

her office as Councillor or the Parish Council into disrepute.

The second allegation

69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

74.

The basis of the evidence for the various parts of the second allegation are
emails sent to the Parish Clerk, Mrs Partridge or other Parish Councillors and
the Council meeting of 13 December 2011. All the emails from Mrs Waits
appear to have been sent in her capacity as a councillor and the meeting was
conducting business of the Council. Therefore, under paragraph 2(1)(a) of the
Code Mrs Waits was conducting the business of the Parish Council in all
matters contained in the second allegation.

The first three parts of this allegation relate to respect to fellow counciliors,
bullying of the then Clerk, Mrs Stubbs, bullying of Mrs Partridge and conduct
likely to compromise the impartiality of those who work for or on behalf of the
authority. The basis of these claims are founded on the email correspondence
involving Mrs Waits, Mr Walton and Councillor McCormack on the one side and
Mrs Stubbs and Mrs Partridge on the other.

Mrs Partridge is a professional person and it is clear to me that her approach
towards the role and responsibilities of the post of Chairman of the Parish
Council were well-intentioned. in relation to the Muir development site and
associated issues, Mrs Partridge considered the issues involved and, once a
number of the Councillors had started to declare personal and prejudicial
interests, ensured that the Muir business did not interfere with the other
business of the Council. It is also clear to me that the history of the
development site and adjoining land was a cause for concern within Bunbury,
particularly for the residents of Wyche Lane.

As | have aiready said, the amendment planning application submitted in late
July/early August became a catalyst to the on-going concerns that residents
had regarding Muir's activities and general approach towards the development.
The issues were also complicated by the fact that Councillor McCormack had
since purchased the remainder of the field beyond the development site and
the strip and Mrs Partridge felt that there was a friendship between Councillor
McCormack and Mr Walton and Mrs Waits which was influencing their
approach towards the issues.

Two specific things happened. The level of email correspondence increased,
far beyond the capacity of the Clerk in terms of her contracted hours. Secondly
the tone of the emails also changed - when | interviewed another former
Councillor in connection with a parallel complaint, he used the word ‘vitriolic’.
During this period, the original advice from the Deputy Monitoring Officer was
circulated and the manner in which this had been obtained and its specific
application gave rise to further emails and complaints about the manner in
which it was procured. It is clear both Mrs Stubbs and Mrs Partridge were
becoming concerned at the ability of the Parish Council to deal with the barrage
of emails and the extent of their requirements. Mrs Stubbs had already made
up her mind that she no longer wanted to continue in post and she gave notice
terminating her employment. To a certain extent this left Mrs Partridge
exposed and it was the continual email barrage that gave rise to her request to
Mrs Stubbs to submit the complaint to the Standards Committee.

Turning to the specific issues, the first is an allegation of a failure by Mrs Waits
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to respect her fellow Councillors. Mrs Partridge says that the suggestion in the
email of 18 October 2011 (Appendix C second batch of emails pages 3 & 4)
shows a lack of respect. This is the only email to which | have been referred in
relation to this allegation. Mrs Waits says that it is an honest opinion which she
is entitied to have and she compares it to an email sent by Parish Councilior
Parker to Borough Councillor Michael Jones on 30 September 2011 (Appendix
E - appendix P) which, she says, is far worse than her email

My view, very simply, is that if anyone has reason to be upset by the contents
of that email, it would be Mrs Stubbs. It is critical of her previous actions and
some may regard the tone as being sarcastic. | find nothing wrong with Mrs
Waits' comments regarding her fellow Councillors.

| conclude that there has been no failure by Jill Waits to comply with
paragraph 3(1) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, in
email correspondence to Erica Partridge during 2011, she did not fail to treat
others, namely fellow Councillors, with respect.

Mrs Stubbs has not made any allegation of bullying against Mrs Waits,
whereas Mrs Partridge puts forward that allegation in relation to the then Clerk
and herself. Whilst the Sub-Committee has Mr Walton’s emails appended
(Appendix C third batch of emails) | am unable to sufficiently correlate those
emails to the ones from Mrs Waits in a manner which suggests collusion and a
campaign to remove the Clerk and Mrs Partridge. The emails do cover the
same issues but that is unsurprising. The tone of the email exchanges shows
that both ‘sides’ were becoming entrenched. | can understand Mrs Partridge
feeling that what was happening was not why she had agreed to be a Parish
Councillor and | can see that this has led to her decision to resign. However, |
cannot take into account Mr Walton’s emails and there is insufficient adverse
commentary in Mrs Waits’ emails for me to conclude that there has been a
campaign of bullying against either Mrs Stubbs or Mrs Partridge by Mrs Waits.
Councillors and Council employees must, from time to time, expect a degree of
criticism.

| conclude that there has been no failure by Jill Waits to comply with
paragraph 3(2)(b) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, in
email correspondence to Mrs Alex Stubbs and Mrs Partridge during 2011 and
her general conduct towards Mrs Stubbs and Mrs Partridge during the same
period, she did not bully Mrs Stubbs and/or Mrs Partridge.

The next issue is paragraph 3(2)(d) of the Code. This refers to a Member
doing anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the impartiality of
those who work for, or on behalf of, the authority. Mrs Partridge refers in the
complaint to some emails to other councillors from Mrs Waits seeking to
influence their decision in relation to the Parish Clerk, Councillor Dykes and
also their declarations of interest. In my opinion, this sub-paragraph only
covers employees of the Council and it is only those relating to the Parish Clerk
that need to be considered under this heading. Having considered all the
emails that | have from Mrs Waits, whilst there is criticism, justified or not, | find
nothing to suggest that the Clerk was being coerced into a compromised
position.

| conclude that there has been no failure by Jill Waits to comply with
paragraph 3(2)(d) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that,



81.

82.

83.

84.

85.

86.

87.

Page 121

her conduct towards the then Parish Clerk, Mrs Stubbs, did not seek to
compromise the impartiality of Mrs Stubbs.

On 22 December 2011, Mrs Waits sent an email to Mrs Stubbs (Appendix C
first batch of emails page 1) which she copied io all the other Parish
Councillors and Borough Councillor Michael Jones advising them of the receipt
by Cheshire East Monitoring Officer of the first complaint. Mrs Waits says that
the letter from Cheshire East did not have a confidentiality heading and she
has done nothing wrong in sending the email. Mrs Partridge says that she has
breached the confidentiality of the complaints procedure. As the letter was not
marked confidential Mrs Waits has not breached paragraph 4(a) of the Code.

| conclude that there has been no failure by Jill Waits to comply with
paragraph 4(a) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, she
did not breach confidentiality on 22 December 2011 when advising other Parish
Councillors of the first complaint.

Mrs Partridge alleges that Mrs Waits has not had regard to relevant advice
provided by Cheshire East’'s Monitoring Officer, namely the emails of 22
November 2010 and 30 November 2011 from the Deputy Monitoring Officer.
Mrs Waits says that she has had regard to these emails. In respect of the first
she feels that, in relation to her position, it was based on false information and
in any event only related to business concerning the strip of land and not the
development site, and, in relation to the second, that it enabled her to
participate in the debate on 13 December 2011.

| am not sure that paragraph 7(1)(b) of the Code is meant to relate other than
to the giving of advice by the Monitoring Officer, in that capacity, to Council,
Committees, Sub-Committees, etc of principal authorities. In my opinion, the
paragraph does not relate to advice given to a Parish Council about a particular
situation regarding individual interests. Even if it does, Mrs Waits did have
regard to the two emails although she reached the wrong conclusion.

| conclude that there has been no failure by Jill Waits to comply with
paragraph 7(1)(a) & (b) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in
that, she did not fail to have regard to relevant advice given by the Monitoring
Officer on 22 November 2010 and 30 November 2011.

One of the items of business on the agenda of the Council meeting on 13
December 2011 was the reconsideration of the planning application from the
Muir Group for the amendment of the access way from the development site at
Wyche Lane, Bunbury, to the strip and the field at the rear. At the date of the
meeting, Mrs Waits had a close association with James Walton, the owner of
Edinbane, Wyche Lane, whose well-being or financial position might
reasonably have been regarded as being affected by that item of business.
Consequently Mrs Waits had a personal interest in the item of business under
paragraph 8(2)(a) of the Code. Having such an interest, Mrs Waits should
have made a declaration under paragraph 9(1) of the Code of the existence
and nature of that interest at the commencement of the consideration of that
item of business.

| conclude that there has been failure by Jill Waits to comply with paragraph
9(1) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, at the Parish
Council meeting on 13 December 2011, she failed to declare a personal
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interest, namely, her close association with James Walton whose well-being or
financial position might reasonably have been regarded as being affected when
the Council was considering a planning application relating to an amended
access way to proposed development of land off Wyche Lane, Bunbury.

88. Under paragraph 10(1) of the Code, where a Member has a personal interest in
any business of the authority that Member also has a prejudicial interest in that
business where the interest is one which a member of the public with
knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it
is likely to prejudice their judgement of the public interest. Paragraph 10(2)(a)
restricts the application of paragraph 10(1) by stating that a Member does not
have a prejudicial interest in any business of the authority where that business
does not affect the financial position of the Member or a relevant person which
includes a close associate of the Member.

89. In this case Mr Walton owned Edinbane, Wyche Lane, and had made a written
objection to Cheshire East Planning which clearly set out his concern regarding
the implications should the amended planning application be approved. He
had also made personal representations at the meeting with Muir and the
Planners on 26 August 2011. Mrs Waits acknowledges the situation gave rise
to a prejudicial interest and that she should have stated that, not participated at
all in relation to the item and left the meeting.

90. | conclude that there has been failure by Jill Waits to comply with paragraph
12(1)(a)(ii) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, at the
Parish Council meeting on 13 December 2011, having a prejudicial interest,
namely, her close association with James Walton who had a beneficial interest
in Edinbane, Wyche Lane, Bunbury, when the Council was considering a
planning application relating to an amended access way to proposed
development of land off Wyche Lane, Bunbury, she did not withdraw from the
meeting room when that business was being considered at the meeting.

Response to Draft Report

91. | have received responses from both Mrs Partridge and Mrs Waits and these,
and my reply to each, are attached at Appendices G & H.

Finding
92. My finding under regulation 14(8)(a)(ii) of the Standards Committee (England)

regulations 2008 is that there has been failure to comply with the Code of
Conduct of Bunbury Parish Council.

/Lg, &,‘Cﬁﬂa
Mike Dudfield

investigator

11 April 2012
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Schedule of Evidence

Appendix A

Appendix B

Appendix C

Appendix D
Appendix E
Appendix F

Appendix G

Appendix H

Copy compiaint form from Mrs Alex Stubbs in relation to the first
allegation with supporting documentation

Copy complaint form from Mrs Alex Stubbs and ‘Query to Monitoring
Officer re Bunbury Parish Councillors and Potential Breach of Code of
Conduct’ in relation to the second allegation

Comments from Mrs Partridge and emails relating to Jill Waits (these
emails are under three headings - emails regarding declarations of
interest; emails regarding other Councillors; and James Walton
example emails

Copy statement from Erica Pariridge dated 20 February 2012

Copy letter from Jill Waits dated 26 February 2012 and appendices
Copy statement from Jill Waits dated 20 March 2012

Copy email response to draft report from Mrs Partridge dated 08 April
2012 and my reply dated 11 April

Copy email response to draft report from Mrs Waits dated 09 April
2012 and my reply dated 11 April.
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COMPLAINT FORM

Code of Conduct — Borough, Parish/Town Councillors and Co-opted
Member(s). Please see attached explanatory notes.

Your details-
1. Please provide us with your name and contact details. (See
Explanatory Notes attached)
ﬁiﬂa: rEES
First name: RLEXANDEA
L.ast name: TR B
Address: o coPPelbelds
Tee2oieA
CHEsHZe CLie el

Daytime telephone: | & oo ] 2R

Evening telephone: | o0 12202

Mobile telephone: o PNE ) 2 =0

Email address: LY A o) «CON

Your address and contact details will not usually be released uniess
necessary or to deal with your complaint.

2. Please tell us which complainant type best describes you:
] Member of the public
[] An elected or co-opted Member(s) of an Authority
M An independent Member(s) of the standards committee
M Member(s) of Parliament
] Local Authority Monitoring Officer
1 of the Council

3. Making your compiaint (See Explanatory Notes attached.)

Please submit to -

The Monitoring Officer, Cheshire East Council, Westfields, Middiewich
Road, Sandbach, CW11 1HZ.

v.1.5
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How to make a complaint

You must make your complaint in writing (either typed or hand-written).
This complaint form has been produced in order to help you make your
complaint but you do not have to use it. Once you have made your
complaint, you will be told in writing what wili happen to it.

Timeframe

Unless there are exceptional circumstances, events which took place
more than 12 months prior to the complaint being submitted, will not
normally be investigated.

Please provide us with the name of the Member(s) you believe have
breached the Code of Conduct and the name of their Authority:

Title | First name | Last name Council or Authority name
MPS, | T LTS Run o PP

Please explain in this section (or on separate sheets) what the
Member(s) has done that you believe breaches the Code of Conduct. If
you are complaining about more than one Member you should clearly
explain what each individual person has done which you believe
breaches the Code of Conduct. (See Explanatory Notes attached.)

Please provide us with details of your complaint. Continue on a
separate sheet if there is not enough space on this form.

Plavee ape na el daded 15
Ocxoeed Ko\ + osercao¥x
docvwumedks cnd emale .
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Only complete this section if you are requesting that your identity
is kept confidential

in the interests of fairness and natural justice, the Council believes that
Member(s) who are complained about have a right to know who has
made the complaint. The Council also believes they have a right to be
provided with a summary of the complaint. We are uniikely to withhold
your identity or the details of your complaint unless you have good
reason. (See Explanatory Notes attached.)

Please provide us with details of why you believe we should withhold
your name and/or the details of your complaint:

Additional Help

~ As noted in paragraph 3 above (Making Your Complaint), complaints

must be submitted in writing. This includes fax and electronic
submissions. However, in line with the requirements of the Disability
Discrimination Act 2000, we can make reasonable adjustiments to
assist you if you have a disability that prevents you from making your
complaint in writing.

We can also help if English is not your first language.

if you need any support in completing this form, please contact Diane
Mouison (Tel: 01270 686476),
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10 Copperfields, Tarporley, Cheshire, CW6 QUP. Telephone 01829 733252
Email : bunburyclerk@aol.com

The Monitoring Officer
Cheshire East Council
Westfields
Middlewich Road
Sandbach

CW11 1HZ

15t October 2011

Re: Breach of Code of Conduct

| have been asked to contact you by my Chairman, Clir. Erica Partridge, who is
concerned that one of the Councillors on Bunbury Parish Council, Clir. Jill Waits
is in serious breach of the Code of Conduct. She has therefore asked me to refer
the facts to you and the Standards committee for a determination on the matter.

With regards to Clause 12(c) of the Code of Conduct

Clir. Waits has declared a personal and prejudicial interest in the matter of the
potential acquisition of a piece of land by the Parish Council behind the proposed
development by Muir Homes of 10 affordable houses on Wyche Lane, Bunbury.
She has also declared a personal and prejudicial interest in planning application
14/2423N, recently submitted by Muir Homes to vary the conditions of their
original planning application P07/0867 which affects this piece of land.

Subsequent to planning application 11/2423N, letters were posted through local
residents doors claiming that ‘if 11/2423N is passed this would open up the field
behind the Muir site to a major development of perhaps up to fifty houses’, when
in fact it is an application to vary an access to enable the development of 10
houses which already has planning permission to proceed. The widespread
anxiety created by this literature is known to the Parish Council and evident in
statements included in objections to the application that residents are opposed to
the building of 50 houses. Parish Counciliors have also had many gueries of the
form ‘when are they starting to build the 50 houses?’. Please see attached emails
from 24" — 26" August outlining concerns raised by residents and a copy of the
notice that the Parish Council placed on the noticeboard in an attempt to put
calm residents fears.

Please find attached email dated 5 October in which Clir. Partridge raised the
question with Clir. Waits of whether she had been involved with these letters as
they had originated from her residence. Clir. Waits replied dated 7" October with
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a further communication from Clir. Partridge dated 10" October and confirmation
from Clir. Waits that she had delivered some of the letters dated 14" October.
Mr. James Walton, the partner of Clir. Waits, also emailed dated 7" October.

At the meeting of Bunbury Parish Council held on 11" August (see attached
minutes), Clir. Waits requested a public meeting to clarify the impressions that
residents ‘rightly or wrongly hold’ regarding the nature of the application. It is now
clear that she had herself circulated the literature giving rise to incorrect
impressions of the planning application. These actions could also be said to be in
breach of clause 5.

With regards to Clause 12(a) of the Code of Conduct

Clir. Waits attended a meeting with the planning officer, Councillor Michael
Jones, Mr. James Walton and representatives from Muir Homes. The purpose of
the meeting was to discuss the planning application in which Clir. Waits had
declared a personal and prejudicial interest. Councillor Jones had invited Mr,
James Walton and ‘another resident’ to attend the meeting but Clir. Waits
attended with her partner. She disclosed attendance at the meeting as per the
attached email dated 31% August 2011 and included her notes from that meeting
also attached.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you require any further information.

Yours sincerely

Alox SldsS
Alex Stubbs
Clerk to Bunbury Parish Council
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Neil and Alex Stubbs

From: "Partridges"” <ep.partridges@btintemet.com>
To: »Alex Stubbs” <bunburyclerk@aol.com>
Sent: 16 October 2011 21:07

Subject: Fw. Rumours abound around Wyche Lane
From: B DYKES

To: Partridges ; Bunburyclerk@aol.com
Sent: Friday, August 26, 2011 12:01 AM
Subject: Re: Rumours abound around Wyche Lane

Evening Erica and Alex

I agree just a simple Notice for the Parish Notice Board is suffencient, the residents of Bunbury know
that the Parish Notice Board is there to keep everyone informed.

Regards

Brian

From: Partridges <ep.partridges@btinternet.com>

To: Bunbury Parish <Bunburyclerk@aol.com>; Brian Dykes <b.dykes@btinternet.com>
Sent: Wednesday, 24 August, 2011 19:37:51

Subject: Re: Rumours abound around Wyche Lane

Hi Alex

| think we should just put a large notice in the notice board but | am happy o go with a circulation if you and Brian
think it will help.

Regards
Erica

- Qriginal Message --—
From: Bunbury Parish

To: Erica Partridge ; Brian Dykes
Sent: Wednesday, August 24, 2011 7:15 PM
Subject: Rumours abound around Wyche Lane

Hi Both

David Ellis rang me this morning to say that he had been stopped by 3 people in the village who
wanted to know about the 50 houses being built at Wyche Lane. He says that he thinks he knows
where this rumour originates.

He wondered if the Parish Council should put out a notice correcting the rumour.

My personal view is that if people don't read the minutes on the board, they probably won't read a
correction either but 'm happy to put something up if required.

17/10/2011
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What do you think? Do you think we need to go as far as a mail drop In the village basically saying the
same thing as the minutes? We could do this easily if | printed them and then councillors helped to
deliver.

Regards
Alex

17/10/2011
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BUNBURY PARISH COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT OF
AFFORDABLE HOMES ON
WYCHE LANE

Muir Homes have planning permission to build 10
affordable homes on their site at Wyche Lane.
They have NO further plans for any future
development on this site.

Bunbury Parish Council are in the process of
taking a 10 year option to buy the land
immediately behind the planned 10 homes so that
consultation with residents of Bunbury can take
place regarding it's future use.

Further information regarding the consultation process will be
announced in the next few months, but if you would like any further
information on this matter or would like to put forward a suggestion for
the future use of the Parish Council strip please contact the clerk:

Alex Stubbs

Clerk to Bunbury Parish Council
10 Copperfields

Tarporley

CWe6 OUP

email: bunburyclerk@aol.com
tel : 01829 733252
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Neil and A'e.’i Stubbs

Fron: "Partridges” <ep.partridges@btinternet.com>
To: “ Jill Waits" <jillwalts@yahoo.co.uk>
Ce: "Alex Stubbs" <bunburyclerk@aol.com>

Sent: 05 October 2011 10:48
Subject: letter re housing ?
Dear Jill

A matter has come to my attention which, as Chairman, | am obliged to clarify with you to establish the
involvement of a Parish Councillor in the matter below.

| understand that a letter was put through the doors of Wyche Lane residents asking if they want to see 50 houses
built behind the houses on Muir Lane and that this would be the consequence if pianning application 11/2423N is
approved and they need to object to the planning application to prevent this happening. It has also been
mentioned that you were seen delivering these leters.

Can you please let me know :

- did you write these letters ?

- did you print them for circulation ?

- did you defiver these letters ?

- did you receive one of these letters 7

Apologies for bothering you individually if this is not the case but as you have been specifically mentioned |
thought it best to ask you first before asking Alex to make enquiries of all the Parish Councillors.

| look forward to hearing from you.
Yours sincerely
Regards

Erica Partridge
Chairman, Bunbury Parish Council

15/10/2011
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Neil and Alex Stubbs

From: "Parfridges” <gp.pariridges@btinternet.com>
To: »Alex Stubbs" <bunburyclerk@aol.com>
Sent: 07 October 2011 10:45

Subject: Fw: letterre housing 7

From: jill waits

To: Partridges
Sent: Thursday, October 08, 2011 7:05 PM

Subject: Re: letter re housing ?

Dear Erica,

I have just returned from working in Worcester and found your email. The answer to your questions

is as follows:

- did you write these letters ? No, 1 did not

- did you print them for circulation ? No,  did not

- did you deliver these letters ? | delivered a small number when we were out walking the dogs, as a help to
James. | help him to deliver party political leaflets from time to time, as he helps me to deliver letters for the
Playing Fields Committee. | see this as normal behaviour between a couple.

- did you receive one of these letters ? No

As I have explained to you before James and I are our own people and do what we will without
influence from the other party. We may live together under one roof, but we have two heads, not one. I
have no control over James and what he does or says and would not wish to, as I would expect him to
afford me the same freedom of action.

I'm not sure where your email is going, but can assure you that nothing James does is driven by me ot
vice versa. I hope that makes things clear.

See you on Tuesday at 7.30pm.

Regards,

5t

15/10/2011
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Neil and Alex Stubbs
From: “Partridges” <ep.partridges@btintemet.com>
To: "Alex Stubbs" <bunburycierk@aol.com>

Sent: 14 Qctober 2011 09:33

Subject: Compliance with Code of Conduct
From; jill wails

Yo: Partridges

Sent: Thursday, October 13, 2011 9:21 AM
Subject: Re: letter re housing ?

Dear Erica,

Thanks for your email. It may well clarify matters that if my memory serves me right I recall I
delivered 2 letters for James in total.

Regards,

Jil

From: Partridges <ep.partridges@btinternet.com=>

To: jill waits <jillwaits@yah00.co.uk>

Sent: Monday, 10 October 2011, 11:48
Subject: Re: letter re housing ?

Dear Jill

Thank you for responding to my query and | note the points you have raised. | also note that you state all your
actions are taken independently and you take full responsibility for them.

The Code of Conduct makes it clear when and how Parish Councillors must consider their prejudicial
interests in relation to other actions they may take and Standing Orders dictate how such matters are to be
dealt with so | will proceed accordingly.

Regards
Erica

17/10/2011
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Neil and Alex Stubbs

From: *James E Walton" <james@apogee-relocation.com>
To: <ep.partridges@btinternet.com>

Ce: “BunburyClerk™ <bunbutryclerk@aot.com>

Sent: 07 October 2011 10:16

Subject: My letter of 5th August 2011

Dear Erica,

As a result of your communication with Jill regarding my letter of 5t August 2011, | feel that it is
incumbent upon me to explain the chronological order of events.

| became aware that Muir Group Housing Association (MGHA) had submitted a variation {o
P07/2575N on or around 2nd Aygust 2011. | was asked for help by a worried elderly resident who
had received communications from Cheshire East Planning on 27t July 2011, 20t July 2011 and

finally 2" August 2011. At that time | was unaware that anyone else had received these
communications (subsequently | know now that only four properties had received them).

At that time Cheshire East Planning web site was experiencing difficulties, so was not available to
others and me. The statutory Yellow Notification had not been put on the MGHA site entrance, the
Parish Council were in recess, half the Bunbury residents were on holiday and to top off the
confusion Cheshire East Planning issued a second variation to P07/2575N. With previous knowledge
of MGHA modus operandi and my suspicion that Cheshire East Planning were working together with
MGHA to smooth the way for the variation, and as no accurate information was available concerning

the submitted variations and time was an issue (closing date for comment 24t August 2011) |
embarked on a series of actions to bring this issue to your parishioners’ attention.

| printed a letter on 51 August 2011 that had in it a sentence that read “if passed this would open up the
field behind the Muir site that in some cases is behind your house to a major development of perhaps up to fifty
houses.” . | printed off an initial run of twelve letters, and whilst delivering them | soon realised that
most people that | spoke to around Wyche Lane, Wyche Road and Whitegates wanted a copy, so a
surther run of seventeen was produced and distributed most of which were delivered by me. Further

to the distribution, your parishioners on Wyche Road and Wyche Lane copied and distributed further
copies.

| now realise that | perhaps over-egged the pudding, however, | stand by the actions that | took and
continue to take. As far as | am concerned we are nearing the end of the beginning of this process,
but | shall continue to fight for the your parishioners who are desperately worried about MGHA and
their intentions who have no representation on the Parish Council. A fight | might add, that should be
being fought by Parish Coungillors (not me) who are in my opinion are incorrectly barred from any
discussion regarding MGHA.

We (npt Jill) are in the process breathing new life into The Bunbury Residents Association, an
association that is registered with Cheshire East as an interest group, due to the total lack of
representation on the Parish Council.

Regards

James Walton

DDl 0044 (0) 1829 260195
Mob 0044 (0) 7971 818294

15/10/2011
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MINUTES OF A MEETING OF BUNBURY PARISH COUNCIL held at the Bunbury Village Hall on

Present:

Tuesday 9" August 2011.

Clirs. E.Partridge (Chairman), B. Dykes, D.Ellis, M.Jones, E.Lord, N.Parker, J Waits

in Attendance: A. Stubbs — Clerk

M.Jones — Cheshire East
No members of the public were present.
Clir. Michael Jones presented a photograph and letter from Cheshire East Council fo Clir.

Dykes in recognition of all his years of service at both Crewe and Nantwich and Cheshire
East. He also announced his appointment as Head of Resources within Cheshire East.

11.08.01 Apologies for Absence
Apologies were received and accepted from Ciirs. S.Beard, D.Burrows and G. McCormack
11.08.02 Members Declarations of Interest o
Clire. Ellis and Waits declared a personal and prejudicial interest in planning application
11/2575N in item 3. It was agreed discussion of this application would be feft until the end of
the meeting.
11.08.03 Planning Applications
14/2479N ~ New farm bullding at Bunbury Commons Lane
No objections — proposed Clir. Dykes, seconded Clir. Elfis and ail agreed.
During discussion, Cllr. Parker pointed out that a hen house at the site had been placed over
the public footpath. Clir. Ellis to mention this fo the owners.
11/2441N ~ amendments at Oaklands, Long Lane
No objections ~ proposed Clir. Parker, seconded Clir. Ellis and all agreed.
11/2208N — extension at Little Orchard, College Lane
No objections ~ proposed Clir. Elfis, seconded Cilr. Dykes and ail agreed.
11.08.04 Discussion of LDF and questionnaire to be returned to Cheshire East
After discussion it was decided that the parish council would not return the LDF questionnaire
but that members would each fill in a copy. Councillors would also encourage residents fo
complete the questionnaire, The clerk was requested to put a notice on the noticeboard and
distribute copies of the questionnaire fo Tilly's, Burrows butchers, the Co-op and the Surgery.
It was also agreed that a working group would start work on a Bunbury Village/Neighbourhood
plan. Clirs. Dykes, Mandy Jones, Partridge and Waits to form the working group. The clerk to
enquire at Cheshire East about funding.
11.08.05 Finance iatters
it was resolved that: .
the following cheques be signed — proposed Ciir. Dykes, seconded Cllr. Parker and
all agreed.
PAYEE DESCRIPTION NET (£) | VAT TOTAL
(£) (£)
Black Cat Fireworks Fireworks 1052.80 | 210.56 | 1263.36
Audit Commission Audit 2010/2011 135.00 | 27.00 | 162.00
Bunbury Viilage Hall Hire of Hall extra meeting August 2011 15.00 15.00
CHALC Planning Training for Jill 40.00 40.00
Rubeli Print 2000 maps 1140.00 1140.00
11.08.06 Any Other Business

Cllr. Dykes reported that the pavilion had now been re-painted. He raised concerns about the
traffic in the centre of the village but counciilors decided that any iraffic calming measures
would be too restrictive and detract from the atmosphere in the village. The clerk was asked
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to raise the hedge at Brantwood with Cheshire East Council as it requires trimming to prevent
it encroaching on the road.

Ciir. Dykes aiso reported that while roads in the rest of the village had been resurfaced, the
centre of the village was a ‘high stress’ area and would be done next year with a better quality
dressing.

Clir. Michae! Jones reported that:
o Cheshire East are reviewing the standards committee.
o Cheshire East have no assets in Bunbury that require fransferring.
o Arriva will not put on a bus to Bunbury so that a ‘Dial-a-Ride’ service is in the process
of being set up.

Cilr, Ellis reported that donations from Village Day had been sent to 20 organisations in the
village. He also reported that £500 had been set aside for next year to provide security guaafds
on the playing field during the preparations for village day due to the very disappointing
vandalism by young people that had taken place this year.

Ciir. Waits requested that the council consider holding a public meeting to discuss the land
behind the Muir development and the recent planning application from Muir Housing to vary
the conditions,

Clirs. Ellis and Waits then left the meeting.

The clerk confirmed that several applications had been received fo vary the conditions of the
planning permission for the Muir housing development on Wyche Lane, 11/2576N and
11/2423N. it was agreed that 11/25676N was the correct application and that Clir. Michael
Jones should be formally requested to ensure the withdrawal of 11/2423N.

The Parish Council discussed the background to the application as follows:

1. The planning application 11/25675N is for a variation in the planning approval for the
Muir affordable homes (P07/0867) to vary:

o condition 17 which states that ‘the use of the access gate at the land to the rear of
site shall be restricted to vehicles used in connection with maintenance of that land
only and for no other purpose’

s condition 2, amending the plans to include a new accessway across the land offered
to Bunbury Parish Council to the adjacent fleld.

2. At the time of the first planning permission, Muir made a statement that they were not
interested in developing any further houses in Bunbury and they would offer the
balance of their site to the Parish Council (now called the PC strip). The field beyond
the PC sirip is not owned by Muir but they do stil have an option fo purchase this
land.

3. The original plans included a gate into the PC strip which was difficult fo access and
obstructed by a car space. The gate is subject to condition 17 which means that the
Parish Council would not have access to the PC strip for any other purpose than to
maintain it, thus preventing other uses of this fand.

4, The Muir Group is covenanted to the owner of the field beyond the PC strip to provide
an accessway connecting the fleld to the Muir housing development on
commencement of construction on it's site. The access route Is to be to a standard
approved by Cheshire East Council and may be up to ‘adoptable standard’, Muir are
also obligated fo maintain the accessway.

5. The Parish Council have been in discussion with Muir regarding the PC strip. It is not
possible for the Parish Council to take on the liability of a strip of land which does not
have access other than for maintenance and which consequently cannot be used for
any purpose. The Parish Council need to use the land for community benefit.

6. in ponsidering options for the PC strip, the Parish Council wrote to the owners of the
adjacent field asking if they would agree to give up the right to have the accessway
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constructed across the PC strip, as an alternative means of access to the field s
available, They have declined to do so, which means Muir are obligated to construct
ihe accessway with the houses and the Parish Council must take this into account in
relation to the PC strip.

The accessway proposed within the new planning application specifies a ‘Topirek’
surface which is an agricultural type surface and access, it is not to ‘adoptable
standard’ and would not be suitable for any housing.

The planning application therefore removes the access problem {0 the PC strip and
ensures that the Parish Council have planning permission to use the ftwo accesses
into and across it — these accesses to be provided by Muir with the new housing.

Muir have offered the Parish Council a legal option on the PC strip which will secure
the availability of the land and allow time for suitable community benefit use and any
necessary funding and planning applications to be arranged, The legal option would
aiso ensure that the Parish Council would not be responsible for maintaining the
proposed accessway oF any costs of maintaining it. The Parish Council have agreed
to proceed with the option and legal contracts are being prepared.

The field adjacent to the PC strip is outside the village settlement boundary and any
application to develop this jand for any purpose would be subject to usual pianning
regulations, which would include demonsirating the need for development to the
Parish Council and Cheshire East Council.

Taking info consideration all of the above, the Parish Councii decided:

(]

that a public meeting would serve jittle purpose at present but one would be set up to
discuss the possible uses of the PC strip when all legalities were finalised.

that the Parish Council supported planning application 11/2575N but would
additionally request that conditions are added which restrict the surface of the
accessway to Toptrek or an alternative agricuitural surface.

There being no further business, the meeting closed at 8.15pm.

Signed:

Date:
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Neil and Alex Stubbs

DEREREETT

From: “Partridges” <ep.partridges@btinternet.com>
To: sAjex Stubbs® <bunburyclerk@aol.com>
Sent: 31 August 2011 13:09

Attach:  Meeting 26 Aug 2011 without Js note.docx
Subject: Fw: Meeting with MGHA, CEC Planning, Housing and Michael Jones

----- Original Message -----

From: iill waits

To: eg.gadridges@,btintemet.com

Sent: Wednesday, August 31, 2011 10:54 AM

Subject: Meeting with MGHA, CEC Planning, Housing and Michael Jones

Dear Erica,

Hope all is well with you.

I'm sure you know that James has been active in trying to get the recent variation and removal of
planning conditions that MGHA are seeking stopped. Much has happened, and on Friday last week
Michael Jones facilitated the above meeting with Muir and CEC and James, David Ellis had hoped to
attend, but was unavailable, so I went along, making it clear that although 1 was a Parish Councillor, I
was atfending the meeting as a resident and not a representative of the BPC.

I am attaching our notes of the meeting for your information. The ultimate outcome was that Steve
Trvine of the CEC Planning Department offered to facilitate and attend a meeting between MGHA and
Gary McCormack with a view to seeing if there was an acceptable way forward in all this. 1 don't know
when this is to be.

1 hope my attendance at the meeting does not give the Parish Council any cause for concern, I don't
believe it should, or I wouldn't have gone.

T'm not sending you these with a view to receiving any comment from you, but just to keep you
informed.

Regards,

Bl

15/10/2011
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Notes from a meeting with Muir Homes Housing Group and Cheshire East Council Officers 26
' August 2011 at Westfields, Sandbach.

Present: Steve irvine — CEC Planning, Vikki Jeffrey — CEC Housing, Michael Jones — CEC Councillor,
Tony Robinson — MGHA, Jilt Waits and James Walton — Bunbury residents.

Cilr Michael Jones organised and facilitated a meeting at CEC, Westfields to enable serlous Issues
regarding variation 11/2423N, to be aired between MGHA , CEC Planning, James Walton and Jif!
Waits. James Walton thanked both Clir Michae! Jones and Stephen O'Brian MP for their support in
this issue and their categorical statements regarding their view that Whyche Lane cannot support any
further development past that already planned.

Clir Jones briefly highlighted the difficulties perceived by many residents in Wyche Lane and beyond
regarding the proposed variation to condition 2 and removal of condition 17 requested by MGHA for
the proposed development of affordable housing on Wyche Lane, Bunbury. The purpose of the
meeting was to air these concerns and see if there was a way forward.

Mr Walton explained that he and Mrs Waits did not formally represent parishioners but were
present to voice their own concerns regarding the current variation and removal of planning
conditions by MGHA. He said that the majority of residents in Wyche Lane feel that the Parish
Council and the Borough Counci] are, rightly or wrongly, dancing to the tune set by Muir
Group and that for some reason he appeared to have become their standard bearer on
opposing the current planning application variation and removal. Therefore, their main
focus and desirable outcome from the meeting and subsequently the full planning
committee is that the track through the optional land remains a track of about 3m for
agricultural use only.

Mr. Robinson was pressed by Mr. Walton regarding when he knew that MGHA had obligations under
the TP1 agreement, originally signed in july 2005. Mr. Robinson eventually agreed that he had
known about MGHA obligations since the signing of the TP1. Despite this knowledge, MGHA had
pursued the development as outlined in permission 07/ 0867 through all its procedures and
processes, on the assumption (Mr. Robinson’s words) that they could sort it out later with the TP1
landowner.

Mir Walton pointed out that errors, omissions and inaccuracies by MGHA had lead to many villagers
feeling very uncertain about MGHA and their behaviour. What might appear to be unfortunate
mistakes and poor timing could and were being perceived by villagers as smoke and mirrors tactics
by MGHA, including the current planning application variations, which are seen by many as a
reflection of MGHA’s ongoing erosion of safeguards that residents had been given in 2007 at a public
meeting. These had been further supported by the report of the Inspector of Planning, Mrs KA
Ellison. He quoted paragraph 22 of the Inspectot’s report foliowing the enquiry held on 4 & 5 Aprit
2006 “In the circumstances, | consider that they would be highly likely to expose this land to
considerable developer interest, making further erosion of the gap more difficult to resist”.

Mr Robinson was asked why MGHA wanted to continue to have an option to buiid on the field at the
rear of the proposed development and the strip. Mr Robinson confirmed that Muir had no intention
of building more than the 10 houses currently approved. With this in mind, he agreed to explore the

1
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rescinding of Muir’s option. (After the meeting he advised Clir Jones, Mr Walton and Mrs Waits that
based on the legal advice just received the rescinding of the option to buy the field at the rear was

not possible.)

Clir Jones warned that if the current difficulties between the parties involved could not be resolved,
it may go to judicial review, with substantial cost all round.

When questioned further by Mr Walton, Mr Robinson agreed that it had been Muir’s error to
commit to putting in the stipulated access road to the rear field. However the new and current
owner of the field wanted something different from the previous owners. Mr Robinson confirmed
that Muir’s original plan was for 20 houses on the site, but this had not been well investigated and
the proposal was quickly reduced to 10.

Mr Walton asked for details of the financing of the proposed scheme in relation to the use of public
monies and the responsibility of CEC with regard to their duty of care regarding public funds. Ms
Jeffrey said she believed approximately £140,000 {50%) had been allocated in March 2011 from the
Homes and Community Agency, plus a commuted sum from the Council of around £100,000. it was
confirmed that the total cost of the scheme is expected to be £1.1m and that if the development
cannot proceed MGHA will have to repay all the money allocated.

Mr Walton had referred to the strip at the rear of the proposed development as a ransom strip, but
Mr Robinson pointed out that this cannot be regarded as a ransom strip. Mr. Robinson agreed that
at the July 2007 public meeting he offered the retained land (Ransom Strip) tothe PCas a PR
offering. This strip of land now has no useful purpose, due to the requested roadway to run through
it. If MGHA did not meet its contractual commitments with Mr McCormack by putting in a2 4.5m
road, an injunction could come from Mr McCormack enforcing this.

Mr Walton pointed out the ridiculousness of the proposed roadway at 4.5m, particularly as Wyche
Lane was only 3.2m wide in places but was able to accommodate delivery tankers, combine
harvesters, etc. He suggested that a 3m road would look less out of place and should be limited to
agricultural use and the use of the Parish Council, their servants and others authorised by the Parish
Council.

Cllr Jones asked Mr irvine for his view from a planning perspective who said that from appearancés it
looked simple and straightforward. He said the Council was just likely to look at it as a track and not
consider future possible developments, as this is what they are charged to do. On this basis they
would be likely to approve the variation and removal of the conditions. He also confirmed that 4.5m
plus drainage is the minimum standard expected by the Council.

Numerous references were made by Mr Walton and Mr irvine to the Planning Inspector’s report,
particularly in refation to her concerns about the unacceptability of the original planning application
for the MGHA development. Mr Irvine quoted from the enquiry in relation to the roadway "It must
protect the amenity of neighbouring occuplers”. He confirmed that a short road built to adoptable
standards, off a private courtyard which was not build to adoptable standards, would be unlikely to

be adopted. Mr. Robinson asked if a roadway of a private drive could ever be adopted, and Mr Irvine
thought it could not be adopted.
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In conclusion, Clir Jones said that MGHA rescinding their option to buy the rear land would reassure
residents about Muir’s objectives.

Mrs Waits wished to report that, aithough she Is a Parish Councilior for Bunbury, she was there
today as a member of the pubfic and notasa parish Counciitor.

Ms. Jeffrey agreed to send detalls of the selection criteria for the proposed houses to Clir Jones.

in response to a question Mr Robinson explained briefly the difficuities of mortgages for shared
owners, which were discouraging shared ownership generally.

With regard to paragraph 6 of MGHA’s letter of 23 August 2011 to CEC, Ciir Jones asked If the
changes proposed by MGHA will satisfy the TP1 in full. Mr Robinson confirmed that they would, He
also confirmed that in normal circumstances a Section 73 application would go to the Parish Council
before going to the Borough Council, but admitted that on this occasion it had not. Mrs. Walts
pointed out that it was this kind of error that lead parishioners to feel very uncertain about the
actions of MGHA, particularly when the last public interface between MGHA and the public had
been in 2007. She believed that parishioners will have left the meeting feeling reassured about the
unlikelihcod of further development of the field behind the proposed development in Wyche Lane.

Clir Jones summarised the meeting by highlighting the lack of trust by some parishioners in MGHA
and CEC to a degree. The applications made by MGHA could be turned down and Cllr. Jones asked
Mr. Robinson to consider the effect this might have on MGHA,

Mr Irvine agreed to offer to be a mediator between MGHA and Mr McCormack at a “without
prejudice” meeting to see if a compromise could be found.

Following discussion it was agreed that a public meeting, after the proposed meeting with Mr
McCormack, would be called.

Mr Waiton agreed to send Clir. Jones Mr. McCormack’s telephone number,

In response to various criticisms of earlier planning difficulties, Mr Irvine said that a new process of
pre-application items is being introduced in CEC from October which he hoped would improve
matters and smooth the way to a better planning process.

Mr. Irvine asked if a delay in the consideration of 11/2423N by CEC wouid be helpful. Counciilor
Jones and Mr Walton agreed to respond to this point.

Mir Robinson agreed to let Clir Jones have a schedule of meetings held between MGHA and Mr
McCormack.
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James Walton
Edinbane Cottage, Wyche Lane, Bunbury, Cheshire, CW6 9PS

4" pugust 2011

M, Ben Haywood
Development Management Town Hall

Cheshive Easi Council

Cheshire East Council -§ AUG 201 {
Macclesfield
SK10 1DP Post Room

Dear Mr. Haywood
Regarding: Varlation of planning permission 11/2575N

{ am writing to you regarding this particular planning variation and the conduct of Muir Group
Houslng Assotiation (MGHA) in general.

{ understand that specific conditions had been laid down in Planning Application PO7/0867 by an
appeal court judge, specifically to limit the development of the field behind Wyche Lane to that
development approved in PO7/0867. 1, amongst many other parishioners, was ata meeting with Mr.
David Robinson of MGHA In the village hall where he gave specific assurances concerming no further
development of the remainder of the field as clause 2 and clause 17 of the original application would
stop this from happening. This, and the strip of land to be transferred to the Parish Councll, was to
be “our security blanket”, I think, ave the words he used.

1 find the timing of this application 11/2575M to have been suspiclously constructed to ease its
passage due to the Parish Councll not meeting until September and most of the parishioners being
away on holiday, thereby limiting any response to the proposed changes.

As | and my neighbours are directly affected by these changes sought, | am just a little surprised that
we have not been notified of this propased variation. Is there a reason for this? L understand that a
very small number of people have received a letter regarding Variation 11/2575N dated 29" fuly
2011,

You are no doubt aware that MGHA have started work on the site. Could you please advise me that
MEGHA'S actions are in accordance with current planning laws and regulations, and! that the extensive
changes to the site plans are correctly documented and are also In accordance with current planning
{aws and regulations and the currently approved planning permission? Would you mind further
confirming that all the subsequent changes to PO7/0867 including drawings have been
communicated to the Parish Councll?

Quite frankly | am appalied that both the assurances given by MGHA at the public meeting and the
decisions of an Appeal Court judge both appear to be being ignored, or brushed under the carpet by
MGHA. The Borough Council is surely there to respect and comply with the law and respond to the
promises made to the population it is there to defend. Can ! ask what is being done to keep, at least,
the Parish Council advised of MGHA's seemingly underhand behaviour in this regard?

Page lof2
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James Walton
Edinbane Cottage, Wyche Lane, Bunbury, Cheshire, CW6 9PS

| request that you delay reaching any decision on this matter until the Parish Councll and ali those
people potentlally affected by it have time to consider the implications of what MGHA are proposing
and submit their views to Cheshive East Councll at a later date than the deadline you propose of 24
August 2011. { also, in view of what appear to be major discrepancies in process, may well have to
brief counsel to decide on my future actions. | also request that any decision regarding Varlation
11/2575N be called in to the fuli councli planning committee. Furthermore could § please have under
the Freedom of Information Act 2000 & 2005, all e-malls, minutes, memoranda and records relating
to conversations and meeting that past and present Councll Offlcers, past and present Counciilors,
have had with MGHA regarding the Wyche Lane development.

| look forward to receiving your reply.

Yours faithfully,

James Walton

CC: Chairman Parish Council
CC: Clerk of the Parish Council
CC: Councillor Michael lones,

CC: Wyche Lane Neighbours

Page 20f2
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- James Walion

Edinbane Cottage, Wyche Lane, Bunbury, Cheshire, CWa 9Ps

12" September 2011

Mr. D. Robinson

Muir Group Housing Association Limited Cheshire East Counai
PO Box 136 : Ranpipr
Frodsham g

Cheshire WAG 1AW j 3 SEP 20

Dear Mr, Robinson N

Thank you for your letter of o' september. The following points are raised as a result of this letter
and as a result of the meeting that you attended at Cheshire East Council {CEC) offices on 26"
August 2011

in your third paragraph you repeat, yet again, that Muir have no plans to develop the land behind
your proposed developrient, - so nothing Is new there then. You miss the point totally, that an
assurance from Mulr means absolutely nothing to the residents of Bunbury. Mulr could sell on the
option to purchase the land to another developer. Are they the new option holders then going to be
bound by your repeated promises?

In paragraph six, you refer to the variatlon to 07/0867 o change the width of the track into the field
from 3 metres to 4.5 metres, as | understand it, within the provisions of Section 38 of the 1980
Highways Act. These provisions are to be complied with. The Act states that there must be a 4.5m
wide road with a 2m curb and path on each side for the roadway with full use. This would be an
8.5m wide road into a field. However, if the road is restricted use, only one of the curbs or paths can
he reduced to 1m, which would be 2 total width of 7.5m road into a field. At the meeting in CEC
offices you were unhappy with me describing the retained land as a ransom strip. However, after
some discussion it was agreed that this is what it (the retained land) was. This land was to be
donated to the Parish Council as a public refations exercise, in that this retalned tand with a 3 metre
track through it would provide total confidence to the people of Bunbury that the field could not be
developed. You actually agreed at the meeting in CEC's offices that the retained land with a 4.5 m (or

is it 8.5m?) roadway running through it was useless for the purpose that it was offered in the first
place, i.e. a ransom strip.

in reading the Parish Councif’s minutes of their meeting o™ August, 2011, item 9) that 2 public

meeting would serve little purpose at present but one would be set up to discuss the possible uses

of the PC strip when ail legalities were finalised. At the meeting in CEC offices it was agreed by you,

M. S. frvine and Councillor M. Jones that a public meeting would be set up and facilitated by

Councillor M. Jones, This meeting was to be set up once you had had a three way meeting with the
1of2
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James Waiton
Edinbane Cottage, Wyche Lane, Bunbury, Cheshire, CW6 9P5

owner of the land, Mr. Irvine (CEC Planning) and yourseif, and when you had written to Councillor
M. Jones explaining why Muir could not give up the option to buy the land behind the development.
Can you plzase give me your assurances that this has all taken place? Also is your proposed public
meeting to be the same public meeting that Councillor Jones kindly offered to set up and facllitate?

In your fina! paragraph you say that you hope your letter addresses concerns that we may have and
whilst this may well have been your intention, | am afraid it does not, as it does not address the real
issue that Bunbury residents would only feel confident in seeing a 3 m track into the field as required
by Mrs K A Etlison in her Inspector’s report and in the original planning permission 07/0867 granted
by the officers of Crewe and Nantwich Council’s Planning Department.

Yours sincerely

James E Walfoft’

CeClirM 1ones,’ﬂr A Fisher {CEC Planning), Funbuw Parish Councll, Wyche Lane restdents,

20f2




Page 147
J Mreddiy B

COMPLAINT FORM

Code of Conduct — Borough, Parish/Town Counciilors and Co-opted
Member(s). Please see attached explanatory notes.

Your details-

1. Please provide us with your name and contact details. (See
Explanatory Notes attached)

Title: MNMEES .

First name: . e

Last name: SIS

Address: O coPReLAeLiDs
TR ECoLE

oneshwe o o P
Daytime telephone: |~ @y 122,282
Evening telephone: |~z )RR, 00
fMiobile telephone: - )

Email address: bmwyudgﬁcpw\ COn
L/

Your address and contact details will not usually be released unless
necessary or to deal with your complaint.

2. Please tell us which complainant fype best describes you:

Member of the public
An elected or co-opted Member(s) of an Authority

An independent Member(s) of the standards committee
Member(s) of Pariiament

Local Authority Monitoring Officer

Other Coungil Officer or employee of the Council

Other - please specify

¥000000

3. Making your complaint (See Explanatory Notes attached.)

Please submit to -

The Monitoring Officer, Cheshire East Council, Westfields, Middiewich
Road, Sandbach, CW11 1HZ.

v.1.5
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How to make a complaint

You must make your complaint in writing (either typed or hand-written).
This complaint form has been produced in order to help you make your
complaint but you do not have to use it. Once you have made your
compfaint, you will be told in writing what will happen fo it.

Timeframe

Unless there are exceptional circumstances, events which took place
more than 12 months prior to the complaint being submitted, will not
normally be investigated. ‘

Please provide us with the name of the Member(s) you believe have
breached the Code of Conduct and the name of their Authority:

Title | Firstname | Lastname Council or Authority name
M | Gel | Lo TS [PONBUE,  PC.
2 | GE2 i -~ N
M2 DAaID £l \S ™ -
mes | eona] | BeAeD " *

Please explain in this section (or on separate sheets) what the
Member(s) has done that you believe breaches the Code of Conduct. I
you are complaining about more than one Member you should clearly
explain what each individual person has done which you believe
breaches the Code of Conduct. (See Explanatory Notes altached.)

Please provide us with details of your complaint. Continue on a
separate sheet if there is not enough space on this form.

PLEASE SE£ AFTTACHED NOTES
T AN LSS .
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Only complete this section if you are requesting that vour identity
is kept confidential

In the interests of fairness and natural justice, the Council believes that
Member(s) who are complained about have a right to know who has
made the complaint. The Council aiso believes they have a right to be
provided with a summary of the complaint. We are unlikely to withhold
your identity or the details of your complaint unless you have good
reason. (See Expianatory Notes attached.)

Please provide us with details of why you believe we should withhold
your name and/or the details of your complaint:

Additional Help

As noted in paragraph 3 above (Making Your Complaint), complaints
must be submitted in writing. This includes fax and electronic
submissions. However, in line with the requirements of the Disability
Discrimination Act 2000, we can make reasonable adjustments to
assist you if you have a disability that prevents you from making your
complaint in writing.

We can also help if English is not your first language.

If you need any support in compieting this form, please contact Diane
Moulson (Tel: 01270 686476).
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Neil and Aﬂegz Stubbs
From: "Partridges” <ep.partridges@btinternet.com>
To: "Alex Stubbs” <bunburyclerk@aol.com>

Senf: 04 January 2012 22:35

Attach:  Councillor Jill Waits emails re declarations of interest.doc; Councillor Sally Beard emails re
declaration of interests.doc; Councillor David Ellis Emalls.doc; Councilior Gary McCormack:
emails.doc; Muir Land various interests plan.pdf; lvy Cottage objection to planning application 11
2423 N S 73 application.pdf; Edinbane James Walton letter to Muir re 873 application 2423N.pdf;
Edinbane Cottage objection to planning application 11 2423N 8§73 Appiication.pdf; D Ellis Objection
Letter 07.08.110001.pdf, James Walton example emails.doc; Jill Waits emails regarding other
councillors.doc; Councillor Jilt Waits confirmation of appointment letter.doc; Bunbury Parish Council
Query to Monitoring Officer Parish Councillors.doc

gubje:lt: Query to Monitoring Officer re Non Compliance with the Code of Conduct 4 January 2012

ear Alex

Paragraph 30 of the Bunbury Parish Councll Standing Orders require that | notify you of any breaches in the Code
of Conduct.

Please see the attached documents explaining where there may be breaches of the Code of Conduct by
Councillors Waits, Ellis, Beard and McCormack. If you agree it would be appreciated if you could forward these to
the Monitoring Officer at Cheshire East Council.

| have copied various relevant emails into word documents and coloured them up to mark breaks in the links. | am
happy to provide any further information which is requested.

As you know the Parish Council have now introduced standing orders that correspondence must be sent by post
to the clerks address and reply will be by post to limitemail access but it would be appreciated if the Monitoring
Officer could also be requested, when replying, to provide any advice which may assist on how o manage this
very unpleasant and complicated situation.

Yours sincerely

Erica Partridge
Chairman, Bunbury Parish Council

09/01/2012
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Query to Monitoring Officer re Bunbury Parish Councillors
and Potential Breach of Code of Conduct

! am writing to express my concerns regarding the actions of a number of Parish Counciliors as
it appears that they may be in breach of the Code  Of Conduct and the decision of the
Monitoring Officer is requested on this matter.

i haye set out the background to the issues below with a separate page relating to each of the
Parish Councillors concerned as there are different issues relating to each person.

Background

1.

The issues arise in relation fo the development of some land at Wyche Lane, Bunbury
by Muir Group Housing Association. Muir have planning permission to build 10
affordable homes on the land edged red which included a gate info the field (edged
biue) at the rear of the housing land with a restriction that the access point is to be used
for maintenance only. At a public meeting some years ago prior to the original planning
approval Muir offered to transfer the land edged blue to the Parish Council (this was not
a condition of the planning consent). Muir secured funding for the development and, in
Autumn 2010, they began pre commencement discussions with the owners of the land
coloured yellow and the Parish Council in relation to the transfer of the blue land.

| have attached a plan which shows the following :

- the Muir housing land edged red (the houses have not been built yet)

- the land offered to the Parish Council edged biue

- the land owned by Clir Gary McCormack coloured yeliow with one field also edged
purple

- the land owned by Clirs David Ellis, Sally Beard and Dennis Burrows coloured
orange (Clir Burrow has recently retired so this query does not relate to him)

- the home of Clir Waits coloured orange (she shares this property with her partner,
James Walton) as their home but she is not an owner

. whether those houses neighbouring the land have objected to planning application
14/2423N (explained in 5 below) ‘O’ or not objected ‘N'.

James Walton is Secretary of the Local Conservative Club and Clirs Waits and
McCormack are active members of the club and are close associates and friends as
well as neighbours. This also brings them into association with Michael Jones, our
Borough Councilior. it is clear from numerous comments to me by Clir Waits that she
regularly discusses Parish Council matters with Michael Jones. At recent Parish Council
meetings Michael Jones has made his apologies and sent his report via Clir Waits
without contacting the Clerk and he asked Cllr Waits to represent him to tay a wreath at
the armistice day service in Bunbury.

Clir Mc Cormack has acquired the land edged yellow in a number of tranches. He lives
in the house called ‘Fairview' as his home and over recent years has acquired the other
land holdings now all coloured yellow. Both Muir and Ciir McCormack have confirmed
that Clir McCormack had offered to acquire the biue land from Muir at a price of £6000
with a proposal that Muir transfer the £6000 to the Parish Council and not the land. Muir
have stated to me that Clir McCormack also expressed interest in buying the red land
off them. The previous owners of the yellow/purple field sold the red and blue land to
Muir, including covenants for Muir to construct an accessway across the blue land to
adoptable standard, or to the satisfaction of the planning authority on construction of the
houses on the red land (the Muir cul de sac will not be adopted). The covenants in this
contract potentially impact on the blue land in a number of ways and the Parish Council
have commissioned legal advice on this matter and our negotiations in relation to the
transfer of the blue land consequently involve Clir McCormack as well as Muir, These
are not finalised yet, but following discussions over this period terms have been

1
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provisionally agreed for the Parish Council to have a ten year legal option for a transfer
of the biue land for a peppercorn and solicitors are dealing with these contracts. Clir
McCormack has openly stated that his solicitors will serve an injunction on Muir to
prevent the start of construction if the terms of his contract are not met. Failure to reach
agreement on this matter could potentially resuit in the houses not being constructed.
Muir also have a legal option to acquire the yellow/purple field if they obtain planning
permission to construct houses on it. This can only be withdrawn with Clir McCormack's
consent which has not been forthcoming. The presence of the option is a contributing
factor fo the opposition to the $73 variation application referred to below.

The accessway coloured green therefore impacts not only on the blue land it crosses
but also the the red land (as refusal or non compliance with Clir McCormacks contract
may result in the houses not proceeding) and the yellow/purple land it gives access to
(as opposers of the houses are claiming the access will open this field to development).

5. Muir submitted a S73 planning application No. 11/2423N in August 2011 for a variation
of the original conditions to construct the accessway required by Clir McCormack’s
contract in the position shown by the green line and to remove the condition restricting
access to the blue land to maintenance only as this would effectively prevent a transfer
of that land to the Parish Council who would need to use it for community purposes. The
proposal is for the green accessway to have a ‘Toptrek’ agricultural type surface and to
be 4.5m wide to ensure compliance with planning and contract standards. This

application has still not been to Cheshire Fast Planning Committee.

6. Clir Ellis and James Walton (Clir Waits’ partner) have both objected to application
11/2423N. Clirs Beard, Waits, Burrows and McCormack have not. Clir McCormack
purchased the yellow/purple field subject to the existing option agreement referred to in
point 5 above and that contract requires the owners of the field to support any planning
application made by Muir and so prevent him from making a formal objection.

Declaration of Interests and Code of Conduct

7. it has been necessary for the Parish Councillors who live in Wyche Lane to consider

whether they have a personal and/or prejudicial interest to declare in relation to the

. above matters. The sequence of relevant events are set out below. Copies of relevant

correspondence and emails are in separate attachments. Initially the discussions dealt

with just the offer by Muir to transfer the land as the necessity for a further planning

application did not arise until the summer of 2011. It could be that the decision may be
different in relation to each aspect by individual councillors.

8. Prior to October 2010 the Muir matters had been dealt with on the basis that :

. Clir McCormack declared a personal and prejudicial interest in anything relating to
the contracts and planning application 11/2423N and was not present when these
were discussed. He did not declare any interest for purely factual matters relating fo
the development eg information on the development programme/aliocation of the
houses. He has continued on this basis to date and there is no query on this point in
relation to Clir McCormack;

. the other Clirs neighbouring the land did not declare any interest

- | discussed this with the Clerk as | wondered whether this was cotrect, particularly
as Clir Burrows made statements such as ‘we don't want allotments behind us as
they look untidy’ ‘we don't want an orchard as kids will throw apples at our windows’
‘Gary will maintain the land in good condition if it is sold to him’. As the matiers are
so complicated she agreed to consider if;

9. On 18" November 2010 Clir Waits sent the attached email (pages 14/15 of JWs
emails), stating that she was ‘potentially affected’ by the transfer/use of the biue land
as were the Clirs Ellis, Burrows and Beard, effectively declaring an interest herself and

2
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16.
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querying whether her neighbours should also declare an interest. Due to the
complications | agreed with the Clerk that she would request the advice of the
Monitoring Officer. She later confirmed to me that she had described various applicable
locations in relation to the blue land to Julie Openshaw who considered the situation
a?d sherg the email reply dated 22™ November 2010 (page 10 of JWs emails) which is
attached.

Julie Openshaw’s email was circulated to Parish Counciliors at the Parish Council
meeting in December 2010 under ‘declarations of interest’ on the agenda. Those
affected Clirs who were present (Clirs Beard and Burrows) then declared a personal
and prejudicial interest in refation to the blue jand and continued to act accordingly. Clir
Waits was not at the meeting so the Clerk contacted her afterwards the emails on 16"
December (pages 11/12 refer to this conversation). Clir Waits accepted without further
query that she had a personal and prejudicial interest in relation to the blue fand and
continued to act accordingly. Cllr Ellis became a Parish Councillor in January 2011 and
he was informed of the position which he queried but accepted would also apply to him
and he continued to act accordingly.

The Parish Council decided that discussions relating to the biue land would be held
separately as this would avoid 5 Clirs having to leave the room and consequent
interruption fo the meeting and that a number of the matters were subject to
contract/commercially sensitive and not suitable for a public meeting. These meetings
were known as the ‘Muir Sub Committee’ although it was actually the full Parish Council
excluding the public and Clirs with declared prejudicial interests. Initially the advice and
meetings were in relation to the transfer and other contractual issues relating to the blue
land, the need for the planning application arose later.

When Muir submitted planning application 11/2423N Clirs McCormack, Waits, Beard,
Burrows and Eliis all declared a personal and prejudicial interest in that application. it
was discussed at the public Parish Councif meeting on 9th August. Before withdrawing
from the meeting Clir Waits asked to make a statement in which she asked the Parish
Council to consider whether a public meeting would be helpful.

On September 12" 2011 Clir McCormack wrote to the Clerk asking for a copy of Julie
Openshaws email advising on the conflict of interest (P6 of GM emails) and saying that
the Wyche Lane Parish Councillors ‘about forming another Parish Council Sub
Commiftee to protect our interests’.

After that a series of emails were received from James Waiton on this matter
culminating in a complaint against the Cierk which has now been withdrawn. He also
made a Freedom of Information Act request for all the discussions/correspondence
relating to the Muir Sub Committee meetings. | will comment further on James Walton
later. This was followed by queries from Clirs Waits and Beard on this matter and further
queries from Clir McCormack. Clir Waits then informed the Parish Council that she was
‘disapplying’ her former declaration of interest and requested all the emails etc relating
to the Muir Sub Committee discussions.

To resolve this issue | decided to hold all matters refating to Muir in abeyance pending
further guidance being requested from the Monitoring Officer, Caroline Ellwood. She
replied that she was unable to give detailed guidance but Julie Openshaw provided a
copy of the explanatory guidance on the code of conduct which is most helpful. This
was issued to all the councillors.

At the request of Clir Waits matters relating to the Muir land were included in the
agenda of the 13" December 2011 meeting. The Wyche Lane Clirs were asked if they
had any interest to declare or any further queries. Clirs Waits, Beard and Ellis advised
that they did not (reversing their earlier declaration of interests) and Clir McCormack
advised he would declare a personal and prejudicial interest relating to the Muir land
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and he left the room during the discussion. Clir Waits proposed that the Parish Council
open up their previous decision relating to planning application 11/2423N to allow the
Wyche Lane Councillors to contribute, this was seconded and councillors voted to re
discuss the matter. The discussion also involved contractual matters relating to the blue
land as the issues are interlinked. On a further vote the original decision was confirmed.

Original Application : 1 was not a councillor at the time but my understanding from those
who were is that no personal or prejudicial interests were ever declared. The Chairman
at the time was Clir Dennis Burrows and the then Clerk, Colin Knowles, was a close
associate with him from their membership of the Tarporley British Legion. As a village
resident | could not understand why the Parish Council were so vehemently opposed o
much need affordable homes but it appears that several then Parish Councillors lived in
Wyche Lane.

it appears to me that the Parish Coungcillors who live in Wyche Lane should declare a
personal and probably a prejudicial interest in relation to the Muir Land planning
11/2423N application and transfer and use of the biue land and in rescinding their
previous declarations of personal and prejudicial interest that they may now be in
breach of the Code of Conduct, The Monitoring Officers advice is requested on this
matter. As the circumstances of each are different | have made separate comments on
each councillor concerned below.
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Comments Relating to Councilior Waits

1. Clir Waits has a background in senior NHS management and management consultancy
which should lead to an understanding of the role of corporate governance in public life.
She was provided with a copy of the good councilior guide and code of conduct on her
appointment in 2010 (there were no written standing orders then) and she was on the
committee which drafted the standing orders. She has also aftended a course on
dealing with planning applications which | understand included a section on conflicts of
interest.

2. | have attached a number of emails which are relevant but | would make the following
oints :

? in her email of 18" November 2011 she clearly states that she and her fellow Wyche
Lane Clirs are potentially affected by the transfer/use of the blue land. She later
claims that she has no interest as she does not own the property in which she lives
with James Walton as a couple/family and that she cannot see the land in question
(the explanatory notes provided clearly bring this relationship into a personal and/or
prejudicial interest);

- the objections/correspondence (attached) made by James Walton in refation to
planning application 11/2423N clearly raise concerns that this could lead to future
development on the field at the rear of his property. He also circulated lefters fo
neighbours creating concerns on this point which Cllr Waits assisted in posting.
Even if these are erroneous, if they result in the accessway being refused this could
impact on the affordable homes being constructed,

- she incorrectly states that she has not seen Julie Openshaws advice and that she
was unaware that she could declare a personal interest and participate (when one
councillor does this at virtually every meeting);

. she incorrectly states that Clir McCormack has been prevented making statements
when she availed herself of this right at a public meeting ;

. she has sent emails displaying a tack of respect for other councillors and suggesting
they resign (she has told me that she received no replies from other councillors)

. she has sent what | consider o be bullying emails to the Clerk, off the back of Gary
McCormack's emails

- her emails to other councillors appear to me to be seeking to influence their
decisions in relation to the Parish Clerk, Clir Dykes and also their declarations of
interest : her email of 22™ December 2011 does this particularly in informing all
councillors of the confidential matter of her earlier preaches of the code of conduct
and including Borough Councillor Michael Jones into this matter. Brian Dykes was
formerly a Borough Councillor and on the planning committee, he has explained to
me how he always declared his interests correctly on any Bunbury matters and now
has no interest and | fully accept this, his manner can be abrasive but he is not
intentionally offensive — | find this campaign against him disturbing;

- she proposed the reopening of the discussions on planning application 11/2423N
and voted against the application on the basis that it would look too wide and ‘she
would not mention the extra houses'

- she took up Clirs Burrows request for a letter to be sent to Muir requesting his niece
be allocated one of the affordable homes;

. she has not declared any interest when James Walton’s numerous correspondence
is discussed and | wonder if she should,

3. James Walton's Role : | have attached quite a number of emails from James Walton to
make the situation as clear as possible. He is a private individual and so | accept his
behaviour is not a matter for review. My concern is that .

- his comments follow the same pattern and themes as Clir Waits and McCormack

- all the Parish Councillors have denied supplying James Walton with Julie
Openshaw's internal email (which means at least one Clir is actually lying) and he
has accessed Clirs Waits documents as he has not formatly requested a copy of the
Standing Orders which he quotes;

5
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. his comments include many factual errors and incorrect assumptions (too many to
detail here) so 1 have not included them on the baeie that the accusations and

insinuations he makes are correct, quite the contrary, and | can comment on each of
the erroneous points if requested. | consider his messages to be a targeted bullying
campaign in conjunction with Clir Waits and Clir McCormack to remove the clerk (in
which they have been successful as she has resigned due to their harassment).
From the content of the messages ! also consider them fo be an attempt to bully me
as Chairman, and | anticipate further emails in a similar vein once the Clerk has left
her post. The constant unsubstantiated references to Clir (Alderman) Dykes are also
effectively bullying myseif and they suggest will probably lead to further accusations;

- James Walton has made a Freedom of Information request for the same information
Clir Waiis asked for concerning all discussions of the Muir Sub Committee. He has
also contacted Muir with questions relating to those discussions, (The Clerk has
peen advised by CHALC that the minutes should be split between confidential and
non confidential items and only the latter should be released under the FOI request
and to the Clirs with a prejudicial interest and this is being arranged);

- Mr Walton appears to consider that his bullying behaviour carries influence and
entitles him to direct events at the Parish Council and the Borough Council;

- | was especially concerned at his emails complaining about the Clerk and in
particuter the email of 6" December where he provisionally withdrew his complaint
pending the outcome of the Parish Councils response to Clir Waits request {0
reopen the discussion on planning application 11/2423N, | considered this fo be a
threatening email and sought advice from CHALC on how to manage this. !
proposed to abstain from the discussion and Parish Council vote on the proposal so
the decision could not in any way be viewed to be influenced by this email. Jackie
Weaver agreed with this approach. | then disclosed the matter of the complaint and
the provisional withdrawal in a later confidential part of the meeting.

in summary | have found the combined emails from Clir Waits/James Walton's home to
be threatening and bullying and the whoie situation to be extremely disturbing. The
Parish Council have now amended their Standing Orders to require a posted letter to
the Clerk and a posted response in an attempt to manage this situation.

From the above and attached it appears to me that Clir Waits may be in breach of the
following Codes of Conduct :

3 (1) ‘treat others with respect’

3 (2) (b) ‘bullying’

3 (2) (d) “likely to compromise the impartiality of those who work for your authority’
Potentially 4 (a) ‘disclosure of confidential information’

7 (1)(a) and (b) ‘you must have regard to any relevant advice provided by your
authority’s chief finance officer and your authority's monitoring officer’

g (1) ¢ disclosure of personal interests’

Potentially 12 (1) and 12(2) ‘effect of prejudicial interests on participation’
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COUNGILLOR JILL WAITS EMAILS REGARDING DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

- Original Message -

From:illwaits~ -

To: Alex BunburyParish

Cc: Erica Pariridge ; Gary McCormack ; Sally Beard ; Mandy Jones ; Dave Ellis ; Brian Dykes ; Nick
Parker ; Michael Jones

Sent: Thursday, December 22, 2011 4:34 PM

Subject: Code of Conduct Complaint against me

Dear Alex,
| have today received a letter from Caroline Elwood advising that you have raised a complaint
against me via an alleged breach of Para 5 and 12(1) of the Code of Conduct.

Unfortunately Ms Elwood's letter gives no details at all of the alleged breaches, leaving me
astounded and totally unaware of any breaches I have made under the headings you have quoied
(or any other headings). | would therefore be grateful if you would let me know what I have
done, or failed to do, that requires the course of action you have taken.

1 am copying this email to fetlow councillors so that they are aware of what is happening.
T look forward to hearing from you.

Regards,
hith

----- Original Message -----

From: il waits

To: BunburyClerk ; sallypheard@fsmail.net | Evic Lord ; Nick Parker ; David Eilis | Erlca Partridge ; Gary
McCormack ; Brian Dykes ; Mandy Jones

Sent: Tuesday, December 06, 2011 12:07 PM

Subject: Re: General Advice on Parish Council Member Declarations of Interests

Dear All

You will have received the email below from Alex dated 4 December which also has the email
from Julie Openshaw regarding the above. The documents she refers to are very helpful and |
now feel much clearer about the need, or otherwise, to declare an interest and whether that is
private, or prejudicial, or both. What I had not appreciated before, perhaps wrongly, is that even
if it is necessary to declare a personal interest about a matter, one can stay in the meeting, speak
and vote on the matter as long as one's interest is not also prejudicial.

This clearly puts matters that have been discussed by the PC on Muir Homes in a totally
different light. 1 have to own that [ believe I was the person who raised the issue of whether or
not I, and other Wyche Lane residents, should declare an interest.

In any event, it now seems that several issues on the Muir development have been discussed and
decided upon by a much reduced PC, due, incorrectly, to the total withdrawal of all Wyche Lane
residents, save for Gary McCormack on some issues (even he should have been heatd by the rest
of us, and that is another issue which, believe, needs to be addressed, but 1 do not seek to deal
with it here.) Whilst T feel very responsible for this happening in part, [ was a relatively new
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member of the PC and had not faced this problem previously. My only wish in all this was to
do, and be seen to be doing, the right thing. Idid not have any other agenda,

I have looked back in the PC minutes and identified that Wyche Lane residents have been
withdrawing from all discussions about the Muir development since the PC meeting on 11
January 2011, This raises the question as to how we remedy the only partially

representative responses that the PC have put forward since that date. Should we be revisiting
some or all matters that have been decided since then? What do other councillors think please?

In the light of Julie Openshaw's comments and the attached documentation, what are we now
going to do about the decision made by a reduced PC on 9 August 2011, on which we now
understand half of us should have been represented? I believe we are still able to

revisit 11/2423N. This is a section 73 variation made by Muir Group Housing Association to
change the approved planning permission 07/0867, which would alter the access route and width
of roadway from the rear of the proposed housing development in Wyche Lane to the field at the
rear, currently owned by Gary McCormack, 1 understand now that those councillors who had
previously withdrawn should have remained in the meeting, had a voice and a vote. [ am sure
that the "non-Wyche Lane" councillors would not wish to deny them those rights as councillors,
or to deny any rights to the parishioners they serve on the PC to represent.

My real concern here is not only that Sally, Dennis, David, and to some extent Gary, have
incorrectly missed out on a number of important issues relating to Muir, but have not remained
in the meeting, spoken and voted on any of these matters since December 2010, I hope we can

53

now seek to remedy this unrepresentative position and work in a different way from now on.

I would be very interested to have fellow councillors' views on this and the need to revisit the
Muir variation, based on both the above facts and the strength of feeling against this proposed
variation, as shown by the representations of local residents which are available on line on the
CEC planning website.

[ would be grateful if this could be added to the December PC agenda please.
Sorry to go on at length, but there are some important principles here.

Regards,
Jin

From: BunburyClerk <bunburyclerk@aol.com>

To: sallypbeard@fsmail.net; Eric Lord <ericlord2@hotmail.com>; Nick Parker
<nick.parker@homecall.co.uk>; Jil Waits <jillwaits@yahoo.co.uk>; David Eliis <deliis7@tiscali.co.uk>;
Erica Partridge <ep partridges@btinternet.com>; Gary McCormack <GMC@CSQ42.com>; Brian Dykes
<b.dykes@btinternet.com>; Mandy Jones <mandyjones21@btinternet.com>

Sent: Sunday, 4 December 2011, 13:37

Subject: Fw: General Advice on Parish Council Member Declarations of Interests

Dear All
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i i ding the code of
i with helpful links regar ode 0
o erer hould declare interests in various

ind below message
Please find fly clarify whether or not yous

conduct, which will hopefu
matters.

Regards
Alex

----- Original Message -

Froin: OPENSHAW, Julie
To: 'bunbug,:c!erk@aohcom‘ . .
Cc: 'eg.gartridges@btinternet.com' - ELWOOR, Caroline ; MOULSON, Diane

Sent: Wednesday, November 30, 2011 2:51 PVl ’
Subject: General Advice on Parish Council Member Declarations of interests

Dear Alex

Further to Caroline Elwood’s email to you of 22 November, indicating amongst other things that
we would reissue some general advice to the Patish Council on Declarations of Interest
generally, please find attached three web links.

The first is to the part of Cheshire East’s Council’s website showing the Code of Conduct for
Members within the Constitution.

The second is to an explanatory leaflet relating to Personal and Prejudicial Interests published
on behalf of the Standards Committee.

The third is to Standards for England’s booklet to Members explaining the Code, which was
issued in May 2007, when the Code was updated.

As Caroline said, in the light of this reminder, it will then be for members of the Parish Council
to consider their individual positions if necessary. As you know, the advice I provided in
November 2010 was based on the circumstances you outlined to me at the time, and was
confined to the issue of the offer of land to the Parish Council, not the later planning application,

hitp://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/council_and democracy/your_council/constitution.aspx (see pp
357 - 364 for the Code)

The Model Code of Condugt - An Explanatory Leaflet Relating to Personal and Prejudicial interests {PDF, 71KB)}
htto://www.standardsforengland.gov.uk/Guidance/T. heCodeofConduct/Guidance/filedownload. 1
6126.en.pdf (see Section 3 for Interests).

As regards personal and prejudicial interests, the Code provisions themselves, and their
application, will generally be the same for Parish Councillors as for Borough Councillors.

I hope this is of assistance.

Kind regards

Julie Openshaw

Legal Team Manager (Places) / Deputy Monitoring Officer
Cheshire East Borough Council

Westfields

Middlewich Road

Sandbach

CW11 1HZ

Tek 01270 685846

Fax: 01270 529710
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Mobile: 07875 195219

Hi Erica and Brian

Have received the message below from Caroline now. | have confirmed to her that JW is Clir
Waits partner and suggest we now await an answer from Cheshire East to all gueries.

Regards

Alex

- Original Message ----- _

Eromi ELWOOD:Caroling -+ "R

To: 'bunburyclerk@aol.com'

Sent: Thursday, October 20, 2011 5:50 AM

Subject: Re: Fwd: Openshaw letter Fw: Members' Interests query

Alex

| will speak to Julie about all these issues and get back to you ~ we need to be clear on our position as |
also have 2 long e mails requesting advice from Mr Waiton.

Please can you confirm if he is Cllr Waits partner ?

Thanks Caroline

From: bunburyclerk@aol.com <hunburyclerk@aol.com>

To: ELWOOD, Caroline

Sent: Wed Oct 19 19:40:20 2011

Subject: Fwd: Openshaw letter Fw: Members' Interests query

Sorry Caroline - got your email wrong the first time.
Alex

----- Original Message----~

From: bunburyclerk <bunburyclerk@aol.com>

To: caroline.eliwood <caroline.eliwood@cheshireeast.gov.uk>

CC: ep.partridges <ep.partridges@btinternet.com>, brian.dykes <brian.dykes@cheshireeast.gov.ule>
Sent: Wed, 18 Oct 2011 19:11

Subject: Fwd: Openshaw letter Fw. Members' Interests query

Dear Caroline
Please could you give me some advice on the email below.

Councilior Jill Waits had previously declared a personal and prejudicial interest following advice from Ms
Julie Openshaw. She has now changed her mind and is demanding that all minutes/correspondence is
shown fo her. Is this a reasonble thing to do and should | provide her with the information?

Piease do not hesitate to contact me if you require any further information.

Regards

Alex Stubbs

Clerk to Bunbury Parish Councit
01829 733252

----- Original Message -~~~

From: jill waifs

To: Partridges

Ce: Brian Dykes ; Bunbury Parish | Dave Eilis ; Eric Lord ; GMC ; Mandy Jones ; Nick Parker

sallypbeard@fsmail.net ; Michael Jones
Soent: Thursday, October 20, 2011 4:11 PM
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Subject: Re: Openshaw letter Fw: Members' Interests query

Erica,

My circumstances have not changed. I did not own a propesty in Wyche Lane then and I do not
own one now. As I did not see the full reply from Julie Openshaw until late last month, I don't
think I can have known what bits of it applied to me and what didn't. She must have believed
that the councillors in question alt owned property in Wyche Lane.

1 am emailing Alex to ask her to check that the register of interests is correct in this regard. If it
is, as I assume, I can only believe that Julie Openshaw was briefed incotrectly on this point. I
am also asking Alex to check with Julie if she believes this means I don't have to declare and
interest, I am therefore grateful that you have decided to suspend all further involvement
regarding Muir until all matters are clear.

Regards,

Jill

From: Partridges <ep.pariridges@btinternet.com>

To: jill walts <jillwaits@yahoo.co.uk>

Ce: Brian Dykes <b.dykes@btinternet.com™; Bunbury Parish <Bunburyclerk@aol.com>; Dave Eliis
<dellis7 @tiscali.co.uk>; Eric Lord <eticlord2@hotmail.com>; GMC <GMC@CSQ42.com>; Mandy Jones
<mandyjones21@btinternet.com>; Nick Parker <nick parker@homecall.co.uk>; sallypbeard@fsmail.net;
Michael Jones <m.jones1@btconnect.com>

Sent: Wednesday, 19 October 2011, 16:19

Subject: Re: Openshaw letter Fw: Members' interests query

Jith
Julie Openshaws advice was only relevant to the Councillors involved, as Alex explained.

You appear to be stating that the legal advice given to the Parish Councillors was incorrect in some
respects rather than your circumstances having changed and also raise the point that the circumstances
in relation to the Muir land changed over this period. As previously, and as you have already declared a
personal and prejudicial interest, | am uncertain as to the procedures in this situation so 1 think itis best
to seek clarification. | will ask Alex to make further enquiries with the Monitoring Officer.

All Parish Councll matters relating to the Muir land will be deferred in the meantime to ensure they are
correctly dealt with. | do not want there to be any further misunderstandings going forward.

Erica

----- Original Message-----

From: jill waits <jillwaits@yahoo.co.uk>

To: Partridges <ep.partridges@btinternet.com>

CC: Brian Dykes <b.dykes@btinternet.com>; Bunbury Parish <Bunburyclerk@aol.com>,; Dave Ellis
<dellis7 @tiscali.co.ul>; Dennis Burrows <dennis.burrows@btopenworld.com>; Eric Lord
<ericlord2@hotmail.com>; GMC <GMC@CSQ42.com>; Mandy Jones

<mandyiones2 1 @btinternet.com>; Nick Parker <nick.parker@homecail.co.uk>; sallypbeard
<sallypbeard@fsmail.net>; Michael Jones <m.jones biconnect.com>

Sent: Wed, 19 Oct 2011 13:48

Subject: Re: Openshaw letter Fw: Members' Interests query

- Otiginal Message ----

From: BunburyClerk

To: jili waits

Ce: sallypbeard@fsmail.net ; Eric Lord ; Nick Parker ; Jilt Walts ; David Eilis ; Erica Pariridge ; Gary
McCormack ; Brian Dykes ; Mandy Jones
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Sent: Sunday, October 30, 2011 7:06 PM
Subject: Re: Openshaw letter Fw: Members' Interests query

il

| can confirm that you did not declare that you owned any property in the register of interests.
| have contacted Carofine Ellwood with your query and am awaiting her reply.

Alex

~- Original Message -----

Erom:iill waits i e
To: bunburyclerk@aol.com i
Cc: b.dvkes@btinternet.com ; dellis7 @fiscali.co.uk ; dennis.burrows@btopenworid.com ;
ericlord2@hotmail.com ; ep.partridges@btinternet.com , GMC@CSQ42.com ;
mandyiones2 1@btinternet.com ; nick. parker@homecail.co.uk ; saliypbeard@fsmail.net
Sent: Thursday, October 20, 2011 4:11 PM

Subject: Re: Openshaw letter Fw: Members' interests query

P S L I LR

Dear Alex,

You did send me a short email on 15 December giving what you seemed to believe was
difinitive guidance on the need to declare an interest or otherwise. No details were given at all
other than Sally, Dennis and I should declare an interest. 1am at a Joss to understand why I do
need to declare an interest, given the advice in Julie Openshaw's email "Each of them owns their
home and has registered it as such in the register of interests". I do not own any property in
Bunbury and I don't believe I have made a false declaration in the register of interests stating
that I do. I would be grateful if you would check this for me please on the register.

Because I didn't see the details of Julie Openshaw's reply until you sent out copies on 26
September this year, I had no way of knowing what it actually said until then. No discussion
about it was in the minutes I received of the December BPC, despite the fact that I have been
told it was.

Perhaps you would be good enotigh to contact Julie Openshaw about this issue again in order to
clarify if I have to declare an interest or not. Her email seems to suggest not to me.

Perhaps I should point out that the "land for sale" cannot even be seen from this house.
Regards,

Jill

From: "bunburyclerk@aol.com” <bunburyclerk@aol.com>

To: jillwalts@yahco.co.uk; sallypbeard@fsmail.net

Ce: b.dykes@btinternet.com; dellis7@tiscali.co.uk; dennis. burrows@btopenworld.com;
ericlord2@hotmail.com; ep.partridges@btinternet.com; CGMC@CSQ42.com;
mandyjones21@btinternet.com; nick.parker@homecall.co.uk

Sent: Wednesday, 19 October 2011, 18:54

Subject: Re: Openshaw letter Fw: Members' Interests query

Dear Jill

Just to reply to your accusations - | emailed you on December 15th 2010 following the Parish Council
meeting, detailing the contents of the email and the advice that was given. You neither queried the
advice nor asked fo see the email,

Alex

- Qriginal Message -

Frowm: Parttidges

To: Brian Dykes ; Eric Lord | Mandy Jones ; Nick Parker
Ce: Alex Stubbs
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Sent: Wednesday, October 18, 2011 4.14 PM
Subject: Muir sub group

Dear Councillors

| am sure you will have seen the email from Councillor Waits requesting that other Councillors forward afl
messages and minutes relating to the Muir Sub Group to her.

As this is 'unchartered territory' Alex is seeking legat advice on this situation from Cheshire East to
ensure that as a Parish Council our actions are correct, as we have done in the past.

Consequently | have deferred all actions relating to the Muir land until we have that advice, so please do
not send any information to Jiff as that in itself may consitute a breach of the Code of Conduct which we
are seeking to avoid in alf respects in relation fo all Parish Councillors.

Alex will then respond to Jilt's email appropriately in the light of the advice received from Cheshire East.
Alex is going on holiday for a week so there will be some delay but | trust you will bear with that as it is
important fo behave correctly. ‘

Regards
Erica

Hi Erica,

Thank you for your email below.

However, it does not address the point made in the first full paragraph of my letter. If you feel
that you have, then 1 am afraid you are missing the point. No councillor can request any item of
correspondence when they didn't know that it existed, it is not copied to them and that it was
discussed by members but not minuted at all. The point I am making is that selective circulation
of individual matters to some councillors, but not others, should not be regarded as acceptable.
So I would still be grateful to hear your views on this point.

As to the matter of declaring an interest, | agree that it is the responsibility of individual
councillors to decide if they need to do that. At the time I raised this point I had been

a councillor for less than a year and had never experienced the need to do this before in this
forum. I don't think discussion on this point was minuted, but my recollection is that I raised it
for consideration and believed that it was the right thing to do at the time. Other councillors in
Wyche Lane clearly felt the same. At the time no-one could have anticipated the events that
have followed in relation to the Muir development.

In view of what you stated in your email and the advice given in Julie Openshaw's emai! (even
though some of the details were wrong) I wish to withdraw my declaration of interest on matters '
relating to Muir and hope that other councillors (except Gary on certain issues) will do likewise.
Because so much has happened, [ hope that Alex will please be good enough to furnish me with
all previous minutes and correspondence relating to all issues discussed by the Muir sub-group
and perhaps before the sub-group was set up. I suspect that | will also need to request that the
other councillors on the group also please let me have copies of communications with each
other, Muir or CEC, so that I can bring myself back up to speed with this. | know this is an
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email to you Erica, but hope that you and the other relevant colleagues on the circulation list
will please take this as a request from me and respond accordingly.

Regards,

Jill

From: Pariridges <ep.partridges@biinternet.com>

To: jill waits <jillwaits@yahoo.co.uk>; sallypbeard@fsmail.net:

Cc: Brian Dykes <b.dykes@btinternet.com>; Bunbury Parish <Bunburyclerk@aol.com>; Dave Eliis
<dellis7 @tiscali.co.uk>: Dennis Burrows <dennis.burrows@btopenworld.com>; Eric Lord
<griclord2@hotmail.com>; GMC <GMC@CSQ42.com>; Mandy Jones

<mandyjones? 1@btinternet.com>; Nick Parker <nick.parker homecall.co.uk>

Sent: Tuesday, 18 October 2011, 21:19

Subject: Re: Openshaw letter Fw: Members' Interests query

Jill and Sally and other Parish Councillors

| am afraid the messages below serve to further obscure the sequence of events and reality in this
matter.

it has been explained to ali Parish Councillors that they must consider there own position and exclude
themselves as necessary in accordance with the Code of Conduct. The decision is not and has not been
made by myself, Alex or Julie Openshaw. The purpose of the Julie Openshaw's message is to advise on
the correct interpretation of the Code of Conduct to assist Counciliors and nothing else.

There has never been any question of anybody imposing a ruling on any of the Parish Councillors who
have applied the advice and excluded themselves.

The solution is quite straightforward and always has been. A polite request to Alex on this basis is all that
is necessary.

if Parish Counciliors are concerned that they may not have interpretated the Code correctly in relation to
their own situation they should each contact Alex with their queries and request that she forward them to
Julie Openshaw with a plan indicating the various plots of land. Julie Openshaw can then provide further
advice and, as before, the Councillors can take a decision in the light of that advice.

As each Parish Councillor has to consider their own position there may be other factors they need {o take
into account (as | cannot presume that the advice covers all circumstances relevant to each person).

Erica

- Original Message -----
From: jill waits

To: sallypbeard@fsmail.net
Ce: Brian Dykes ; Bunbury Parish ; Dave Ellis | Dennis Burrows ; Eric Lord ; Erica Partridge ; GMC |

Mandy Jones ; Nick Parker
Sent: Tuesday, October 18, 2011 9:40 AM
Subject: Re: Openshaw letter Fw: Members' Interests query

Hi Sally,

Many thanks for your email below and letting me know what you recall as | wasn't at the
December 2010 meeting.

I note what you say about Alex circulating the Julie Openshaw email in September 2011.
However, it seems to have been important enough to have been discussed before/or at the
beginning of the December meeting, but not to be minuted or circulated then, which I see as a
mistake, I presume on Alex's part. Why should those who were there be party to information
about anything, and those who were not there excluded from that information? This seems
particularly wrong when the 3 people who could not attend the meeting were significantly
affected by the contents of Julie Openshaw's email. Whatever the subject I can't see how this can
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be regarded as a correct way to behave I'm afraid. I see Alex's job as keeping us all equally
informed about anything that is the business of the PC and it seems that on this point she failed
to do that. { don't see it as the responsibility of fellow members to keep those not present
informed of what happens.

As to your comments on declaring an interest, I have to admit that I was the person who raised
this in the first place when I was a new member and anxious, as I hope I continue to be, to do
the right thing. I now believe that it was not necessary for the 4 of us from Wyche Lane (but not
always Gary) to exclude ourselves from all discussions on all matters relating to Muir Homes
and the land behind the development. I think there has been either inaccurate advice from Julie
Openshaw, inadequate or incorrect briefing to her, or an incorrect interpretation of the
information she gave (which was inaccurate itself in part when one has a proper understanding
of the geography of the area and individual ownerships) which has lead to half the PC not being
party to a number of decisions that 4 or 5 members should not have been excluded from. So, |
agree with you that we should have been party to more decisions that we have regard ing all or
part of the Muir issues.

I am grateful to you for coming forward with information and your views on the matter and look
forward to hearing from other counciliors.

Regards,

Jill

From: Sally Beard <sallypbeard@fsmail.net>

To: Jill Waits <jillwaits@yahoo.co.uk>

Ce: Brian Dykes <b.dykes@btinternet.com>; Bunbury Parish <Bunburyclerk@aol.com>; Dave Ellis
<dellis7 @tiscali.co.uk>; Dennis Burrows <dennis.burrows@biopenworld.com>; Eric Lord
<ericlord2@hotmail.com>; Erica Partridge <ep.partridges@bfinternet.com>; GMC
<GMC@CSQ42.com>; Mandy Jones <mandyiones21@btinternet.com>; Nick Parker
<nick.parker@homecall.co.uk>; Sally Beard <sallypheard@fsmail.net>

Sent: Monday, 17 October 2011, 21:21

Subject: Openshaw letter Fw: Members' Interests query

Hello Jill,

I remember seeing this letter and have just checked my emails, so for your info please see
below. Alex sent out an email on the 26 Sep to all Parish Councillors which if you scroll down
does include the letter from Julie Openshaw.

You can also see who all the recipients were.

| have not passed this onto anyone except yousselves in this email. [ was at the December
2010 meeting where the letter and its recommendations were discussed and from this I did
declare 'an interest' as it seemed that [ needed to. 1, then along with the others on Wyche Lane
have subsequently declared 'an interest’ at meetings ever since. 1am now uncertain as to
whether we should have?

Kind regards
Sally

----- Original Message -----

From: il waiis -

To: BunburyClerk ; Mandy Jones ; Brian Dykes ; Gary McCormack ; Erica Partridge ; David Ellis ; Nick
Parker ; Eric Lord ; sallyobeard@fsmail.net | dennis.burrows@btopenworld.com

Sent: Monday, October 17, 2011 6:04 PM

Subject: Re: Emall from Ms. Julie Openshaw dated November 22nd 2010

Alex,
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As 1 have never been given or sent a copy of Julie Openshaw's email I can confirm that it did not
come from me.

Regards,

Iill

From: BunburyClerk <bunburyclerk@aol.com>

To: Mandy Jones <mandyiones21@btinternet.com>; Brian Dykes <b.dykes@btinternet.com>; Gary
McCormack <GMC@CSQ42.com>; Erica Partridge <ep.pariridges@btinternet.com>; David Ellis
<delliis7 @tiscall.co.uk>; Jill Walts <iilwaits@yahoo.co.uk>; Nick Parker <nick.parker@homecall.co.uk>;
Eric Lord <ericlord2 @hotmail.com®; sallypbeard@fsmail.net; dennis burrows@btopenworld.com

Sent: Monday, 17 October 2011, 12:14

Subject: Email from Ms. Julie Openshaw dated November 22nd 2010

Dear All

A resident of Bunbury, James Walton, has received a copy of the above emall and claims itis
from ‘a member of the Parish Council’.

Please could you all confirm whether or not you have forwarded this email on to him,

Regards
Alex

Message Received: Sep 26 2011, 12:34 PM

From: "Bunbury Parish"

To: "Mandy Jones" , "Brian Dykes" , "Gary McCormack" , "Erica Partridge" , "David Ellis" ,
"Jiil Waits" , "Nick Parker" , “Eric Lord", sallypbeard@fsmail.net,
dennis.burrows@btopenworld.com

Ce:

Subject: Fw: Members' Interests query

Dear All

There seems to have been various queries about declaring personal and prejudicial interests
regarding the Wyche Lane to be sold to the PC and there does seem to be some confusion.
Plaase find below the letter received from Julie Openshaw (Deputy Monitoring Officer for CE)
dated November 22nd 2010. Please also find attached a copy of Bunbury Parish Council's Code
of Conduct.

We discussed the letter at our December 2010 meeting and following that discussion various
members of the PC declared personal and prejudicial interests. Please take the time to revisit
the letter. If you believe that your circumstances have changed then please do let me know.

Regards
Alex

----- Original Message -
From: QPENSHAW, Julie

To: ‘bunburyclerk@aol.com’
Sent: Monday, November 22, 2010 3:39 PM

Subject: Members' Interests query
10
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Good afternoon Alex

Further to our telephone conversation earlier, | understand that you and some of your members seek
advice on what if any interests they need to declare in relation to a plot of land which has been offered
for sale to Bunbury Parish Council. | will refer to this as the "for sale land".

You explained that the for sale land abuts a second strip of land which has planning permission for
development, and it is the developer that has offered the for sale land to the Parish Council.

You also explained that one member (A), who owns a third strip of land which abuts the other side of the
"or sale” land has already declared a personal and prejucidial interest and has absented himelf from any
consideration of whether the land should be purchased, but three other members are potentially affected
because of the positioning of their gardens. "B" has a garden abutting the "for sale” fand, "C” has a
garden abutting the land owned by the councillor who has already dectared and interest, and "D" has a
garden which allows a view of where the development would be. Each of them owns their home and has
registered it as such in the register of interests.

My view is that due to their proximity to the for sale land, and the possible effect arising from that on the
values, or desirability, of their homes, B C and D all have personal interests in the decision whether the
Parish Council should purchase the land, because a decision on whether or not the PC should buy it
could reasonably be regarded as affecting their well-being or financial positions to a greater extent than
the majority of council tax payers ratepayers or inhabitants of the locality.

Unless they can raise some other consideration which might merit further consideration (| haven't seen a
plan), they appear to have a prejudicial interest as well, because of the same considerations in tems of
proximity and effect on financial position, which suggest that the proper conclusion is that "a member of
the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard [the interest] as so significant
that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the public interest”,

| gather there are 10 members of the Council, with a quorum of 4, so unless other members have
prejudicial interests to declare for some other reason, you should be quorate to make the decision. If
circumstances arise where interests are such that getting a quorum would be impossible, the Borough
Council's Standards Committee does have power to consider, and if appropriate, grant, applications for
dispensations to allow members to speak and vote where they have a prejudicial interest, but only where
sither more than 50% of members who would be entitied to vote being prohibited from doing o, or where
the number of members that are prohibited from voting would upset the political balance of the meeting
to the extent that the outcome of voting would be prejudiced. As these situations are relatively rare, so
are applications for dispensations. it does not sound as though the first criterion would be met; without
knowing the political persuasion of the members involved, and the remainder, it's unclear if the second
would apply, but you might want to consider that.

| hope this assists.
Kind regards

Julie Openshaw

Legal Team Manager (Places, Regulatory and Compliance) (Deputy Monitoring Officer)
Cheshire East Borough Council

Westfields

Middlewich Road

Sandbach

Cw11 51HZ

01270 685846)

- Qriginal Message --—-

From: fill waits

To: Bunbury Parish

Sent: Thursday, December 16, 2010 10:35 AM
Subject: Re: Land at Wyche Lane

11
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Alex,

Many thanks for letting me know what happened on the above point. I imagine it is often
difficult in villages when this potentially important type of land issue is discussed. Thank
goodness we don't all live on the perimeter!

I am feeling a bit better but still coughing well thanks, but James is at the GPs as T write, trying
to shake off the hacking cough before the big day.

1 hope everything went well at the meeting and later.

Many thanks for your words of advice about training. [ will come back to you with something
solid in the new year.

I hope you have a good break and look forward to seeing you in 2011.

Kind regards,

Jill

- On Wed, 15/12/10, Bunbury Parish <Bunburyclerk@aol.coni> wrote:

From: Bunbury Parish <Bunburyclerk@aol.corn>
Subject: Land at Wyche Lane

To: "Jill Waits" <jillwaits@yahoo.co.uk>

Date: Wednesday, 15 December, 2010, 14:21

Jill

Hope you are feeling better today. Just thought | ought to keep you up to date with something that was
reported at the last meeting.

Following your disquiet about declaring an Interest for the Muir land discussion, | contacted the
monitoring officer for advice. She confirmed that she thought both you, Dennis and Sally should declare
personal and prejudicial interests in the discussion and abstain. Dennis had already told me that he was
going to take no part in the decision making and Sally also declared an interest at the meeting when
informed of the email. '

Hope this is helpful for future meetings. | will fet you have a copy of the minutes when | have completed
them.

Cheers
Alex

----- Qriginal Message -----

From: jill waits

To: Pariridges ; Alex Stubbs

Sent: Monday, July 04, 2011 5:48 Pt
Subject: Re: Fw: Muir Homes

Hi Erica (and Alex),
Hope you had a good holiday. I thought you must have been away.
Below is the reply I received - sorry about that. 1 was at pains in my letter to say that I was
writing as a private individual, though David Robinson seems only to see my Parish Council
hat. I wrote it more as a favour to Dennis Burrows, although I am all for making housing
adjustments that make common sense and offer a family a home that Polly no longer needs. This
wasn't done to create difficulties and I sincerely hope it hasn't.
Do let me know if you need anything else.
Regards,
Jill
I'd still be grateful if you'd give me a call Erica, when you have caught up with yourself. My

12
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number is 260195.
Regards,
Jiil

From: David Robinson <David.Robinson@Muir.org.uk>

Subject: Properties and Wyche Lane, Bunbury

To: "jillwaits@yahoo.co.uk™ <jillwaits@yahoo.co.uk>

Ce: "bunburyclerk@aol.com" <bunburyclerk@aol.com>, "Tracey Ashton"
<Tracey.Ashton@Muir.org.uk>

Date: Friday, 17 June, 2011, 14:38

Good afternoon Mrs Waits

Many thanks for your letter dated the 8™ June *11, which I only received yesterday, concerning
Mirs Paul Owen potential application for the properties we are building at Wyche Lane.

1 have passed your letter on to David Hull our Regional Manager who will be responsible for
the allocation of the completed units, I have also asked David to advise you of any other steps
Mirs Owen should look to take to ensure her application for these houses is correctly progressed.

I’d also advise that my colleague, Tracey Ashton will be working very closely with you and
your colleagues on the Parish Council to ensure that we arrange at least 1 public meeting during
the constriction period to give all local people full details of the proposed houses, and more
importantly the allocation process that will be followed. Tracey will work with the Parish
Council to ensure maximum local publicity not only of the public meeting but of the availability
of the houses for local people.

1°d also advise that we wilt work with the Parish Council to explore the potential for one of the
Councillors to sit as an observer on Muir’s allocation panel to help us ensure the homes go to
households not only with a housing need but also with a clear local connection.

Many thanks for contacting Muir and please do not hesitate to contact either Tracey or myself if
you have any further queries or would like any further information.

With regards

David

David Robinson

Director of Development

Muir Group Housing Association
Qakmere House,

Meres Edge Helsby Cheshive WAS 0DJ
Tel: 01928 728048 Fax: 0870 7315057

Registared Offlce: Mulr Group Housing Assoclation Limited
Old Govarnment House, Dee Hills Park, Chester CHS AR
Rttosfiwww, uir.org.uk

-~ On Mon, 4/7/11, Partridges <ep.partridges@bltinternei.com> wrote:
13
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From: Partridges <ep.partridges@btintetnet.com>

Subject: Fw: Muir Homes

To: "Jill Waits” <jillwaits@yahoo.co.uk>, "Alex Stubbs" <bunburyclerk@aol.com>
Date: Monday, 4 July, 2011, 16:03

Hi JitfAlex
Just returned from holiday and going through my emails,

The reply from Muir was not attached to the earlfier email or the letter from Jill - Jill, can you send these
piease ?

The BPC must be seen to not influence the allocation of a property in favour of an individual but just
ensure the correct process is followed.

Alex will probably need to send a message clarifying this.

Regards
Erica

----- Original Message -

From: il walts

To: Erica Partridge ; Alex Stubbs

Sent: Saturday, June 18, 2011 5:12 PM

Subject: Fw: Playing Fields Pavilion Consuitation village day - Final

Dear Erica and Alex,

I wrote to Muir Homes on 6 June, as a private individual, but mentioning that I was a member of
BPC, to support Polly Owen's wish to be relocated from a 3 bed house opposite the church to a 2
bed one in Wyche Lane, when they are built.

1 am aitaching a copy of the reply which I have shared with Polly and Michael Owen as some of
the points David Robinson makes in his email may be of help/importance later, depending on
what happens.

Also, despite the fact that I made it clear I was writing as a private individual, he seems to have
ignored this and appears only to refer to my Parish Council membership, which was not my
intention.

1 have no plans to copy it to anyone else at present, unless either of you feels it would be
beneficial.

Regards,

Jil

----- Original Message -~--

From: jill waits o
To: Partridges ; Dennis Burrows ; Nick Parker ; Brian Dykes ; Sally Beard ; Philip Elsegood ; Alex
BunburyParish ; Eric Lord

Sent: Thursday, November 18, 2010 3:49 PM
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Subject: Re: TP1 for Muir Land at Wyche Lane
Erica, Alex and fellow Councillors,
First, thanks for doing all this work Erica.

| am sure you are right that we need some legal advice on the points you have raised, as several items
seem open to interpretation and need to be considered in the light of circumstances moving in a number
of different directions.

The crux of the matter is to me, as Alex wrote in her email, that the village is offered no protection with
regard to future development of the vacant tand currently owned by Gary & Suzie, which is presumably
why the strip of land was withheld from sale in the first place.

{ can't help feeling that the Parish Council is being rendered rather powerless in all this, and thus,
so are the villagers. | have to admit that this whole business leaves me feeling uneasy, as a
Parish Councillor, potentially a neighbour of any future development and as a member of the
village.

However, on another tack, both |, and presumably Dennis, and maybe even Sally, could then be
deemed to be affected by the potential development of this land and perhaps should not
therefore be involved in the discussion. | don't know how you see this, but | want to point out that
1 did not become a Parish Councillor to protect my own interests, but those of the village first and
foremost. The village will still be here when | am long gone and { would like to believe that the
Parish Council has done the right things for the right reasons.| will therefore abide by whatever
decision Is reached on my appropriateness in being involved or otherwise in decisions relating to
this land.

This is already a complex issue and | am sorry to be seen to throw another spanner in the works!

Regards,
Jil

— On Wed, 17/11/10, Partridges <ep.pariridges@btinternet.com> wrote:

From: Partridges <ep.partridges@btinternet.com>

Subject: Re: TP1 for Muir Land at Wyche Lane

To: "Brian Dykes" <brian.dykes@cheshireeast.gov.uk>, "Dennis Burrows"
<dennis.burrows@btopenworld.com>, "Eric Lord" <ericlord2@hotmail.com>, "Jili Waits"
<jillwaits@yahoo.ca.uk>, "Nick Parker" <nick.parker@homecall.co.uk>, "Philip Elsegood”
<Philip.Elsegood@eel.co.uk>, "Sally Beard" <sallypbeard@fsmail.net>, "Bunbury Parish”
<Bunburyclerk@aol.com>

Date: Wednesday, 17 November, 2010, 13:16

All

| have now had time to read the TP1 transfer to Muir - the plan provided by Muir at the meeting appears
to be the plan referred to, | think we should request the coloured plan for the TP1 from the Land Registry
(1 would have expected them to provide this) - can . | have attached a pdf of this plan - | have assume the
land sold is the area with 'access through to field' marked on (now registered as Muir fitle CH540350 -
attached), and the 'retained land' referred to is the remainder of the titte CH 246628 (now owned by Gary
- attached). Gary therefore steps into the shoes of the "transferor’ in this document.

The relevant parts of the document are :

The Accessway - defined as any means of access on foot and vehicles

13.3.6 - this grants a right of way to Gary over the Accessway ‘in connection with the occupation' of his
land but the cost of maintaining the Accessway falls on Muir or their successors in title 'according to

user',

13.4 - Part (a) obligates Muir (or a future owner of the Muir land) to construct the Accessway at the same
15
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time as they construct the dweliings. In this clause references to the Accessway now refer to Muir
constructing a road fo adoptable standards and maintaining it until it is adopted. Part (b) obligates Muir to
erect and maintain a fence and gate to Gary's land.

The route of the accessway is not fixed, so Muir can decide the location to fit with their development.

It appears to me that this means that Gary owns a plece of land to which Muir are obliged to provide
access sultable for the use of the land. If the use is grazing then the access can be a simple track but he
can argue it needs to be adequate for agricultural vehicles, If Gary obtains planning permission fo build
on his fand, then Muir will have to provide a road to adoptable standards suitable for the housing
development.

Legal advice may be needed on the following aspects :

- whether the words in red do relate to Gary's land use

- whether there is an ongoing requirement for Muir to construct suitable access for Gary's purpose ie
whether if they have provided a track under 13.3.6, they stili have to provide a further upgraded access if
needed '
- how this would apply to a successor in title of part of the land on which houses are not being built (le
the potential BPC area) ie could the freehold obligation remain with Muir in such a case

- clause 13.3.6 does not say that the right of way is in conjunction with all others entitied to use the
access - we need to know if this means the right is exclusive access to Gary's land (but it does not say
the right is exciusive either).

| can only assume that when Muir agreed to these clauses they presumed that they would be building
houses on the whole area and would be building an adoptable road anyway, so the agreement effectively
meant they would just need to provide an access to their road and gate into the field at some point on the
boundary. As the position now stand sthis could prove very expensive to them. it also explains their
statement that they are not happy with their position on this site.

So what does all this mean in relation to BPC potentially taking the land offerred by Muir 7 :

- the freehold land remalns subject to these covenants, so when Muir build the houses they will have to
put a track through and this may be upgraded to a road in the future;

- BPC could ask Gary to release Muir from the covenants but there would be legal costs and why should
he give up this significant benefit to himself;

- if BPC take the freehold they could inherit the obligation to maintain the road (construct relates to the
houses) (subject to legal advice on this point),

- BPC could take the land on a long lease (100 yrs +) from Muir, recognising the fact that there will be a
{rack or road maintained by Muir, BPC possibly picking up the fence liability - as Muir are obligated to do
this if they keep the land and there has been no stated intention to pass a fiability to BPC;

- the BPC interest in this land cannot therefore prevent residential development on Gary's land, i could
only prevent sale of the land used for community benefit either side of an access road to Gary's land. A
residential developer may consider the community use a benefit {depending on what it is), or may want
to acquire this land when BPC would have some leverage;

- sale of the land to Gary for the £6000 mentioned (subject to valuation) may save Muir the additional
costs of the track/road (depending on their agreement) which would far exceed the £6k and Gary could
offer to buy out thelr whole title CH 540350 which removes all obligations from Muir.

As Alex says, developers can insure against covenants but this involves a risk assessment of someone
with the benefit of the covenant claiming under it - in this case the risk relates to Gary obtaining planning
consent for residential development on his land, and the insurance issue would apply on a sale of the
Muir land to a third party. The fact that Gary owns adjacent land which would benefit from the covenant
keeps it relevant. Again legal advice can be sought if necessary.

If BPC want to proceed with looking further at taking the land, then the feedback to Muir may be a long
leasehold, but | do think we would need legal advice on the above interpretation points.

Re the possibility of allotments, the site area is just under half an acre which would give 7 allotments
allowing for the access way. The access way may be useful if the area is used for allotments pravided all
can use it.

It might be worth sharing views by email before the meeting as this is such a complicated issue. All views
welcome !
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Regards
Erica

-~ Original Message ---«- ) o
F{Om:fB!!nbUE-! Parish " g Treels R R T ne e '
To: Sally Beard ; Philip Eisegood ; Nick Parker ; Jill Waits ; Erica Partridge ; Eric Lord ; Dennis Burrows ;
Brian Dykes

Sent; Monday, November 15, 2010 11:47 AM

Subject: TP1 for Muir Land at Wyche Lane

Please find attached PDF scan of the TP1 fransfer agreement for the iand at Wyche Lane. The
contentious point seems to be the covenant on page 7 which mentions the construction of an
'Accessway'. The Accessway is defined as pedestrian and vehicular access between the southerly and
northerly boundaries of the property, which would then run through the land that they propose to transfer
to the Parish Council.

I think that a developer when faced with a covenant such as this which cannot be carried out, would
normally pay a sum of money to the other affected party in lieu of carrying out the covenant. | aiso think
that Muir would still have fo create a 'belimouth' to the land behind, in case a road is needed in the future.
This isn’t shown on thelr proposed site plan.

If you can't read the document or you would prefer a hard copy, please let me know.

Regards
Alex
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COUNCILLOR JILL WAITS EMAILS REGARDING OTHER COUNCILLORS

---- Original Message -----

From:jillvaits =~

To: Partridges

Sent: Monday, Ocfober 31, 2011 12:33 PM

Subject: Private and confidential

Dear Erica,

I'm sad that we have had a terse exchange of emails between us and, as a result, have decided to
email just you in confidence. When I read what you have written to me I wonder if I am in touch
with the same person I spoke to some months ago on the phone about my thoughts and
frustrations with the parish council.

Since becoming a parish councillor in May last year I have attended PC meetings, where, as you
know, I find the behaviour of some of my fellow councillors very unprofessional and, in relation
to Brian Dykes' behaviour towards you and other councitlors guite unacceptable. [ recall you
saying that it was Brian's way and you would just carry on regardless. Clearly you are content to
put up with this. If I were you, I would not be, but I have to acknowledge that we are all
different.

1 know that you are aware of the content of an email written by Nick Parker about me and Dave
Ellis to Michael Jones is scathing and, in my view, unjustified terms. 1 can't complain formally
about this as it would put Michael in a very difficult position and I am not prepared to do that.
You will therefore appreciate, I hope, that I am not in a position to take this matter any further.
However, it does show how divided some councillors are and unprofessional in writing in such
a way to a CEC coucillor. :

In the circumstances I can only suggest we put this matter to one side. I believe there are some
important things to do for the village in relation to the village plan and hope that we can work
together effectively on this in the near future.

Regards,

Jill

From: Pariridges <ep.pariridges@btinternet.com>

To: jill waits <jilwaits@yahoo.co.uk>

Cc: Brian Dykes <brian.dykes@cheshireeast gov.uk>; Alex Stubbs <bunburyclerk@aol.com>; David
Ellis <dellis7@fiscali.co.uk>; Gary McCormack <GMC@CSQ42.com>; Eric L.ord
<ericlord2@hotmail.com>; Mandy Jones <mandyjones21@btinternet.com>; Nick Parker
<nick.parker@homecall.co.uk>; Sally Beard <sallypbeard@fsmail.net>

Sent: Wednesday, 26 October 2011, 18:56

Subject: Re: Fwd: Gary McCormack Muir

Dear Jill

| am disappointed with your reply.

If you wish to make a complaint against a Parish Councilior you should contact Alex to take appropriate
action.

Your third paragraph continues fo be disrespectful whether infended or not. The Parish Council needs a
mix of ages/experiencefresidency and as Councillors resign over a period of time for whatever reason
they are replaced by new blood.

Regards
Erica

~--- QOriginal Message ~---
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From:'jill waits

To: Partridges

Cc: Brian Dykes ; Alex Stubbs ; David Eflis : Gary McCormack ; Eric Lord ; Mandy Jones ; Nick Parker :
Sally Beard |
Sent: Wednesday, October 26, 2011 5:43 PM
Subject: Re: Fwd: Gary McCormack Muir

Dear Erica,
I'm sorry to hear you have been unwell.

I am sure, like me, you are disappointed to hear about unprofessional behaviour from one parish
councillor towards another. Information has been passed on to me, and, I believe, to you,
regarding an email that was written by a parish councillor regarding me, in what can only be
seen as unfounded and inciteful terms. As I have said already, I presume that councillor knows
about whom I write, Unfortunately the email was written about me, not to me, and I therefore
feel unable fo let you have a copy without implicating others. I regard this as divisive behaviour
by a fellow parish councillor and I don't believe you are in a position to tell me otherwise. You
write to me as if I had started something, when I see myself as the brunt, and then demand an
apology. Am I missing something here?

As to your point about my comments being disrespectful to other parish councillors, I find this
an interesting interpretation of what I said. The purpose of writing this was to suggest

that several councillors have been in their positions for many years and maybe this was a good
time to seek new and younger input as the young parishoners, like Mandy, are the future of the
village. No disrespect was intended and I fail to see how you can think there was.

I am afraid I don’t understand why you comment on the removal of the fencing in the next
paragraph.

1 did not say that I am unhappy being a parish councilior. | said that Bunbury PC was not a
happy place to be at present. Maybe you feel otherwise, but please don't twist what I say. [ am
not seeking to "spread discontent" as you put it, just to be honest about how 1 feel. If fellow
parish councillors are unhappy with me doing that, then | am sorry they feel that way, but no-
one has implied that to me.

Like you, I just want to get on with the business of the PC. I would be happy to apologise if [
could see anything to apologise for and am sorry that you feel that way.

Regards,
Jill

From: Partridges <ep.partridges@btinternetf.com>

To: Jifi Waits <jiliwaits@yahoo.co.uk>

Cc: Brian Dykes <brian.dykes@cheshireeast.gov.uk>; Alex Stubbs <bunburyclerk@aol.com>; David
Eflis <dellis7@fiscali.co.uk>; Gary McCormack <GMC@CSQ42.come>; Eri¢ Lord
<ericlord2@hotmail.com>; Mandy Jones <mandyjones21@btinternet.com®; Nick Parker
<nick.parker@homecail.co.uk>; Sally Beard <sallypbeard@fsmail.net>

Sent: Wednesday, 26 October 2011, 13:24

Subject: Re: Fwd: Gary McCormack Muir

Jit

Although your message below is to Alex, it raises a number of matters to which | am obliged to respond
as Chairman. | have been ill recently otherwise | would have responded sooner.

2
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I am at a loss to understand the motivation for or intent of your message in inclting the divisive behaviour
which you complain about.

In making open insinuations about Parish Gouncillors | consider the content of the second paragraph
below to be unprofessional and if you have any information (other than gossip) on such maiters please
provide it o Alex so action can be taken, if appropriate.

Further, your messagse is totally disrespectiul fo other Parish Councilfors who cormit a considerable
amount of their time and in some cases their lives to serving the local community.

The advice to which you are referring was supplied by Cheshire East Deputy Monitoring Officer, not Alex
Stubbs, and the Code of Conduct states that a Parish Councillor must have regard to any relevant advice
provided to them by the authority's monitoring officer. As you know further advice is requested, which as
before will be passed on to Counciflors. | have already ciarified that | reported the change of Muir
contractor to the Parish Council meeting in relation to the removal of the fencing.

{ note that you are extremely unhappy at being a Parish Councifior. | am sorry to hear that. | am also
sorry that you are seeking to spread discontent amongst your colleagues.

Perhaps you have now had time {o reconsider and trust you are now able to make an apology to your
fellow Councitiors.

| hope this can then be put behind us and we can all continue to work together in the future.
Regards
Erica

----- Original Message ---— ,

From: il waits™ ™ '

To: bunburyclerk@aol.com ; pb.dykes@bfinternet.com ; dennis.burrows@btopenworld.com ;
dellis7@tiscali.co.uk ; gme@csad2.com ; ericlord2@hotmail.com ; mandyjones21@btinternet.com ;
nick.garker@homecaﬁ.co.uk - sallypbeard@fsmail.net ; ep.partridges@btinternet.com

Sent: Tuesday, October 18, 2011 11:56 AM

Subject: Re: Fwd: Gary McCormack Muir

Alex, .

Gary has his own way of expressing himself which perhaps isn't my way. However, | do feel he
has a right to point out anything that he perceives as unfair or inappropriate behaviour by you ot
another member of the PC.

I think we would all recognise that Bunbury Parish Council is not a happy place to be at present.
Over the past few months 1 have become increasingly worried about the divisive behaviour of
some members towards others and a hurling of unfounded and ridiculous accusations behind
individual councillor's backs, which I find totally unprofessional and unacceptable. I have no
doubt that these councillors know who they are. Perhaps this is the right time for some
councillors who have served the parish for many years {0 step away and give new faces and
opinions a chance to come forward and do their bit for the village.

Whilst 1 am sorry to see you go in many respects, what has come about serves to highlight how
important it is that the clerk serves all, and is seen to serve all, councillors equally. All
councillors should not deny that this is a difficult task with the volume and complexity of the
issues the PC is involved in and recognise that this is only likely to increase in the future.

The Muir issues have caused a rift in the PC which are making it Jook incapable of behaving
appropriately. I certainty don't feel that I have been advised correctly about whether or not to
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declare an interest in specific matters. Perhaps it would be beiter if the whole Council was to
resign and then it could start again. I would be interested to hear what other counciliors think.

] am sure you will find a happier environment to work in than Bunbury PC Alex and wish you
well.

Regards,
Jill

From: "bunburyclerk@aol.com” <punburyclerk@aol.com>

To: b.dykes@btinternet.com, dennis.burrows@btopenworld,com; dellis7 @tiscali.co.uk;
gme@ocsad2.com; ericlord2@hotmail.com; mandyjones21 @btinternet.com; jilwaits@yahoo.co.uk;
nick. parker@homecail.co.uk; sallypbeard@fsmail.net; ep.partridges@btinternet.com

Sent: Sunday, 16 October 2011, 20:10

Subject: Fwd: Gary McCormack Muir

Dear All
Please can | have your comments on Garys email and if you concurr with his opinion.

Regards
Alex

- (Otiginal Message----

Erom; CSQ Office <gme@csqd2.com>

To: bunburyclerk <bunburyclerk@aoi.con>
Sent: Sun, 16 Oct 2011 19:28

Subject: Re: Gary McCormack Muir

Alex

Very disappointed at the cavalier approach you have to reporting news to the members of the PC, |
was under the impression that you were the paid Parish Council Clerk who reported to all the Parish
Council Members.

From your email it looks as if you report the information that you think is important to one member
only. | have made it quite clear in all my emails to you that | have given you as the Clerk information
which 1 assumed you passed on the the other members of the PC relating to all issues regarding Muir,

Reading your email it sounds as if you do not require my permission to forward the email on to Brian. |
have rmade it evidently clear that | and other members of the PC do believe that Brian has a prejudicial
interest in the Muir development. [t is well documented and Brian never stops talking about Muir.

Regardless. Why did you not inform PC Members?

Why did you not mention any of the above at the PC meeting?

Why did you not support Brain at the meeting by informing the rest of the PC that you had informed
Brian some weeks ago but had not thought it important to notify any PC members?

Alex

Our last Clerk Colin Knowles lived in the village and if you have read his correspondence to Muir. You
will be aware of what he stood for. From my point of view you treat Bunbury as a job. You have no
interest in Bunbury. You do not live in the village and from your actions you have your own inner circle
who are receiving information excluding other PC Members.

The proposed development is a very important issue in the Village and if you are not informing
members correctly or the minutes are not being updated with information that other PC members
should be made aware of then we have a big problem.
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I am just flying to the Middle East. So will pick up mails in the morning.
Alex, | do not have a problem sending this email to ali members of the PC.

| await your reply.
Gary

On 15/10/2011 16:48, "bunburyclerk@aol.com” <bunburyclerk@aol.com> wrote:
Hi Gary

{ knew that RBL had gone bust, Tracey Ashton told me it was a possibilily ages ago when |
phoned her about floor levels at the development. | also checked the internet and found it was
true. I've probably told Brian at some point as it wasn't a secret.

Can | forward your email to Brian so that he can answer your accusation directly?

Alex

—-Qriginal Message-----

From: CSQ Office <gmc@csq42.com>

To: BunburyClerk <bunburyclerk@aol.com>
Sent: Wed, 12 Oct 2011 10:18

Subject: Gary McCormack Muir

Hi Alex

Re last nights meeting. _

Just wanted to raise a concern about Muir. | have been in contact with Stephen irvine at Cheshire East
Stephen lrvine

planning and Development Manager. He had no information as to what had happened at the Muir site.
His reply was

Gary,

Not a jot 'm afraid, I'll follow it up tomorrow.

Regards,

How come the only person who had any Information was Brian Dykes? He informed the PC that RBL
Construction had gone bust.

Cheshire East had no news.
Michael fones had no News
My Lawyers had no News.

| did not want to bring this issue up in the meeting as Brian was pleased with his new awarded honour.
As | have highlighted before Brian should be declaring a private and prejudicial interest regarding Muir

Homes.
Regards Gary
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Cheshire East Council

Complaint against Parish Counciliors Sally Beard, David Ellis, Gary McCormack & Jill
Waits

Statement of Parish Councillor Erica Partridge, Holly Mount, Whitchurch Road, Bunbury,
Cheshire CW6 98X

1.

| have been a Councitlor for Bunbury Parish Council since July 2009, when | was co-opted
on to the Council. | have been Chairman of the Council since May 2010. When | was co-~
opted, | received no documentation of any sort. | have not been offered any specific
training on the Code of Conduct but, in the last 12 months, the Clerk has circulated training
packages, mainly organised by CHALC (Cheshire Association of Local Councils).
Unfortunately, most of the courses that were relevant to my position clashed with other
appointments.

Mrs Alex Stubbs was appointed as Clerk in April 2010. When | was appointed Chairman
the following month, we both realised that there were no Standing Orders for the control of
decision-making and consideration of Council business nor were there any other procedural
documents which most Parish Councils have in place. Although Mrs Stubbs has the CiLCA
(Certificate in Local Council Administration) qualification, the Council has not decided to
seek Quality Parish Council status. A Sub-Committee was established to produce the
Standing Orders with other documents being agreed at the Parish Council meetings over a
period of time and these have now been adopted by the Council.

The background to the issues that | have raised regarding the four Councillors is set out in
the document submitted with the complaint headed 'Query to Monitoring Officer re Bunbury
Parish Councillors'. | raised the matters as a query to the Clerk as it appeared to me that
the Code of Conduct may have been breached in several respects and she has forwarded
this information to the monitoting officer which has now been taken as constituting the
complaint. This was accompanied by separate commentaries in respect of the issues
concerning each of the four and relevant emails in relation to each one. There is also a
separate complaint against Councillor Waits with its own documentation which | deal with
under her heading.

Councillors McCormack and Beard were aiready on the Parish Council when | was co-
opted. Councilior Waits was co-opted in April 2010 and Councillor Ellis was co-opted in
January 2011, although he had previously served on the Parish Council. Since these
complaints were lodged, Mrs Sally Beard and David Eliis have both resigned from the
Council.

My comments on the complaints made against the individual persons foilow as separate
Schedules.

Since submitting the above queries | have resigned from the Parish Council. In these
circumstances | do not wish to proceed with the complaint relating to bullying and attitude
towards other councillors. 1 have explained the areas which | wish to withdraw in the
schedules below.

Even though | am no longer a Parish Coungcillor | consider it is important for the question of
the declarations of interest to be considered and established as this was the purpose of my
query to the Monitoring Officer which has become these complaints.
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Schedule 4 - Councilior Jill Waits

As_: | am no longer a Parish Councillor | do not wish to proceed with the following issues
raised against Councillor Waits and | request that the information supplied relating to the
following areas of the Code of Conduct are withdrawn and discarded and | do not wish
them to be considered by the Standards Committee.

The areas | wish to withdraw are :

3(1)

3(2) (b)

32

4 (a)

7(1) (a)

In relation to all other matters | do not wish to make any additional points other than as set
out in my query to the Monitoring Officer. The paragraphs below answer the questions
asked of me at the interview in explaining the events further.

Councillor Waits was co-opted on to the Parish Council in April 2010. From recoliection,
when issues concerning the Muir development were discussed at meetings of the Parish
Council and emails between Councillors Councillor Waits did not declare any interest until
the meeting on 11 January 2011. On 18 November 2010 Councillor Waits sent an email fo
all the other Parish Councillors, apart from Coungciilor McCormack, and to the Clerk
questioning whether she, Mrs Beard and then Councilior Burrows had an interest in the
discussions that were going on with regard to the land offered to the Council, as they were
all neighbours of the site and potentially affected by it. | had already queried with the Clerk
the comments that some Councillors were making with regard to the development and the
land offered to the Council and, when the email was received, | agreed with the Clerk that
she would seek advice from the Monitoring Officer at Cheshire East Council. An email
containing advice was received on 22 November from the Deputy Monitoring Officer. This
was circulated to those present at the following Council meeting on 14 December. The
copies of the email were collected back by the Clerk as it contained personal information
relating to the Councillors concerned. The discussion which took place was not referred to
in the minutes but they do record the consequent actions and declaration of a personal and
prejudicial interest by those present. Councilior Waits was not present at the meeting.

Following the meeting, | spoke to the Clerk and she informed me that she had spoken to
Councillor Waits, read out the advice from Julie Openshaw and Councillor Waits had
indicated that she would accept the advice and this was confirmed in emails between them.

As a number of queries had been raised by Parish Counciilors regarding declarations of
interest relating to the Muir land and planning application further advice was requested from
the Monitoring Officer and | deferred all matters relating to this until the advice was received
in my email dated 19" October 2011. Prior to the meeting on 13 December 2011 the further
advice was received from the Deputy Monitoring Officer in an email dated 30 November
2011 and this was emailed to all Councillors on 04 December. This email contained a link to
Standards for England explanatory guidance on the Code of Conduct. At the meeting,
under 'Declarations of Interest, | specifically asked whether everybody was happy with the
second email from the Deputy Monitoring Officer and whether they had any further queries
on the matter and there was no indication to the contrary. | then asked whether Councillors
wanted to make any declaration and Ms Waits, and other Counciliors who were resident in
Wyche Land, said 'no’. They said they were happy with their position.



Page 182

6. Councillor Waits has stated that that she does not own the house, Edinbane, Wyche Lane,
Bunbury, where she lives with her partner. In Paragraph 8(2)(a) of the Code of Conduct a
relevant person includes any person with whom the Member has a close association.
Edinbane is closely located to the field of which the proposed development is sited and the
land to be transferred to the Council. Ms Wait's partner objected to planning application
11/2423N for reasons related to his property and his use and enjoyment of the property.

7. | have queried whether in all the circumstances the fact that no interest was declared at the
meeting is correct.

8  There is a further issue under interests that is the subject of a separate complaint lodged on
15 October 2011. This concerns Councillor Waits' behaviour in helping her partner to
circulate letters to residents in which it was claimed that planning application 11/2423N
would open up the field for the development of 50 houses. | have not seen this letter but
Ms Waits and her pariner have confirmed that this occurred. The vast majority of
objections to the planning application refer to the impact of the further development. Ms
Wait's partner was invited to a meeting at Cheshire East organised by the Ward Councillor,
Michael Jones, to which a representative of the Muir Group was also invited. The Parish
Council were invited to send someone but no-one without an interest was available to
attend. Councillor Waits accompanied her partner to the meeting.

9. At the meeting on 9" August 2011 when the application was being considered, Councilior
Waits requested to make a statement before leaving the room in which she requested that
the Parish Council arrange a public meeting to discuss ali the rumours which were going
round the village regarding expansion of the Muir development.

10. | have queried whether the above actions are in breach of the Code of Conduct in relation to
9 (1), 12 (1) and 12 (2) of the Code of Conduct.
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R Walls
Eginbane, Wyche Lane, Bunbury CWE P5
(1829260195 07714211638 jillwaits@yahoo.co.uk

Mr M Dudfield,
Solicitor,

6 Church Hill,
Nether Kellet,
Carnforth,
Lancs LAG 1ER

Dear Mr Dudfield,
26 February, 2012
Complaints under Members’ Code of Conduct ~ Ref nos CEC/2011/05, 06 & 08

Further to your letter to me of 13 February 2012 please find enclosed my response to the complaints
submitted with appendices.

As explained in my email to you of 24 February | have not copied Clir Partridge’s (or Mrs Stubbs’)
evidence in this regard, with a view to keeping papers to a minimum. [ will therefore have to ask you
to refer to their papers in reading my replies, to avoid them being hard to follow. | hope that this is
not a problem for you, but please let me know if it is.

Can | please remind you that in my email to you of 14 February | requested that you interview Jlames
Walton and that this request still stands. James is also available on that afternoon. it would be easier
for me if you saw him after me.

As confirmed by email, | can make the afternoon of Thursday 8" March to fit in with your schedule.
Can | please request that it is not before 1pm as | am otherwise engaged that morning?

Do please let me know if you need anything else beforehand. | am away from 28 February to 2
March 2012 and unlikely to access emails.

| remain very sad that my wish to help the village by joining the Parish Council has come to this
stressful and unnecessary position.

Yours sincerely,

T i

Jill Waits (Mrs)
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Complaints under Members’ Code of Conduct ~ CEC/2011/05, 06 & 08
26 February, 2012

General points

| joined Bunbury Parish Council in 2010 in order to do something useful for the village and not for my
own ends, an objective which | have made repeatedly clear and still stand by. | do feel strongly that
the future of the village belongs to residents who are, in the main, younger than the current parish

councillors, me included.

] want to make it clear at the outset that | value my integrity and do not jeopardise that by lying. This
can make me an uncomfortable colleague, but my emails often show that | am aware of this and
acknowledge that this can make fhings difficult. As an example, please see my email dated 31
October 2011 to Clir Partridge attached at appendix A where | open by saying “I'm sad that we have
had a terse exchange of emails between us” and close by saying “In the circumstances | can only
suggest we put this matter to one side. | believe there are some important things to do for the
village in relation to the village pian and hope that we can work together effectively on this in the
near future”. | sent this as private and confidential, but 'm afraid believe it is important to use it

here.

My intention was, and is, to do the right thing whenever possible —an aim in which | know 1 fail from
time to time. However, it is never my intention to upset any colleague, but merely to voice my

opinions and defend those of other parishioners.

The evidence that has been presented against me is merely a selected series of snapshots from
random points in time and cannot put what really happened in clear context for you, or the Council’s
Standards Committee, to consider. | will, of course, suffer from the same problem in responding.
However, | hope you can see for yourself that many of the items of evidence that Clir Partridge has
presented are not pertinent to me or my actions. Others are based on assumptions and innuendo.
Also, due to repeated references to my partner, James Walton, who is not a parish councillor, |
cannot help feeling that | am being made to pay for his communications with the Parish Council.
Forty pages of the copied emails in the bundle sent to me only mention my name in passing and are

not relevant to me in any significant way.

Many members of the Parish Council have been Councillors for decades and are, and should be, far

more experienced than me in carrying out their duties and understanding procedures and protocols.
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it should be noted that of the 5 Parish Councillors from Wyche Lane, one resigned in December 2011
and two more in January and February of 2012. One cannot help feeling that there is a move afoot

by the Chairman and the Vice Chairman to rid the Council of all Wyche Lane residents.

{ would like to clarify that | am not against the development of affordable housing on the proposed

Wyche Lane site in Bunbury.

Response to the points raised against me and the evidence put forward by Clir Partridge in the

order, and using the numbers, that she has used.
Background

1. What Clir Partridge does not say in this paragraph is that Muir Group Housing Association,
on 27 June 2011, submitted a planning variation 11/2423N to remove conditions in respect
of the existing approved planning application which will result in a 4.5m roadway, as a
minimum, being made as an extension of the roadway coming through the proposed
housing development from Wyche Lane. The housing roadway will not be built to adoptable
standards and will therefore be significantly smaller than the proposed roadway extension
into the field owned by Clir McCormack. Local opposition to this is broadly based on the fact
that such a wide roadway would be entirely inappropriate in this setting, particularly as parts
of Wyche Lane are no wider than 3.2m in places. Also this raises again the potential for
further residential development in the field currently owned by Clir McCormack to the
concern of dozens of Bunbury residents, as indicated by their written opposition to the
changes proposed by Muir GHA on the CEC planning website.

Please note that | did not write to CEC opposing the proposed changes to the current

planning application.

2 1 did not own any property in Bunbury at that time, but now do and have reported this to

the Bunbury Parish Clerk so that she can make the necessary amendments to her records.

I note that Clir Partridge states that she has attached a plan which shows “whether those
houses neighbouring the land have objected to planning application 11/2423N ... or not”.
Our home, Edinbane is identified as objecting. By this, please be clear that it is my partner,
James Walton, who objected and not me, as this appears to me to be Clir Partridge’s
implication. My reading of this is that Clir Partridge uses information in a particular way to

give her desired outcome, rather than giving the full facts. Neither would | want you to think
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that these were the only objections, as there were over 30 in total, not all from Wyche Lane

residents.

{ am not, and never have been, a member of any political party. But if | was, is being a
member of the Conservative Party, or any political party, a crime? | do not see why this is

raised at all.

| am a neighbour of Clir McCormack who lives 8 doors away and | chat to him and his family
as we all do with our neighbours. Until last Sunday, when he and Mrs McCormack {who has
been very ill) called in to show that she was on the mend, it must have been at least 6
months since | entered the McCormack house, or he ours, so | hardly think this makes us

“close associates and friends”. Even if we were, this is not unusual in village like Bunbury.

Clir Partridge states that “... | regularly discuss(es) Parish Council matters with Michael
Jones”. | don’t think this is surprising as he is our Borough Councillor and reguiarly attends
PC meetings in order to advise and support the PC. | therefore don’t think it is irregular or

incorrect that | discuss PC matters with Clir Jones.

Just minutes before the PC meeting on 11 October 2011 Clir Jones rang me, as he hoped 1
would not yet have left home for the meeting, to advise that he was unable to attend,
having spent 11 hours that day at CEC agreeing budgetary issues. He had not phoned the
Parish Clerk as he knew she would have left home for the meeting. He asked if | would
advise the PC, for information, of a couple of items that he had actioned and this | gladly
agreed to do. | explained the circumstances at the meeting. As my comments were not even
recorded in the minutes, or Clir Jones’ apologies, they were clearly thought to be of no
consequence at the time, but Clir Partridge now seems to believe they are. | find this rather

confusing and cannot see what the problem is that Clir Partridge is alluding to.

As to Clir Jones asking me to lay a wreath on his behalf at the Armistice Day service in
Bunbury, | was honoured to be asked by him. | did not offer to do this, so you would have to
ask Clir Jones for his motives, if this is wrong, as | am not my brother’s keeper. Is it a crime to
lay a wreath when asked to do so in remembrance of those who lost their lives in war? | am

not at all sure what my errors are here.

| find paragraph 3 quite offensive in the way that it implicates others who are not being

complained against here. Surely I am not to be held responsible for the actions of others.
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4 | was about to say that the content of this section is made up of facts regarding the Muir
GHA lands and land owned by Clir McCormack. However | have just noticed that Clir
Partridge states “{...as opposers of the houses are claiming the access will open this field to
development)”. This shows Clir Partridge’s total lack of understanding regarding the
concerns raised by parishioners to the Section 73 11/2423N variations proposed by Muir
GHA, in that those who oppose the variations do not necessarily “oppose the houses”, but
simply a 3m track into a field being changed to an adoptable standard 4.5m roadway with
sewers and possible footpaths and utilities. A lack of understanding, or is Clir Partridge trying
to distort the facts again?

5 | have no comments as there does not appear to be an allegation against me in this section.
6 I have no comments as there does not appear to be an allegation against me in this section.
Declaration of interests and Code of Conduct

7 Clir Partridge states that “...the necessity for a further planning application did not arise until
the summer of 2011.” This is untrue, as Muir GHA has known since 2005 that a further
application would be necessary, as would anyone with knowledge of the TP1. This was
confirmed by David Robinson of Muir GHA at a meeting on 26 August 2011 with CEC when
he confirmed that Muir had pursued the development along the lines of the planning
permission from 2007, “on the assumption that they could sort it out later with the TP1
landowner” (see 4" paragraph of minutes at appendix B). | find it hard to believe that Clir
Partridge did not know that, despite having received a copy of the notes of that meeting
which | submitted to her on 31 August 2011, as | thought she would be interested in reading

them. (See appendix B of my email to Clir Partridge and the attached notes of the meeting.)

8 Clir Partridge’s comments relating to all Muir matters prior to October 2010 refer to Clirs
McCormack and Burrows in this section, other than her statement “the other Clirs
neighbouring the land did not declare an interest”. As the house in which | then lived (and
now part own} does not neighbour any land owned by Muir, | believed my actions in not
declaring an interest in Muir items to be correct. Also Ben Haywood of Cheshire East Council
wrote to James Walton on 13 October 2011 (see appendix E) regarding the planning -

application 11/2423N and said “...your property does not share a boundary with the

application site.”
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Clir Partridge is correct in that | emailed her, the clerk and fellow Councillors stating that !
and other Wyche Lane residents “could then be deemed to be affected by the potential
development of this land and perhaps should not therefore be involved in the discussion...” |
don’t see this as “effectively declaring and interest” as Clir Partridge states, but rather to
seek guidance on the matter. This is what the clerk did and Julie Openshaw from the
Monitoring Office replied in her email of 22 November 2010 (attached at appendix C).
Please note that the discussions at the December 2010 PC meeting referred to by Clir
Partridge in her email of 26 September 2011 (appendix €) happened either before the
meeting started, or after it ended or were just not minuted. | was not present at that
meeting but advised of what happened by Clir Sally Beard on 17 October 2011 (pleased see

appendix D). Please note that this was 10 months after the event.

{ was not present at the December 2010 meeting because | was ill. Clir Partridge is correct
that the clerk sent me a brief email on 15 December 2010, stating “ .1 contacted the
monitoring officer for advice. She confirmed that she thought both you, Dennis and Sally
should declare personal and prejudicial interests in the discussion (on Muir) and abstain.” |
took this at face value and did as | had agreed to do, declaring an interest in ali Muir matters
thereafter until December of the following year. However, | did not receive a full copy of
Julie Openshaw’s email until 26 September 2011 when Mrs Stubbs finally decided to
circulate the full email to ali parish councillors (see appendix C). If | had known the FULL
advice given in the email and the information on which the advice had been based, | would

not have declared an interest in the majority of the Muir matters.

As Ms Openshaw makes clear, her advice was given in respect of the need, or otherwise, to
declare an interest “in relation to a plot of land which has been offered for sale to Bunbury
Parish Council” and in her email of 30 November 2011 to Mrs Stubbs “NOT the later
planning application” (see appendix F). in her email of 22 November 2010 (appendix C) Ms
Openshaw keeps stating “you explained” as it appears that the then parish clerk, M?;s
Stubbs, requested advice from Ms Openshaw over the phone and explained the not
uncomplicated ownership arrangements of parish councillors in relation to the various
pieces of land during that phone call. Ms Openshaw states {(wrongly) that “each of them
owns their home and has registered it as such in the register of interests”. | cannot expect
Ms Openshaw to know who owned what, but Mrs Stubbs knew that | did not own any
property in Bunbury at that time, as she was the keeper of the register of interests and |

latterly checked with her that the entry for me was correct, which she confirmed by email.
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Ms Openshaw then advise Mrs Stubbs of her view “that due to their proximity to the for sale
land, and the possible effect arising from that on the values, or desirability, of their homes, B
C and D all have personal interests in the decision whether the Parish Council should
purchase the land, because a decision on whether or not the PC should buy it could
reasonably be regarded as affecting their well-being or financial positions to a greater extent
than the majority of council tax payers ratepayers or inhabitants of the locality.” B, Cand D

are, | assume, Clirs Burrows, Waits and Beard.

She continued “Unless they can raise some other consideration which might merit further
consideration {1 haven't seen a plan), they appear to have a prejudicial interest as well,
because of the same considerations in terms of proximity and effect on financial position,
which suggest that the proper conclusion is that ‘a member of the public with knowledge of
the relevant facts would reasonably regard [the interest] as so significant that it is likely to

prejudice your judgment of the public interest’.”

Ms Openshaw then debates the issue of being quorate, which is not relevant here, but
finally concludes that “without knowing the political persuasion of the members invoived,
and the remainder, it's unclear if the second would apply, but you might want to consider

that.”

| fear that Ms Openshaw was not accurately or well briefed by Mrs Stubbs on the topic of
the Muir lands and the property ownership of the Wyche Lane councillors.  understand that
you are not considering these issues to decide if the advice given was right or wrong, but !
hope you will let me explain that it is hard to give credibility to advice, which was wrong in
parts, was given on complex ownership and use without the benefit of, at least, a plan. Also,
to suggest that the PC’s purchase or otherwise of a small strip of land, which appears to
serve no significant purpose at all to Bunbury or Wyche Lane residents, could affect the
financial position of anyone in Wyche Lane is, quite honestly, a nonsense, and | believe
would not stand up if considered by a property expert.

As to the fact that Ms Openshaw refers to “the political persuasion of members involved”,

which is totally irrelevant and out of order, 'm sorry to state that this defies belief.

i hope you can see that | was unhappy with the response given on several counts and
because of its errors and assumptions, | found it hard to give it any credibility. 1 do believe

that Ms Openshaw should have been more accurately instructed in the first place, which
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may have lead to a different conclusion. With hindsight, | realise that | should have queried
this at the time with Ms Openshaw, in view of its importance but I'm afraid i did not.
However, James Walton did receive a letter from Ben Haywood of Cheshire East Council
dated 13 October 2011 (see appendix E) regarding the planning application 11/2423N which

states that “...your property does not share a boundary with the application site.”

Please also note that in her email of 30 November 2011 (see appendix F) Julie Openshaw
states that “As you know, the advice | provided in November 2010 was based on the
circumstances you outlined to me at the time, and was confined to the issue of the offer of
land to the Parish Council, not the later planning application.” This suggests that my original
confusion about whether | and other Wyche Lane Councillors should declare an interestona
number of Muir issues was still not clearly resolved at this stage on several aspects of the
Muir housing proposals, and, as Ms Openshaw states “it will be for members of the Parish

Council to consider their individual positions if necessary”. This is what | have done.

| would like to explain that 1 raised the whole issue of whether or not to declare an interest
on the Muir issues and now wish | hadn't, though it was done with the best of intentions,
seeking to be fair, and be seen to be fair. This was never totally resolved, and 1 and the other
Wyche Lane councillors did begin to declare our interests in December 2010, apart from Cilr
McCormack who was already doing so. At that point the vice chairman and chairman in
particular were firm in their views that we should remove ourselves totally from the room in
which the PC was meeting, thus not being allowed to make representations, answer
guestions or give evidence. However, my reading of section 12 (2) of the Bunbury Parish
Council Code of Conduct (appendix G) and section 7 d of the Bunbury PC Standing Orders
(appendix H) both implied, in my eyes, that we should have been able to do this, even if we
had declared a prejudicial interest in a matter. it was not until an Explanatory Leaflet
Relating to Personal and Prejudicial interests (Model Code of Conduct) was circulated in
December 2011 that | began to feel clearer, albeit not convinced, about these confusing
issues. If | have interpreted the BPC Code of Conduct and Standing Orders incorrectly then |
am at fault on this point and have to hold my hand up and apologise. | do still find this very
ambiguous however and think it should be worded more clearly in order to avoid this kind of

confusion in future.

Having read all the advisory documents forwarded by Ms Openshaw, | still believe that | was

wrong in declaring a prejudicial interest in the proposed Muir Housing development and the
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strip of land to the rear of that site which is being sold to BPC for a peppercorn by Muir. As
to the declaration of a personal interest on these matters, | believe it depends if the item on

the agenda is purely for information or discussion and decision.

Clir Partridge quotes that a number of Muir matters to be discussed by the Muir Sub
Committee, which she claims is actually the full Parish Council excluding the public and Clirs
with declared prejudicial interests, were “subject to contract/commercially sensitive and not
suitable for a public meeting”. | am not clear on what basis she makes this claim, as my
understanding is that ALL business discussed by the Parish Council is public information,
which is what | was advised at my parish councillor training by CHALC. Neither do | know
what was discussed and if it was indeed subject to contract or commercially sensitive, but

this seems highly unlikely when a strip of fand is being sold for a peppercorn.

What Clir Partridge does not say in this paragraph is that the Muir planning application
11/2423N was NOT on the agenda for the Parish Council meeting on 9 August 2011 (see
appendix J), which is a direct breach of procedure and ensures that no members of the
public can be present at the meeting, thus making any comment from parishioners, which is
their right, impossible. Despite this, discussion on the Muir items went ahead and the

remaining members of the PC decided to support Muir’s planning application.

On 6 December 2011 | raised the declaration of interests issue on Muir matters in an email
to all parish councillors specifically asking for 11/2423N to be revisited as it had incorrectly
been discussed and agreed without appearing on an agenda. | requested that it be added to
the December PC agenda, quite honestly expecting that some councillors would not support
the idea of revisiting it. | had to write to Mrs Stubbs on 8 December (appendix K) to ask
where it was on the agenda, as | could see no reference to it and, as such, the public would
not be alerted to its discussion. Please see her reply to me of the same date (appendix K)
where it is hidden away under another vague heading — ‘Discussion on Muir matters’ which
used to appear on almost every agenda and gave no inkling of the actual planning
application number, one can only assume to deny the public any right to know, for the
second time, that this planning application was on the agenda. Either this, or in attempt to
silence me once and for all on this subject. This makes me wonder why | am answering all
these complaints against me, when the then parish clerk, | suspect with the chairman’s

agreement, continued to hide issues that should have been open to public scrutiny from the

public’s eyes!
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Paragraph not relevant to me

| am not aware that James Walton is under any kind of scrutiny from this committee or from
the Parish Council and am therefore at a loss to know why his actions appear here and in

numerous other places. James’ actions are not in my control and neither do | wish them to

be.

i would like to respond to Clir Partridge’s point about me requesting all the emails etc
relating to the Muir Sub Committee discussions. | attended Parish Councilior training in July
2011 and as a result of that and advice given to me by Jackie Weaver from CHALC who ran
the course, | raised a couple of issues that were concerning me with Clir Partridge and Mrs
Stubbs (see Appendix J) You will see from the last but one paragraph of my email to them of
4 August 2011 relating to the “position of the sub-committee looking at the Muir Homes
issue/s. ...However, | do have concerns about the Parish Council having non-public meetings,
where | think | am right in saying the minutes are not available to be seen by any member of
the public and am not sure how this fits in with what is happening.” | received the attached
reply from Cilr Partridge (see appendix L), but 1 do not know if the content is accurate in

view of the advice given to me by CHALC (Cheshire Association of Local Councils).

No need to comment, other than please asking you to note that the guidance on the code of

conduct, etc was only submitted to councillors on 4 December 2011.

Clir Partridge states that, at my request “matters relating to the Muir land were included in
the agenda of the 13" December 2011 meeting”. Can | please refer you to the second
paragraph of section 12 of my evidence where | explain the sequence of events as they

happened, rather than as Cllr Partridge presents them here.

Clir Partridge makes a distinct reversal of events in the presentation of her evidence when
she states that “Clir Waits proposed that the Parish Council open up their previous decision
relating to planning application 11/2423N to allow the Wyche Lane Councillors to
contribute, this was seconded and councillors voted to rediscuss the matter”. Although this
was my ultimate aim, | did not expect to be offered the opportunity to discuss it at that
meeting. It was Clir Partridge who said to me “do you wish to re-discuss the matter now” to
which |, quite incorrectly, agreed, due to my surprise at the willingness of the others to
discuss it. This does not get beyond the fact that we were all out of order to discuss, or even
re-discuss, a planning application without it appearing on the agenda, thus precluding the

public from participating. | have to admit that | was wrong in this, but so were all councillors
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present, including the Chair for suggesting it and the parish clerk for not raising a point of

order. So | am not alone in my error.

17 | was not living in the village when the original application for affordable housing was made.
| have already made it clear that | recognise and support the provision of affordable housing
and am not against those proposed in Wyche Lane. However, | do know that Clir Partridge is
wrong on at least two counts in this paragraph. More implications and hearsay rather that

facts.

18 if Clir Partridge believed that the Wyche Lane councillors should declare an interest in all
Muir issues, why, as chairman, did she not raise it with those councillors? | remind you that |,

not the Chairman, was the person who raised this issue initially.
Comments Relating to Councillor Waits

1 Clir Partridge is correct in her outline of my career and my co-option onto the Bunbury

Parish Council in 2010.

2 My response to the points raised on emails attached by Clir Partridge:

- in my email of 18 November 2011 | did say that | and other councillors “could be
deemed to be affected by” the development of the strip of land behind the proposed
Muir development. It is evident from the tone of this email that | was still unclear about
the need, or otherwise, to declare an interest in various aspects of the Muir issues.

- What James writes and does is for James to decide and | regard this as inadmissible
evidence. | accept that | did post one, or possibly 2, letters for him when we were out
together walking our dogs to the village. | explained my actions to Clir Partridge in an
email dated 6 October 2011 which is attached (appendix M). | do not see it as unusual
behaviour to help a friend or partner in delivering letters, whatever the content. Please
see attached email of 7 October 2011 (appendix L) regarding James helping me to
deliver leaflets for the Playing Fields Committee, of which | was a member, but he was
not, as proof of our normal behaviour towards each other.

- Clir Partridge is correct regarding Julie Openshaw’s advice. What she does not say is that
1 was not sent a copy until 26 September 2011 despite the fact that it was with the
Parish Clerk in December of the previous year. Her comment about “one councitlor
(declaring a personal interest) and participate at virtually every meeting” is not correct

as Clir McCormack, to whom | assume she is referring, declares a personal and

10
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prejudicial interest and withdraws from the chamber regularly without participating. He
very rarely participates on Muir issues, so her comment is a total exaggeration, at best.
Clir Partridge accuses me of “incorrectly states that Clir McCormack has been prevented
making statements”. | can see no evidence of this and would request advice as to when |
made such a statement.

I can only assume that the emails | am accused of sending which “display a lack of
respect for other councillors and suggesting they resign” refers to one email {not
several) dated 18 October 2011 sent by me to Mrs Stubbs and copied to all councillors
(attached at appendix O). It is evident from this email that | was upset at the time and
will explain why shortly. | do not see that | display a lack of respect for my fellow
councillors by suggesting that those who have served for many years could step away
and give others a chance. One of the longest serving councillors recently told me that he
had believed for a long time that the term for a parish councillor should be limited to,
say, 5 years. Some of ours have been councillors for decades, and served admirably |
might add, but the future of the village is in the younger residents and | feel it is a pity
that the PC doesn’t reflect this.

The reason for my upset was the attached email from Clir Parker to Borough Councillor
Michael Jones dated 30 September 2011 attached at appendix Q in which Clir Parker
makes a number of disrespectful and unfounded attacks against me and Clir Ellis, even
referring to Putin at one point and very paranoid in its tone. | was so disappointed at this
point, | was close to resigning. | privately raised this behaviour with Clir Partridge who
appears not to have seen fit to take any action. | had previously raised concerns about
Clir Dykes’ outrageous behaviour with Clir Partridge on several occasions and she had
responded by saying “it was his way”. | find it very disappointing that Clirs Parker and
Dykes’ behaviours are ignored and mine is complained about in this formal manner.
There seems to be one rule for part of the PC and another rule for the other part.

| have asked Clir Burrows, who resigned in December, if my reputedly offensive email
was at all instrumental in his departure and he stated very strongly that it was not, but
mostly due to harassment from Clir Dykes, which Clir Partridge is aware of but, to my
knowledge, chose to do nothing about. No other councillors have ever complained to
me about the content of my email. It wouid appear that only Clir Partridge has taken
offence and | wrote to her (appendix Q) when she raised the matter with me so that |
could correct her misinterpretation of my statements and clarify that “i would be happy

to apologise if | could see anything to apologise for and am sorry that you feel that way”.

11
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- Clir Partridge refers to my “bullying emails” to the clerk. | can only assume that she is
referring to my one email of 18 October 2011 (appendix O) in which | state that { am
sorry to see Mrs Stubbs go in many respects and wish her well. l also recognise the
difficulty and importance of her task. if there are any builying emails to Mrs Stubbs, |
would be grateful to be pointed to the evidence.

- The elements of this paragraph which are not Clir Partridge’s defence of Clir Dykes refer
to my email of 22 December 2011 to Mrs Stubbs and copied to fellow councillors and
Clir Michael Jones in which | advise that a complaint has been raised against me. The
letter from CEC | refer to was NOT marked confidential and | was therefore at liberty to
share the topic with anyone ! chose. With regard to seeking to influence the decisions of
other councillors, | would be the first person to accept that everyone has a right to their
opinions and that those opinions should be respected. | don’t believe Clir Partridge has
any evidence on this point. | see sharing thoughts and facts on items as a sensible way to
behave within the PC.

- idon’t understand what Clir Partridge is getting at in this paragraph.

- I must admit that | made a naive mistake in seeking to encourage common sense in the
rehousing of a Bunbury resident from a 3 to a 2-bedroomed house, so that she could
have a smaller home and a larger one would be avaifable for a family. | wrote a letter as
a favour and | see now that this could be seen by others to be wrong. | was therefore at
fault, for which | apologise.

- Iam not clear if | should declare an interest when James’ correspondence is discussed. |
usually refrain from making any comment, as | believe this is the appropriate action to
take. With hindsight, | believe 1 should have done so and intend to in future.

James Waiton’s Role

i don’t believe | am involved in this process in order to comment on James’ actions. However

he is accused by Clir Partridge of having access to my documents, her proof being that he

has not formally requested a copy of the Standing Orders but quotes from them. First, 1 am
not aware that these are secret documents that cannot be shared with parishioners. What

Clir Partridge does not, and cannot, know is that James would never access any document of

mine without asking and | would not share it with him unless it was an item that | believed

could and should be available to any member of the parish on request. All my computer files
and emails are password protected and | do not share those passwords with anyone. The

implication of her innuendo is that | feed him information and that | lie about it. | can assure

12
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you that | do not. | find this implication highly offensive from both my perspective and
James’.

Clir Partridge suggests a collective campaign between me, James and Clir McCormack. |
strongly refute such an idea. | have no intention of commenting on the other points she
makes.

| see no evidence for this statement.

Alleged breaches of the Codes of Conduct:

3 (1) “reat others with respect’ | do not believe that Clir Partridge’s evidence has proved me
guilty of this breach, whilst sadly feeling that some other councillors have not afforded me
the respect that should have been forthcoming. Fortunately, several other councillors, past
and present, are very helpful and supportive colleagues to me.

3{2) (b) ‘bullying’ No evidence has been presented by Clir Partridge to support this
accusation which | refute strongly.

3 (2) (d) ‘likely to compromise the impartiality of those who work for your authority’ Again,
no evidence has been presented by Clir Partridge to support this accusation. | have never
sought to intimidate Mrs Stubbs in her duties, nor undermine her neutrality.

Potentially 4 (a) ‘disclosure of confidential information’ Clir Partridge has presented no
evidence of me having disclosed any confidential information to anyone and | deny strongly
having done so. No information that | have received from the Parish council has been
marked as private and confidential, so | am at a loss to know to what she is referring.

7 (1) (a) and (b) ‘you must have regard to any relevant advice provided by your authority’s
chief finance officer and your authority’s monitoring officer’ 1am guilty of ignoring the
advice given in Julie Openshaw’s email of 22 November 2010, although ! did not receive a
full copy of this until 26 September 2011. However, | believe she was inaccurately briefed by
Mrs Stubbs as | have stated in my earlier evidence. Neither was | an owner of any property in
Bunbury at the time and Ms Openshaw’s decision does make the assumption that | was.

I accept that the whole issue of the need to declare an interest or otherwise is a difficult one
and requires further simplification.

9 (1) ‘disclosure of personal interests’ and Potentially 12 (1) and 12 (2} Disclosure of

personal interests ‘effect of prejudicial interests on participation’
As | have stated previously, | was the first councillor to raise the need or otherwise of

declaring an interest in the various matters relating to Muir GHA. This former Clirs Burrows,

Beard, Ellis and | did from December 2010 until December 2011. Despite various attempts to

i3
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clarify matters on the need or otherwise to declare an interest, personal and/or prejudicial,
and whether or not you could make representations, ask questions and give evidence before
leaving the chamber, | was then, and continue to be, uncertain about what is required of
Councillors, due to the differing content of advice available from the Monitoring Officer, the

Bunbury Parish Council Code of Conduct and Bunbury PC Standing Orders.
Response to breach of clauses 12 (c} and 12(a) of the Code of Conduct

{ have already explained in earlier evidence that | did not write James Walton’s letter to residents
and admitted that | did push 1 or 2 { I'm afraid | genuinely can’t remember exactly how many)
through letterboxes for him. No malice or support was intended when | did this. It was just a normal
act of behaviour on my part. | don’t think this makes me responsible for what James wrote, or
implies that | have any responsibility in this regard. He will do what he believes to be right and Clir
Partridge clearly believes is wrong. 'm afraid that Clir Partridge seeks to present me as some sort of
demon, rushing round the village, spreading malicious gossip. Anyone who knows me will know that

nothing could be further from the truth.

As to the meeting at CEC offices that | attended as a Bunbury resident | have already touched on this
under item 7 on my page 4. Appendix B encloses both my email to Clir Partridge and the minutes in
question which | believe sets out my position as | saw it. My only intention here was to be helpful
and try to move this whole Muir logjam forward in whatever way I could. I was there as little more
than a note taker, but did make my position clear, with a view to it not being misinterpreted.

Unfortunately, in this | appear to have failed in Clir Partridge’s eyes.
Summary

My view of this hugely expensive exercise is that Clir Partridge has taken extreme and damaging
measures to resolve issues that could, perhaps, have been sorted out by face to face conversations
with the councillors concerned. She never tried this approach with me. | cannot speak for the other
councillors. As with all groups of people, we all view matters differently and believe we have the
perfect solution — which will often be different to the person’s sitting next to us. Often no-one is
wrong or right, just has an alternative point of view. | freely admit that | have made mistakes from
time to time, often out of naivety, which I regret and apologise for. However, | believe that | have
acted at all times in the interests of the people of Bunbury and of justice, rather than those of me or

any fellow councillors. Are not all councillors duty bound to disclose information to those people

who are entitied to see it?

14
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i am open, honest and a little direct in my approach, but | do have the interests of the village and all

its residents at heart.

Please believe that i drafted my resignation from the PC some months ago and it would have been
easier to go through with this than to stop on. However, this is what has happened with many parish
councillors, including younger and very able contributors, who have been driven away from the PC
by the behaviour of a very small number of long-serving councillors who seem to be able to
dominate and rule proceedings. | have therefore stayed on the PC because of my belief in the need
for a democratic PC that villagers can respect and believe in. Whether | can continue to work in the

face of such pressure and aggression remains to be seen.

| cannot help feeling that 1 am being attacked in this way, in part, because my partner, James
Walton, is perceived by Clir Partridge as a thorn in her side. | hope that you and the members of the

committee will agree that this is an unacceptable way to behave.
Conclusion

| face the complaints raised against me with a great sense of sadness, in that my sole aim to help the
village by joining the Parish Council has come to this. lam not a foolish woman. | had the benefit of a
good education and held down challenging and meaningful jobs in the NHS for 27 years, before
setting up my own business. | came to Bunbury to retire and hopefully make myself useful to my
community and am bitterly disappointed with where | appear to have arrived. | can only put my trust

in you, my investigating officer and the members of the committee to do the right thing.
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Subject: Private and confidential
From: jill waits (iillwaits@yahoo.co.uk)
To: ep.partridges@btinternet.com;

Date: Monday, 31 October 2011, 12:33

Dear Erica,

I'm sad that we have had a terse exchange of emails between us and, as a result, have decided to
email just you in confidence. When I read what you have written to me I wonder if T am in touch
with the same person I spoke to some months ago on the phone about my thoughts and frustrations
with the parish council.

Since becoming a parish councillor in May last year I have attended PC meetings, where, as you
know, I find the behaviour of some of my fellow councillors very unprofessional and, in relation to
Brian Dykes' behaviour towards you and other councillors quite unacceptable. I recall you saying
that it was Brian's way and you would just carry on regardless. Clearly you are content to put up with
this. If T were you, I would not be, but I have to acknowledge that we are all different.

I know that you are aware of the content of an email written by Nick Parker about me and Dave Ellis
to Michael Jones is scathing and, in my view, unjustified terms. I can't complain formally about this
as it would put Michael in a very difficult position and I am not prepared to do that. You will
therefore appreciate, I hope, that I am not in a position to take this matter any further. However, it
does show how divided some councillors are and unprofessional in writing in such a way to a CEC
coucillor.

In the circumstances I can only suggest we put this matter to one side. I believe there are some
important things to do for the village in relation to the village plan and hope that we can work
together effectively on this in the near future.

Regards,

Jill

From: Partridges <ep.partridges@btinternet.com>

To: jill waits <jillwaits@yahoo.co.uk>

Cc: Brian Dykes <brian.dykes@cheshireeast.gov.uk>; Alex Stubbs <bunburyclerk@aol.com>; David Ellis
<dellis7@tiscali.co.uk>; Gary McCormack <GMC@CSQ42.com>; Eric Lord <ericlord2@hotmail.com>; Mandy Jones
<mandyjones21@btinternet.com>; Nick Parker <nick.parker@homecall.co.uk>; Sally Beard <sallypbeard@fsmail.net>
Sent: Wednesday, 26 October 2011, 18:56

Subject: Re: Fwd: Gary McCormack Muir

Dear Jilt
t am disappointed with your reply.

i you wish o make a complaint against a Parish Councilior you should contact Alex to take appropriate action.

Your third paragraph continues to be disrespectful whether intended or not. The Parish Council needs a mix of

ggeséexperiencelresidency and as Councillors resign over a period of time for whatever reason they are replaced by new
ood.

Regards
Erica

- Qriginal Message -—--
From: jill waits
To: Partridges

Cc: Brian Dykes ; Alex Stubbs ; David Ellis ; Gary McCormack ; Eric Lord ; Mandy Jones ; Nick Parker ;
Sally Beard '

http://uk.mg40.mail.yahoo.com/neo/launch?.rand=4r7i20puvcu8q 22/02/2012
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Soné: Woednoaday, October 26, 2011 5:43 PM
Subject: Re: Fwd: Gary McCormack Muir

Dear Erica,
I'm sorry to hear you have been unwell.

I am sure, like me, you are disappointed to hear about unprofessional behaviour from one parish
councillor towards another. Information has been passed on to me, and, I believe, to you, regarding
an email that was written by a parish councillor regarding me, in what can only be seen as
unfounded and inciteful terms. As I have said already, I presume that councillor knows about
whom I write. Unfortunately the email was written about me, not to me, and I therefore feel unable
to let you have a copy without implicating others. I regard this as divisive behaviour by a fellow
parish councillor and I don't believe you are in a position to tell me otherwise. You write to me as if
1 had started something, when I see myself as the brunt, and then demand an apology. Am 1
missing something here?

As to your point about my comments being disrespectful to other parish councillors, I find this an
interesting interpretation of what I said. The purpose of writing this was to suggest

that several councillors have been in their positions for many years and maybe this was a good time
to seck new and younger input as the young parishoners, like Mandy, are the future of the village.
No disrespect was intended and I fail to see how you can think there was.

1 am afraid I don't understand why you comment on the removal of the fencing in the next
paragraph.

I did not say that I am unbappy being a parish councillor. I said that Bunbury PC was not a happy
place to be at present. Maybe you feel otherwise, but please don't twist what I say. I am not seeking
to "spread discontent" as you put it, just to be honest about how I feel. If fellow parish councillors
are unhappy with me doing that, then I am sorry they feel that way, but no-one has implied that to
me.

Like you, I just want to get on with the business of the PC. I would be happy to apologise if T could
see anything to apologise for and am sorry that you feel that way.

Regards,
Jill

hitp://uk.mg40.mail.yahoo.com/neoflaunch?.rand=4r7i20puvcu8q 22/02/2012



Fang Page 201 ﬁ , “:&jxu B

Subjeet:  VooUNg WIth WIKGMA, CEG MIanning, Mousing and MIChae: Jones
From: jill waits (jitwaits@yaho.co.uk)

To! ep.partridges@btinternet.com;

Date: Wednesday, 31 August 2011, 10:54

Dear Erica,

Hope all is well with you.

I'm sure you know that James has been active in trying to get the recent variation and removal of
planning conditions that MGHA are seeking stopped. Much has happened, and on Friday last week
Michael Jones facilitated the above meeting with Muir and CEC and James. David Ellis had hoped
to attend, but was unavailable, so I went along, making it clear that although I was a Parish
Councillor, I was attending the meeting as a resident and not a representative of the BPC.

I am attaching our notes of the meeting for your information. The ultimate outcome was that Steve
Trvine of the CEC Planning Department offered to facilitate and attend a meeting between

MGHA and Gary McCormack with a view to seeing if there was an acceptable way forward in all
this. I don't know when this is to be.

1 hope my attendance at the meeting does not give the Parish Council any cause for concern. 1 don't
believe it should, or I wouldn't have gone.

I'm not sending you these with a view to receiving any comment from you, but just to keep you
informed.

Regards,

Jill

http:/fuk.mg40.mail.yahoo.com/neo/launch?.rand=f8i4koinv5rso 16/02/2012
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Notes from a meeting with Muir Homes Housing Group and Cheshire East Council Officers 26
August 2011 at Westfields, Sandbach.

Present: Steve Irvine — CEC Planning, Vikki Jeffrey ~ CEC Housing, Michael Jones ~ CEC Councillor,
Tony Robinson — MGHA, Jill Waits and James Walton — Bunbury residents.

Clir Michael Jones organised and facilitated a meeting at CEC, Westfields to enable serious issues
regarding variation 11/2423N, to be aired between MGHA , CEC Planning, James Walton and Jill
Waits. James Walton thanked both Clir Michael Jones and Stephen O’Brian MP for their support in
this issue and their categorical statements regarding their view that Wyche Lane cannot support any
further development past that already planned.

Ciir Jones briefly highlighted the difficulties perceived by many residents in Wyche Lane and beyond
regarding the proposed variation to condition 2 and removal of condition 17 requested by MGHA for
the proposed development of affordable housing on Wyche Lane, Bunbury. The purpose of the
meeting was to air these concerns and see if there was a way forward.

Mr Walton explained that he and Mrs Waits did not formally represent parishioners but were
present to voice their own concerns regarding the current variation and removal of planning
conditions by MGHA. He said that the majority of residents in Wyche Lane feel that the Parish
Council and the Borough Council are, rightly or wrongly, dancing to the tune set by Muir
Group and that for some reason he appeared to have become their standard bearer on
opposing the current planning application variation and removal. Therefore, their main
focus and desirable outcome from the meeting and subsequently the full planning
committee is that the track through the optional land remains a track of about 3m for
agricultural use only.

- Mr. Robinson was pressed by Mr. Walton regarding when he knew that MGHA had obligations under
the TP1 agreement, originally signed in July 2005. Mr. Robinson eventually agreed that he had

7‘ known about MGHA obligations since the signing of the TP1. Despite this knowledge, MGHA had

 ; pursued the development as outlined in permission 07/ 0867 through all its procedures and
‘processes, on the assumption (Mr. Robinson’s words) that they could sort it out later with the TP1
landowner.

Mr Walton pointed out that errors, omissions and inaccuracies by MGHA had lead to many villagers
feeling very uncertain about MGHA and their behaviour. What might appear to be unfortunate
mistakes and poor timing could and were being perceived by villagers as smoke and mirrors tactics
by MGHA, including the current planning application variations, which are seen by many as a
reflection of MGHA's ongoing erosion of safeguards that residents had been given in 2007 at a public
meeting. These had been further supported by the report of the Inspector of Ptanning, MrsKA
Ellison. He quoted paragraph 22 of the Inspector’s report following the enquiry held on 4 & 5 April
2006 “In the circumstances, | consider that they would be highly likely to expose this land to
considerable developer interest, making further erosion of the gap more difficult to resist”.

Mr Robinson was asked why MGHA wanted to continue to have an option to build on the field at the
rear of the proposed development and the strip. Mr Robinson confirmed that Muir had no intention
of building more than the 10 houses currently approved. With this in mind, he agreed to explore the

1
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rescinding of Muir’s option. (After the meeting he advised Clir Jones, Mr Waiton and Mrs Waits that
based on the legal advice just received the rescinding of the option to buy the field at the rear was
not possible.)

Clir Jones warned that if the current difficulties between the parties involved could not be resolved,
it may go to judicial review, with substantial cost all round.

When questioned further by Mr Walton, Mr Robinson agreed that it had been Muir’s error to
commit to putting in the stipulated access road to the rear field. However the new and current
owner of the field wanted something different from the previous owners. Mr Robinson confirmed
that Muir’s original plan was for 20 houses on the site, but this had not been well investigated and
the proposal was quickly reduced to 10.

Mr Walton asked for details of the financing of the proposed scheme in relation to the use of public
monies and the responsibility of CEC with regard to their duty of care regarding public funds. Ms
Jeffrey said she believed approximately £140,000 {50%) had been allocated in March 2011 from the
Homes and Community Agency, plus a commuted sum from the Council of around £100,000. it was
confirmed that the total cost of the scheme is expected to be £1.1m and that if the development
cannot proceed MGHA will have to repay all the money allocated.

Mr Walton had referred to the strip at the rear of the proposed development as a ransom strip, but
Mr Robinson pointed out that this cannot be regarded as a ransom strip. Mr. Robinson agreed that
at the July 2007 public meeting he offered the retained land (Ransom Strip) to the PCas a PR
offering. This strip of land now has no useful purpose, due to the requested roadway to run through
it. If MGHA did not meet its contractual commitments with Mr McCormack by putting ina 4.5m
road, an injunction could come from Mr McCormack enforcing this.

Mr Walton pointed out the ridiculousness of the proposed roadway at 4.5m, particularly as Wyche
Lane was only 3.2m wide in places but was able to accommodate delivery tankers, combine
harvesters, etc. He suggested that a 3m road would look less out of place and should be limited to
agricuitural use and the use of the Parish Council, their servants and others authorised by the Parish
Council.

Clir Jones asked Mr Irvine for his view from a planning perspective who said that from appearances it
looked simple and straightforward. He said the Council was just likely to look at it as a track and not
consider future possible developments, as this is what they are charged to do. On this basis they
would be likely to approve the variation and removal of the conditions. He also confirmed that 4.5m
plus drainage is the minimum standard expected by the Council.

Numerous references were made by Mr Walton and Mr Irvine to the Planning Inspector’s report,
particularly in relation to her concerns about the unacceptability of the original planning application
for the MGHA development. Mr Irvine quoted from the enquiry in relation to the roadway “it must
protect the amenity of neighbouring occupiers”. He confirmed that a short road built to adoptable
standards, off a private courtyard which was not build to adoptable standards, would be unlikely to
be adopted. Mr. Robinson asked if a roadway of a private drive could ever be adopted, and Mr frvine
thought it could not be adopted.
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in conclusion, Clir Jones said that MGHA rescinding their option to buy the rear land would reassure
residents about Muir’s objectives.

Mrs Waits wished to report that, although she is a Parish Councillor for Bunbury, she was there
today as a member of the public and not as a Parish Councilior.

Ms. Jeffrey agreed to send details of the selection criteria for the proposed houses to Clir Jones.

in response to a question Mr Robinson explained briefly the difficulties of mortgages for shared
owners, which were discouraging shared ownership generally.

With regard to paragraph 6 of MGHA's letter of 23 August 2011 to CEC, Clir Jones asked if the
changes proposed by MGHA will satisfy the TP1 in full. Mr Robinson confirmed that they would. He
also confirmed that in normal circumstances a Section 73 application would go to the Parish Council
before going to the Borough Council, but admitted that on this occasion it had not. Mrs. Waits
pointed out that it was this kind of error that lead parishioners to feel very uncertain about the
actions of MGHA, particularly when the fast public interface between MGHA and the public had
been in 2007. She believed that parishioners will have left the meeting feeling reassured about the
unlikelihood of further development of the field behind the proposed development in Wyche Lane.

Cilr Jones summarised the meeting by highlighting the lack of trust by some parishioners in MGHA
and CEC to a degree. The applications made by MGHA could be turned down and Clir. Jones asked
Mr. Robinson to consider the effect this might have on MGHA.

Mr irvine agreed to offer to be a mediator between MGHA and Mr McCormack at a “without
prejudice” meeting to see if a compromise could be found.

Following discussion it was agreed that a public meeting, after the proposed meeting with Mr
McCormack, would be called.

Mr Walton agreed to send Clir. Jones Mr. McCormack’s telephone number.

In response to various criticisms of earlier planning difficulties, Mr Irvine said that a new process of
pre-application items is being introduced in CEC from October which he hoped would improve
matters and smooth the way to a better planning process.

Mr. Irvine asked if a delay in the consideration of 11/2423N by CEC would be helpful. Councillor
Jones and Mr Walton agreed to respond to this point.

Mr Robinson agreed to let Clir Jones have a schedule of meetings held between MGHA and Mr
McCormack.
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Subject: Fw: Members' interests query
From: Bunbury Parish (Bunburyclerk@aol.com)

mandyjones21@btinternet.com; b.dykes@btinternet.com; GMC@CSQ42.com; ep.pariridges@btinternet.com;
To: dellis7@tiscali.co.uk; jillwaits@yahoo.co.uk; nick.parker@homecail.co.uk; ericlord2@hotmail.com; sallypbeard@fsmail.net;
dennis.burrows@btopenworld.com;

Date: Monday, 26 September 2011, 11:30

Dear All

There seems to have been various queries about declaring personat and prejudicial interests regarding the Wyche Lane
to be sold to the PC and there does seem to be some confusion. Please find below the letter received from Julie
Openshaw {Deputy Monitoring Officer for CE) dated November 22nd 2010. Please also find attached a copy of Bunbuty
Parish Council's Code of Conduct.

We discussed the letter at our December 2010 meeting and following that discussion various members of the PC
declared personal and prejudicial interests. Please take the time to revisit the letter. If you believe that your
circumstances have changed then please do let me know.

Regards
Alex

- Qriginal Message ---—

From: OPENSHAW, Julie

To: 'bunburyclerk@aol.com’

Sent: Monday, November 22, 2010 3:38 PM
Subject: Members' Interests query

Good afternoon Alex

Further to our telephone conversation eariier, | understand that you and some of your members seek advice on what if
any interests they need to declare in relation to a plot of land which has been offered for sale to Bunbury Parish Council. |
will refer to this as the "for sale land".

You explained that the for sale land abuts a second strip of land which has planning permission for deveiopment, and it is
the developer that has offered the for sale land to the Parish Councit.

You also explained that one member (A), who owns a third strip of land which abuts the other side of the "for sale” land
has already declared a personal and prejucidial interest and has absented himelf from any consideration of whether the
tand should be purchased, but three other members are potentially affected because of the positioning of their gardens.
"B" has a garden abutting the “for sale” land, "C" has a garden abutting the land owned by the coungcillor who has already
declared and interest, and “D" has a garden which allows a view of where the development would be, Each of them owns
their home and has registered it as such in the register of interests,

My view is that due to their proximity fo the for sale land, and the possible effect arising from that on the values, or
desirability, of their homes, B C and D all have personal interests in the decision whether the Parish Council should
purchase the land, because a decision on whether or not the PC should buy it could reasonably be regarded as affecting
their well-being or financial positions to a greater extent than the majority of council tax payers ratepayers or inhabitants of
the locality.

Unless they can raise some other consideration which might merit further consideration (I haven't seen a plan), they
appear to have a prejudicial interest as well, because of the same considerations in tems of proximity and effect on
financial position, which suggest that the proper conclusion is that "a member of the public with knowledge of the retevant
facts would reasonably regard [the interest] as so significant that it is fikely to prejudice your judgment of the public
interest".

| gather there are 10 members of the Council, with a quorum of 4, so unless other members have prejudicial interests to
declare for some other reason, you should be quorate to make the decision. If circumstances arise where interests are
such that getting a quorum would be impossible, the Borough Council's Standards Committee does have power to
consider, and if appropriate, grant, applications for dispensations to allow members to speak and vote where they have a
prejudicial interest, but only where either more than 50% of members who would be entitled to vote being prohibited from
doing so, or where the number of members that are prohibited from voting would upset the political balance of the meeting
to the extent that the outcome of voting would be prejudiced. As these situations are relatively rare, so are applications for

http://uk.mg40.mail.yahoo.com/neo/launch 21/02/2012



PNt -
Page 206 C 4

dispeneations. It dose not sound as though the first eriterion would be met: without knowing the political persuasion of the

members involved, and the remainder, it's unclear if the second would apply, but you might want to consider that.

| hope this assists.
Kind regards

Julle Openshaw

Legal Team Manager (Places, Regulatory and Compliance) (Deputy Monitoring Officer)
Cheshire East Borough Council

Westfields

Middlewich Road

Sandbach

CwW11 51HZ

01270 685846)

**********************************#**********%*****************k********

Note: This E-Mail is intended for the addressee only and may include
confidential information.

Unauthorised recipients are reguested to please advise the sender immediately
by telephone and then delete the message without copying or storing it or
disclosing its contents to any other person.

We have taken all reasonablée precautions to ensure that no viruses are
transmitted from the Authority to any thizxd party. Copyright in this
e-mail and attachments created by us unless stated to the contrary belongs to the Council.

Any liability (in negligence or otherwise) arising from any party acting,
or refraining from acting on any information contained in this e mail is
hereby excluded.

Should you communicate with anyone at the Council by e-mail,
you consent to us monitoring and reading any such correspondence.

Printing this email? Please think environmentally and only print when essential!
**************************&*********&***********************************

http:/fuk.mg40.mail.yahoo.com/neo/launch 21/02/2012
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Sublost:  Mo: Openohaw letter Fwvi Mombora! Interssts Juery

From: it walts iflwaits@yahco.co.uk)
To: sellypbeard@fsmail.net;
Ce: b.dykes@btintamet.com; Bunburycierk@aol.com; dellis7@uscali.co.uk; dennis.k @btof rid.com; ericlord2@hotmail.com; ep.partidges@btintemetcom;

GMC@C8Q42.com; mandyjones2i@btinlemet.com; nick parker@homecall.co.uk;
Date: Tuesday, 18 October 2011, 9:40

Hi Sally,

Many thanks for your email below and letting me know what you recall as I wasn't af the December 2010 meeting.

1 note what you say about Alex circulating the Julie Openshaw email in September 2011. However, it seems to have been important enough to
have been discussed before/or at the beginning of the December meeting, but not to be minuted or circulated then, which Isee as a mistake, I
presume on Alex's part. Why should those who were there be party to information about anything, and those who were not there excluded
from that information? This seems particularly wrong when the 3 people who could not attend the meeting were significantly affected by the
contents of Julie Openshaw's email. Whatever the subject I can’t see how this can be regarded as a correct way behave I'm afraid. I see
Alex's job as keeping us all equally informed about anything that is the business of the PC and it seems that on this point she failed to do that.
1 don't see it as the responsibility of fellow members to keep those not present informed of what happens.

As to your comments on declaring an interest, I have to admit that | was the person who raised this in the first place when I was a new
member and anxious, as | hope I continue to be, to do the right thing. I now believe that it was not necessary for the 4 of us from Wyche Lane
(but not always Gary) to exclude ourselves from all discussions on all matters relating to Muir Homes and the land behind the development. I
think there has been either inaccurate advice from Julie Openshaw, inadequate or incorrect briefing to her, or an incorrect interpretation of the
information she gave (which was inaccurate itself in part when one has a proper understanding of the geography of the area and individual
ownerships) which has lead to half the PC not being party to a number of decisions that 4 or 5 members should not have been excluded from.
So, I agree with you that we should have been party to more decisions that we have regarding all or part of the Muir issues.

1 am grateful to you for coming forward with information and your views on the matter and look forward to hearing from other councillors.
Regards,

3l

From: Sally Beard <sallypbeard@fsmail.net>

To: Jill Waits <jillwaits@yahoo.co.uk>

Ce: Brian Dykes <b.dykes@btintenet.com>; Bunbury Parish <Bunburyclerk@aot.com>; Dave Eilis <dellis7@tiscall.co.uk>; Dennis Burrows
<dennis.busrows@btopenworid.com>; Eric Lord <ericlord2@notmail.com>; Erica Partridge <ep.partridges@blinternet.com>; GMC <CGMC@CSQ42.com>; Mandy Jones
<mandyjonesz1@btintemet.com>; Nick Parker <nick parker@homecall.co.uk>; Sally Beard <sallypbeard@fsmail net>

Sent: Monday, 17 October 2011, 21:21

Subject: Openshaw fetler Fw: Members' interests query

Hello Jill,

1 remember seeing this letter and have just checked my emails, so for your info please see below. Alex sent out an email on the 26 Sep to all
Parish Councillors which if you scroll down does include the letter from Julie Openshaw.

You can also see who all the recipients were.

I have not passed this onto anyone except yourselves in this email. I was at the December 2010 meeting where the letter and its
recommendations were discussed and from this I did declare 'an interest' as it seemed that I needed to. I, then along with the others on Wyche
Lane have subsequently declared 'an interest’ at meetings ever since. I am now uncertain as to whether we should have?

Kind regards
Sally

hitp://uk.mg40.mail.yahoo.com/neo/launch?.rand=9gig3hke5ilm2 24/02/2012



James Waiton
Edinbane Cottage,
Wyche Lane
Bunbury

Cheshire

CW6 9PS

Your ref:

Dear Mr. Walton

RE: PROPOSED VA
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Qur ref: 11/2423N

HTPENRIX (&

Cheshire East ).
: Council#”

PLANNING AND POLICY

TOWN HALL, MACCLESFIELD,
CHESHIRE, SK10 1DP

E- MAIL: Planning@cheshireeast.gov.uk

TEL: 01270 537502
FAX: 01270 537496

DATE: 13™ OCTOBER 2011

RIATION OF CONDITIONS AT WYCHE LANE

Thank you for your letter dated 17" August 2011, | am sorry for the delay in

my response,

As | explained in my letter of 18™ August 2011, the Town and Couniry
Planning (Development Management) Procedtire Order, requires Local

All other enquiries 0300 123 5500

Planning Authorities to elther post a notice on the site or to write to properties
which share a boundary with the site. In this case we have written to adjoining
properties and placed a notice on the site. You were not contacted directly by
letter initially because your property does not share a boundary with the
application site.

| then wrote again on 12 August 2011 to those on the initial consultation list
to advise them that application 11/2575N had been withdrawn and that the
description of development in respect of application 11/2423N had been
amended slightly. For this reason the letter dated 12" August 2011 states that
“I recently wrote to you". However, | asked our support team to extend the
circulation of this letter to those who had not been directly consulted originally
but who had subsequently made representations on the applications, which
included yourself.

I acknowledge that we should have removed the phrase | recently wrote to
you” from the letters to individuals who were not recipients of the original letter
and | apologise for this and any confusion which it may have caused.

| hope that you will have by now received my letter of 18" August 2011, which
| trust answers the questions posed in your letter of 4" August 2011.

| trust that the above is of assistance.

CELHO0L/D2

‘www.cheshireeast.gov.uk-



Yours sincerely

g J
\‘ y.
,}_’»;_J‘l} RO D,

.!- >

Ben Haywood
Principal Planning Officer
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Regards,
Jill

From: BunburyClerk <bunburyclerk@aol.com>

To: sallypbeard@fsmail.net; Eric Lord <griclord2@hotmail.com>; Nick Parker <nick. parker@homecail.co.uk>; Jill Waits
<illwaits@yahoo.co.uk>; David Ellis <dellis7@tiscali.co.uk>; Erica Partridge <ep.partridges@btinternet.com>; Gary McCormack
<GMC@CSQ42.com>; Brian Dykes <b.dykes@btinternet.com>; Mandy Jones <mandyjones21@btinternet.com>

Sent: Sunday, 4 December 2011, 13:37

Subject: Fw: General Advice on Parish Council Member Declarations of Interests

Dear All

Please find below message from Julie Openshaw with helpful links regarding the code of conduct, which
will hopefully clarify whether or not you should declare interests in various matters.

Regards
Alex

- Qriginal Message ——

From: OPENSHAW., Julie

To: 'bunburyclerk@aol.com'

Cc: "ep.pariridges@btintemet.com’ ; ELNOOD Caroline ; MOULSON, Diane
Sent: Wednesday, November 30, 2011 2:51 PM

Subject: General Advice on Parish Council Member Declarations of Interests

Dear Alex

Further to Caroline Elwood’s email to you of 22 November, indicéting amongst other things that we would
reissue some general advice to the Parish Council on Declarations of interest generally, please find
attached three web links.

The first is to the part of Cheshire East’s Council's website showing the Code of Conduct for Members
within the Constitution.

The second is to an explanatory leaflet relating to Personal and Prejudicial Interests published on behalif of
the Standards Committee.

The third is to Standards for England’s booklet to Members explaining the Code, which was issued in May
2007, when the Code was updated.

As Caroline said, in the light of this reminder, it will then be for members of the Parish Council to consider
their individual positions if necessary. As you know, the advice | provided in November 2010 was based on
the circumstances you outlined to me at the time, and was confined to the issue of the offer of land to the
Parish Council; not the later planning application.

hitn://www . cheshireeast.gov.uk/council_and democracy/your_council/constitution.aspx (see pp 357 - 364
for the Code)

The WMode! Code of Conduct - An Explanatory Leaflet Relating to Personal and Prejudicial Interests (PDF, 71KB)

hitp:/wwiw, standardsforengland. gov.uk/Guidance/TheCedeofConduct/Guidance/fitedownload, 16126 .en.pdf
(see Section 3 for interests). -

As regards personal and prejudicial interests, the Code provisions themselves, and their application, will
generally be the same for Parish Councillors as for Borough Counciliors.

I hope this is of assistance.

Kind regards

hitp:/luk.mg40.mail.yahoo.com/neo/launch?.rand=dsemmulindh1o 06/12/2011
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Effect of prejudicial interests on participation

12

(1) Subject to sub-paragraph (2), where you have a prejudicial interest in any business of your
authority--

(@) youmust withdraw from the room or chamber where a meeting considering the business is
being held--

(i) in acase where sub-paragraph (2) applies, immediately after making representations,
answering questions or giving evidence; :

(i) inany other case, whenever it becomes apparent that the business is being considered at
that meeting;

unless you have obtained a dispensation from your authority's standards committee;
(b) you must not exercise executive functions in relation to that business; and

(c) you must not seek improperly to influence a decision about that business.

(2) Where you have a prejudicial interest in any business of your authority, you may attend a
mesting (including a meeting of the overview and scrutiny committee of your authority or of a
sub-committee of such a committee) but only for the purpose of making representations, answering
questions or giving evidence relating to the business, provided that the public are also allowed to
attend the meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise.

Part3

Registration of Members' Interests
Registration of members' interests

13
(1) Subject to paragraph 14, you must, within 28 days of-
(a) this Code being adopted by or applied to your authority; or
(b) your election or appointment to office (where that is later),

register in your authority's register of members' interests (maintained under section 81(1) of the
Local Government Act 2000) details of your personal interests where they fall within a category
mentioned in paragraph 8(1)(a), by providing written notification to your authority's monitoring
officer.

(2) Subject to paragraph 14, you must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any new personal
interest or change to any personal interest registered under paragraph (1), register details of that



Page 212 ﬂPPENAfX 7%_.,

BUNBURY PARISH COUNCIL
STANDING ORDERS - JULY 2010

{fransacted.

d Councillors with a prejudicial interest in refation to any item of business being
transacted at a meeting may (i) make representations, (ii) answer questions and (jii)
give evidence relating to the business being transacted but must, thereafter, leave
the room or chamber.

8. Questions

a A councillor may seek an answer to a question concerning any business of the Council
provided 7 clear days notice of the question has been given to the Proper Officer.

b Questions not related to items of business on the agenda for a meeting shall only be
asked during the part of the meeting set aside for such gquestions.

9. Minutes

a No discussion of the draft minutes of a preceding meeting shali take place except in
relation to their accuracy. A motion to correct an inaccuracy in the minutes shall be raised
in accordance with standing order 5(a)(iv) above.

b Minutes, including any amendment to correct their accuracy, shall be confirmed by
resolution and shall be signed by the Chairman of the meeting and stand as an accurate
record of the meeting to which the minutes relate.

c Upon a resolution which confirms the accuracy of the minutes of a meeting, any previous
draft minutes or recordings of the meeting shall be destroyed.

10.Disorderly conduct

a No person shall obstruct the transaction of business at a meeting or behave offensively or
improperty.

b if, in the opinion of the Chairman, there has been a breach of standing order 10(a) above,
the Chairman shall express that opinion and thereafter any councilior (including the
Chairman) may move that the person be silenced or excluded from the meeting, and the
motion, if seconded, shall be put forthwith and without discussion.

11
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Subject: Extra meeting of Bunbury Parisn Councl - 9th August 2011

From: Bunbury Parish (Bunburyclerk@aol.com)

m jonesi@btconnect.com; mandyjones21@btinternet.com; b.dykes@btinternet.com; GMC@CSQ42.com;
To: ep.partridges@btinternet.com; dellis7@tiscali.co.uk; jillwaits@yahoo.co.uk; nick.parker@homecall.co.uk;
ericlord2@hotmail.com; sallypbeard@fsmail.net; dennis.burrows@btopenworld.com;

Date: Monday, 25 July 2011, 12:38

Dear all

I'm afraid that | shall have to call an extra meeting of Bunbury Parish Council on 9th August 2011 as we have had a
couple of planning applications in. Please find attached agenda. We shall only discuss:

1. Planning application 11/2479N - new farm building at Bunbury Common Lane. | attach the PDF plans for this
building on the same site as two other farm buildings.

2. Planning application 11/2441N - amendments to plans at Long Lane, Spurstow. This is mainly amendments to the
roofline and to windows. | haven't included the plans as they are complex and the {very minor) changes are easier to
see on paper.

3. The LDF process currently taking place at Cheshire East. We briefly discussed this at the last meeting. | have had a
chat with spatial planning. At the moment they are concentrating on the towns in the borough but they are planning a
rural event for September, no details confirmed as yet. They have also promised to send out a ‘Parish Council’ pack of
information which hopefully we will have for the meeting. Finally they want to encourage everybody to fill in the
questionnaire on the website and say we can complete this as a parish council, | have attached a PDF copy for
discussion at the meeting. The deadline for the questionnaire is the end of September. The consultation for the site
aliocations plan is underway at the moment but not due to complete until November 2013 with submission to the
Secretary of State in June 2014 so we do have some time to consider this.

Finally please note that | am on holiday from 30th July until 6th August. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you
require any further information. :

Regards
Alex

http:/fuk.mg40.mail.yahoo.com/neo/iaunch?.rand=fe78mejqgh6bs 21/02/2012
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BUNBURY PARISH COUNCIL

A meeting of the Parish Council, Tuesday 9™ August 2011 at Bunbury Village Hall at 7.20pm.
All Parish Councillors are requested to attend. Please enter the Village Hall via the rear door.

AGENDA
There will be a 10 minute Open Forum where residents are invited to discuss any affairs
affecting the Parish.

1. Apologies for absence
2. Members Declaration of Interests
3. Planning applications
° Applications since last meeting

o 11/2479N ~ New farm building ~ Bunbury Commons Lane
o 11/2441N —~ Amendments at Oaklands, Long Lane

4. Discussion of LDF and questionnaire to be returned to Cheshire East
5. Finance Matters:
o Cheques to be signed
8. Any other business
Alex Stubbs

Clerk to Bunbury Parish Council
25/07/2011
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Subject: Re: Councilior Module Training and queries raised
From: Jilt waits (jillwaits@yaho0.c0.uk)

To: ep.partridges@btinternef.com;

Ce: Bunburyclerk@aol.com,

Date: Monday, 8 August 2011, 12:26

Dear Erica,

Many thanks for your long and informative reply, which does indeed help to clarify matters in my mind.

At the end of your Separation of PFC para - no, | wasn't asking Alex anything on this point thanks.

As to the meeting tomorrow evening on planning applications, | have a point | prefer to raise with you now,
rather than dropping out at the meeting. As | see it, the last public interface that many residents had with Muir
and the Borough and Parish Councils was at the public meeting about the proposed development in Wyche
Lane. Many people will have left the meeting, believing that the ransom strip would protect against any further
development in the vicinity in perpetuity. Now, rightly or wrongly, they may see the current requests for _
amendments to the planning application as a significant change that could affect that security. | was planning
to propose the calling of a public meeting to clear the air on this issue and thought | would feel more
comfortable to share this with you beforehand. | am also conscious that { will need to declare an interest and
withdraw, so timing of such a request might be difficult. Do you have any thoughts please?

Regards, _

- Jilt

- On Sun, 7/8/11, Partridges <ep.partridges@btinternet.com> wrote:

From: Pariridges <ep.partridges@btinternet.com>

Subject: Re: Councillor Module Training and queries raised

To: “jill waits™ <jillwaits@yahoo.co.uk>, "Alex BunburyParish" <Bunburyclerk@aol.com>
Date: Sunday, 7 August, 2011, 13:03

Jill
| am pleased the training was useful which is helpful feedback for other councitlors.

VAT : Alex has looked into this matter and papers on it have been provided at previous Parish Council meetings.
As the Parish Council own the land it is possible for the grant and building works fo be commissioned by the
Parish Council. The issues you raised were discussed and the Parish Council agreed to assist the PFC as far as
possible to save VAT on the project. It was also agreed that until the project is further defined the matter can't be
taken any further. The PFC need to have the risks in mind and not make any assumptions on the outcome at
this stage. If they ask Alex for further copies of the papers on this | am sure she can provide them.

Separation of PFC : as you know the BPC offered to assist the PFC with reviewing the consitution and the
protocols between the two organisations and one matter for discussion would have been potential conflict of
interest and how this has been managed and the status of the conflict. Historically the BPC have taken the view
that the PFC was effectively run as a ‘sub committee’ of the PC and therefore there was no conflict of interest.

| have stated it is important to keep a quorum of Parish Counciliors that are not on the PFC and | have insisted
that | am not on that committee. In the usual course of business there is no conflict of interest as the PFC take
decisions regarding the management of the playing fields under the lease they have. The PFC are trustees of
the charity and are responsible for the running and management of the playing fields so there is separation of
responsibility. The new lease will require the PFC to provide an annual assurance report to the BPC so the PFC
accept responsibility for their decisions, aithough they need consent from the Parish Council for anything fo do
with buildings and interests in land. The Parish Council will protects itself and the village by the right to break the
lease if there is a probiem in the management of the playing fields. The question for potential conflict could arise
where the PFC take a decision on a matter which requires BPC consent/or a funding request and then seek fo
drive a decision through the Parish Council by the PFC members and | do think this is a concern which is why |
raised it as a matter for review. Again it has not been a problem to date as there has not been a disagreement
split on these lines. If such a disagreement should arise then the conflict of interest exclusions could be applied.
As you know the Parish Councillors on the PFC decided that the PC review/assistance was not required and
they would deal with any such matters themseives. The PFC constitution is lodged with the Charities
Commission so any change to it would need to be made by the Trustees and dealt with by an application by
them to the Charities Commission. The correct place to raise a review of the constitution and PFC membership
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is the PEC as it o the trustooe recponeibility. Thoro ie clearly a problom achiaving tha numbear of councillors on
the playing fields committee and maintaining a quorum at the BPC. The BPC as an organisation has no
influence on this, but | would be happy to assist if requested as | am sure would others.

Are you are asking Alex to take advice on whether this is a personal or personal/prejudicial interest which should
be declared at each meeting ?

Muir fand sub committee : this was originally dealt with by the Parish Council on the basis that one councilior had
a personal and prejudicial interest due to a contractual relationship with Muir, which meant he was excluded from
the meetings, and the councillors backing onto the land had a personal interest which meant they could stay in
the meeting but their views are recorded in this context. Following your enquiry as to the status of conflict of
interest of the councillors neighbouring the land, Alex took advice which stated that the neighbouring councillors
had a personal and prejudicial interest and cannot therefore take part in the BPC in relation to these matters. A
sub committee has therefore been formed to deal with this matter and report back fo the Parish Council. Alex
can confirm, but my understanding is that a sub committe is not a public meeting but reports it's decisions to the
BPC which is a public meeting and that is then minuted. This process has been followed. This is exactly the
same as the Standing Orders committee. | am aware that this is causing frustration with the neighbouring
counciliors but they are all effectively members of the public on this point, and if they are asked guestions by
villagers they should inform them of the position and ask the villager to contact Alex with their query.

| hope this clarifies the issues raised from my perspective but Alex may have somethin further to add.

Regards
Erica

- Original Message -—--

From: jill waits

To: Erica Partridge ; Alex BunburyParish

Sent: Thursday, August 04, 2011 11:42 AM

Subject: Councillor Module Training and queries raised

Dear Erica & Alex,

{ had a very good afternoon at the above on 19 July. It was informative, interesting and fairly
relaxed in delivery and | am sure would be helpful to Mandy when she is ready. | seem to have
missed the first modufe somehow, but don't expect to attend everything.

One of the things it did do was enable me to ask about a couple of issues that have been bouncing
about in the back of my mind recently, which | think 1 should share with both of you. lamsure |
need to discuss the Playing Fields issue with Brian too, but thought | would raise it with you first.

This relates to the Playing Fields Committee and the matter of reclaiming (or do | mean not
paying?) VAT for any replacement Pavilion. There seems fo be an assumption at the PFC that the
Parish Council will be willing to pay the bills for the works to achieve this and it seems that this
would have several implications which should perhaps be faced sooner rather than later. If the PC
was willing to do this, Jackie Weaver confirmed that it would have to be responsible for the project,
if not to fall foul of Revenue & Customs and commit an offence under money laundering
regulations. Also the PFC would have to be willing to give up its powers fo the PC for the whole
project.

Not least in all this is the potential confiict of interest for those members of the PC that are also
Trustees of the PFC. | have thought for a while that it is now time to re-write the constitution of the
PFC which is over 20 years oid and perhaps needs re-visiting in the light of the growth of activities,
time gap, changes that have taken place, etc.. | also wonder why so many members of the PC are
required to be members of the PFC and believe that most centres such as this are best run by the
people that use them. | am not clear why the Pavilion shouldn't run independently of the PC, as
with other lessees of the playing fields.

Another reason for considering this separation is that more responsibilities will be taken on by PCs
in the future and members of the PC will inevitably find themselves busier than ever. | worry that
this will result in younger villagers not considering becoming Parish Councillors because they will
believe they don't have the time - but this is yet another problem!

The other concern of mine is the position of the sub-committee looking at the Muir Homes issue/s. |
am striving to be a parishoner here and not a resident of Wyche Lane and close to the
development site. | think | was one of the first people to declare and interest in the development
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and thus be exoluded from some of the discussione about it. Howsver, | do have concerns about
the Parish Council having non-public meetings, where 1 think | am right in saying the minutes are
not available to anyone not attending the meetings. My understanding is that all PC business
should be available to be seen by any member of the public and am not clear how this fits in with
what is happening. Please believe that | ask about this only to be sure that the PC is acting
correctly and not with any personal objective on my part. | also recognise that | am a newish
member and still have much to leam.

| know that both of you work very hard at doing the right things in the right way and for the right
reasons, otherwise | wouldn't want to be a Parish Councilior. | just feel I should raise these points
and look forward to discussing them further.

Regards,
Jilt
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APAENDIX M

From: jill waits

To: Partridges

Sent: Thursday, October 13, 2011 9:21 AM
Subject: Re: letter re housing ?

Dear Erica,

Thanks for your email. It may well clarify matters that if my memory serves me right T recall 1
delivered 2 letters for James in total.

Regards,

Jill

From: Partridges <ep.partridges@btinternet.com>
To: jill waits <jillwaits@yahoo.co.uk>

Sent: Monday, 10 October 2011, 11:48

Subject: Re: letter re housing ?

Dear Jill

Thank you for responding to my query and | note the points you have raised. | also note that you state all your actions
are taken independently and you take full responsibility for them.

The Code of Conduct makes it clear when and how Parish Councillors must consider their prejudiciai interests in
relation to other actions they may take and Standing Orders dictate how such matters are to be dealt with so | will

proceed accordingly.

Regards
Erica

- Qriginal Message -——

From: jill waits

To: Partridges

Sent: Thursday, October 06, 2011 7.05 PM
| Subject: Re: letter re housing ?

Dear Erica,
I have just returned from working in Worcester and found your email. The answer to your

questions is as follows:

- did you write these letters ? No, | did not

- did you print them for circulation ? No, | did not

- did you deliver these letters ? | delivered a small number when we were out walking the dogs, as a heip to
James. | help him to deliver party political leaflets from time to time, as he helps me to deliver letters for the Playing
Fields Committee. | see this as normal behaviour between a couple.

- did you receive one of these letters ? No

As I have explained to you before James and I are our own people and do what we will without
influence from the other party. We may live together under one roof, but we have two heads, not
one. I have no control over James and what he does or says and would not wish to, as I would
expect him to afford me the same freedom of action.

I'm not sure where your email is going, but can assure you that nothing James does is driven by
me or vice versa. I hope that makes things clear.

See you on Tuesday at 7.30pm.

Regards,

Jill

From: Pariridges <ep.partridges@btinternet.com>
To: Jill Waits <jillwaits@yahoo.co.uk>

Cc: Alex Stubbs <bunburyclerk@aol.com>

Sent: Wednesday, 5 October 2011, 10:48
Subject: letter re housing ?
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Dear Jill

A matter has come to my attention which, as Chairman, | am obliged to clarify with you fo establish the involvement of
a Parish Councilior in the matter below.

| understand that a letter was put through the doors of Wyche Lane residents asking if they want to see 50 houses
built behind the houses on Muir Lane and that this would be the consequence if planning application 11/2423N is
approved and they need to object to the planning application to prevent this happening. it has also been mentioned
that you were seen delivering these lefters.

Can you please let me know :

- did you write these letters ?

- did you print them for circulation ?

- did you deliver these letters ?

- did you receive one of these letters ?

Apologies for bothering you individually if this is not the case but as you have been specifically mentioned | thought it
best to ask you first before asking Alex to make enquiries of all the Parish Councillors.

| jook forward to hearing from you.
Yours sincerely
Regards

Erica Partridge
Chairman, Bunbury Parish Councii
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ABPEDIX O

Subject: Re: Fwd: Gary McGormack viuls
From: jiti waits (jillwaits@yahoo.¢0.uk)

bunburyclerk@aol.com; b.dykes@btinternet.com; dennis.burrows@btopenworld.com; delfis7@tiscali.co.uk;
To: gme@csq4z2.com; ericlord2@hotmail.com; mandyjones2i @btinternet.com; nick.parker@homecall.co.uk;
sallypbeard@fsmail.net; ep.partridges@btinternet.com;

Date: Tuesday, 18 October 2011, 11:56

Alex,

Gary has his own way of expressing himself which perhaps isn't my way. However, I do feel he has
a right to point out anything that he perceives as unfair or inappropriate behaviour by you or another
member of the PC.

I think we would all recognise that Bunbury Parish Council is not a happy place to be at present.
Over the past few months I have become increasingly worried about the divisive behaviour of some
members towards others and a hurling of unfounded and ridiculous accusations behind individual
councillor's backs, which I find totally unprofessional and unacceptable. I have no doubt that these
councillors know who they are. Perhaps this is the right time for some councillors who have served
the parish for many years to step away and give new faces and opinions a chance to come forward
and do their bit for the village.

Whilst I am sorry to see you go in many respects, what has come about serves to highlight how
important it is that the clerk serves all, and is seen to serve all, councillors equally. All

councillors should not deny that this is a difficult task with the volume and complexity of the issues
the PC is involved in and recognise that this is only likely to increase in the future.

The Muir issues have caused a rift in the PC which are making it look incapable of behaving
appropriately. I certainly don't feel that I have been advised correctly about whether or not to declare
an interest in specific matters. Perhaps it would be better if the whole Council was to resign and then
it could start again. I would be interested to hear what other councillors think.

1 am sure you will find a happier environment to work in than Bunbury PC Alex and wish you well.

Regards,
Jill
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APPENRIX

Subject; Fw: Gorner Gouage

From: Michael. Jones (m.jonesi@btconnect.com)
To: jillwaits@yaho0.¢0.UkK;

Date: Saturday, 1 October 2011, 10:49

For your information

MJ

From: Nick Parker

Sent: Friday, September 30, 2011 11:49 PM
To: Michael Jones

Subject: Re: Corner Cottage

Hello Michael,

Thanks for your reply. You will have seen the e-mails from Jill and David both of which | must say 1 don't feel comfortable
about,

They both carry an implicit threat which worries me. As you know they are in the group of councillors who have been
stirring up trouble at Wyche Lane and wityh my cynical outiook | wonder whether they are intended to exacerbate the "spiit
in the PC. |don't like it.

| know Alex has taken guidance on whether several councillors or members of the public could successfully push for a
vote of no confidence in the PC and the answer was heartening. What we don't know is whether Erica and Alex will
continue in their present positions with all the hassle they've had for much longer.

It would be awful if they opted for a quieter life because of the upset orchestrated by the Wyche Lane councillors and the
stirred-up residents. There is no doubt what sort of replacement there might be proposed for Erica, were sheto go-and
it would be engineered to outnumber the non-Wyche Lane councillors.

It might be a stretched comment but we see Putin and co......

in fifteen years on the PC | have known members to disagree in their views, which always happen, but have never seen
so clear a ‘them and us' split. As 1 said to you in July, David and Jilt (pius Dennis) haven't by their actions encouraged me
to trust them and | suspect a deeper meaning in the messages.

Yes if you'd like to meet to discuss Corner Cottage or have a chat on the phone I'm happy to do either but | feel that
Erica, Brian and Alex should be party to what we have spoken about and may even wish to join us.

May | please forward our e-mails to Erica, Brian and Alex?

I try to act truthfully and appropriately and would not choose to damage further any member's relationships on the PC.
They are already fragile.

My regards,

Nick
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APPEIDIX @

Subject: Re: Fwa: Gary MoCormack Mulr

From: jill waits (jillwaits@yahoo.co.uk)
To: ep.partridges@btinternet.com;
Co: brian.dykes@cheshireeast.gov.uk; bunburyclerk@aol.com; dellis7@tiscali.co.uk; GMC@CSQ42.com,

ericlord2@hotmail.com; mandyjones21@btinternet.com; nick.parker@homecall.co.uk; sallypbeard@fsmail.net,
Date: Wednesday, 26 October 2011, 17:43

Dear Erica,
I'm sorry to hear you have been unwell.

I am sure, like me, you are disappointed to hear about unprofessional behaviour from one parish
councillor towards another. Information has been passed on to me, and, I believe, to you, regarding
an email that was written by a parish councillor regarding me, in what can only be seen as unfounded
and inciteful terms. As I have said already, I presume that councillor knows about whom I write.
Unfortunately the email was written about me, not to me, and I therefore feel unable to let you have a
copy without implicating others. I regard this as divisive behaviour by a fellow parish councillor and
I don't believe you are in a position to tell me otherwise. You write to me as if I had started
something, when I see myself as the brunt, and then demand an apology. Am I missing something
here?

As to your point about my comments being disrespectful to other parish councillors, I find this an
interesting interpretation of what I said. The purpose of writing this was to suggest

that several councillors have been in their positions for many years and maybe this was a good time
to seek new and younger input as the young parishoners, like Mandy, are the future of the village.
No disrespect was intended and I fail to see how you can think there was.

I am afraid I don't understand why you comment on the removal of the fencing in the next paragraph.

1 did not say that I am unhappy being a parish councillor. I said that Bunbury PC was not a happy
place to be at present. Maybe you feel otherwise, but please don't twist what I say. I am not seeking
to "spread discontent” as you put it, just to be honest about how I feel. If fellow parish councillors

are unhappy with me doing that, then I am sorry they feel that way, but no-one has implied that to
me.

Like you, I just want to get on with the business of the PC. I would be happy to apologise if I could
see anything to apologise for and am sorry that you feel that way.

Regards,
Jil
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Cheshire East Council
Compilaints against Parish Councillors Sally Beard, David Ellis, Gary McCormack & Jill
Waits

Statement of Jill Waits, Edinbane, Wyche Lane, Bunbury, Cheshire CW6 9PS

1.

This statement is supplemental o my Response, dated 26 February, 2012, to the
compiaint documents submitted by Mrs Partridge.

Since April 2010, | have attended one training course, which was run by ChALC, and that
was on planning and related issues. | have not received specific training in respect of the
Code of Conduct. There are two basic principles that | would wish to reiterate with regard
to my conduct -

| do not lie; and

Whilst 1 live with James Walton, we are two independent people who now live as
a couple. We may have the same views on some things but he does what he
wants to do, as do |. We obviously talk about the issues in the village but there
is no connivance between us in relation to the way that | behave at Parish
Councilt meetings and the way that he takes his issues forward as a local
resident. In particular, | had no idea that James had made a formal complaint
against Alex Stubbs until he told me that he had withdrawn it.

In this statement | deal with each of the headings in the Code identified by the
Sub-Committee in its decision notice.

Paragraph 3(1) - treat others with respect

4.

Mrs Partridge has submitted with her complaint three sets of emails that, she suggests,
relate to the complaints against me. The first set deals with the question of interests, the
second are my 'emails regarding other councillors' and the third are 'James Walton example
emails'. There is nothing in the first set that Mrs Partridge suggests is relevant to this
aspect of the Code. The only email in the second set where there is any language which
could be regarded as showing a lack of respect is that of 18 October 2011 which was sent
to the Clerk and copied to all other Councillors. That email was sent following sight of
Parish Councillor Nick Parker's email of 30 September to Cheshire East Councillor Michael
Jones (see Appendix P of the documents attached to my Response). My Response (page
11) sets out in detail why Nick Parker's email upset me and | feel that the language that he
has used is far worse that in my email. My email went to all the Parish Councillors and not
ohe of them has contacted me since to suggest that they were upset with what | said or to
suggest that my remarks were out of order, apart from Mrs Partridge. 1 do not believe that
writing to all Councillors suggesting that 'this is the right time for some councillors who have
served the parish for many years to step away and give new faces and opinions a chance
to come forward and do their bit for the village' is anything other than a reasonable opinion.
| do not regard my words as being disrespectful to those Councillors to whom | was
referring. There is nothing in the third set of emails that refers directly to my comments on
other Coungcillors.

Paragraph 3(2) - bullying

5.

Mrs Partridge says that | have sent, what she considers to be, bullying emails fo the
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former Clerk, Alex Stubbs, 'off the back of Gary McCormack's emails’. She goes on to
state that she considers the emails sent by my partner, James Walton, to be a targeted
bullying campaign, in conjunction with myself and Clir McCormack, to remove the Clerk
and, from the content of the emails, an attempt also to bully her, as Chairman. My
Response contains the comments that | can seriously make to this allegation, all of which
refute Mrs Partridge’s claims. No specific emails have been pointed out to me as
potentially containing offending material which could give rise to such a claim. In the
absence of any specific wording, | do not see what further response | can give. | have
already categorically denied working together with either Clir McCormack or James Walton
in the manner in which any of us have treated either Mrs Stubbs or Mrs Partridge. At no
time have |, or would 1, seek to undermine the position of the parish clerk.

Paragraph 3(2)(d) - likely to compromise the impartiality of those who work for the

8.

authority

This seems to follow on from the allegation of bullying. The only employee of the Parish
Council is the Clerk and the agreed form of approach to the Clerk is by email. The
information that | was seeking during the period August to December 2011 was information
that, | believed at the time, | had wrongly been excluded from. | had not been provided
with a copy of the 2010 advice from the Deputy Monitoring Officer although it seemed, from
what the Clerk had told me, that the advice was that all the Wyche Lane Councillors had a
personal and prejudicial interest in anything to do with the Muir land and the two pieces of
land behind it. That was the basis on which | had made subsequent declarations of
interest and left the meeting. When the amended access way planning application was
submitted, | was beginning fo believe that | didn't have an interest in that application and
that was why there was an increase in the email correspondence to the Clerk, not only from
myself but from other Councillors. This was no attempt to compromise the impartiality of
the Clerk. In fact, it led to the Clerk circulating the 2010 advice, which clearly stated that
the advice only related to the strip of land behind the proposed development, and not the
development land itself or the land behind the property where | live. The email
correspondence also led to the manner in which certain decisions of the Council had been
recorded being questioned. Every Councillor has the right to question, properly, the
manner in which the Parish Council operates and this was ali that | was doing.

Paragraph 4(a) - disclosure of confidential information

7.

This allegation appears to relate to my disclosure to the other Parish Councillors of the
complaints made against me. | did this on two occasions, the first by email of 22
December 2011 to the Clerk, copied to all Parish Councillors, and the second at the Parish
Council meeting on 01 February 2012 (the latter being after the complaints had been raised
against me). On both occasions | was relaying information sent to me by Cheshire East
Council - neither letter had any confidentiality heading.

Paragraphs 7(1)(a) & (b) - failure to have reqard to relevant advice provided by the

8.

authority’s chief finance officer or monitoring officer

This presumably relates to the alleged failure to follow the 2010 advice from Julie
Openshaw. As | say in my Response, | believe that the advice was given following an
improper briefing and is flawed in relation to my potential interest. Further, any decision by
a councillor as to whether or not he/she has a declarable interest is one for the councillor
concerned. |f there is advice from the Monitoring Officer that advice should be considered
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by the councillor before the councillor makes a decision. In this case, the advice stated
that it related to the strip of land and the matter being discussed by the Parish Council on
13 December 2011 was an amended planning application in relation to the development of
the Muir land. It is therefore questionable whether the 2010 advice was directly relevant to
that planning application and, in any event, it was not given to me in full until 10 months
later. For other reasons, as set out in my Response to the alleged interest breaches and
below, | determined that | did not have any interest. Whether that conclusion was right or
wrong, | did not breach paragraph 7(1) of the Code.

Paragraph 9(1) - failure to disclose a personal interest.

9.

The first point to make is that | did not have any legal interest in any property in Bunbury
until the end of December 2011, when | acquired a half interest in Edinbane from my
partner, James Walton. From discussions with the Investigating Officer, | accept now (but
did not at the time) this fact does not make any difference to my position as prior to having
that ownership, Edinbane was wholly owned by my pariner and he comes within the
definition of 'close associate' in paragraph 8(2)(a). The personal interest requirements in
paragraph 8(1)(a)(ix) (beneficial interest in land) applied by applying paragraph 8(1)(b).
Since my acquisition they apply direct through paragraph 8(1)(a)(ix). The second matter
that influenced my previous decisions in relation to declaration was a letter from Cheshire
East Planning Officer indicating the basis on which certain residents, including James and
myself, had not been consulted. This stated that only the owners of property directly
adjoining the planning application site were consulted on an application. | understand now
that Cheshire East Council's neighbour consuitation policy does not set the parameters
used by the Standards Committee when considering paragraph 8 of the Code. |
appreciate now that | should have declared a personal interest when any aspect of the Muir
development land, the strip of land beyond that and the field at the rear were the subject of
discussion by the Parish Council.

Paragraph 12(1) - effect of prejudicial interest on participation

10. On those occasions where | mistakenly did not declare a personal interest, | did not give

11.

any consideration to existence or otherwise of a prejudicial interest. From the period
December 2010 to November 2011 1 did not participate in any consideration of business
relating to any aspect of the whole field as, at those meetings where | was present, |
declared a personal and prejudicial interest in according with the 2010 advice from Julie
Openshaw.

| came on to the Parish Council in April 2010 and, in the period prior to the meeting on 14
December 2010 there may well have been instances where the Muir development or the
field to the rear were discussed. Mrs Partridge has not identified any specific dates where
breaches took place and, virtually two years later, | am unable to say what course of action
| would have taken in each case. The one specific meeting that has been put to me is that
of 13 December 2011. | have discussed the minutes of that meeting with the investigating
Officer. | accept that | was the person who raised the reconsideration of the previous
Parish Council response to the planning application for the amended access way and that |
chose the option of the discussion taking place then rather than at the January 2012
meeting. 1 did make the point that the proposed wider access way would look unsuitable
across the field and, although | think that they made their points in a different context, the
remarks attributable to David Ellis and Sally Beard were made at the meeting and there
was concern expressed that the larger access way could open up the field behind Edinbane
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for future development.

The Investigating Officer has explained to me the test in paragraph 10(1) of the Code and
that it is what a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably
regard as so significant that it was likely to prejudice my judgement of the public interest.
On the basis on which the discussion took place on 13 December 2011, | understand that
such a person would regard my interest as likely to prejudice my judgement. All | can say
is that myself and other Parish Counciliors appeared to be confused by the advice that had
been given over time and that there was some ambiguity in the advice received, coupled
with a suggestion that the briefing for the original advice had not been accurate. Neither
the Chairman or the Clerk were clear as to what the position of various Councillors was
under the interest provisions, particularly those residing in Wyche Lane and | cannot help
feeling that some steps should have been taken to resolve the matter rather than to
continue for over twelve months in the manner in which the Council did. The feelings set
out in a number of the emails are as a result of that situation remaining unresolived.

There also did not seem to be any attempt to differentiate between a personal and a
prejudicial interest and it is now clear to me that there may be issues that come before the
Parish Council where | will have a personal interest but not a prejudicial one.

Paragraph 12(1)(a) - attending meeting on 26 August 2011 on business where had

14.

15.

previously declared a personal and prejudicial interest

This meeting was held following the making of objections against the amended access way

application and was facilitated by Councillor Michael Jones and hosted by Cheshire East
planners. Representatives from Muir Homes attended. It had been hoped that Councilior
McCormack or his representatives would attend but it was clear that this wasn't going to
happen and that neither Council could get directly involved in any land ownership dispute
between the two. The Parish Council was invited but were unable to send anyone.
James Walton was invited, as one of the objectors, and he was to be accompanied by
David Ellis but at the last minute David was unable to go. | thought long and hard about
attending but decided that | would support James, as a local resident, and make this clear
to everyone present. | only contributed once to the discussions apart from making my
position clear.

It is clear to me now that | should not have attended the meeting, even as a local resident.

Paragraph 12(1)(c) - seeking improperly to influence a decision about Council business

16.

17.

when | had a personal and prejudicial interest

As the Parish Council representatives were not present at the meeting on 26 August 2011,
| could not have infiuenced a decision about Parish Council business on that occasion. |
did not go there with that intention and, as | have already acknowledged in the previous
paragraph, | should not have attended that meeting.

As to the circulating of letters from James Walton, as | have said in the Response and an

earlier document, the letter was solely James' and | delivered a very small number when
walking. 1 did not knock on any doors or seek to encourage residents to support James'
stance, | simply delivered them.
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This statement is a fair summary of an interview conducted by the Investigator on 08 March
2012.

.........................
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To : Mike Dudfield
Comments on draft reports dated 7 April 2012

Draft Reports re Former Councillors Beard and Ellis
| have no comments to make on these.

Draft Report re Former Councillor Waits

| have the following comments to make in relation to this draft report. Although | have
stated that | only wish to proceed with the issues relating to declarations of interest
and wish to withdraw all other comments, | feel that a number of comments in the
draft require further clarification. The numbers below relate to the paragraphs in your
report :

34 : The Muir Sub-Committee did not meet every month. It only met as necessary
and the meetings were either excluding the public (were commercial sensitivity made
this necessary) or in public at the end of the Parish Council meetings.

I have amended this paragraph to reflect the true position.

9, 43 and 79 : My suggestion of ‘seeking to influence’ related to other Parish
Councillors only in which aspect it was successful. If Clause 3(2)(d) of the Code of
Conduct would only apply in relation to the Clerk then | am happy to accept that it
would not be applicable. | have withdrawn this aspect of the complaint anyway.

Noted.

51, 70, 72: As my complaints in relation to Councillor McCormack have been
withdrawn is there a need to mention him by name in this report ? As he has not yet
had an opportunity to respond including him by name might be inappropriate and |
respectfully request it be deleted or referred to generically ifiwhere possibie as eg
any other councilior’.

There are various references to Councillor McCormack in the report and the
Committee will be aware of the extent of his 'involvement' even though they will not
be considering his case. | do not think that giving anonymity to one or two
references will make any difference to the understanding of the Committee.

10, 53 and 81 : Although | have withdrawn this aspect of the complaint | feel these
statements require further clarification and possibly further enquiry as the stated
facts may be inaccurate, and | am concerned that if | do not comment this may be
taken as agreement of the factual position. | did not receive any correspondence
relating to the first complaints, those went to Mrs Stubbs. The correspondence |
received on the second complaints dated 2n February arrived in an envelope clearly
marked that it was from Cheshire East Council and with ‘private and confidential’ (or
something to that effect) clearly marked on the envelope, but not on the letters
inside. It may be that correspondence to individual councillors concerned are treated
differently, but enquiry of the Council as to their procedures would clarify this point.
Clause 30 of the Standing Orders also states that all notifications relating to
breaches of the code of conduct are confidential, although | appreciate you are not
investigating a breach of standing orders. My comments here are just to ensure that
the facts are correct.

At my interview with you on 27% February, | handed to you a further email from Mrs
Waits dated 26t January 2012, in which she emailed ali Parish Councillors advising
them of further details of the complaint and stating that | had made the compliaint. |
also advised that in the public Parish Council meeting of 14™ February Mrs Waits
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stated that she was in dispute regarding her declaration of interest in relation to the
Muir issues and that the complaints made against her were being investigated and
she would keep other Counciliors informed. | do not know whether or not this was
minuted. You did inform me that you would decide whether o incorporate this further
evidence or not. | do not dispute this, | am just raising the point in case it was missed
as this information does not appear in the report and it is relevant to this aspect.

Mrs Waits received two letters relating to the different complaints each of which had
no confidentiality heading. Aithough we discussed subsequent events at our
meeting on 27 February, following our later discussions and your 'withdrawal’ of this
complaint | decided that it was inappropriate to consider the later evidence and that
is why it does not feature in my report.

55. The last sentence is incorrect. It was always clear that different declaration of
interests may apply to different aspects of the Muir matters, although Mrs Waits may
not have thought about the matter that way. This was made explicitly clear by the
clerk at my request at the meeting on 14 February where both the planning
application and the option strip of land were under discussion.

The last sentence is Mrs Waits' view up to the submission of the compiaint. |
appreciate that you do not accept that and that other Councillors have declared
personal interests at Council meetings, one on a regular basis.

56. 1 do not understand this statement. Declarations of interest were declared and
when they were queried by the Councillors involved further advice was requested
and this took place in the autumn of 2011.

Paragraphs 47-56 of the report are a summary of the views of Mrs Waits. It may not
be logical given what happened but it is the view that Mrs Waits has.

8, 51, 75, 77 — | am surprised that the report does not include any comments from
Mrs Stubbs (who actually submitted the compilaint) on this point.

Mrs Stubbs has made her own complaint and | am dealing with that separately.
Whilst Mrs Stubbs submitied the complaints against the four Councillors, the
supporting statement came from yourself and you are the person | have looked to for
the initial supporiing evidence. | have interviewed Mrs Stubbs. The emails for the
period leading up to her resignation are with the documentation you supplied. There
is one particular email that specifically led to both her resignation and her complaint,
and that email is not from Mrs Waits.

5, 65. | am happy to accept Mrs Waits statement that she did not draft the letter.
However, she was aware of the content of the letter that she was delivering and that
it related to a planning application which was Parish Council business and in which
she had declared a personal and prejudicial interest. | am unclear as to why the code
of conduct would not apply and respectfully request that this is clarified further in the
report.

The Code of Conduct does not prevent a Councillor who has a personal and
prejudice interest from doing anything in relation to the subject matter of that
interest. | have not seen the letter from Mr Walton but | understand it to comment on
the planning application submitted by Muir under section 73. There is no reason why
a Councillor with an interest cannot garner local support against that application and
seek to encourage other residents to raise their concerns. Your complaint tied Mrs
Waits' possible involvement in the drafting of the letter and its distribution with her
subsequent request at the August 2011 Council meeting for a pubiic meeting. The
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Code allows a Councillor with a P&P interest the same rights at meetings that
residents have in relation to the same subject matter. A Councillor with a P&P
interest may address the Council, having first declared the P&P interest, on aspects
of a planning application in that part of the meeting where residents could do so.
When the Code was changed in 2007, paragraph 2 was changed to restrict the
application of the Code to the business of the Council and not to impose
unreasonable restrictions on their personal life. 1 do not intend elaborating on this in
the repori. The Commitiee members understand the current Code and the
restrictions in its application. They will have a copy of this note and reply.

71 — | have no objection to being described as dealing with the issues in a
professional manner. However, | respectfully request that the words ‘used her
professional expertise in considering the issues involved’ be deleted as the matters
concerned were dealt with by me in the capacity of a parish counciilor only. Couid
this be corrected please ?

Yes, have done.

73. 1 assume the word ‘vitriolic’ does not refer to emails from myself as | intended to
always be polite, perhaps this could be clarified.

That interpretation came from a former Coungcillor and | am sure he was not referring
{o your emails.

77. In my email to you of 6% March | requested that all information relating to James
Walton be discarded and withdrawn as it is no longer relevant to the complaint. As
the complaint has never been directly against James Walton, and as stated in
paragraph 77 these details cannot be taken into account | respectfully request that
they are removed from the information and not referred to. The details were only
supplied on the basis that they wouid be treated confidentially in relation to the
complaint.

12, 13, 27, 31, 35, 36, 37, 39, 40, 42, 46, 47, 49, 51, 54, 58, 61, 63, 67, 70, 72, 77,
86, 87, . James Walton is mentioned by name in ali these paragraphs (and there
may be others | have missed). In the circumstances | respectfully request that these
references are more suitably dealt with in a different way eg by being replaced by ‘a
close associate’ or ‘a resident’. | hope you agree this would fit better with his context
in this matter.

There are two separate issues here - Mr Walton's emails and the references to Mr
Walton in the report. | will raise the circulation of the emails with the Monitoring
Officer given the circumstances and your request, but | would point out that | have
considered these during the investigation and the preparation of the report - see
paragraph 77. The specific references to Mr Walton, given that he is the partner of
Mrs Waits, are, | feel, appropriate. Mr Walton has involved himself in the issues that
were being considered by the Parish Council and, indeed, in the manner in which the
Council was being advised. | am not sure, therefore, that Mr Walton is entitled to
any anonymity.

in respect of the comments that | have made in paragraph 77, the report does not
say that | have not considered the emails, in fact the paragraph states the contrary.
The penultimate sentence effectively staies that | cannot equate Mr Walton letters as
being those of Mrs Waits for the purposes of the Code. it is Mrs Waits' conduct that
is the subject of the report.

| also respectfully request that any consideration of this matter be held in private,
due to the necessary references to details relating to a private individual.
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The initial consideration of my report will be in private. If the Committee decides fo
hold a hearing, it will be a decision for the hearing Committee to decide whether the
hearing will be public or private and, if public, whether any parts of my report or
supporting documentation should be excluded from public consideration. The
Committee will have this letter and will consider your request.

Thank you for reading and considering the above comments.

Erica Partridge
8" April 2012
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mikedudfield

From: "mikedudfield" <mikedudfield@btinternet.com>
To: “jilt waits" <jillwaits@yahoo.co.uk>

Sent: 11 April 2012 15:56

Subject: Re: Bunbury PC - Investigation Report
Dear Mrs Waits,

Please see my replies to your comments below in bold. Your response and my reply are being appended
to the report.

-~ QOriginal Message -

From: jill waits

To: mikedudfield

Sent: Monday, April 09, 2012 3:29 PM
Subject: Re: Bunbury PC - Investigation Report

Dear Mr Dudfield,

Many thanks for your email of 7 April enclosing your draft report and Mrs Partridge's
statement.

I have read these and have the following comments which I would be grateful if you would
record.

First, the bulk of the content of your report is acceptable to me and reflects the meeting we had
to discuss the various complaints raised against me by Mrs Partridge.

I believe it would be fair to state that the allegation against me in 1(2) that I "...participated in
the production...of letters to residents..." has not been proven, as Mrs Partridge has no evidence
that can prove it. The lack of comment on this item in your report may lead the committee to
believe that I lied, and I do not wish this to happen as I did not and the accusation is untrue.

| have reviewed the various paragraphs where this is deait with. | have amended para 49 to read

49. The letter that was sent by Mr Walton at the beginning of August 2011 to local residents
was solely his and Mrs Waits says that she had no part in its preparation. All she did was deliver
a small nhumber. She did not knock on doors or seek {0 encourage residents to support Mr
Waiton’s stance, she simply delivered a few letters. In requesting the Parish Council to hold a
public meeting on 09 August, she was simply making a point to the Parish Council that
residents were concerned regarding the intentions behind the planning application. The whole
issue was not the strategic affair suggested by Mrs Partridge.

Para 60 is the finding of fact and | think this is clear.

I accept the failures regarding my interpretation of the Code of Conduct in that I failed to
declare an interest when I should have done. Thanks to your succinct explanation I now
understand that I should always have taken the view that perception was reality as far as
parishioners were concerned and I am happy to apologise for that. It would never have been
my intention to behave inappropriately on any Parish Council business.

In para 33 I consider it important to note that both Mrs Stubbs and Mrs Partridge had seen it as
important that they obtain advice from Julie Openshaw, share that advice, in full, with those
councillors who were present, but find it very strange that they saw fit not to minute the matter
at all. I would also like it to be made clear that I was advised of a summarised version (not the
full response that some other councillors had seen) by email the following day. I did not
receive a copy of the full response for a further 9 months, and then only because Mrs Beard

11/04/2012
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kindly sent me one - not the parish clerk or Mrs Partridge. In any event this advice only related to
the ransom strip behind the proposed housing development and, as Julie Openshaw has made very
clear, not to any other planning matters in respect of the Muir site.

Paras 30-46 of the report are a summary of the various issues raised by Mrs Partridge and paras 47-
56 summarise your response. My determinations do not start until para 57. In this instance | have
amended para 33 to clarify what you received and when.

Now to para 37 regarding the letter sent by Mr Walton to local residents. I am not clear what Mrs
Partridge means when she says that she believed that I was "associated with the letter”. This, to me,
still implies that I had some sort of hand in its preparation, presumably because I was helping
James when I pushed 1, or perhaps 2, through letterboxes in Whitegates, which incidentally only
has 4 properties in it. Mrs Partridge may find it hard to believe, but it is the truth when I state that
James and I were operating independently of each other, with James taking the initiative to protect
his own position and that of other fellow property owners. My later suggestion to hold a public
meeting was with the sole intention of creating clarity - nothing more - and this is what I said at the
time.

This is delat with in the revised para 49 and para 60.

Para 38 If Mrs Partridge was concerned about my behaviour in respect of any aspect of the Code of
Conduct, or Standing Orders, then why did she not raise this with me for discussion rather than
going behind my back to the Monitoring Officer? She was entitled to discuss it with me at any
point, but she did not do so.

Para 40 I was the person who sent Mrs Partridge the notes of the meeting with CEC planning, Clir
Jones and Muir held on 26 August 2011 as I believed she would be interested in the content. I fear
your/Mrs Partridge's statement that "Mrs Partridge subsequently received the notes of the meeting
and found that Mrs Waits had accompanied Mr Walton..." implies that someone else, other than
me, sent them to her and that I had been "found out". This is far from the truth as I attached them to
an unsolicited email sent to Mrs Partridge on 31 August for her information. I even said in the
email "I hope my attendance at the meeting does not give the Parish Council any cause for concern.
I don't believe it should, or I wouldn't have gone." Once again she did not raise the issue with me in
resepect of any matter of conduct.

I have amended para 40 to clarify that the notes came from you.

45 Tt is not totally accurate to say that I "...raised a motion requesting that planning application
11/2423N be re-visited..."

I had requested that the Council consider if the item should be revisited, but did not expect that it
would be considered there and then. If the Council had agreed, I would have expected it to go on a
future agenda. It was Mrs Partridge who asked if | wanted the item raised as a motion for
discussion immediately. I was surprised by her suggestion, which she should not have made and
equally I should not have accepted. Perhaps we should both be seen as guilty here, because if I am
guilty of a breach, then so is she.

The wording is direct from the approved minutes of that meeting!

75 1 am sorry if you find the tone of my email of 18 October 2011 potentially sarcastic, as this was
not my intention. However, I still have the view that Mrs Stubbs did not treat all councillors
equally, a view which I know others would support and have proof of.

I did not say that I did, merely that some may.

Now to Schedule 4 and Mrs Partridge's further comments

11/04/2012
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Para 4 Mrs Partridge's statement "I spoke to the clerk and she informed me that she had spoken to
Councillor Waits, read out the advice from Julie Openshaw and Councillor Waits had indicated that
she would accept the advice and this was confirmed in emails between them" is totally untrue. I
received an email, only, from the Clerk with a very brief summary of Julie Openshaw's advice. No
telephone conversation or face to face conversation took place between me and Mrs Stubbs on this
matter. I can only suggest that Mrs Stubbs had a faulty memory on this point and had incorrectly
advised Mrs Partridge. Why would she have emailed me the following day and then spoken to me,
reading out the full text? If she had, I would have asked for a copy, as I would then have known
some of Ms Openshaw's points were based on inaccurate briefing, rather than having to wait 9
months to find this out by chance.

Para 6 I do not accept that our house, Edinbane, is "closely located" to the field of which the
housing development is planned or the ransom strip being transferred to the council, when these
areas are only visible part of the year from our house and then by hanging out of an upper window.

I fear that I am beginning to split hairs here due to my frustration with Mrs Partridge's wish to
continue using innaccuracies and innuendo to support her arguements because of the lack of
evidence for several of her accusations. I am surprised that I have had so many points I found it
necessary to comment on, as [ am generally content with your report.

This matter has now been running since before Christmas last year and, not surprisingly, I shall be
very pleased to see an end to it.

I hope your knee is improving.

Regards,
Jill Waits

From: mikedudfield <mikedudfield@btinternet.com>
To: jill waits <jiliwaits@yahoo.co.uk>

Sent: Saturday, 7 April 2012, 10:11

Subject: Bunbury PC - Investigation Report

Dear Mrs Waits,

| have completed the draft report in relation to yourself and attach a copy. The appendices are already in
your possession apart from Mrs Partridge's statement which is also attached.

Please let me have any comments you wish to make on the draft. These should be with me by 21 April,
following which | will finalise the report and send it through to Mrs Elwood.

Please note that the draft report and its appendices remain confidential until they are considered by
Cheshire East's Standards Comittee who will determine whether they come into the public domain.

Yours sincerely,

Mike Dudfield

11/04/2012
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Complaints under the New Code — Procedure

Making a Complaint

1.

Complaints must be submitted to Cheshire East Council’s Monitoring
Officer using the Council’s standard Complaint Form setting out in
sufficient detail why the Complainant considers there has been a failure
to comply with the relevant Code of Conduct.

The Monitoring Officer will acknowledge receipt within 5 working days

The Subject Member will be advised that there has been a complaint
and will be provided with a copy of the complaint form, unless, in
exceptional circumstances, where the Monitoring Officer, in consultation
with the Independent Person has granted the Complainant’s request for
confidentially. Under no circumstances must the Subject Member
contact the Complainant direct regarding any issues raised in the
complaint.

Initial Assessment / Gateway Procedure

4.

The Monitoring Officer will refer the complaint to the Audit and
Governance Initial Assessment Panel within 21 days of receipt for an initial
assessment.

After consulting the Independent Person, the Panel will determine whether
to

Take no action

Refer the matter to the relevant Group Leader for informal
action ( NB for complaints against Cheshire East Councillors
only and not generally an appropriate option if the complaint is
from a member of the public)

e Refer the matter for Local Resolution

o Refer the matter for formal investigation by an external
investigator

e Refer the matter to the Police or other relevant Regulatory
Agency

The Initial Assessment Panel’'s Decision on what action to take on a
complaint is final. There is no right to have the decision reviewed.

The Complainant, Subject Member and Parish Clerk, as appropriate, will
be informed of the outcome of the decision.

Meetings of the Panel will not be open to the public.
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Local Resolution

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The Complainant and Subject Member will be advised that the Initial
Assessment Panel has concluded that the complaint is suitable for Local
Resolution without the need for a formal investigation and full hearing
and will be invited to submit written representations outlining the nature
of the dispute using a standard template to ensure consistency.

Both the Complainant and Subject Member will be able to bring a
Supporter and up to three witnesses each to accompany them before an
ad hoc panel of three elected members together with the Independent
Person. The Supporter will not represent the Subject Member but will be
able to confer with him or her.

The Panel will consider the written representations and hear any relevant
evidence before reaching a determination and considering whether any
sanction is appropriate.

The Panel may refer the matter for a formal investigation should it
become apparent that the issues are more complex or serious than was
originally anticipated.

Local Resolution Panels will normally meet in public and will be
convened within 28 days of the decision of the Initial Assessment Panel
subject to availability of the relevant parties.

Both the Complainant and Subject Member will receive copies of each
others written statements and details of any witness to be called 5
working days before the Panel meets. Copies will be made available to
three Panel members and Independent Person at the same time.

The Panel will announce its decision at the end of the hearing and a
formal Decision Notice will be prepared and sent to all relevant parties
within 5 working days. The Decision Notice will be published on the
Council’'s website and reported to the next meeting of the Audit and
Governance Committee.

There is no right of Appeal from the decision of the Local Resolution
Panel which is intended to resolve less serious complaints speedily and
cost effectively.

External Investigation

17.

18.

The matter will be referred for an independent investigation by a suitably
experienced investigative officer. In most cases the investigation is
expected to be completed within 8 weeks of the referral.

The report of the independent investigator should incorporate the
following:-
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e Executive Summary - An outline of the allegation, who made it,
the relevant provisions of the Code and whether there has been
a breach.

¢ Member’s official details - A brief outline of when the Member
was elected, term of office, details of committees served on and
any relevant training.

e Complainants details and any relevant background

e Summary of facts and evidence gathered- A summary of the
facts and evidence gathered highlighting facts which are in
dispute and setting out the investigating officer's conclusions
based on the balance of probabilities.

e Reasoning as to whether there has been a failure to comply
with the Code and investigator’s findings — Dealing with each
allegation in turn an outline of whether the investigating officer
considers there has been a breach and any aggravating or
mitigating facts.

e Schedule - a list of witnesses interviewed and copies of relevant
documents.

A copy of the draft report will be circulated to the Subject Member and
Complainant to check for factual accuracy.

The Investigating Officer will take into account any comments received
before sending the final report to the Monitoring Officer.

External Investigation — No Evidence of Failure to Comply

21.

22.

23.

Where the report concludes that there is no evidence of failure to comply
with the Code of Conduct, the Monitoring Officer will review the report in
consultation with the Independent Person.

If satisfied with the conclusions, the Complainant, Subject Member and
the Town or Parish Clerk ( if appropriate) will be notified within 15
working days that no further action will be taken and will be given a copy
of the final report.

If after consultation with the Independent Person the Monitoring Officer is
not satisfied that the investigation has been concluded properly she may
ask the Independent Investigator to reconsider the report and / or refer
the matter to the Standards Hearing sub committee for a formal hearing
of the issues.
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External Investigation — Evidence of Failure to Comply

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Where the report concludes that there has been a failure to comply with
the provisions of the Code of Conduct the matter will be referred to the
Standards Hearing sub committee who will conduct a hearing to
determine if the Subject Member has failed to comply with the provisions
of the Code and if so what sanction is appropriate.

The Hearing sub committee will consider the matter afresh having regard
to the Investigators findings and all relevant evidence presented by the
Complainant and Subject Member.

The Independent Person will be present at the hearing and will be
consulted and his/ her views taken into account before any decision is
reached.

The Hearing sub committee will announce its decision at the end of the
hearing and a formal Decision Notice will be prepared and sent to all
relevant parties within 5 working days. The Decision Notice will be
published on the Council’'s website and reported to the next meeting of
the Audit and Governance Committee.

Meetings of the Hearing sub committee will be subject to the normal
rules for publication of agendas and access to information.

29. There will be a right of appeal of the decision of the Hearing sub
committee.

Right of Appeal

30. Any appeal by the Subject Member must be lodged within 14 days of the

31.

32.

33.

decision of the Hearing sub committee. A meeting of the Standards
Appeals Panel will then be convened within 21 days.

The Appeals Panel will comprise 3 Members from the Audit and
Governance pool of 15 Members sitting with an Independent Person.
Neither the Members nor the Independent Person will have previously
been involved in the particular case.

The appeal will be by way of a complete re hearing of the issues and will
not be confined to new evidence or only on specified grounds. The
Appeals Panel may dismiss or uphold the appeal and reconsider the
range of sanctions available to the Hearing sub-committee.

The decision of the Appeals Panel is final.
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Independent Person

34. The Council has appointed 4 Independent Persons

35. The Subject Member has the opportunity to consult the Independent
Person at any stage in the investigation process and prior to the final
determination.

Membership of Panels / sub committees

36. If a Member has sat on a Local Resolution Panel which refers a matter
for external investigation then he or she may not subsequently sit on any
Hearing sub committee.

Vexatious Complaints

37. The Council will maintain a list of vexatious or repeated complaints and

will report any concerns regarding abuse of the process to the Audit and
Governance Committee.

September 2012
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CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE
STANDARDS HEARING AD-HOC SUB-COMMITTEE

Date of meeting: 14 November 2012

Report of: Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer

Title: Allegation of a Breach of the Model Code of Conduct
(Complaints CEC/2011/06 and CEC/2011/08)

1. Purpose of the Report

1.1 To enable the Hearing Sub-Committee to consider the Investigating Officer’s
report and to determine what action, if any should be taken.

2. Decision Required

21 The Sub-Committee is invited to consider the Investigating Officer’s report in
accordance with the hearing procedure and relevant legislation/guidelines in
force at the time and determine whether or not there has been a breach of the
Model Code of Conduct.

3. Introduction

3.1 This hearing arises out of allegations made by the Complainant Mrs Alex
Stubbs (Complaint number CEC/2011/06) and Mrs Erica Partridge and Mrs
Alex Stubbs (Complaint Number CEC/2011/08) that the Subject Member,
Councillor Gary McCormack of Bunbury Parish Council had breached the
Model Code of Conduct, as adopted by that Council. The details of each
case are set out in the report of the Investigating Officer attached.

3.2  The Sub-Committee has full powers delegated to it by the Audit and
Governance Committee to determine this complaint and must deliver its
verbal decision on the day of the hearing; to be followed by a written decision.
In the event of an adverse finding, the Subject Member may appeal to the
Audit and Governance Standards Appeals Panel.

3.3 The Sub-Committee is asked to note that the complaints were made and the
investigation conducted under the provisions of the Local Government Act
2000 and the Standards (England) Regulations 2008. This legislation was
repealed and replaced with the Localism Act 2011 under which the
Investigator’s report was first considered and this hearing will be conducted.

3.4 A copy of Cheshire East Council’'s Code of Conduct Complaints Procedure,
adopted by Council on 19 July 2012 is also appended to the report
(paragraphs 24 to 29 apply).

4, Hearing Procedure

4.1 The hearing procedure to be followed will be circulated at the meeting.
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Complaint and Investigator’s Report

The Clerk to Bunbury Parish Council, Mrs Alex Stubbs submitted a complaint
in November 2011 which asserted that Councillor Gary McCormack had
breached paragraph 3(2)(b) the Model Code of Conduct by way of the
derogatory tone used in an email sent by him to the Clerk on 16 October
2011.

A second complaint was received on 23 November 2011 from the Clerk to
Bunbury Parish Council, Mrs Alex Stubbs on behalf of the Chairman of the
Parish Council, Councillor Erica Partridge which asserted that four members
of Bunbury Parish Council, namely Councillor Jill Waits, Councillor Sally
Beard, Councillor David Ellis and Councillor Gary McCormack had breached
the Code of Conduct.

This report deals with the Investigator’s findings in respect of Councillor Gary
McCormack only. The complaints against Councillors Waits, Beard and Ellis
are the subject of separate reports.

The Complainants assert that the Subject Member may have breached the
following paragraphs of the Code of Conduct:

Complaint Paragraph Conduct
CEC/2011/06 3 (2) (b) You must not bully any person

CEC/2011/08 3 (1) You must treat others with respect

3(2) (b) You must not bully any person

3(2) (d) You must not do anything which
compromises or is likely to compromise the
impartiality of those who work for, or on
behalf of, your authority

4(a) You must not disclose information given to
you in confidence...........

As both complaints appeared to relate to linked or overlapping issues, the
Assessment Sub-Committee of the Standards Committee considered the
complaints as part of the same report on 24 January 2012; its decision being
to refer matters to the Monitoring Officer for investigation.

Mr Mike Dudfield was appointed to conduct the investigation. As his report
was received by Council on 30 July 2012, it was submitted for consideration
to the Monitoring Officer in consultation with an Independent Person
(appointed by Council in accordance with the Localism Act 2011), in
accordance with the Council’s procedure adopted by Council on 19 July 2012.

Although the investigation had been conducted in accordance with previous
legislation, the findings available to the Monitoring Officer and the
Independent Person were the same as those which had applied before the
changeover i.e. where the Investigating Officer’s findings were of no breach,
two possible options were available; an acceptance of no breach or to
convene a hearing. However, where the finding was that a breach had
occurred, the option of acceptance of no breach was not available.
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Having taken into account the report’'s contents, together with the relevant
Guidance, the Monitoring Officer and Independent Person decided that they
concurred with the conclusions of the Investigating Officer in that —

a) In respect of the first complaint, the Subject Member had failed to
comply with paragraph 3(1) of the Model Code of Conduct;

b) In respect of the first complaint, that there had been no failure to
comply with paragraph 3(2)(b) of the Model Code of Conduct; and

c) In respect of the second complaint there had been no failure to comply
with paragraphs 3(1), 3(2)(b), 3(2)(d) and 4(a) of the Model Code of
Conduct

and that a hearing should be convened to consider the matter at (a) above.

No further action will be taken in respect of the paragraphs listed in
paragraphs 5.8(b) and 5.8(c) above. The Sub-Committee is only required to
determine the allegation in respect of the paragraph listed in 5.8(a).

Parties attending the Hearing

The Subject Member has confirmed that he will not be present at the meeting
but has requested that a short statement be read out on his behalf. The
Monitoring Officer has agreed to this request.

The Complainants have been notified of the date of the hearing but have
intimated that they do not wish to be present. There is no power to compel
any party to attend.

The Investigating Officer will be in attendance but does not intend to call any
witnesses.

Matters for Determination

The Sub-Committee needs to determine whether or not it is satisfied that a
breach of the Model Code of Conduct has occurred in respect of paragraph
3(1) of the Code.

Decision and Sanctions

If, having considered the matter, the Sub-Committee finds that the Subject
Member has not breached the Model Code of Conduct, no further action will
be taken.

If a breach is found, the Member’s Parish Council is the body to determine
what, if any sanction should be applied.

The sanctions available to the Sub-Committee are -
(1) Formal censure e.g. through a motion;

(2) Send a formal letter to the Member;
(3) Recommend a course of action to the Members’ Group Leader/

Town/Council;
(4) Report findings to Council/Town or Parish Council for information;
(5) Issue a press release of its findings in respect of the Member’s

conduct.
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8.4 The Hearing Sub-Committee has no power to suspend or disqualify a
Member or to withdraw allowances.

Officer: Caroline Elwood
Designation: Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer
Tel No. 01270 685882

Email: caroline.elwood@cheshireeast.gov.uk
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CONFIDENTIAL

Cheshire East Council

Standards Committee Complaints CEC/2011/06 & 08

Report of an investigation by Mike Dudfield, acting as Investigating Officer,
into allegations concerning the conduct of Bunbury Parish Councillor Gary

McCormack

This report is submitted to the Monitoring Officer of Cheshire East Council, Caroline

Elwood

28 July 2012
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Executive Summary

1.

Allegation has been made by Mrs Alex Stubbs, who at that time was Clerk to
the Bunbury Parish Council, that Councillor Gary McCormack is in breach of
paragraphs 3(1) and/or 3(2)(b) of the Bunbury Parish Council Members’ Code
of Conduct in that, emails sent by Councillor McCormack to Mrs Stubbs during
October 2011 and particularly one dated 16 October 2011, did not treat Mrs
Stubbs with respect and/or bullied her as to the manner in which she should
undertake her duties as Parish Clerk.

A further allegation has been made by Mrs Alex Stubbs, on behaif of the then
Chairman of the Parish Council, Erica Partridge, that four Councillors are in
breach of various provisions of the Bunbury Parish Council Members’ Code of
Conduct. in relation to Councillor McCormack it is alleged that he failed to
comply with paragraphs 3(1), 3(2)(b) & (d) and 4(a) of the Code of Conduct for
Bunbury Parish Council in that

(1) emails sent to the then Clerk and Mrs Partridge did not show respect to
these two persons and could be regarded as constituting bullying;

(2) emails sent to the then Clerk were seeking to compromise the impartiality of
the Clerk; and

(3) he may have disclosed confidential information.

This report deals with the first allegation and the second insofar as it relates to
one of those four Counciliors, Gary McCormack. There appears to be a
duplication of the allegations insofar as they allege behaviour constituting a
lack of respect and/or bullying of the former Parish Clerk, Mrs Stubbs. | have
dealt with all matters concerning these two issues under the first allegation
only.

In respect of the first allegation

4.

I conclude that there has been failure by Gary McCormack to comply with
paragraph 3(1) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, the
contents of the email dated 16 October 2011 go beyond reasonable criticism of
an employee and show a complete lack of respect for the position of Parish
Clerk.

I conclude that there has been no failure by Gary McCormack to comply with
paragraph 3(2)(b) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that,
the contents of the email dated 16 October 2011 do not constitute bullying of
Mrs Stubbs.

In respect of the second allegation

6.

I conclude that there has been no failure by Gary McCormack to comply with
paragraph 3(1) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, in
email correspondence to Mrs Partridge during 2011, he did not fail to treat
others, with respect.

| conclude that there has been no failure by Gary McCormack to comply with
paragraph 3(2)(b) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that, in



Page 247

email correspondence to Mrs Partridge during 2011 and his general conduct
towards Mrs Partridge during the same period, he did not buily Mrs Partridge.

| conclude that there has been no failure by Gary McCormack to comply with
paragraph 3(2)(d) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council in that,
his conduct towards the then Parish Clerk, Mrs Stubbs, did not seek to
compromise the impartiality of Mrs Stubbs.

I conclude that there has been no failure by Gary McCormack to comply with
paragraph 4(a) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Councit in that, he
did not breach confidentiality regarding the work of the Muir Sub-Committee.

Relevant Legislation

10.

11.

12,

On 24 January 2012, Cheshire East Council’s Standards Assessment Sub-
Committee decided to refer the allegations made against Councillor
McCormack to the Monitoring Officer for investigation under section 57A(2) of
the Local Government Act 2000.

Under section 82A of the Local Government Act 2000 the Monitoring Officer
can delegate an investigation and on this occasion Mrs Eiwood has delegated
this investigation to me.

The Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008 applied to the
conducting of this investigation, aithough those Regulations have recently been
revoked and, under the Localism Act (Commencement No. 6 and Transitional,
Savings and Transitory Provisions) Order 2012, Article 7(4) and (6), this report
will be considered by the Standards Consideration Sub-Committee under the
provisions of Chapter 7 of Part 1 of the Localism Act 2011.

Relevant Paragraphs of the Code of Conduct

13.

14

15.

Paragraph 2 of the Code states -

“(1) Subiject to sub-paragraphs (2) to (5), you must comply with this Code
whenever you -

(a) conduct the business of your authority (which, in this Code, includes
the business of the office to which you are elected or appointed); or

(b) act, claim to act or give the impression you are acting as a
representative of your authority.

(2) to (5) (not applicable to this case).”
Paragraph 3(1) states -

“You must treat others with respect.”
Paragraph 3(2) states -

“You must not -

(a) (not applicable to this case)



Page 248

(b) bully any person,;
(c) (not applicable to this case)

(d) do anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the
impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf of, your authority.”

16.  Paragraph 4 states -
“You must not -

(a) disclose information given to you in confidence by anyone, or
information acquired by you which you believe, or ought reasonably to
be aware, is of a confidential nature, except where -

(i)  you have the consent of a person authorised to give it;

(i)  you are required by law to do so;

(iii) the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of
obtaining professional advice provided that the third party
agrees not to disclose the information to any other person; or

(iv) the disclosure is -

(aa) reasonable and in the public interest; and
(bb) made in good faith and in compliance with the reasonable
requirements of the authority; or

(9] (not applicable to this case)"

Councillor Details

17. Councillor McCormack has been a Bunbury Parish Councillor for 10 years. He
has had no training on the Code of Conduct.

The Evidence Obtained

18. | have interviewed -
« the first complainant Alexandra Stubbs;
* the second complainant Erica Partridge: and
*  Councilior McCormack

Allegation by Alexandra Stubbs

19. The complaint (Appendix A) relates to emails that passed between Mrs Stubbs
and Councillor McCormack in September and October 2011 and the content of
one particular email, that of 16 October, which led to the making of this
complaint and the resignation of Mrs Stubbs as Clerk of the Parish Council.
These emails should be read in conjunction with the emails attached at
Appendix B, insofar as they apply to Mrs Stubbs.

20. Mrs Stubbs says that she was appointed Clerk to Bunbury Parish Council in
April 2010 and that she was contracted to work 11 hours per week. Mrs
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Stubbs says that she was aware from the beginning of the tensions regarding
the proposed development of the land at Wyche Lane, Bunbury by the Muir
Housing Group and Councillor McCormack’s interest in that matter. She says
that she was, therefore, very aware of receiving confidential information and
ensuring that it was dealt with without breaching the confidentiality.

21. Mrs Stubbs says that initially Councillor McCormack’s interest was not a
problem but since August 2011 Counciflor McCormack, along with former
Councillor Waits and her partner, James Walton, starting bombarding her
Parish Clerk email address with emails regarding the Muir development and
associated issues. As time went on the tone of the emails worsened and there
was a lot of criticism of her actions as Clerk, which she believes are totally
unfounded. To answer all these emails necessitated her working much longer
periods that those for which she was contracted.

22. On 16 October 2011 Mrs Stubbs received another email from Councilior
McCormack (see Appendix A). The manner in which Councillor McCormack
expected her to do her job was completely unprofessional, its contents were
derogatory and she believed it was an attempt to bully her to do what he
wanted. Immediately prior to that date, Mrs Stubbs had been considering
resigning from her position and, on receipt of the email, she promptly did.

Allegations by Erica Partridge

23. Although the complaint form (Appendix B) was completed by the then Clerk,
Mrs Alex Stubbs, the supporting documentation was prepared by Mrs Partridge
and | have only interviewed her in connection with the second complaint. At
this stage, | shouid point out that Mrs Partridge resigned from Bunbury Parish
Council on 06 March 2012 and has indicated in her statement (Appendix E)
that she does not wish to proceed with the complaints in respect of any matters
against Councillor McCormack. | have explained to Mrs Partridge that once a
complaint has been referred for investigation, the investigation will be
completed and it will be for the Standards Committee to decide how it wishes to
deal with the report of the investigation.

24. It will be seen from the documentation attached to the form of complaint
(Appendix B) that Mrs Partridge submitted two sets of documents - the first
headed 'Query to Monitoring Officer re Bunbury Parish Councillors and
Potential Breach of Code of Conduct’ (part of Appendix B) and the second
headed 'Comments relating to Councillor ...". There is a separate set of
‘Comments’ for each then Councilior and those relating to Councilior
McCormack are attached at Appendix C.

25. In the complaint Mrs Partridge says that Councillor McCormack has displayed a
lack of respect for her in the emails that he sent to her and she believes this
contravenes paragraph 3(1) of the Code. Mrs Partridge also says that she
considers those emails, when coupled with those sent by Mrs Waits and Mr
Walton have been threatening and bullying which has made the whole situation
disturbing to her.

26. Mrs Partridge claims that the emails from Councillor McCormack to Mrs Stubbs
were seeking to compromise the independence of the Parish Clerk in her
duties which she believes contravenes paragraph 3(2)(d) of the Code.
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Whilst the complaint refers to a potential breach of paragraph 4(a), there is
nothing in the complaint documentation to suggest that Councilior McCormack
has disclosed confidential information.

Response from Councillor McCormack

The first allegation

28.

29.

30.

31.

Councillor McCormack’s approach towards the development proposal is set out
in some detail in his statement (Appendix F, paragraphs 4-10). Whilst he
acknowledges that he has a personal and prejudicial interest in matters
concerned with the development because of his landholdings in the vicinity of
the development site, he says that the manner in which the proposed
developer, Muir Housing Group, has conducted itself has created a lack of
trust. He quotes examples where Muir's representatives have accepted that
they ‘had been less than economical with the truth’ to the Cheshire East
planning department, the Parish Council and the Planning Inspectorate. The
original proposals had drawn overwhelming objection from the village and the
present proposal for which planning permission has been granted is stili not
welcomed by many in the village.

When Mrs Partridge became Chair of the Parish Council and Alex Stubbs
joined as the new Clerk, the manner in which Council meetings were run
changed and became much more formal. At this time, 2010, the proposed
development was, in Councillor McCormack’s view, the most controversial
issue on the Council agenda and, aithough planning permission had been
granted there were still planning and legal issues that required resolution. In
September/Qctober 2010, at a Parish Council meeting, Councilior McCormack
asked the Chair and the Clerk whether they had read all the files relating to
Muir. He advised the Clerk of the discussions that he had had with Muir and
decided to give the Clerk a file on the contractual issues that he had with Muir
so that she could inform the Parish Council. He was very concerned that Muir
would not necessarily be totally truthful with the Parish Council and that the
Council could end up being embroiled in a legal dispute which they could not
afford.

Prior to this period, the relationship between the previous Chair and Clerk and
Muir had been very formal and they did not trust Muir. His view was that the
Company'’s relationship with Mrs Partridge and Mrs Stubbs had become very
informal and Mrs Stubbs appeared to him to be very ‘chummy’ with Muir which
he found unsettling. Shortly after this Councillor and Mrs McCormack received
letter from the Parish Council asking them if they would surrender the access
to the field at the back of the development, a request that had previously been
made to them by Muir and refused by the McCormacks. It seemed strange to
him that the Parish Council was seeking something the developer wanted.
Later he saw a note of a meeting involving the developer and a neighbouring
resident, James Walton, at which Muir had said that the McCormacks could
cancel an option agreement which, legaily, was incorrect.

Running in parallel with this was the position of a long serving Parish
Councillor, Councitlor Dykes, who had always supported Muir. Councillor
McCormack believes that Councillor Dykes has a personal and prejudicial
interest in respect of the Muir Group and the manner in which Councillor Dykes
was treated by the Chair and Clerk was very different to the manner in which
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they treated other Parish Councillors. At the Parish Council meeting on 11
October 2011, Councillor Dykes told the meeting that Muir's selected contractor
had gone bust. Neither the Chair nor the Clerk confirmed or denied this and
Councillor McCormack was concerned that Councillor Dykes had information
that was not available to the other Parish Councillors or even Cheshire East
planners. He therefore wrote to the Clerk the following day expressing his
concern at that situation.

The response from the Clerk of 15 October was read by Councillor McCormack
in the lounge of Manchester Airport on 16 October when he was waiting to
board a plane for a business trip to the Sultanate. Councillor McCormack says
that the response seemed to him to confirm his concerns regarding the
relationship between the Clerk, the Chair, Councilior Dykes and Muir. He says
that he replied immediately because he wanted the Clerk to appreciate how
important the development argument is to many people in the village and that
her actions did not reflect that importance. He says that he was not trying to
bully her or show her lack of respect but merely trying to get her to understand
the situation and to represent the village.

The second allegation

33.

Councillor McCormack says that he does not socialise with Mr Walton, Mrs
Waits, Dennis Burrows (who he has known for 21 years), Davis Ellis or Sally
Beard, although, living near to them, he does come into contact with them from
to time. He says that he has had no discussion with any of them regarding the
manner in which village issues should be approached on the Parish Council.
He says that he sent very few emails to Mrs Partridge and that he has not been
disrespectful to her even though he had concerns at the manner in which she
was undertaking her role.

Councillor McCormack denies conniving with the other Councillors and says
that he has never sought to influence improperly the position of other
Councillors.

Facts

35. All the aliegations relate to matters flowing from the various emails attached as
Appendices or part Appendices to this report. All were sent and received by
the persons identified in them. There are no other material findings of fact.

36. At this stage | should point out that there are a number of side issues which

have been introduced by Councillor McCormack which may well have
influenced his conduct. Those side issues do not directly relate to the
substantive issues alleged in the complaint documents and it is not for me fo
determine the accuracy of Councillor McCormack’s concerns e.g. regarding
Councillor Dykes’ potential interest and the relationship between Mrs Partridge,
Mrs Stubbs, Councillor Dykes and Muir.

Application of the Code to the facts found

37. The first matter to determine is the application of the Code of Conduct. The

emails sent by Councillor McCormack were sent to Mrs Stubbs and Mrs
Partridge in their respective capacities as Clerk and Chair of the Parish Council
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and related to the business of the Parish Council or the manner in which Mrs
Stubbs was undertaking her duties as Clerk. Therefore paragraph 2(a) applies
and Councillor McCormack was conducting the business of the Parish Council.

The first allegation

38.

39.

40.

Officers of a local authority must expect, from time to time, that Counciilors will
be critical of actions taken or proposed by them, particularly where there are
differences of opinion. Such criticism, provided it is fair and reasonable, will
not cross the threshold to bring it within paragraph 3(1) of the Code. The issue
is whether the content of Councillor McCormack’s emails and, particularly, the
one of 16 October 2011 lacked the level of respect required of a Councilior.
The threshold above which conduct would breach the Code under this
paragraph was considered in Adjudication Panel decision APE 0409 (March
2009) where the Tribunat said -

51. “In the Tribunal’s view it was desirable that the threshold for a failure to
treat another with respect be set at a level that allowed for the minor
annoyances and on occasions bad manners which are part of life. During
the course of their work people often show a lack of consideration or bad
manners but it is not desirable that every such slight should be considered
a breach of the Code. To set too low a level might lead to complaints that
were about little other than a difference of opinion over the wording of a
letter or what amounts to rudeness and for this reason the Tribunal thinks
that not every instance of bad manners or insensitive comment should
amount to a failure to treat another with respect.”

it is therefore necessary to consider the wording of the email in the context of
the points made by Councilior McCormack in his statement (Appendix F,
paragraphs 4-10). A lot of the early criticism in the email, in my opinion, does
not cross the threshold set out in the above decision. The fifth paragraph
compares the manner in which the previous Clerk undertook the role with the
manner in which Mrs Stubbs was doing so. Councillor McCormack appears {o
be saying that the previous Clerk undertook the role as a local resident and not
as a professional person and that he expected Mrs Stubbs to adopt the same
stance. Parish Clerks should be professional and objective and should not be
influenced by personal views on a parish issue, regardless of whether or not
they live in the village or parish. In my opinion, these statements go beyond
the threshold in the above decision - they are not insensitive comments; they
are effectively saying that ‘you should not be in the job, because you are not
considering matters from the villager's perspective’. A Clerk must never allow
a personal view to supersede a professional one.

Whilst | understand Councillor McCormack believed that Muir were
manipulating the position and that Mrs Partridge and Mrs Stubbs appeared to
be leading the Parish Council down a route that was against the villagers’
wishes, | also understand the manner in which Mrs Partridge in particular was
seeking to use her knowledge to give the village a measure of protection, given
that planning permission had, by this time, been issued for a limited
development. The more formal approach to Council business adopted by Mrs
Partridge ensured that action taken was in accordance with decisions made by
the Council. The extent to which villagers are against the approved
development may not be a strong as Councillor McCormack makes out and
there is no doubt in my mind that Councillor McCormack’s personal
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involvement with Muir, particularly with regard to various legal issues that were
outstanding between he and his wife and Muir, were influencing his approach
as a councillor and that some of the issues that he was raising were issues
which, if discussed at an open meeting of the Parish Council, would have
needed him to declare a personal and prejudicial interest and to leave the
meeting.

| conclude that there has been failure by Councillor Gary McCormack to
comply with paragraph 3(1) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council
in that, the contents of the email dated 16 October 2011 go beyond reasonable
criticism of an employee and show a complete lack of respect for the position
of Parish Clerk.

The second allegation

42.

43.

44,

45.

The first three parts of this allegation relate to lack of respect to and/or bullying
of Mrs Partridge and conduct likely to compromise the impartiality of those who
work for or on behalf of the authority. The basis of these claims are founded
on the email correspondence involving Mrs Waits, Mr Walton and Councillor
McCormack on the one side and Mrs Stubbs and Mrs Partridge on the other.

Mrs Partridge is a professional person and it is clear to me that her approach
towards the role and responsibilities of the post of Chairman of the Parish
Council were well-intentioned. In relation to the Muir development site and
associated issues, Mrs Partridge considered the issues involved and ensured
that the Muir business was properly deait with by the Council. 1t is also clear to
me that the history of the development site and adjoining land was a cause for
concern within Bunbury, particularly for the residents of Wyche Lane.

From August 2011 the email correspondence increased, far beyond the
capagcity of the Clerk in terms of her contracted hours. The tone of the emails
also changed - when | interviewed another former Councillor in connection with
a paraliel complaint, he used the word ‘vitriolic’. Advice had previously been
obtained from the Deputy Monitoring Officer and the manner in which this had
been obtained and its specific application gave rise to further emails and
complaints about the manner in which it was procured. It is clear both Mrs
Stubbs and Mrs Partridge were becoming concerned at the ability of the Parish
Council to deal with the barrage of emails and the extent of their requirements.
Mrs Stubbs had already made up her mind that she no longer wanted to
continue in post and she gave notice terminating her employment. To a certain
extent this left Mrs Partridge exposed and it was the continual email barrage
that gave rise to her request to Mrs Stubbs to submit the complaint to the
Standards Committee.

Turning to the specific issues, the first is an allegation of a failure by Councilior
McCormack to respect Mrs Partridge. Mrs Partridge refers to the emails
attached at Appendix B. These are the only emails that have been submitted
in support of the complaint against Councillor McCormack. People holding
responsible positions within local government must accept the possibility of
criticism from feliow Councillors and members of the public. 1find nothing in
those emails that | believe shows any disrespect to Mrs Partridge either in her
capacity as Chairman of the Council or in her personal capacity.
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| conclude that there has been no failure by Councillor Gary McCormack to
comply with paragraph 3(1) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council
in that, in email correspondence to Erica Partridge during 2011, he did not fail
to treat her with respect.

Mrs Partridge in the complaint documents considered herself to be the subject
of a bullying campaign against her by Councilior McCormack as a resuit of the
emails from Councillor McCormack and those from Mrs Waits and Mr Walton
covering the same issues. She says that she felt extremely uncomfortable and
threatened by her conclusion as to the combined approach from the three
individuals. The emails do cover the same issues but that is unsurprising. The
tone of the email exchanges shows that both ‘sides’ were becoming
entrenched. | can understand Mrs Partridge feeling that what was happening
was not why she had agreed to be a Parish Councillor and | can see that this
has led to her decision to resign. However, | cannot take into account Mr
Walton's emails, as, at ali material times, he was a member of the public, and
there is insufficient adverse commentary in the other emails for me to conclude
that there has been a campaign of bullying against Mrs Partridge by Councillor
McCormack. | have reached a similar conclusion in respect of the complaint
against Mrs Waits. .

| conclude that there has been no failure by Councillor Gary McCormack to
comply with paragraph 3(2)(b) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish
Council in that, in email correspondence to Mrs Partridge during 2011 and his
general conduct towards Mrs Partridge during the same period, he did not bully
Mrs Partridge.

The next issue is paragraph 3(2)(d) of the Code. This refers to a Member
doing anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the impartiality of
those who work for, or on behalf of, the authority. Mrs Partridge refers in the
complaint to information given to her by other councillors regarding the conduct
and expectations of Councitlor McCormack towards those councillors. In my
opinion, this sub-paragraph only covers employees of the Council and it is only
those relating to the Parish Clerk that need to be considered under this
heading. Having considered all the material before me relating to Councillor
McCormack, whilst there is criticism, justified or not, I find nothing to suggest
that the Clerk was being coerced into a compromised position.

| conclude that there has been no failure by Councillor Gary McCormack to
comply with paragraph 3(2)(d) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish
Coungcil in that, his conduct towards the then Parish Clerk, Mrs Stubbs, did not
seek to compromise the impartiality of Mrs Stubbs.

As | have already said at paragraph 27 above, there is nothing in the complaint -
documentation which suggests that Councilior McCormack has breached
confidentiality. | can only assume that Mrs Partridge was referring here to
Councillor McCormack’s various attempts (see paragraph 3 of Appendix C) to
obtain information about the decisions that were being taken with regard to the
Muir development. Whilst Councillor McCormack and other Parish Councillors
had declared personal and prejudicial interests in the development site and
adjoining land the Muir Sub-Committee should have been issuing minutes of
their meetings for public consumption even if those minutes would have been
short of substance on occasions through confidentiality or the existence of
exempt information. From what | have been told, it appears that this was not
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happening although that situation has now been rectified. However, whilst
Councillor McCormack’s behaviour at times may appear to be inappropriate,
bearing in mind the existence of his personal and prejudicial interest, such
conduct does not breach paragraph 4(a).

52. | conclude that there has been no failure by Councillor Gary McCormack to

comply with paragraph 4(a) of the Code of Conduct for Bunbury Parish Council
in that, he did not breach confidentiality.

Response to Draft Report

53. 1 have received responses from Mrs Partridge and Councillor McCormack and
these are attached at Appendices G & H. | have received no response from
Mrs Stubbs. | have made minor amendments to certain paragraphs as a result
of the comments

Finding

54. My finding is that there has been failure to comply with the Code of Conduct of
Bunbury Parish Council.

/ Y
Mike Dudfield
Investigator

28 July 2012
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Schedule of Evidence

Appendix A

Appendix B

Appendix C

Appendix D
Appendix E
Appendix F
Appendix G

Appendix H

Copy complaint form from Mrs Alex Stubbs with supporting
documentation in relation to the first ailegation

Copy complaint form from Mrs Alex Stubbs and ‘Query to Monitoring
Officer re Bunbury Parish Councillors and Potential Breach of Code of
Conduct’ in relation to the second allegation

Comments from Mrs Partridge and emails relating to Councitior
McCormack

Copy statement from Mrs Alexandra Stubbs dated 05 March 2012
Copy statement from Erica Partridge dated 20 February 2012

Copy statement from Councillor Gary McCormack dated 25 June 2012
Copy comments from Mrs Partridge to draft report

Copy emaiis from Councillor McCormack re draft report
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Code of Conduct — Borough, Parish/Town Councillors and Co-opted
Member(s). Please see attached explanatory notes.

Your details-

1.

v.1.5
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s with your name and contact details. (See

Explanatory Notes aftached)

Title: PSS

First name: LR

L.ast name: SRS

Address: R P AELDS
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Evening telephone: |\ 2C1 133202

Mobile telephone: | G1ANE A 70|

Email address:

Your address and contact detail

necessary or fo deal with your complaint.

Please tell us which complainant type best describes you:

:f-’:‘:i;l

Member of the public
An elected or co-opted Member(s) of an Authority
An independent Member(s) of the standards commitiee
Member(s) of Parliament
Local Authority Monitoring Officer

“Biher Cotineil Officer or employee of the-Couneil-
Other - please specify (PAENGY

Making your complaint (See Explanatory Notes attached.)

Please submit {0 -

bmb\/\@ el 0. com

s will not usually be released unless

The Monitoring Officer, Cheshire East Council, Westfields, Middlewich
Road, Sandbach, CW11 1HZ.
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You must make your complaint in writing
This complaint form has been produced in order to help you make your
complaint but you do not have to use it. Once you have made your
complaint, you will be told in writing what will happen to it.

Timeframe

Unless there are exceptional circumstances, events which took place
more than 12 months prior o the complaint being submitted, will not
normally be investigated.

Please provide us with the name of the Member(s) you believe have
breached the Code of Conduct and the name of their Authority:

Title | Firstname | Lastname Council or Authority name

e leEae  ImcCoimeex PANRULH e

L

Please explain in this section (or on separate sheets) what the
Member(s) has done that you believe breaches the Code of Conduct. If
you are complaining about more than one Member you shouid clearly
explain what each individual person has done which you beélieve
breaches the Code of Conduct. (See Explanatory Notes altached.)

Please provide us with details of your complaint. Continue on a
separate sheet if there is not enough space on this form.

PleosE see crocned) erroul doded

igth odipke 200 teconed) by ogelP

occueeS e o NG, 1O eSS
n ano Wage. and Yeodro the
clev e D 0S o ¢ Jcﬁo“% \ &?@e\ {/}OC\
YRG emoal 1S d@VOOfX\DM el

- N

g9

(cither typed or hand-written). o
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in the interests of fairness and natural justice, the Council believes that
Member(s) who are complained about have a right to know who has
made the complaint. The Council also believes they have a right to be
provided with a summary of the complaint. We are unlikely to withhold
your identity or the details of your complaint uniess you have good
reason. (See Explanatory Notes attached.) '

jon if you are requesting that your identity '

Please provide us with details of why you believe we should withhold
your name and/or the details of your complaint:

Additional Help

. As.noted in paragraph 3 ‘above (Making Your Complaint), complaints
must be submitted in writing. This includes fax and lectronic™

submissions. However, in line with the requirements of the Disability
Discrimination Act 2000, we can make reasonable adjustments to
assist you if you have a disability that prevents you from making your
complaint in writing.

We can also help if English is not your first Iahguage.

If you need any support in completing this form, please contact Diane
Moulson (Tel: 01270 686476).
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Nei}ﬁnd Alex Stubbs

To: <bunburyclerk@aot.com>
Sent: 16 October 2011 18:29
Subject: Re: Gary McCormack Muir

Alex
Very disappointed at the cavalier approach you have to reporting news to the members of the PC. | was under
the impression that you were the paid parish Council Clerk who reported to ail the Parish Council Members,

From your email it looks as if you report the information that you think is important to one member only. 1have
made it quite clear in ali my emails to you that | have given you as the Clerk information which | assumed you
passed on the the other members of the PC relating to all issues regarding Muir.

Reading your email it sounds as if you do not require my permission to forward the email on to Brian. | have
made it evidently clear that | and other members of the PC do believe that Brian has a prejudicial interest in the
Muir development. it is well documented and Brian never stops talking about Muir,

Regardless. Why did you not inform PC Members?

Why did you not mention any of the above at the PC meeting?

Why did you not support Brain at the meeting by informing the rest of the PC that you had informed Brian some
weeks ago but had not thought it important to notify any PC members?

Alex -

Our last Clerk Colin Knowles lived in the village and if you have read his correspondence to Muir. You will be
aware of what he stood for, From my point of view you treat Bunbury as a job. You have no interest in
Bunbury. You do not live in the village and from your actions you have your own inner circle who are receiving
information excluding other PC Members.

The proposed development is a very important issue in the Village and if you are not informing members
correctly or the minutes are not being updated with information that other PC members should be made aware
of then we have a big problem.

| am just flying to the Middle East. So will pick up mails in the morning.
Alex, | do not have a problem sending this email to all members of the PC,

| await your reply.
Gary

On 15/10/2011 16:48, *hunburyclerk@aol,com” <bunburyclerk@aol.com> wrote:

Hi Gary

| knew that RBL had gone bust, Tracey Ashton told me it was a possibility ages ago when |
phoned her about floor levels af the development. | also checked the internet and found it
was true. I've probably told Brian at some point as it wasn't a secret.

Can | forward your email to Brian so that he can answer your accusation directly?

Alex

01/11/2011
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Page 2 of 2

~---0Original Message-----

" To: BunburyClerk <bunburyclerk@aol.com>
Sent; Wed, 12 Oct 2011 10:18
Subject: Gary McCormack Muir

Hi Alex

Re last nights meeting.

Just wanted to raise a concern about Muir. 1 have been in contact with Stephen Irvine at Cheshire
East Stephen irvine

Planning and Development Manager. He had no information as to what had happened at the Muir

site. His reply was

Gary, :
Not a jot 'm afraid. '} follow it up tomorrow.
Regards,

How come the only person who had any information was Brian Dykes? He informed the PC that
RBL Construction had gone bust.

Cheshire Fast had no news.
Michael Jones had no News
My Lawyers had no News,

1 did not want to bring this issue up in the meeting as Brian was pleased with his new awarded
honour.

As | have highlighted before Brian should be declaring a private and prejudicial interest regarding
Muir Homes.
Regards Gary

01/11/2011
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COMPLAINT FORM

Code of Conduct — Borough, Parish/Town Councillors and Co-opted
Member(s). Please see attached explanatory notes.

Your details-

1. Please provide us with your name and contact details. (See
Explanatory Notes attached)

Title: IMNEES, .

First name: LEEX

Last name: &S )x(%?)‘ff)

Address: O CcoPRELAELIDSS
TR FeA2d 5

cHeeHhiPe Clido auP
Daytime telephone: |\ @2 7122952
Evening telephone: | ~ i) "“L%?Z) DD
Mobile telephone:

Email address: bumﬁd@k,(o)m\ COr .

Your address and contact details will not usually be released unless
necessary or to deal with your complaint.

2. Please tell us which complainant type best describes you:

[[] Member of the public
[[] Anelectedor co-opted Member(s) of an Authority
(1 Anindependent Member(s) of the standards commitiee
] Member(s) of Parliament

(] |local Authority Monitoring Officer

[[] Other Council Officer or employee of the Councit

Other - please specify (.

3. Making your complaint (See Explanatory Notes attached.)

Please submif to -

The Monitoring Officer, Cheshire East Council, Westfields, Middlewich
Road, Sandbach, CW11 1HZ.

v.1.5
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How fo make a complaint

You must make your complaint in writing (either typed or hand-written).
This complaint form has been produced in order to help you make your
complaint but you do not have to use it. Once you have made your
complaint, you will be told in writing what will happen to it.

Timeframe

Unless there are exceptional circumstances, events which took place
more than 12 months prior to the complaint being submitted, will not
normally be investigated.

Please provide us with the name of the Member(s) you believe have
breached the Code of Conduct and the name of their Authority:

Title | First name | Last name Council or Authority name

M | Gl | LWoen TS RunNBue Pe.
2 | GR2H lmea@mb " N
M2 DAUD | £S5 ™ -
me, | eaus] | BeaeD h H

Please explain in this section (or on separate sheets) what the
Member(s) has done that you believe breaches the Code of Conduct. if
you are complaining about more than one Member you should clearly
explain what each individual person has done which you believe
breaches the Code of Conduct. (See Explanatory Notes aftached.)

Please provide us with details of your complaint. Continue on a
separate sheet if there is not enough space on this form.

PLEASE SEE& ATTACHED WNOTES

A EYNEN LSS




Page 264

Only compilete this section if you are requesting that your identity
is kept confidential

In the interests of fairness and natural justice, the Council believes that
Member(s) who are complained about have a right to know who has
made the complaint. The Council also believes they have a right to be
provided with a summary of the complaint. We are unlikely to withhold
your identity or the details of your complaint unless you have good
reason. (See Explanatory Notes attached.)

Please provide us with details of why you believe we should withhold
your name and/or the details of your complaint:

Additional Help

As noted in paragraph 3 above (Making Your Complaint), complaints
must be submitted in writing. This includes fax and electronic
submissions. However, in line with the requirements of the Disability
Discrimination Act 2000, we can make reasonable adjustments to
assist you if you have a disability that prevents you from making your
complaint in writing.

We can also help if English is not your first language.

If you need any support in completing this form, please contact Diane
Moulson (Tel: 01270 686476).
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Neil and Aigx Stubbs
From: "Partridges” <ep.partridges@bfinfernet.com>
To: "Atex Stubbs® <bunburyclerk@aol.com>

Sent: 04 January 2012 22:35

Attach:  Councillor Jill Waits emails re declarations of interest.doc; Councillor Sally Beard emails re
declaration of interests.doc; Counciflor David Ellis Emails.doc; Councillor Gary McCormack
emails,doc; Muir Land various interests plan.pdf; vy Cottage objection to planning application 11
2423 N S 73 application.pdf; Edinbane James Walton letter to Muir re 873 application 2423N.pdf,
Edinbane Cottage objection to planning application 11 2423N S73 Application.pdf, D Ellis Objection
Letter 07.08.110001.pdf; James Walton example emails.doc; Jill Waits emails regarding other
councillors.doc; Councillor Jilt Waits confirmation of appointment letter.doc; Bunbury Parish Council
Query to Monitoring Officer Parish Councillors.doc

Subject: Query to Monitoring Officer re Non Compliance with the Code of Conduct 4 January 2012

Dear Alex

Paragraph 30 of the Bunbury Parish Council Standing Orders require that | notify you of any breaches in the Code
of Conduct,

Please see the attached documents explaining where there may be breaches of the Code of Conduct by
Councillors Waits, Ellis, Beard and McCormack. if you agree it would be appreciated if you could forward these to
the Monitoring Officer at Cheshire East Council.

| have copied various relevant emails into word documents and coloured them up to mark breaks in the links. { am
happy to provide any further information which is requested.

As you know the Parish Council have now introduced standing orders that correspondence must be sent by post
to the clerks address and reply will be by post to limitemail access but it would be appreciated if the Monitoring
Officer could also be requested, when replying, to provide any advice which may assist on how to manage this
very unpleasant and complicated situation. :

Youirs sincerely

Erica Partridge
Chairman, Bunbury Parish Council

09/01/2012
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Query to Monitoring Officer re Bunbury Parish Councillors
and Potential Breach of Code of Conduct

| am writing to express my concerns regarding the actions of a number of Parish Councillors as
it appears that they may be in breach of the Code Of Conduct and the decision of the
Monitoring Officer is requested on this matter.

| have set out the background {o the issues below with a separate page relating to each of the
Parish Councillors concemned as there are different issues relating to each person.

Background

1.

The issues arise in relation to the development of some land at Wyche Lane, Bunbury
by Muir Group Housing Association. Muir have planning permission to build 10
affordable homes on the land edged red which included a gate into the field (edged
biue) at the rear of the housing land with a restriction that the access point is to be used
for maintenance only. At a public meeting some years ago prior to the original planning
approval Muir offered to transfer the land edged blue to the Parish Council (this was not
a condition of the planning consent). Muir secured funding for the development and, in
Autumn 2010, they began pre commencement discussions with the owners of the land
coloured yellow and the Parish Council in refation to the transfer of the blue land.

| have attached a plan which shows the following

- the Muir housing land edged red (the houses have not been built yet)

- the land offered to the Parish Council edged biue

- the land owned by Ciir Gary McCormack coloured yellow with one field also edged
purple

. the land owned by Clirs David Eflis, Sally Beard and Dennis Burrows coloured
orange (Clir Burrow has recently retired so this query does not relate to him)

- the home of Clir Waits coloured orange (she shares this property with her partner,
James Waiton) as their home but she is not an owner

. whether those houses neighbouring the land have objected to planning application
11/2423N (explained in 5 below) 'O’ or not objected ‘N’

James Walton is Secretary of the Local Conservative Club and Clirs Waits and
McCormack are active members of the club and are close associates and friends as
well as neighbours, This also brings them into association with Michael Jones, our
Borough Councilior, 1t is clear from numerous comments to me by Clir Waits that she
regularly discusses Parish Council matters with Michael Jones. At recent Parish Council
meetings Michael Jones has made his apologies and sent his report via Clir Waits
without contacting the Clerk and he asked Clir Waits to represent him to lay a wreath at
the armistice day service in Bunbury.

Clir Mc Cormack has acquired the land edged yellow in a number of tranches. He lives
in the house called ‘Fairview’ as his home and over recent years has acquired the other
tand holdings now all coloured yellow. Both Muir and Clir McCormack have confirmed
that Clir McCormack had offered to acquire the blue land from Muir at a price of £6000
with a proposal that Muir transfer the £6000 to the Parish Council and not the land. Muir
have stated to me that Clir McCormack also expressed inferest in buying the red land
off them. The previous owners of the yellow/purple field sold the red and blue land fo
Muir, including covenants for Muir to conhstruct an accessway across the biue land to
adoptable standard, or to the satisfaction of the planning authority on construction of the
houses on the red land (the Muir cul de sac will not be adopted). The covenants in this
contract potentially impact on the blue land in a number of ways and the Parish Council
have commissioned legal advice on this matter and our negotiations in relation to the
transfer of the blue land consequently involve Clir McCormack as well as Muir. These
are not finalised yet, but following discussions over this period terms have been

1
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provisionally agreed for the Parish Council to have a ten year legal option for a transfer
of the blue land for a peppercorn and soligitors are dealing with these contracts. Clir
McCormack has openly stated that his solicitors will serve an injunction on Muir to
prevent the start of construction if the terms of his contract are not met. Failure to reach
agreement on this matter could potentially result in the houses not being constructed.
Muir also have a legal option to acquire the yellow/purple field if they obtain planning
permission to construct houses on it. This can only be withdrawn with Clir McCormack's
consent which has not been forthcoming. The presence of the option is a contributing
factor to the opposition to the S73 variation application referred to below.

The accessway coloured green therefore impacts not only on the blue land it crosses
but also the the red land (as refusal or non compliance with Clir McCormacks contract
may result in the houses not proceeding) and the yellow/purple fand it gives access to
(as opposers of the houses are claiming the access will open this field to development).

5. Muir submitted a S73 planning application No. 11/2423N in August 2011 for a variation
of the original conditions fo construct the accessway required by Clir McCormack’s
contract in the position shown by the green line and fo remove the condition restricting
access to the blue land to maintenance only as this would effectively prevent a transfer
of that land fo the Parish Council who would need to use it for community purposes. The
proposal is for the green accessway to have a ‘Toptrek’ agricultural type surface and to
be 4.5m wide to ensure compliance with planhing and contract standards. This
application has still not been to Cheshire East Planning Committee.

6. Clir Ellis and James Walton (Clir Waits' partner) have both objected to application
11/2423N. Cirs Beard, Waits, Burrows and McCormack have not. Clir McCormack
purchased the yellow/purple field subject to the existing option agreement referred to in
point 5 above and that contract requires the owners of the field fo support any planning
application made by Muir and so prevent him from making a formal objection.

Declaration of Interests and Code of Conduct

7. it has been necessary for the Parish Councillors who live in Wyche Lane to consider

whether they have a personal and/or prejudicial interest to declare in relation to the

. above matters. The sequence of relevant events are set out below. Copies of relevant

correspondence and emails are in separate attachments. Initially the discussions dealt

with just the offer by Muir to transfer the land as the necessity for a further planning

application did not arise until the summer of 2011. It could be that the decision may be
different in relation to each aspect by individual councillors.

8. Prior to October 2010 the Muir matters had been dealt with on the basis that :

- Clir McCormack declared a personal and prejudicial interest in anything relating to
the contracts and planning application 11/2423N and was hot present when these
were discussed. He did not declare any interest for purely factual matters relating to
the development eg information on the development programme/aliocation of the
houses. He has continued on this basis to date and there is no query on this point in
relation to Clir McCormack;

- the other Clirs neighbouring the land did not declare any interest

. | discussed this with the Clerk as | wondered whether this was correct, particularly
as Clir Burrows made statements such as ‘we don’t want allotments behind us as
they look untidy’ ‘we don’t want an orchard as kids will throw apples at our windows'
'‘Gary will maintain the land in good condition if it is sold to him'. As the matters are
so complicated she agreed to consider it;

9. On 18" November 2010 Clir Waits sent the attached email (pages 14/156 of JWs
emails), stating that she was ‘potentially affected’ by the transfer/use of the blue land
as were the Clirs Ellis, Burrows and Beard, effectively declaring an interest herself and

2
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Page 268

guerying whether her neighbours should also declare an interest. Due to the
complications | agreed with the Clerk that she would request the advice of the
Monitoring Officer. She later confirmed to me that she had described various applicable
locations in relation to the blue land to Julie Openshaw who considered the situation
and sent the email reply dated 29" November 2010 (page 10 of JWs emails) which is
attached.

Julie Openshaw’s email was circulated to Parish Councillors at the Parish Council
meeting in December 2010 under ‘declarations of interest on the agenda. Those
affected Clirs who were present (Clirs Beard and Burrows) then declared a personal
and prejudicial interest in relation to the blue land and continued to act accordingly. Clir
Waits was not at the meeting so the Clerk contacted her afterwards the emails on 16"
December (pages 11/12 refer to this conversation). Clir Waits accepted without further
quety that she had a personal and prejudicial interest in relation to the blue land and
continued to act accordingly. Clir Ellis became a Parish Councilior in January 2011 and
he was informed of the position which he queried but accepted would also apply to him
and he continued to act accordingly.

The Parish Council decided that discussions relating to the blue land would be held
separately as this would avoid 5 Clirs having to leave the room and consequent
interruption to the meeting and that a number of the matiers were subject to
contract/commercially sensitive and not suitable for a public meeting. These meetings
were known as the ‘Muir Sub Committee’ although it was actually the full Parish Council
excluding the public and Clirs with declared prejudicial interests. Initially the advice and
meetings were in relation fo the transfer and other contractual issues relating to the blue
land, the need for the planning application arose later.

When Muir submitted planning application 11/2423N Clirs McCormack, Waits, Beard,
Burrows and Eflis all declared a personal and prejudicial interest in that application. It
was discussed at the public Parish Council meeting on gth August. Before withdrawing
from the meeting Clir Waits asked to make a statement in which she asked the Parish
Council to consider whether a public meeting would be helpful.

On September 12" 2011 Clir McCormack wrote to the Clerk asking for a copy of Jufie
Openshaws email advising on the conflict of interest (P6 of GM emails) and saying that
the Wyche Lane Parish Councillors ‘about forming another Parish Council Sub
Committee to protect our interests’.

After that a series of emails were received from James Walton on this matter
culminating in a complaint against the Clerk which has now been withdrawn. He also
made a Freedom of Information Act request for ail the discussions/correspondence
relating to the Muir Sub Committee meetings. | will comment further on James Walton
later. This was followed by queries from Clirs Waits and Beard on this matter and further
queries from Clir McCormack. Clir Waits then informed the Parish Council that she was
‘disapplying’ her former declaration of interest and requested all the emails etc relating
to the Muir Sub Committee discussions.

To resolve this issue | decided to hold all matters relating to Muir in abeyance pending
further guidance being requested from the Monitoring Officer, Caroline Ellwood. She
replied that she was unable to give detailed guidance but Julie Openshaw provided a
copy of the explanatory guidance on the code of conduct which is most helpful. This
was issued to all the councillors.

At the request of Clir Waits matters relating to the Muir land were included in the
agenda of the 13" December 2011 meeting. The Wyche Lane Clirs were asked if they
had any interest to declare or any further queries, Clirs Waits, Beard and Ellis advised
that they did not (reversing their earlier declaration of interests) and Clir McCormack
advised he would declare a personal and prejudicial interest relating to the Muir land

3
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and he left the room during the discussion. Clir Waits proposed that the Parish Council
open up their previous decision relating to planning application 11/2423N to allow the
Wyche Lane Councillors to contribute, this was seconded and councillors voted to re
discuss the matter. The discussion also involved contractual matters relating to the blue
land as the issues are interlinked. On a further vote the original decision was confirmed.

Original Application : | was not a councillor at the time but my understanding from those
who were is that no personal or prejudicial interests were ever declared. The Chairman
at the time was Clir Dennis Burrows and the then Clerk, Colin Knowles, was a close
associate with him from their membership of the Tarporley British Legion. As a village
resident | could not understand why the Parish Council were so vehemently opposed to
much need affordable homes but it appears that several then Parish Councillors lived in
Wyche Lane.

It appears to me that the Parish Councillors who live in Wyche Lane should declare a
personal and probably a prejudicial interest in relation to the Muir Land planning
11/2423N application and transfer and use of the blue land and in rescinding their
previous declarations of personal and prejudicial interest that they may now be in
breach of the Code of Conduct. The Monitoring Officers advice is requested on this
matter. As the circumstances of each are different | have made separate comments on
each coungcillor concerned below.
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Comments relating to Councillor McCormack

1. Councillor McCormack aftends Parish Council meetings only occasionally (he travels
abroad a fot) and undertakes few of the tasks he is allocated. He is most affected by the
Muir housing development as he owns fand all round it. His home is Fairview and he
has recently purchased ‘The Grange’ which is a dilapidated property. He is open about
seeking to prevent the development and that his solicitors will serve injunctions on Muir
if they do not behave in accordance with their contract, which could be the case if
planning consent is refused for a suitable accessway.

2. He could resolve a number of residents concerns relating to the planning application
11/2423N but has declined to do so, which | accept is his right as a private individual ;
- the Parish Council have asked if he would agree to abandon the requirement for the
accessway as he now has alternative access to the purple field, but he has declined
- Muir have asked if he will agree to them rescinding the option agreement on the
purple field but he has declined
- in a meeting with Muir he requested the access be wider and to adoptable standard.

3. Under Muir's option agreement for the purple land the landowner must support Muir's
planning applications and this prevents Clir McCormack from overtly objecting to the
application. Consequently Clir McCormack consistently seeks to raise concerns with
others to influence them fo raise objections. This has become evident in a number of
ways
- whenever he has an opportunity he raises questions with the Muir Sub Committee

members o seek information on what was discussed, this became such a problem
at one meeting that | afterwards had to remind Clirs that the Muir Sub Committee
meetings were confidential ;

- Clirs Burrows and Ellis have told me that he consistently approaches them to
discuss the matter if he sees them in their garden to the extent that it is a nuisance;

- when discussing his objection to application 11/2423N with me Clir Ellis said he was
‘sick of being Gary's stooge’;

- Clir Eric Lord contacted me in a very worried state because Clir McCormack had
told him that taking the biue land could cause a considerable financial liability for the
Parish Council and he was extremely worried about this (he is 83 years old). | had to
assure him that the matter was covered in the legal advice received and contract
agreements and he resolved not to discuss this further with Clir McCormack;

- Clir McCormack aggressively queried the declarations of interests of other
councillors but could not progress this as his own position was clear;

- he stated he was discussing setting up a counter Muir sub committee comprising
Wyche Lane Cllrs to protect their interests.

4, Clirs McCormack’s emails to the clerk have been aggressive and bullying. He made an
unimportant matter of a change in Muirs contractor into an abusive personal attack on
the clerk claiming she should distribute all information to every councilior. In the
December Parish Council meeting he criticised the Clerk for sending him too may
emails containing council information and requested that she should edit what he
receives.

5. They also raise the same issues in the same time frame as Clir Waits and James
Waiton. No other councillors raise these issues. This bullying campaign is extremely
unpleasant. | consider myself also to be bullied by these emails as they appear to be
demonstrating how they (James Walton, Gary McCormack and Jill Waits) will approach
individuals who exercise disagreement with them. This makes me feel extremely
uncomfortable and threatened.
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It therefore appears to me that Clir McCormack may have broken the following codes of
conduct:

3 (1) ‘treat others with respect’

3 (2) (b) ‘bullying’

3 (2) (d) “likely to compromise the impartiality of those who work for your authority’
Potentially 4 (a) ‘disclosure of confidential information’

10
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EMAILS RELATING TO COUNCILLOR GARY MCCORMACK

----- Original Message -----

From: David:Robinson

To: 'IRVINE, Steve' (Steve.lrvine@ch shireeast.qov.uk) ; 'JONES, Michael (Councillor)' ; JEFFREY,

Vikki (Vikki.Jeffrey@cheshireeast.gov.uk) ; Sheila Whitton {Sheila, Whitlon@Weighimans.com) ;

bunburyclerk@aol.com
Ce: Tracey Ashion
Sent: Thursday, December 08, 2011 2:25 PM

Subject: Wyche Lane, Bunbury

Good afternoon all

{ wanted to take this opportunity to advise you of Mulr’s position regarding the above:

1. Section 73 Application
The Application has been submitted, we understand that this will not be considered via delegated
authority but will go to a full planning committee. No date for this has been given to Muir.

| reiterate the application is to ensure that we can comply with our access obligations to the rear land
and is, in no way, an attempt for Muir to open up the rear land for future development.

a.

Meeting with Muir, Planners and Mr McCormack
This has still not taken place, nor Is there any date arranged.

| have given multiple dates that | can make a meeting to Steve and Ben, these included
dates where | had previous appointments but would have cancelled them. 1 also confirm
that | will be able to make any day, or evening in January (again this may been cancelling
current appointments but so be it). There is no benefit at all for Muir to delay this meeting;
I will let you decide If others feel they can benefit from an on-going delay.

2. Building Contract
The original contractor has now gone into liquidation. We have a new contractor ready to start on site
once the section 73 is approved by the LA

3. Rear Land and Muir's Future intentions

a,

In Muir’s ownership
We are finalising the Option Agreement with the Parish Council to transfer this land at a
peppercorn to the Parish. Itis hoped that the Option will be in place early in the New Year.

Remainder of the Field (in Mr McCormack’s ownership)

Muir has an Option on the remainder of the field owned by Mr McCormack. Our lawyers
advise that we cannot rescind this unilateraily, nor issue a Unifateral Undertaking {this
would be against the terms of said Option Agreement). Our Lawyers have formally
contacted Mr McCormack’s lawyer to ask for his approval to rescind the Option
Agreement. Despite chasing we have had no response from Mr McCormack nor his lawyer.

In this case it s quite obvious that there seems very little chance of Mr McCormack
releasing Muir from this Option Agreement when the Option Agreement is being used
against us by people objecting to this scheme.

Muir’s Future Intentions

For clarity purposes | reiterate that Muir has no intention of building any more units at
Wyche Lane, The proposed 10 affordable homes for local people constitute 100% of the
housing development that we wish to undertake on this site. We are, however, very happy

1
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to continue to work with the Parish council to develop community uses of the land to be
transferred to them,

| really am at a loss to understand the on-going reasons for the delay in allowing Muir to build out these
10 affordable homes for focal people; the reason for the section 73 application is clear and has nothing
at all to do with any further plans to develop and | fear that local objectors to this scheme are stmply
using this as a further attempt to kill off this development.

i trust the above helps set our Muir’s position
Regards
David

David Robinson

Director of Development

Muir Group Housing Association
Qakmere House,

Meres Edge Helsby Cheshire WAS 0DJ
Tel: 01928 728048 Fax: 0870 73156057

---- Original Message
From: Nick Parker

To: Pariridges
Sent: Monday, October 17, 2011 3:46 PM

Subject: Fw: Gary McCormack Muir
Dear Erica,

t am terribly upset to hear that Alex has felt the need to resign. I'm sure that you said everything which
was appropriate when you spoke with her earlier today. oo

Last evening | sent a lengthy reply fo Alex about Gary's e-mails to her which | think were nasty and
unreasonable. | have forwarded my reply to Alex to you. I'm sorry it's fong when you also are having to
read all manner of e-mails without my adding o it.

| tried to be as supportive as | could because | know you and Alex have been inundated with lots of
unreasonable e-mails from James, Gary and others they've leaned on to send them to you both.

| suspected last hight that Alex might be close to feeling "Enough was enough.”

To be truthful 'm feeling devastated by Alex's resignation. She is a lovely lady and has served the
Parish Council way beyond what we asked her to do when she was appointed. Alex has been a brilliant
clerk throughout her time with us and has gone beyond the call of duty.

 seriously think that Jill most certainly and probably Gary need fo consider their position on the Parish
Council. Maybe that is for another time. | don't believe they have done the 'right’ thing in all of the Muir
subject.

Would it be appropriate for me to send a carefully worded message to Alexor do think 1 should hold back
while she is so upset?

Regards,
Nick

Dear Alex
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I was extremely sorry to receive your letter of resignation and | accept it with regret. | will send a hard
copy of the attached letier in the post.

Thank you once again for everything you have done to help me and the Parish Coungil.
Kind Regards
Yours sincerely

Erica Partridge
Chairman, Bunbury Parish Council

=== Original Message - A
From: bunburyclerk@aol.com

To: ep.partridges@btinternet.com

Sent: Sunday, October 16, 2011 8:12 PM
Subject: Letier of Resignation

Hi Erica

| acfuatly wrote this before I received Garys email but it doesn't really make any difference, 'm fed up
with him and his insinuations. SR C ' -

Régards
Alex

e Qriginal Message -~
From: Parlridges ' -
To: Eric Lord : Dennis Burrows ; Gary McCormagck ; Jill Waits ; Sally Beard ; Nick Parker ; Mandy Jones ;
David Eilis ; Brian Dykes
Cc: Michae! Jones
Sent: Monday, October 17, 2011 3:43 PM
Subject: Fw: Gary McCormack Muir

Dear All

Alex has asked for Councillors opinions on the message below and she has consented to me including
her further reply to Councillor McCormack.

Councillor McCormack has not contacted me about this directly nor has he made any formal complaint to
me in respect of the Clerk. In the circumstances, | find the content of that part of Councillor McCormacks
email both distressing and shocking. 1 trust that Councillor McCormack will see fit to apologise to Alex as
. she has requested.

On other matters | make the following observations.

As Alex correctly states, the Code of Conduct applies to conflicts of interest and a number of Parish
Councillors have declared a personal and prejudicial interest in relation to the Muir Homes land,

All Parish Councillors have recently been reminded of their obligations refating to conflicts of interest and
how they need to consider this in relation to other actions and activities.

Most of the message appears to be about the reporting of the position on the Muir site to the Parish
Council last week. To clarify matters the sequence of events was as follows :

- { received a call from Alex advising that she had been contacted by Dennis to say the fencing had been

" removed from around the Muir site

- an email was also received from David Ellis on the same matter

- gs there was likely to be further questions to the Parish Council regarding this Alex said she wouid
contact Muir to establish the position

- as Alex was having to work from a public area due to internet problems | offered to contact Muir on this
point as it was important to have this infomation for last Tuesdays meeting

3
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-1 contacted Muir and | reported this to the Parish Council at Tuesdays meeting. | asked Muir to confirm
the position in writing to Alex which | note they have now done,

Regards
Erica

- Original Message -

Erom: bunburvclerk@aol.com

To: gme@csgd2.com

Ce: ep partridges@bfinternet.com , brian.dvkes@cheshireeast. gov.uk ;
michael.e.jones@cheshireeast.gov.uk

Sent: Sunday, October 16, 2011 8:26 PM

Subject: Re: Gary McCormack Muir

Gary

As you have declared a personal and prejudicial interest In the Muir development, | did not think it fitting
that this information was passed onto you from the Parish Council - you are in your own taiks with Muir
and | would expect this information to come via this route, just as | would not expect you to pass
information back from your meetings.

Brian is certainly not the only member of the Parish council who has the information. If you think that
Brian has a prejuducal interest then why do you not complain to the Standards Board?

i find your accusations outrageous and bullying. Yes, the Parish Clerk is a job which | approach as a
professional. | know i don't live in the village but think that this is a good thing as | provide an impartial
view and am not affiliated with an village groups. As far as | am concerned members are provided with
the correct informationat at all times. The minutes are a record of Parish Council decisions and are not
there to record gossip.

| await your apology.

Alex

From: "bunburyclerk@aocl.com” <bunburyclerk@aol.com>

To: b.dykes@btinternet.com, dennis.burrows@btopenworid.com; dellis? @tiscali.co.uk;
gmc@csqd2.com; ericlord2@hotmail.com; mandyjones21@btinternet.com; fillwaits@yahoo.co.uk;
nick.parker@homecall.co.uk; sallypbeard@fsmail.net; ep.partridges@biinternet.com

Sent: Sunday, 16 October 2011, 20:10

Subject: Fwd: Cary McCormack Muir
Dear All
Please can | have your comments on Garys email and if you concurr with his opinion.

Regards
Alex

————— Original Message----

From: CSQ Office <gmc@csy42.com>

To: bunburyclerk <bunburyclerk@aol.com>
Sent: Sun, 16 Oct 2011 19:29

Subject: Re: Gary McCormack Muir
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Alex

Very disappointed at the cavalier approach you have to reporting news to the members of the PC, |
was under the impression that you were the paid Parish Council Clerk who reported to ali the Parish
Council Members.

From your email it looks as if you report the information that you think is important to one member
only. | have made it quite clear in all my emails to you that | have given you as the Clerk information
which | assumed you passed on the the other members of the PC relating to all issues regarding Mulr,

Reading your email it sounds as if you do not require my permission to forward the email on to Brian. |
have made it evidently ciear that | and other members of the PC do believe that Brian has a prejudicial
interest in the Muir development. it is well documented and Brian never stops talking about Muir.

Regardiess. Why did you not inform PC Members?

Why did you not mention any of the above at the PC meeting?

Why did you not support Brain at the meeting by informing the rest of the PC that you had informed
Brian some weeks ago but had not thought it important to notify any PC members?

Alex

Our last Clerk Colin Knowles lived in the village and if you have read his correspondence to Muir. You
will be aware of what he stood for. From my point of view you treat Bunbury as a job. You have no
interest in Bunbury. You do not live in the village and from your actions you have your own inner circle
who are receiving information excluding other PC Members.

The proposed development is a very important issue in the Village and if you are not informing
members correctly or the minutes are not being updated with information that other PC members
should be made aware of then we have a big problem.

{ am just flying to the Middle East. So will pick up mails in the morning.
Alex, | do not have a problem sending this email to all members of the PC.

| await your reply.
Gary

On 15/10/2011 16:48, "bunburyclerk@aol.com” <hbunburyclerk@aol.com> wrote:
Hi Gary

| knew that RBL had gone bust, Tracey Ashion told me it was a possibility ages ago when |
phoned her about floor levels at the development. | also checked the internet and found it was
true. I've probably fold Brian at some point as it wasn't a secret.

Can | forward your email to Brian so that he can answer your accusation directly?

Alex

-—--Qriginal Message-----

£rom: C8Q Office <gmc@esg42.com>

To: BunburyClerk <bunburyclerk@aol.com>
Sent: Wed, 12 Oct 2011 10:18

Subject: Gary McCormack Muir.

Hi Alex
Re fast nights meeting.
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Just wanted fo raise a concern about Muir. | have been in contact with Stephen frvine at Cheshire East
Stephen frvine

Planning and Development Manager. He had no information as to what had happened at the Muir site.
His reply was

Gary,

Not a jot 'm afraid. I'll follow it up tomorrow.

Regards,

How come the only person who had any information was Brian Dykes? He informed the PC that RBL
Construction had gone bust,

Cheshire East had no news.
Michael Jones had no News
My Lawyers had no News.

| did not want to bring this issue up in the meeting as Brian was pleased with his new awarded honouy.

As | have highlighted before Brian should be declaring a private and prejudicial interest regarding Muir
Homes.
Regards Gary

~enw Original Message -—---
Frowe: Bunbury Parish

To: Gary McCormack

Ce: Erica Partridae ; Brian Dykes

Sent: Monday, September 19, 2011 10:11 AM
Subjest: Member's Interests query

Dear Gary

With regards to your emails dated 15th and 18th September, the letter was reported to all
mermbers during the December 2010 meeting which you didn't attend. | reported this fact to
you in an email dated 16th December 2010. It was also discussed when Mandy joined the PC
but it was decided that she didn't directly abut the site or overlook it and the exclusion criteria
would not therefore apply. The exclusion criteria does not apply to Brian either. David EHis was
not a councillor at the time the advice was raceived but his circumstances are such that the
advice applies to exclude him as having a personal and prejudicial interest on this point.

| do realise that you have been fighting this application and that it is happening next to your
property which is exactly why you and the other councillors concerned have to declare
personal and prejudicial interests. Both Erica and myself are fully aware of the history of the
site. Planning permission has been granted for the houses - that has happened. We are now
trying, in a professional and impartial manner, to facilitate the transfer of the land behind the
site which Muir offered to the PC and this is the land referred to as being for sale. The village
are expecting this to occur,

Since taking its decision, the PC has had no notification from Cheshire East regarding the
progress of the latest variation planning application relating to the accessway to a field. If it
does go to committee, then the PC will be invited to put forward a member to speak and put
forward the PC's view {not Muirs!). This has not yet happened and nobody has been appointed
to speak. The PC will take a decision on this if and when notification is received of a planning
committee date.
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As the remaining members of the Parish Council have always been guorate, we have never had
to consider the implications of the last paragraph.

Regards

Alex

- Original Message —---

From: CSQ.Officg™

To: Bunbury Parish

Sent: Thursday, September 15, 2011 6:38 PM

Subiect: Re; Members' Interests query

Alex

{ have read your email but | am concerned as to why this letter was not shown to the PC Mermbers who
have been excluded from all the PC meetings?

Correct me if | am wrong but the letter is incorrect?

No land is for sale.

PR Councilors A B C I What about E?

You have had an opinion from Julie Openshaw but the facts that were discussed are wrong, you are a
PC member short. You may be two PC members short as Mandy also lives off Wyche Lane,

i did point out at the last meeting | attended that both Erica and yourself are not fully aware of the
history about this very strongly objected to planning issue. All the information is available to read. tdo
get the feeling that you and Erica are treating this as an issue on an Agenda rather than the serious
issue that is and still is. You must be aware that 5 members that live arpund the field have been
fighting this planning application since 2004. It would be advisable for you and Erica to put yourselves
in the same situation. This is not happening next to your property. The whole village who we also
represent were against this from the start. The only person who was for the planning issue and is stil}
championing the issue is Brian Dykes. From what | have heard Brian wants to speak for Muir, Surely as
{ pointed out before in my previous emails, my concern is Brian has a personal and prejudicial interest
in this development and always has, Therefore it makes the Pc look very unprofessional especially over
the recent debacle.

Gary

- Original Message ----

From: Bunbury Parish -

To: Gary McCormack

Ce: Erica Parfridae

Sent: Thursday, September 15, 2011 3:10 PM
Subject: Fw; Members' Interests query

Dear Gary

Further to your email of 12/09/2011, please find below email received from Julie Openshaw,
legal team manager at Cheshire East Council.

You are, of course, free to meet with anybody but | must remind you that only Sub-commitices
that have been discussed and approved by the Parish Council, can be said to be 'Parish Council
Sub-Commitiees’.
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Thank you for the information contained in ltem 2 of your email. | suggest that you take this
point up directly with Muir as the letter is not something that the Parish Council have been
involved in.

Regards

Alex

= Original Message -----

From: OPENSHAW, Julie

To: ‘hunburyclerk@aol.com’

Sent: Monday, November 22, 2010 3:39 PM
Subject: Members' Interests query

Good afternocon Alex

Further to our telephone conversation earfier, | understand that you and some of your members seek
advice on what if any interests they need to declare in relation to a plot of land which has been offered
for sale to Bunbury Parish Council. | will refer to this as the "for sale land".

You explained that the for sale land abuts a second strip of land which has planning permission for
development, and it is the developer that has offered the for sale land to the Parish Councit.

You also explained that one member (A), who owns & third strip of land which abuts the other side of the
“or sale” land has aiready declared a personal and prejucidial interest and has absented himelf from any
consideration of whether the land should be purchased, but three other members are potentially affected
because of the positioning of their gardens, "B" has a garden abugting the “for sale” land, "C" has a
garden abutting the land owned by the councillor who has already declared and inferest, and "D" has a
garden which allows a view of where the development would be. Each of them owns their home and has
registered it as such in the register of interests.

My view is that due fo their proximity to the for sale tand, and the possible effect arising from that on the
values, or desirability, of their homes, B C and D alf have personal interests in the decision whether the
Parish Council should purchase the land, because a decision on whether or not the PC should buy it
could reasonably be regarded as affecting their well-being or financial positions to a greater extent than
the majority of council tax payers ratepayers or inhabitants of the locality.

Unless they can raise some other consideration which might meyit further consideration () haven't seen a
plan), they appear to have a prejudicial interest as well, because of the same considerations in tems of
proximity and effect on financial position, which suggest that the proper conclusion is that "a member of
the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard [the interest] as so significant
that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the public interest”.

| gather there are 10 members of the Council, with a quorum of 4, so unless other members have
prejudicial interests to declare for some other reason, you should be quorate to make the decision. If
circumstances arise where interests are such that getting a quoruim would be impossible, the Borough
Council's Standards Commitiee does have power to consider, and if appropriate, grant, applications for
dispensations {o allow members to speak and vote where they have a prejudicial interest, but only where
either more than 50% of members who would be enfitled to vote being prohibited from doing s0, or where
the number of members that are prohibited from voting would upset the political balance of the meeting
to the extent that the outcome of voting would be prejudiced. As these situations are relatively rare, so
are applications for dispensations. It does not sound as though the first criterion would be met; without
knowing the political persuasion of the members involved, and the remainder, it's unclear if the second
would apply, but you might want to consider that.

{ hope this assists,

Kind regards

Julie Openshaw

Legal Team Manager (Places, Regulafory and Compliance) (Deputy Monitoring Officer)

Cheshire East Borough Council
Wesifields
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Middlewich Road
Sandbach

Cw11 51HZ
01270 885846)

----- Original Message -~
From:CSQOffce ' T TR
To: Bunbury Parish

Ce: Brica Partriddge

Sent: Monday, September 12, 2011 9:02 PM

Subject: September Meeting

Good evening Alex

Unfortunately | will be unable to attend the meeting ToMorrow,
{ do have have two points to raise

ltem 1

I have spoken to Dennis, Jill, Sally and David about forming another Parish Council Sub Committee to
protect our interest. Please could you supply me with a copy of the letter from Cheshire East Solicitor
which outlines the reasons for all our exclusions.

It ray be that | am the only one that shoutd be excluded as | have do have a prejudicial and private
interest which has always been declared.

ftem 2

The Occupiers of Wyche Lane received a letter from Muir on Friday 9th September dated the 9th
September. So the letter must have been drafted on 7th Wednesday or the 8th T hursday. It states in
the letter. We are working with our lawyer and the landowner to seek a way for Muir to withdraw from
this Option.

My lawyer was sent an email on Thursday 8th. It was forwarded to me on the 9th and | read it late on
Friday. As yet | have not replied back to my lawyers,

The letter is incorrect. As the landowner | am not in any negotiations with Muir about the Option
Agreement. This is a false statement. Working with would entail some sort of negotiation and

correspondence,

fegards Gary

please find enclosed
Gary

On 01/06/2011 14:18, "partridges” <ep.pariridges@btinternet.com> wrote:

Gary
Letter not attached,

Regards
Erica
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e Qriginal Message ----

From: CSQ Office <mailto:gmc@csgd2,com>

To: Bunbury Parish <mailto:Bunburyclerk@aol.com>

Cc: ep.partridges@btinternet.com

Sent: Tuesday, May 31, 2011 2:04 PM

Subject: Muir Housing MR G & MR 5 McCormack Private

Hi Alex Hi Erica
Just received this in my Letter Box. | would think all the neighbours have been given simiiar letters.
I have sent a copy to my Solicitors.

We have only just received a response from Muir Solicitors that they were sent on the 2nd March.
They note that their client is aware of the problems with the planning permission and are working
with the planners to discuss solutions to the Issues raised in our letter. They have obligations not
issues.

Regards Gary
-~ Original Message -----

From: David Robinson ‘ ‘

To: bunburyclerk@aol.comn ; Chairman of Bunbury Council

Ce: Tracey Ashton ; Paul Andrew ; Nicola Deutsch (Nicola.Deutsch@weightmans.com)
Sent: Friday, June 17, 2011 2:23 PM

Subject: Feedback from Meeting with Gary McCormack 16th June 2011

Good afterncon Alex and Erika
As promised | am happy to provide the following salient points from my meeting with Gary McCormack.

My colleague, Paul Andrew and | met with Gary and his solicitor on the 16 June 2011. We advised

that:

e The proposed plan showing the new access formed part of our 5.73 Application which also included
the request to remove Condition #17.

e That the road would be constructed to high standards but would not be adopted by the LA as the
LA themselves do not want an adopted road in this location

o That the principle of the road position and proposed finish had been agreed with the Planning
Officer. it was stressed that such agreement is always informal and in no way binding on the Local
Planning Authority. 7

e That we expected the .73 togotoafull a planning committee and not be dealt with through

delegated authority action

That the Parish Council are in support of this proposal

That no more than enabling works will be done on the site until the 5.73 approval is in place.

That this 5.73 application will be submitted the W/C 20" June.

That we were finalising Heads of Terms with the Parish Council for retained fand. This would

ensure that the Parish Council had full access rights across our land, and through both proposed

gates, but all the maintenance liability would for the access road would remain with Muir.

]

s € @
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Gary made the following points:

o He was surprised that the access was this narrow as it would effectively prevent any future
development of houses on the rear fand

e He thought that an adopted road should be at least 7-8 metres wide. {We advised that adopted
roads can be of various widths, even less than 4metres, though this of course was irrelevant as the
road was being built to the approval of the LA not to adoptable standards]

e Several queries were made about the access gates, whether they would be lockable, who would
have the keys etc.

Gary's solicitor made the following points:

e The proposal was a rat-run {we contested this as a high specification access road with a soft finish
serving agricultural fields could hardly be classified as a rat-run]

e That Muir had covenanted to provide an adopied road to her clients land [we advised that our
lawyers advise was that proposal would ensure all of Muir’s obligations where met]

o The solicitor tried to argue this point quoting clause 13.4 in the TPI, namely “....and will
keep such roads and footpaths and sewers in repair until they are taken over and adopted
by the Local Authority” [Our response to this as that if they are not going to be adopted
then we will have to maintain this road, further we were not going to get into a legal
argument without our lawyer present]

o She advised that Gary and her would consider a response, and this would include representation to
the planning comritiee through the normal channels

| think that covers all the salient points. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any queries or
require any further information.

Regards
David

David Robinson

Diractor of Development

Muir Group Housing Association
Oakmere House,

Meres Edge Helsby Cheshire WAG 0DJ
Tel: 01928 728048 Fax: 0870 7315057

nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn

Registered Office: Mulr Group Housing Association Limited
Oid Government House, Dee Hills Park, Chester CH3 5AR

Financial Services Authorily No.18832R Tenant Services Authority No. L2184National Housing Federation Member
Wivir Group is an exerpt charity Vat No, 482594315
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Cheshire East Council
Complaint against Parish Councillors Sally Beard, David Ellis, Gary McCormack & Jill
Waits

Statement of Mrs Alexandra Stubbs, 10 Copperfields, Tarporley, Cheshire CW6 ouUP

1. Iwas appointed as Clerk to Bunbury Parish Council in April 2010. tam also a Clerkto a
second Parish Council. That Council has applied for Quality Parish Council status and |
obtained my CiLCA qualification in September 2010. When Councillor Partridge became
Chairman we engaged on a process of drafting Standing Orders and other procedural
documents for the Council as none had existed prior to that time. Those Standing Orders
require a Chairman who has complaints to channel them through the Parish Clerk. [f there
were issues that | could resolve then | would do so. If not | would pass the matters on to
Cheshire East Monitoring Officer.

2. The complaints that are being considered by this investigation comprise a group where |
have been requested to forward them by the Chairman and a single complaint by me
against Councillor McCormack. This statement does not comment on the first group
except to say that it was always my practice when a new Councilior joined the Council to
send that person a copy of the Code of Conduct, the Good Counciliors Guide and a list of
Members. Councillor Partridge will deal with those complaints. | will deal solely with my
personal complaint.

3. From the outset, | was aware of the tensions within the Council concerning the Muir
development and particularly the involvement of Councillor McCormack. | was therefore
very aware of the question of my receiving confidential information that may relate to
Councillor McCormack and ensuring that myself and the Council did not breach any
confidentiality. In the early period | never had any problems with him. However, since
August 2011 | have been bombarded with emails by Councillor McCormack, Councillor
Waits and Mr James Walton, who is Councillor Waits' partner.  As the correspondence has
developed, the tone of the emails has worsened and there has been a lot of criticism of my
actions which | believe are totally unfounded.

4. My contractual hours are 11 per week. This torrent meant that many weeks | needed to
work in excess of 20 hours to reply to all the emails and undertake my other duties and
responsibilities. | had already been thinking of resigning when | received the email of 16
October 2011 from Councillor McCormack. The manner in which he expected me to do
my job was completely unprofessional - he basically wanted me to do what he wanted.
The contents of the email finished me off and | immediately sent a letter of resignation to
Councillor Partridge. When | reflected on the contents of the letter | felt even worse. The
contents are derogatory and, | believe an attempt to buily me. | therefore referred this
complaint to the Standards Committee.

This statement is a fair summary of an interview conducted by the Investigator on 27 February
2012.

Date 6 J\?D ’ &Qi&
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Cheshire East Council
Complaint against Parish Councillors Sally Beard, David Ellis, Gary McCormack & Jill
Waits

Statement of Parish Councillor Erica Partridge, Holly Mount, Whitchurch Road, Bunbury,
Cheshire CW6 98X

1.

| have been a Councillor for Bunbury Parish Council since July 2009, when | was co-opted
on to the Council. 1 have been Chairman of the Council since May 2010. When | was co-
opted, | received no documentation of any sort. I have not been offered any specific
training on the Code of Conduct but, in the last 12 months, the Clerk has circulated training
packages, mainly organised by CHALC (Cheshire Association of Local Councils).
Unfortunately, most of the courses that were relevant to my position clashed with other
appointments.

Mrs Alex Stubbs was appointed as Clerk in April 2010. When | was appointed Chairman
the following month, we both realised that there were no Standing Orders for the control of
decision-making and consideration of Council business nor were there any other procedural
documents which most Parish Councils have in place. Although Mrs Stubbs has the CiLCA
(Certificate in Local Council Administration) qualification, the Council has not decided to
seek Quality Parish Council status. A Sub-Committee was established to produce the
Standing Orders with other documents being agreed at the Parish Council meetings over a
period of time and these have now been adopted by the Council.

The background to the issues that | have raised regarding the four Councillors is set out in
the document submitted with the complaint headed 'Query to Monitoring Officer re Bunbury
Parish Councillors’. | raised the matters as a query to the Clerk as it appeared to me that
the Code of Conduct may have been breached in several respects and she has forwarded
this information to the monitoring officer which has now been taken as constituting the
complaint. This was accompanied by separate commentaries in respect of the issues
concerning each of the four and relevant emails in relation to each one. There is aiso a
separate complaint against Councillor Waits with its own documentation which | deal with
under her heading.

Councillors McCormack and Beard were already on the Parish Council when | was co-
opted. Councillor Waits was co-opted in April 2010 and Councillor Ellis was co-opted in
January 2011, although he had previously served on the Parish Council. Since these
complaints were lodged, Mrs Sally Beard and David Ellis have both resigned from the
Council.

My comments on the complaints made against the individual persons follow as separate
Schedules.

Since submitting the above queries | have resigned from the Parish Council. In these
circumstances | do not wish to proceed with the complaint relating to bullying and attitude
towards other councillors. | have explained the areas which | wish to withdraw in the
schedules below.

Even though | am no longer a Parish Councillor | consider it is important for the question of
the declarations of interest to be considered and established as this was the purpose of my
query to the Monitoring Officer which has become these complaints.
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Scheduie 3 - Councillor Gary McCormack

1. As | am no longer a Parish Councillor | do not wish to proceed with any of the issues raised
against Councillor McCormack and request that the information supplied relating to this is

withdrawn and discarded and | do not wish them to be considered by the Standards
Committee.
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This statement is a fair summary of an interview conducted by the Investigator on 27 February
2012.
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Cheshire East Council
Complaints against Parish Councillor Gary McCormack

Statement of Councillor Gary McCormack, Fernleigh, Wyche Lane, Bunbury, Cheshire CW6 9PS

1, | have been a Bunbury Parish Councilior for 10 years. 1 have lived at Fernleigh for the past 21 years. | have had no
training on the Code of Conduct. On all matiers concerning the proposed development of land adjoining my property on
Wyche Lane, | have always declared a personal and prejudicial interest and left the room whilst the subject matter has
been discussed. As well as Femleigh, | also own the field behind the properties in Wyche Lane and which is accessed
through the proposed development site and | have recently acquired The Grange, which is on the other side of the
proposed development site from my own property.

2. There are two areas of complaint against me. The first, from the former Chair of the Parish Council, Erica Partridge,
refers to a number of matters concerning my conduct towards Mrs Partridge and other Councillors and suggests liaison
between myself and Mr James Walton and Mrs Jill Waits, who live at Edinbane, Wyche Lane. The second is from the
former Clerk, Mrs Alex Stubbs who alleges that certain emails that | sent to her in 2011 and one in particular, 16
October 2011, are lacking in respect and/or intended 1o bully her.

3. In respect of the first, | have known Mr Walton and Mrs Waits for the three years or so that they have lived at Edinbane.
{ also know Dennis Burrows, David Ellis and Sally Beard, who were Councillors untit recently, and have known them for
longer as they have lived in the village for some time. | do not socialise with any of them on a regular basis and would
not regard them as close personal friends. Living within a short distance of each ofher, we are bound to come into
contact from time to time and attend events in the village. | have had no discussion with any of them as to the manner
in which we should approach issues on the Parish Council, especially those relaling to the proposed development at
Wyche Lane. The investigator has asked me about the email of 12 September 2011 in which | refer {o the possibility of
the Wyche Lane Councillors setting up their own Sub-Commitiee. This was a tongue-in-cheek suggestion intended to
poriray the concern that | and the other ‘excluded' Councillors had about the lack of information on the discussions
taking place by the Parish Council and the decisions that they were making. | understand that Mrs Pariridge has since
indicated that she does not wish to pursue these complaints against me. However, for the record, | have sent very few
emails to Mrs Partridge, the majority have gone 1o the Clerk which is the route that corespondence should take. | have
not been disrespectful to the Chair although, for the reasons set out below, 1 did have concerns at the manner in which
she undertook the role. | have not connived with the others mentioned nor have | sought to influence improperly the
position of other Councillors.

In respect of the second complaint, to understand my approach to this matter and the content of a number of emails that
{ sent during this period, it is necessary for me to go into the history of the proposed development. The original

proposal was for the development of the whole of the area to the rear of the Wyche Lane properties, including that part
of the field that | now own. This was in 2004. The proposal drew a lot of objection from the village and the Parish
Council was unanimous in objecting. A substantial number of local residents were opposed. A planning appeal was
defeated and eventually the Muir Housing Group came up with the current proposal on approximately one third of the
original site to provide 10 affordable houses. By this time | had acquired the field and | attended a meeting with
representatives of Muir fo discuss issues of concern regarding the respective ownerships and Muir cbligations. At this
meeting, a statement was made by Muir's representatives that there was no access to my field which | knew from my
ownership deeds was incorrect. Since then | have learnt not to trust statements made by Muir as | do not believe that it
is a company to be trusted. The Parish Council was also aware of the Company's tactics and strategy and the i
previous Clerk had written on behalf of the Parish Council strongly disapproving of the manner in which Muir were
dealing with matters. In 2010 the Parish Council appointed a new Clerk, Alex Stubbs, and Erica Partridge was

appointed as Chair. 1t was at this time that the suggestion came forward that the Parish Councit should acquire a
‘ransom strip’ between the development and my field to guarantee that there would be no future extension of the -
proposed residential development. )

5, Prior to 2010, the Parish Council had been run very informally. There were no Standing Orders and no other
documentation specifying how the Councit should operate. The previous Chair and Clerk were very experienced and
they seemed to properly control the meetings. in 2010 this changed. Mrs Partridge said that the Parish Council should
have proper procedures and, with the new Clerk and other Councillors, appropriate documentation was drafted and
adopted by the Council. Mrs Partridge's approach to the operation of meetings was very formal, compared to the
previous regime, and this seemed to change the approach towards the conduct of business. 1t seemed to me that she
wanted fo 'manage’ the business of the Councif. The proposed development was the most controversial issue on the
Council agenda, and, even though planning permission had been granted for the 10 affordable houses, there was still
opposition to the development within the village and there were still issues that required resolution from a legal or
planning viewpoint. | was concerned that the new Chair and Clerk shoutd understand the background to Muir and the
issues that had arisen and on which | believe that they should not be trusted. Mr David Robinson from Muir had
admitted to senior members of Cheshire East's planning depariment that he had been less than economical with the
truth to them, the Parish Councit and the Planning Inspectorate. At a Parish Council meeting | asked the Chair and the
Clerk if they had read all the files relating to Muir. In Septerber/October 2010, | pulled aside the Clerk to advise her that
1 had been in discussions with Muir. | was concerned that Muir would not inform the Parish Council of the correct
position and | therefore took the decision to give the Clerk a file on the contractual issues that | had with Muir so that
she could inform the Parish Council. My main concern was that the Parish Council would enter into a contract with Muir
which would then embroil them into a legal dispute which they could not afford. There were a number of legat issues to
be addressed and the Parish Council were unaware of those issues.

6. The relationship between the Clerk and Muir became very informal in distinct contrast to the stance adopted by the
previous Clerk. The previous Clerk and most of the Parish Council did not trust Muir and, in my opinion, the new Clerk
was very ‘chummy' with them, which 1 found unsettling, given the unsavoury tactics adopted by Muir and their
admission that they had not been straight with all the parties concerned. My wife and | (we own the field jointly) then
received letters from the Clerk, on behalf of the Parish Council, asking if we would surrender the access fo the field.
This had previously been asked by Muir and rejected, unknown to the Parish Councll, 1t seemed sfrange that the
Parish Council was asking us to do something that we had already told Muir we would not do. Then there was a note of
a meeting at which Mr Walton was present which suggested that my wife and | could canceél an option agreement that
Muir has to purchase the field. There is a contract which controls the option arrangements and this can only be varied
by agreement. One parly cannot cancel the agreement without being liable to the other. Again | was concerned as to
what information Muir was giving to the Parish Council in their discussions as the Parish Council appeared not to be
aware of the true facts.
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At the same fime as all this was happening, there was one long serving Parish Councilior, Counciifor Dykes, who |
believe has a personal and prejudicial interest in respect of the Muir Group. Whenever Muir was mentioned he would
speak in favour of them. On one issue he indicated to the Chair that he would wish to be the Parish Council
representative who would speak on behalf of Muir when a planning application came to be considered. Whilst the Clerk,
at the Chair's behest had obtained the Monitoring Officer's advice regarding the Wyche Lane Councillors, she had not
sought advice with regard to this Councilior's interest and seemed to adopt a very different approach to his participation
compared to other Councillors. Previously, there had been an issue with a hedgerow between the playing fields, owned
by the Parish Council and let to the Playing Fields Committee, and my land where this same Councillor had taken it upon
himself to substantially remove parts of the hedgerow without permission of myself or the Parish Council. On another,
he indicated that he had been in direct contact with David Robinson of Muir. When | questioned why he had been in
contact, the Chair on that occasion made it clear that everything should go through the Chair. The Chair and the Clerk
seemed to me to adopt a different approach to his involvement in matters and ! gof the impression that he was receiving
information that was not being sent to other Councillors. He always seemed to be first to know information and, i
anything was said against him, he would 'spit out his dummy'. The Chair and Clerk would console him when he did this.
Recently there was another example when he again spat out his dummy and, on this occasion, the current Chair and
Clerk swiftly brought him to order. This should have been done by the previous incumbents.

Going back to the emails, following the submission by Muir of the application to vary the position and form of the access
road, matters concerning Muir seemed be raised on a regular basis but no information was forthcoming from those
Parish Councillors not excluded from making decisions. | was concerned that some of the excluded Counciliors shoutd
not in fact be excluded and | asked for a copy of the advice from Julie Openshaw. This was then circulated to all the
Councillors for the first time, having previously only been seen by those Councilfors present at the meeting in December
2010. The facts on which the advice given appeared to be incorrect and it seemed to me, and other Councillors, that
not all the Councillors should be excluded in respect of all the matters being considered regarding Muir. These matters
raised the tension in the village towards Muir,

At the Parish Council meeting on 11 Octeber 2011, Councilior Dykes told the meeting that Muir's selected contractor
had gone bust. Neither the Clerk nor the Chair confirmed or denied this. | did not want to raise any fuss regarding
Councilor Dykes being the only Councillor to have this knowledge at the meeting as he had advised the meeting that he
was to be made an Alderman by Cheshire East and he wanted the Chair to be present {o represent the Parish Council.
Before the meeting | had emailed the Planning & Development Manager at Cheshire East, Stephen lrvine, and he
informed me that he had no knowledge of the contractor's fate. | therefore wrote to the Clerk on 12 October expressing
my concern regarding Councillor Dykes. | was very surprised to receive the response from Mrs Stubbs on 15 October
that she had known about the contractor going bust and this seemed to confirm my belief that she had an inner circle of
friends on the Council and was passing information on to them but not other Councillors. Unfortunately, the minutes of
the meeting the minutes of the meeting do not record this information being given to the Parish Councit by Councillor
Dykes or the fact that the Clerk knew weeks before. | was not present at the November Council meeting and did not
pick up this omission. Looking back at the minutes | do not think they are a correct account of what was said. | betieve
the minutes by November became confused. My response to the Clerk was in reply to what was said at that meeting.
Not what was minuted fater.

f read the email of 15 October at Manchester Airport on 16 October as | was waiting to board a plane to the Sultanate. |

was fuming when | read her reply and sent off an immediate response as her email seemed to confirm all my beliefs

regarding her relationship with the Chair and Councilior Dykes and her relationship with Muir. She did not seem fo

understand just how important this development argument with Muir is to many people in the village and her actions did

not reflect that importance. She seemed to be far more supportive of Councitior Dykes that other Councillors. | was not

bullying Alex nor showing her fack of respect but merely trying fo get her to understand the situation and to represent
e viltage, which is why the Parish Council is there.
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Comments relating to Mike Dudfieid’s draft report dated 10th July re Councillor
McCormack

| have advised Mike Dudfield previously, that as | have resigned from the Parish Council |
am no longer interested in pursuing my complaint and have withdrawn it.

However, having been provided with the draft report there are a number of matters which are
incorrectly stated. Unfortunately | feel | cannot only correct some without inferring
acceptance of others, consequently this response is longer than | would have wished. The
following comments only to clarify a number of incorrect statements as follows :

Statement of Councilior McCormack:

Point 3 ~ 'Wyche Lane Councillors sub commitiee’ ~ my understanding is that other
councillors were approached with this suggestion.

Point 3 ‘1 did have concerns at the manner in which she undertook her role’ — Councillor
McCormack said to me that he had noticed improvements in the conduct of the meetings
and he approved of the changes. Each other Councillor also did the same. | was approached
by a villager who had been told by a Councillor of the significant improvements in procedure
and also specifically improvements in the manner of dealing with the difficult behaviour of
some councillors since my appointment as Chairman.

Point 4 - ‘it was at this time that the suggestion came forward that the Parish Council should
acquire a ransom strip' — this decision had been taken some years previously regarding this
piece of land (which is not a ransom strip) before | was a Parish Councillor and the Parish
Council had previously written to Muir to that effect without legal advice. The Parish Council
decided the matter should be taken forward again as the ‘offer’ was contingent on the
houses being constructed which was becoming imminent and that the first step was to obtain
suitable legal advice and establish the contractual position.

Point 5 — ‘There were a number of legal issues to be addressed and the Parish Council were
unaware of these issues’ — the Parish Council obtained legal advice and Clir McCormack
was necessarily excluded from that advice due to his conflict of interest. | do not recall Clir
McCormack asking me about the files.

Point 6 — the first steps in dealing with this matter involved establishing the facts, to enable
options and decisions on how to proceed to be established. It is not surprising that the same
question was asked. It was necessary to communicate with Muir to progress matters in
relation to the land. As far as | am aware all contacts were entirely professional.

Point 7 — Clir Dykes has made statements that he does not have a personal or prejudicial
interest in this matter and | was not made aware of any information to the contrary.

Clir Dykes offered to speak on behalf of the Parish Council in relation to the Muir application
(as also did another Clir), he did not offer to speak on behalf of Muir. it was decided that no
one would speak on behalf of the Parish Councii at the Cheshire East Council meeting
concerned.

I am not going to comment at all on the issues regarding the hedge as they are not relevant.
Clir Dykes had previously been a contact between Muir and the Parish Council, but the Muir
Sub committee decided the contacts should be the Chair and the Clerk. | advised both Clir
Dykes and Muir of this, and my understanding is that the correct protocol was followed
thereafter.

All unacceptable behaviour occurring in the Parish Council meetings was dealt with
appropriately in and out of the meeting, and the consequence was an improvement, this
applied to a number of Clirs.
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Point @ — | have explained previously to Cilr McCormack that it was myself who reported the
contractor going bust to the Parish Council. | contacted Muir to respond fo urgent queries
regarding the removal of site fencing as the Clerk was unavailable that day. | had spoken to
Clir Dykes on another matter before the meeting and mentioned this to him.

Point 10 — Clir Dykes was the deputy Chair.

I do not see how any of these points are relevant.

Comments on Mike Dudfield’s Report :

The report summarises Cllr McCormack’s statement including a number of points | have
corrected above. | have therefore not repeated these.

40 ~ | am concerned that the first four lines misdescribe the situation. Cllr McCormack
rightly had limited information due to his conflict of interest. The authorisation of legal advice
was taken in the public meeting and minuted. The wording implies that myself and the
Chairman and Clerk were acting without consultation and directing the Parish Council in
some way which is incorrect, all matters were thoroughly discussed and voted on. It is also
implied that the Parish Council were acting against the villagers wishes — there is no
information to support this as there are differing views in the village regarding this
development. | assume this was not your intention and it would be appreciated if the wording
in this paragraph could be reconsidered please to more accurately reflect the situation.

47. First paragraph - my statement says that ‘| consider myself ie | am explaining how | felt
as a consequence of others actions, | have not made a statement of fact on this other than in
relation to my feelings. This is an important distinction. | would appreciate it if this is made
clear please in the first sentence.
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Alzid X K
mikedudfield
From: "C8Q Office” <gmc@csad2.com>
To; "mikedudfield" <mikedudfield@btinternet.com>

Sent: 24 July 2012 18:55

Subject: Comments re your draft Report and aftachments.

Dear Mike

Thank you for your email and your report which ! do believe is a correct draft of the situation.

i have only three comments. Unfortunately | do not have the original draft documents that you sent but
you may be aware of the following.

ltem 1

in Mrs Stubbs original disclosure she states that she is not affiliated to any society in the Village. Mrs
Stubbs was appointed as the Treasurer for the Playing Fields Committee by Clir Brian Dykes. Who was
the Chairman,

At the last three PC Meetings Clir Dykes informed the PC that he would resign as Chairman as he was not
happy with new recent PC directives. The new directives were all agreed by the PC but as the Chairman
of the Playing Fields it was disciosed that he was not conducting himself correctly in the appropriate
position. At the last AGM of the Playing Fields committee Mr Dykes walked out and resigned in the
middle of the meeting and the Treasurer Mr Stubbs also resigned.

In Mrs Stubbs attachment.

In Mrs Stubbs attachment the emails sent to Mrs Stubbs by Mr Waiton and Mrs Waits have no relevance
to the emails and questions that | was asking the then Clerk. My question to the Clerk which she
confirmed was that she was giving confidential information to certain members of the PC and not the
whole PC

Mr Walton as a member of the public has the right to express himself and make criticisms if he thinks
that the then Chairman and Clerk were not conducting themselves correctly he was of the opinion that
gerrymandering was taking place over the minutes of meeting published. :

Mrs Waite again has her own opinions and was also very much against the way the then Chairman and
Clerk conducted themselves especially when it was disclosed that paperwork was produced to certain
members of the PC and then withdrawn at the end of the meeting and not minuted.

Mike. Not sure if this is to be included | will take your advise as the statements are talking about three
persons not just myself.

I am on my way to London again in the morning.
If you want to discuss please ring

07768 005 736.

Or 1 will pick up my emails around 2pm

Regards Gary

26/07/2012
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~~~~~ Original Message -----

From: CSQ Office

To: mikedudfield

Sent: Thursday, July 26, 2012 2:21 PM
Subject: Draft Comments

Good afternoon Mike
Sorry again for the delay but the last two weeks have been extremely busy with
Vip’s arriving and departing back for Ramadan.

Going back to the two draft attachments made by the Ex Chair and Ex Clerk.

Firstly.

Regarding Erica Partridge Statement dated 12/03/2012

No Comments regarding her statement as Mrs Partridge has asked for the
information to be withdrawn and discarded and not to be considered by the
Standards Committee

j along with all the other Councillor’'s who have since resigned are not happy with
Mrs Partridge behaviour.

Secondly
Regarding Alex Stubbs Statement dated 5/03/2012

In Para 2
Mrs Stubbs states she will deal solely with my personal complaint.

in Para 3
Mrs Stubbs states that she has been bombarded with emails by Councilor
McCormack, Councilor Waites and Mr James Walton.

Mrs Stubbs complaint is against myself and | have no control of what Councillor
Waite, Mr James Walton also Miss Sally Beard Dennis Burrows and Dave Ellis have
sent to the Ex Clerk,

Clir Waite, Clir Eilis, Clir Beard, Cllr Burrows. All these Clir resigned because of
complaints made against them by the Ex Chair and Ex Clerk. Therefore the Clerk and
the Chair would be receiving lots of letters and emails from these parties who were
not happy with the Clerk or the Chair. The consensus of opinion was that the BPC
Chair and Clerk were being selective in disseminating information to specific
councillors. If Mrs Stubbs was emailed and asked many questions by other parties
then this has no relevance to the complaint made against myself.

| have looked through my sent email logs from 11.04 2010 to 16 10 2011. I sent
approx 60 emails over an 18 month period. This relates to 1 email per week. Most of
the early email are about boundary issues regarding my land and the PC. A number
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are replies to questions asked by the Clerk and replies sent. A number are general
PC business and apologies and there are a few about Muir. Most of the emails are
one line replies with a few emails that are longer which you have on file. Nothing
that would determine the use of the word bombarded. This is | believe an incorrect
statement made by Mrs Stubbs.

Also Mrs Stubbs states in an email dated October 16th 2011 8.26pm
Para 3
Am not affiliated with an village groups

Mrs Stubbs has just recently resigned as Treasurer of the Playing Fields Committee.
The Chairman was Mr Brian Dykes and | believe from past members of the committee
was appointed by Mr Brian Dykes. As you are aware my main complaint has been
against the Ex Clerk and her relationship with Mr Dykes.

Therefore the statement made by Mrs Stubbs that she is not affiliated with any
village groups is again incorrect.

| await your comments
Regards Gary

Gary

As you have declared a personal and prejudicial interest in the Muir
development, | did not think it fitting that this information was passed onto you
from the Parish Council - you are in your own talks with Muir and | would
expect this information to come via this route, just as | would not expect you
to pass information back from your meetings.

Brian is certainly not the only member of the Parish council who has the
information. If you think that Brian has a prejuducal interest then why do you
not complain to the Standards Board?

| find your accusations outrageous and bullying. Yes, the Parish Clerk is a job
which | approach as a professional. | know | don't live in the village but think

that this is a good thing as | provide an impartial view and am not
affiliated with an village groups. As far as | am concerned members

are provided with the correct informationat at all times. The minutes are a
record of Parish Council decisions and are not there to record gossip.
I await your apology.

Alex
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Complaints under the New Code — Procedure

Making a Complaint

1.

Complaints must be submitted to Cheshire East Council’s Monitoring
Officer using the Council’s standard Complaint Form setting out in
sufficient detail why the Complainant considers there has been a failure
to comply with the relevant Code of Conduct.

The Monitoring Officer will acknowledge receipt within 5 working days

The Subject Member will be advised that there has been a complaint
and will be provided with a copy of the complaint form, unless, in
exceptional circumstances, where the Monitoring Officer, in consultation
with the Independent Person has granted the Complainant’s request for
confidentially. Under no circumstances must the Subject Member
contact the Complainant direct regarding any issues raised in the
complaint.

Initial Assessment / Gateway Procedure

4.

The Monitoring Officer will refer the complaint to the Audit and
Governance Initial Assessment Panel within 21 days of receipt for an initial
assessment.

After consulting the Independent Person, the Panel will determine whether
to

Take no action

Refer the matter to the relevant Group Leader for informal
action ( NB for complaints against Cheshire East Councillors
only and not generally an appropriate option if the complaint is
from a member of the public)

e Refer the matter for Local Resolution

o Refer the matter for formal investigation by an external
investigator

e Refer the matter to the Police or other relevant Regulatory
Agency

The Initial Assessment Panel’'s Decision on what action to take on a
complaint is final. There is no right to have the decision reviewed.

The Complainant, Subject Member and Parish Clerk, as appropriate, will
be informed of the outcome of the decision.

Meetings of the Panel will not be open to the public.
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Local Resolution

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The Complainant and Subject Member will be advised that the Initial
Assessment Panel has concluded that the complaint is suitable for Local
Resolution without the need for a formal investigation and full hearing
and will be invited to submit written representations outlining the nature
of the dispute using a standard template to ensure consistency.

Both the Complainant and Subject Member will be able to bring a
Supporter and up to three witnesses each to accompany them before an
ad hoc panel of three elected members together with the Independent
Person. The Supporter will not represent the Subject Member but will be
able to confer with him or her.

The Panel will consider the written representations and hear any relevant
evidence before reaching a determination and considering whether any
sanction is appropriate.

The Panel may refer the matter for a formal investigation should it
become apparent that the issues are more complex or serious than was
originally anticipated.

Local Resolution Panels will normally meet in public and will be
convened within 28 days of the decision of the Initial Assessment Panel
subject to availability of the relevant parties.

Both the Complainant and Subject Member will receive copies of each
others written statements and details of any witness to be called 5
working days before the Panel meets. Copies will be made available to
three Panel members and Independent Person at the same time.

The Panel will announce its decision at the end of the hearing and a
formal Decision Notice will be prepared and sent to all relevant parties
within 5 working days. The Decision Notice will be published on the
Council’'s website and reported to the next meeting of the Audit and
Governance Committee.

There is no right of Appeal from the decision of the Local Resolution
Panel which is intended to resolve less serious complaints speedily and
cost effectively.

External Investigation

17.

18.

The matter will be referred for an independent investigation by a suitably
experienced investigative officer. In most cases the investigation is
expected to be completed within 8 weeks of the referral.

The report of the independent investigator should incorporate the
following:-
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20.
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e Executive Summary - An outline of the allegation, who made it,
the relevant provisions of the Code and whether there has been
a breach.

¢ Member’s official details - A brief outline of when the Member
was elected, term of office, details of committees served on and
any relevant training.

e Complainants details and any relevant background

e Summary of facts and evidence gathered- A summary of the
facts and evidence gathered highlighting facts which are in
dispute and setting out the investigating officer's conclusions
based on the balance of probabilities.

e Reasoning as to whether there has been a failure to comply
with the Code and investigator’s findings — Dealing with each
allegation in turn an outline of whether the investigating officer
considers there has been a breach and any aggravating or
mitigating facts.

e Schedule - a list of witnesses interviewed and copies of relevant
documents.

A copy of the draft report will be circulated to the Subject Member and
Complainant to check for factual accuracy.

The Investigating Officer will take into account any comments received
before sending the final report to the Monitoring Officer.

External Investigation — No Evidence of Failure to Comply

21.

22.

23.

Where the report concludes that there is no evidence of failure to comply
with the Code of Conduct, the Monitoring Officer will review the report in
consultation with the Independent Person.

If satisfied with the conclusions, the Complainant, Subject Member and
the Town or Parish Clerk ( if appropriate) will be notified within 15
working days that no further action will be taken and will be given a copy
of the final report.

If after consultation with the Independent Person the Monitoring Officer is
not satisfied that the investigation has been concluded properly she may
ask the Independent Investigator to reconsider the report and / or refer
the matter to the Standards Hearing sub committee for a formal hearing
of the issues.
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External Investigation — Evidence of Failure to Comply

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Where the report concludes that there has been a failure to comply with
the provisions of the Code of Conduct the matter will be referred to the
Standards Hearing sub committee who will conduct a hearing to
determine if the Subject Member has failed to comply with the provisions
of the Code and if so what sanction is appropriate.

The Hearing sub committee will consider the matter afresh having regard
to the Investigators findings and all relevant evidence presented by the
Complainant and Subject Member.

The Independent Person will be present at the hearing and will be
consulted and his/ her views taken into account before any decision is
reached.

The Hearing sub committee will announce its decision at the end of the
hearing and a formal Decision Notice will be prepared and sent to all
relevant parties within 5 working days. The Decision Notice will be
published on the Council’'s website and reported to the next meeting of
the Audit and Governance Committee.

Meetings of the Hearing sub committee will be subject to the normal
rules for publication of agendas and access to information.

29. There will be a right of appeal of the decision of the Hearing sub
committee.

Right of Appeal

30. Any appeal by the Subject Member must be lodged within 14 days of the

31.

32.

33.

decision of the Hearing sub committee. A meeting of the Standards
Appeals Panel will then be convened within 21 days.

The Appeals Panel will comprise 3 Members from the Audit and
Governance pool of 15 Members sitting with an Independent Person.
Neither the Members nor the Independent Person will have previously
been involved in the particular case.

The appeal will be by way of a complete re hearing of the issues and will
not be confined to new evidence or only on specified grounds. The
Appeals Panel may dismiss or uphold the appeal and reconsider the
range of sanctions available to the Hearing sub-committee.

The decision of the Appeals Panel is final.
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Independent Person

34. The Council has appointed 4 Independent Persons

35. The Subject Member has the opportunity to consult the Independent
Person at any stage in the investigation process and prior to the final
determination.

Membership of Panels / sub committees

36. If a Member has sat on a Local Resolution Panel which refers a matter
for external investigation then he or she may not subsequently sit on any
Hearing sub committee.

Vexatious Complaints

37. The Council will maintain a list of vexatious or repeated complaints and

will report any concerns regarding abuse of the process to the Audit and
Governance Committee.

September 2012
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